
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P L A N N I N G  S U B -
C O M M I T T E E  

   

Wednesday, 3rd September, 2008 
 

at 6.30 pm 
   

Council Chamber 
  
 Committee Members: 
 Cllr Barry Buitekant, Cllr Michael Desmond (Vice-Chair), 

Cllr Ian Sharer, Cllr Simon Tesler, Cllr Linda Smith, 
Cllr Joseph Stauber, Cllr Vincent Stops (Chair), 
Cllr Katie Hanson and Cllr Jessica Webb 

  

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Contact: Emma Perry 
Tel: 020 8356 3338 
Email: Emma.Perry@hackney.gov.uk 



 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, 3rd September, 2008 

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Title Ward Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence    

2. Members to Agree the Order of Business    

3. Declarations of Interest    

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 24 July 2008   (Pages 1 - 42) 

5. Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 4 August 2008   (Pages 43 - 
110) 

6. Senate House, Tyssen Street  Dalston (Pages 111 - 
130) 

7. Babik House, 124 - 130 Shacklewell Lane  Dalston (Pages 131 - 
152) 

8. Avigdor Site, 65-67 Lordship Road  Lordship (Pages 153 - 
156) 

9. Olympics and Paralympics Site - Hackney and 
adjoining Boroughs: Land between River Lea 
Navigation, A12 East Cross Route, River Lea and 
Silverlink Railway Line  

 (Pages 157 - 
168) 

10. James Taylor Building, Collent Street  Chatham (Pages 169 - 
200) 

11. HANOVER IN HACKNEY PLANNING 
APPLICATIONS - INTRODUCTION  

 (Pages 201 - 
202) 

12. A. Appleton Court, 5 Marcon Place  Hackney Central (Pages 203 - 
214) 

13. B. Plumpton Lodge, 59 Caldecott Way  Kings Park (Pages 215 - 
226) 

14. C. Keswick Lodge, Cumberland Close  Dalston (Pages 227 - 
238) 

15. D. Newnton Close, Woodberry Down Estate  Brownswood (Pages 239 - 
250) 



16. E. Bayton Court, Lansdowne Drive  Queensbridge (Pages 251 - 
262) 

17. F. 2-20 Lauriston  Victoria (Pages 263 - 
272) 

18. G. Benabo Court, Ferncliffe Road  Hackney Central (Pages 273 - 
282) 

19. H. 303 Green Lanes  Brownswood (Pages 283 - 
292) 

20. I. Cester Street  Haggerston (Pages 293 - 
302) 

21. J. Morrel Court, 91 Goldsmiths Row  Haggerston (Pages 303 - 
312) 

22. K. Parton Lodge, 16 Laurel Street  Dalston (Pages 313 - 
322) 

23. L. Thirlmere House, Howard Road  Clissold (Pages 323 - 
378) 

24. Site Adjacent to 49 Glenarm Road   (Pages 379 - 
390) 

25. St Mary's Old Church, Stoke Newington Church 
Street  

 (Pages 391 - 
414) 

26. 10 Mountgrove Road  Brownswood (Pages 415 - 
422) 

27. 13 Gunton Road  Leabridge (Pages 423 - 
432) 

28. 157 Blackstock Road  Brownswood (Pages 433 - 
440) 

29. No.s 1-22 Bramfield Court, 1-47 Theobalds Court 
& 20-42  

 (Pages 441 - 
450) 

30. Delegated Decisions - July 2008   (Pages 451 - 
496) 

 
 



 

Access and Information 
 

Location 

 
Hackney Town Hall is on Mare Street, bordered by Wilton Way and Reading Lane, almost 
directly opposite The Ocean. 
 
 
Trains – Hackney Central Station (Silverlink Line) – Turn right on leaving the station, turn right 
again at the traffic lights into Mare Street, walk 200 metres and look for the Hackney Town Hall, 
almost next to The Empire immediately after Wilton Way. 
 
 
Buses 30, 48, 55, 106, 236, 254, 277, 394, D6 and W15. 
 
 

Facilities 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the Town Hall. 
 
Induction loop facilities are available in Rooms 102 and the Council Chamber 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the 
main Town Hall entrance. 
 

Copies of the Agenda 
The Hackney website contains a full database of meeting agendas, reports and minutes. Log 
on at: www.hackney.gov.uk 
Paper copies are also available from local libraries and from Democratic Services officer whose 
contact details are shown on page 2 of the agenda.  
 

Local Democracy Website –  www .hackney.gov.uk  
The Local Democracy section of the Hackney Council website contains full details about the 
democratic process at Hackney, including: 

• Councillor contact details 
• Information about MPs, MEPs and GLA members 
• Agendas, reports and minutes from council meetings 
• The council’s constitution 
• Overview and Scrutiny information 
• Details and links to area forums and local consultations 
• And more. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council including the 
Mayor, co-opted Members and independent Members.  
 
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring interests. 
However, you may often need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an interest 
in a particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact: 

• The Corporate Director of Legal and Democratic Services; 
• another Council lawyer; or 
• Democratic Services. 

 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before the 
meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.  
 

 

 
You will have a personal interest in a matter if it:  

 
i. relates to an interest that you have already registered on the Register of 

Interests; 
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered but you have not yet done 

so; or 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of members of your 

family or your close associates, to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of people in the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Note: The definition of family is very wide and includes a partner, step-relations and in-
laws. A “close associate” is someone whom a reasonable member of the public might 
think you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage. 
 
 
 

i. declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant 
agenda item) at the beginning of the meeting, before it is discussed or as 
soon as it becomes apparent to you; but  

 
ii. you can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the matter unless the 

personal interest is also prejudicial. 
 
However, in certain circumstances you may have an exemption which means that you 
might not have to declare your interest. 
 
Exemption 1: You will have an exemption where your interest arises solely from your 
membership of or position of control/management in: 

• a body to which you have been appointed or nominated by the  authority; and/or 
• a body exercising functions of a public nature (e.g. another local  authority). 
 

Exemption 2: You will have an exemption if your personal interest is simply having 
received a gift or hospitality over £25 which you registered more than 3 years ago. 
 
If you have an exemption: 

i. you need only declare your interest if you address the meeting; and 
ii. you can vote without declaring the interest providing you do not speak. 

1.  Do you have a personal interest in any matter on the agenda or 
which is being considered at the meeting? 

 

 

2.  If you have a personal interest you must: 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS 
 



 
 
 

 
Your personal interest will also be prejudicial if a member of the public who knows the 
relevant facts would reasonably think the personal interest is so significant that it is likely 
to prejudice your judgement of the public interest; and  
 

i. either the matter affects your financial position or the financial position of 
any person or body through whom you have a personal interest; or 

ii. the matter relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration that affects you or any relevant person or body 
with which you have a personal interest. 

 
Exemptions: You will not have a prejudicial interest if the matter relates to the following:   
 

i. the Council’s housing functions - if you hold a lease or tenancy with the 
Council, provided that the matter under consideration is not your own 
lease or tenancy; 

ii. school meals, transport or travel expenses – if you are the parent or 
guardian of a child of school age, provided that the matter under 
consideration is not the school the child attends; 

iii. statutory sick pay; 
iv. Members’ allowances; 
v. ceremonial honours for Members; or 
vi. setting the Council Tax. 

 
 
 

 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the 

relevant agenda item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  
 

ii. Leave the room unless members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the 
matter. If that is the case, you can also attend to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the 
matter.  

 
iii. Once you have finished making representations, answering 

questions etc., you must leave the room. You cannot stay in the 
room whilst the matter is being discussed neither can you remain in 
the public gallery to observe the vote on the matter. In addition, you 
must not seek to improperly influence a decision about the matter.  

 
 
 
 
 
Advice can be obtained from Amanda Kelly, Interim Corporate Director Legal and 
Democratic Services, on 020 8356 3345 or email Amanda.Kelly@hackney.gov.uk 
 
Guidance is also available from the Standards Board for England’s website: 
www.standardsboard.gov.uk/TheCodeofConduct/Guidance/ 

 

3. When will a personal interest also be prejudicial? 
 

 

4. If you have a prejudicial interest you must: 
 

 

Further Information 
 



 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Minutes of the proceedings of the Planning Sub-Committee held  
on Wednesday 24 July 2008 

 
Councillors present: 
 
Councillors Vincent Stops (Chair), Michael Desmond (Vice-Chair), Barry 
Buitekant, Katie Hanson, Joseph Stauber and Jessica Webb.  
 
Councillor Bell (Substitute for Councillor Smith) and Councillor Shaikh (Substitute 
for Councillor Tesler).  
 
Officers in attendance: 
 
Graham Loveland, Interim Head of Regulatory Services 
Sue Foster, Assistant Director Regeneration and Planning  
Femi Nwanze, Planning Applications Manager 
John McRory, Team Leader, Major Applications 
Adam Flynn, Planning Officer, Major Team 
Anthony Traub, Senior Planner, Major Team 
Gillian Nicks, Deputy Team Leader, Major Applications & Appeals 
Ray Rogers, Urban Design and Conservation Manager 
Andrew Dillon, Deputy Team Leader, Area Team 
Ron Madell, Appeals Officer 
Roger Blake, Principal Planner, Traffic & Transport  
John Kaimakamis, Senior Planning Officer  
Rokos Frangos, Senior Planning Officer  
Fred Raphael, Highways Officer 
Rosemary Lansdowne, Principal Solicitor 
Emma Perry, Democratic Services Officer  
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Smith and Tesler.  
 
2. MEMBERS TO AGREE THE ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
1.1. The order of business remained as per the agenda.  
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
3.1 Councillor Buitekant declared a personal and potentially prejudicial 

interest in Item 5, as he had previously been involved with the Haggerston 
West Estate management meetings and left the Chamber during 
discussion of the item.  

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2 

3.2 Councillor Hanson declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest in Item 6, 
as she knew one of the advisors to the Council.  

 
4. MINUTES OF 4 JUNE 2008 
 
4.1 RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of 4 June 2008 be 

APPROVED as a true and accurate record of the meeting, subject to the 
following amendment: 
§ Item 7, add paragraph 7.11 – Councillor Hanson raised the issue of 

the gap between the two buildings and asked the applicant whether 
this would be public access.  The applicant confirmed that this 
would be a public access route.  

 
 
5. HAGGERSTON WEST ESTATE – E8 AND KINGSLAND ESTATE – E2, 

LONDON, E2: 2007/2889 
 

The demolition of 486 dwellings and redevelopment of the sites with a 
total of 761 dwellings (248 rented, 170 intermediate and 343 private for 
sale), comprising 1-bed, 2-bed and 3-bed flats, 3-bed, 4-bed and 5-bed 
houses and 4-bed maisonettes.  New community centre, including 
community multi-purpose hall, community offices and meeting room, youth 
club, classes, IT room, nursery (approximate total area of 1,374 sq. m – 
Use Class D1), Number of Ten retail / commercial units: (approximate 
total area of 548 m2 – within Use Classes A1/A2/A3/A4/A5/B1/D1). 
Structural landscaping, provision of public open space and creation of new 
vehicular, cycle and pedestrian routes within the estate (55% affordable 
housing units). Car parking proposed on new roads (approximately 48); 
undercroft (approximately 213). 
An Environmental Statement (ES) has been submitted with the outline 
planning application. 

 
(Councillor Buitekant left the chamber during the discussion of the item.)  

 
5.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda.  
 
5.2 Councillor Plouviez spoke in objection of the scheme, on behalf of 

residents, her comments are summarised as follows:- 
 

§ Residents were not objecting to the idea of development, which 
was encouraged, however they wanted to ensure that it was of an 
excellent standard. 

§ The following concerns had been raised by residents: 
§ The height of the building – 10 storeys. 
§ Density of the scheme 

Page 2



 3 

§ Public transport – overcrowding on buses, although the 
extension of the East London Line was acknowledged. 

§ Shortages of local schools in the area.  
§ The provision of facilities for the youth should be sufficient 

and residents kept informed. A lack of facilities for the youth 
was currently a problem on the estate.  

 
5.3 Andy Clarke, PRP Architects, responded to the comments raised by 

Councillor Plouviez:- 
 

§ Doesn’t believe that the scheme represents overdevelopment.   
§ Worked closely with the Council and the GLA to ensure that the 

development is appropriate for the location. 
§ Committed to high quality development.  

 
5.4 Debra Herring and Lorna Meade, Haggerston West & Kingsland EDMC, 

spoke in support of the scheme, their comments are summarised as 
follows:- 

 
§ They were democratically elected to their positions and the 

Haggerston West & Kingsland EDMC has been functioning for over 
7 years.  

§ Many of the properties within the estate were in a poor state of 
disrepair and a number of them were without central heating.   

§ The new scheme would create a safe environment for residents 
and provide a new community centre.  

§ The new scheme provides modern standards of living, improved 
security and communal areas.  

§ Numerous consultation events have taken place to inform residents 
of the proposals and to give them a chance to respond and have 
their say.  

§ A ballot was undertaken in 2007, with a 70% turn out.  Of the total 
number of residents who voted, 82% voted in support of the new 
development and 92% of leaseholders also voted in support of the 
development.  

§ The development has received support from local stakeholders, as 
well as central government.  

 
5.5 The Committee raised concern over several aspects of the podium and 

undercroft parking:- 
 

§ The amenity space/landscaped areas would be above ground level. 
§ The undercroft parking would present design problems – vents, 

single aspect flats etc. 

Page 3



 4 

§ Members experience of underground parking was not good and the 
management of underground parking was notoriously difficult in an 
urban environment such as Hackney.  

 
5.6 The Committee requested that consideration be given to other solutions to 

parking issues on the estates and that the Design Review Panel also look 
at this application.  This was AGREED.  

 
5.7 Andy Clarke, PRP Architects, responded by stating that they had 

experience of managing similar schemes with underground parking and 
they believed the balance of buildings within the development was 
sustainable. The car parking blocks would be discreet with CCTV and 
would be sufficiently ventilated by the courtyard.  

 
5.8 Councillor Stauber made reference to the loss of social units from the 

existing estate and whether this would result in less residents benefiting 
from the scheme.  The case officer explained that out of a total of 418 
affordable units; at least 248 would be for social rented and 170 
‘intermediate’ affordable units.  The number of larger units had also been 
reduced, however the amount of floor space had either been maintained 
or increased.  He confirmed that this complied with policy.  

 
5.9 Councillor Desmond referred to the allocation of business 

accommodation, as this was less than 10% and asked whether any other 
amenities or community facilities would be provided on-site.   He also 
made reference to the density of the scheme and asked if soundproofing 
had been included and if it was felt that the density was appropriate for the 
location. 

 
5.10 The case officer explained that the proposal included the provision of a 

new community hall and an increase in retail/commercial space.  
Soundproofing was also covered by condition 16, as detailed in the report.  

 
5.11 The Chair asked why the scheme had not been integrated with the canal 

and it was explained that a suggestion had been made to close Dunston 
Road, however this had been rejected by the highways department.  Both 
the developer and residents were supportive of the road closure and so 
the Chair requested that this be investigated further by the Highways 
Officer in attendance.  This was AGREED.  

 
 RESOLVED that:- 
 

(A) Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions and any direction by the Mayor of London: 

 
 

Page 4



 5 

 1. SCB3 Time limit 
 The development to which the permission relates must be begun 
not later than whichever is the later of the following dates:- 

 
a) The expiry of three years from the date of permission, or 
b) The expiry of two years from the final approval of the reserved 

matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved. 

  
 REASON: As required by Section 92(2) of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
 2. Phasing and Design 

a) The development shall be implemented in accordance with 
submitted Parameter plan No A3039/2.1/03 ‘Demolition and 
Construction Phasing Plan’, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.   

 
REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority can be 
satisfied that the phasing of the development will be satisfactory. 

 
b)  All aspects of the development, including materials and those 

matters subsequently the subject of Reserved Matters 
approval shall be in accordance with the principles as set out 
within the Design Code submitted and agreed as part of this 
outline planning application and after suitable agreed forms of 
consultation with local residents’.    

 
REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority can be 
satisfied that the principles embodied in the Design Code of the 
development are carried forward into all aspects of the 
development.   

 
 3. Construction  

  The Applicant shall submit to the Planning Authority and resubmit 
as necessary the following: 

 
a) A  Completed Construction Programme, including construction 

traffic routing, prior to the commencement of the development 
b) A Construction Method Statement prior to commencement of 

each Phase of development 
c) A Considerate Contractors Agreement to be agreed by each 

developer for the relevant Phase prior to commencement of 
each relevant Phase 

d) Details of the provision of parking/loading/visitors for 
construction of each phases  

Page 5



 6 

e) Details of the provisions shall be made within the site to 
ensure that all vehicles associated with the demolition and 
construction of the development hereby approved are properly 
cleaned. Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles 
leaving the site during construction works shall be installed in 
accordance with details approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of works on site. 

 
 REASON: To prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the 

adjoining highway in the interest of highway safety. 
 
 4. ES Conditions 

The development hereby permitted shall be strictly in accordance 
with the approved Parameter drawings and other supporting 
application documents unless otherwise approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development is completed in 
accordance with the Environmental Assessment in compliance with 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999 

 
 5. Reserved Matters 

  This is an outline planning permission and the following matters are 
reserved for further approval: 

 
• Design;  
• External Appearance; and  
• Landscaping.   

 
Detailed drawings of the proposed development showing the 
reserved and the following other matters, as set out below, must be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before any relevant work is commenced: 

 
a) The layout of each Phase of the site to a scale of not less than 

1:500 and incorporating: 
i)      The siting of all buildings and ancillary structures  
ii) The means of access to and from the site  

b) Full plans and elevations of all buildings and other structures 
showing the design and external appearance of the buildings 
and structures, and including details of all materials to be used 
for external surfaces for the  relevant Phase 

c) The internal layout of the accommodation on each floor, 
including the size and purpose of the rooms and the position 

Page 6



 7 

of the fittings and facilities within each unit for the relevant 
Phase 

d) Details of residential uses of each Phase, including size, 
number, tenure and habitable rooms  

e) Residential amenity space details for each Phase prior to 
commencement of works to that Phase  

f) The extent and position within the building(s) of the floorspace 
to be devoted to each use hereby permitted for the relevant 
Phase 

g) Details of public open space for each Phase, detailing: 
location; boundaries; rights of ownership and maintenance 
details 

h) The means of enclosure on all site boundaries, indicating 
clearly which are existing and which are proposed, and 
including full details of height, materials and construction for 
the relevant Phase 

i) The facilities to be provided for the storage and removal of 
waste materials for the relevant Phase 

j) The provisions to be made within the development to ensure 
that people with disabilities are able to gain full access to – 
and make adequate use of – the accommodation and open 
areas to be provided. 

 
 The application for approval of the reserved matters and other 
matters set out above must be made not later than the expiry of 
three years, beginning with the date of this permission. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the reserved matters thus approved. 

 
  REASON: To ensure the satisfactory design, layout and external 

appearance of the development and to ensure that the proposed 
development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic and 
conditions of general safety along the neighbouring highway. 

 
  6. Adaptability and Access 

a) All residential units hereby approved shall be constructed to 
conform to the Lifetime Homes standards as specified in 
‘Meeting Part M and designing Lifetime Homes’ (published in 
1999), in accordance with the submitted information, unless 
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority.’ 

 
 REASON: In order to ensure that the dwellings are capable of 

use or adaptation for a wide range of future household needs, 
including people with disabilities. 

 

Page 7



 8 

b) A level access shall be provided to all ground floor units 
hereby approved before the use is first commenced. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are 
able to gain proper access to the development. 

 
c) 10% of the units hereby approved shall be wheelchair 

adaptable as detailed within the submitted plans.’ 
 

  REASON: In order to ensure that the development caters for 
special access needs of people with disabilities. 

 
 7. External Appearance 

a) Full details, including samples, of the materials to be used on 
the external surfaces of the building, including glazing, for 
each relevant Phase shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the 
building is satisfactory and does not detract from the character 
and visual amenity of the area. 

 
b) A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings for 

each Phase shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, in writing, before any work commences on 
site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and 
showing areas to be grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in 
accordance with the scheme, when approved, shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which 
the development of the site commences or shall be carried out 
in the first planting (and seeding) season following completion 
of the development, and shall be maintained to the satisfaction 
of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that 
die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   

 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide 
reasonable environmental standards in the interests of the 
appearance of the site and area. 

 
c) Full details of all ground surface treatment to the site shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 

Page 8



 9 

writing, before any work on the site is commenced. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the 
building is satisfactory and does not detract from the visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
8. Transport & Highways 
 Detailed drawings of the following matters must be submitted to 

and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any 
relevant work is commenced: 

 
a) The layout plans of the site to incorporate: 

1. Car parking details at an overall maximum provision of 
35% per dwelling; 
Details of car parking provisions and facilities for Use 
Classes A, B and D uses for each relevant Phase; 

2. Details of any changes to Controlled Parking Zones; 
3. Details of cycle parking provisions including numbers, 

covered and secure provisions for each Phase; 
4. Details of a quiet route through the site for cyclists; 
5. Details of all emergency access arrangements suitable 

for police, fire and ambulance service use. 
 

The development for each relevant Phase shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the above 
matters as approved by the Local Planning Authority: 

 
 REASON: To ensure the satisfactory design, layout and 

external appearance of the development and to ensure that 
the proposed development does not prejudice the free flow 
of traffic and conditions of general safety along the 
neighbouring highway. 

 
b) Before the use hereby permitted first commences, at least 

10% of the car parking spaces (for 2 bed or larger dwellings) 
shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the 
vehicles of people with disabilities at locations close to the 
entrances to the building(s). 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of 
parking spaces are located conveniently for use by people 
with disabilities. 

 

Page 9



 10 

c) The transport and highway aspects of the development shall 
be designed to be capable of approval under Highway 
Safety Audit Stages 1 and 2 – Safety in Design  

 
 REASON: To ensure that the traffic and highway design of 

the scheme does not detract from the safety of highway 
users, in accordance with Hackney UDP Policy TR16. 

 
d) The layout and design of all aspects of the scheme should 

be to a standard capable of achieving accreditation under 
the ‘Secure by Design’ or an agreed equivalent scheme. 

  
e) Adequate visibility shall be provided to the highway within 

the application site above a height of one metre from 
footpath level for a distance of three metres on one/both 
side(s) of the permitted points of vehicular access, in 
accordance with details to be approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before any work on the site is 
commenced, and be so maintained. 

 
 REASON: To provide a suitable standard of visibility to and 

from the highway and to ensure that the use of the access 
does not prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of 
general safety along the neighbouring highway. 

 
f) Details of other new roads prior to commencement of each 

Quarter/Phase of development 
 

h) The layout of the site to a scale of not less than 1:500; 
incorporating full details of Junctions 1 to 18. 

 
REASON: To ensure the satisfactory design, layout and 
external appearance of the development and to ensure that 
the proposed development does not prejudice the free flow 
of traffic and conditions of general safety along the 
neighbouring highway.  

 
j) The layout of the site to a scale of not less than 1:500; 

incorporating full details of modified roads for each Quarter 
or Phase. 

 
REASON: To ensure the satisfactory design, layout and 
external appearance of the development and to ensure that 
the proposed development does not prejudice the free flow 
of traffic and conditions of general safety along the 
neighbouring highway. 

Page 10



 11 

k) No part of the development hereby approved shall be 
occupied until accommodation for car parking, turning and 
loading/unloading has been provided in accordance with the 
approved plans, and such accommodation shall be retained 
permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used 
for any other purposes. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does 
not prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the 
neighbouring highway(s) and to ensure the permanent 
retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
l) Vehicular access to the site shall be only via the permitted 

access. 
 
 REASON: In order to confine access to the permitted 

point(s) to ensure that the development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety along 
the neighbouring highway. 

  
  Travel Plan 

m) Prior to first occupation of the any part of the proposed 
development, a Travel Plan, incorporating the elements set 
out in the Travel Plan Criteria at the First Schedule shall 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Approved Travel Plan shall then be 
implemented prior to the use commencing and shall be so 
maintained for the duration of the use, unless prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority is obtained in 
writing. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the travel arrangements for the 
development are appropriate and to limit the effects of the 
increase in travel movements. 

 
n) Details of continuing implementation and monitoring of the 

Travel Plans as required in Condition (m), shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for a period of 2 years from 
first occupation of each Phase.  

 
 REASON: To ensure that the travel arrangements are 

appropriate, and to limit the effects of the increase in travel 
movements.  

 

Page 11



 12 

o) No construction shall commence on any new public highway 
works until a suitable Agreement has been entered into with 
the Local Highway Authority pursuant to S38 Highways Act 
1980. 

  
REASON: To ensure that details of construction and 
implementation are acceptable in highway terms.   

 
  Access Closures 

p) Within two months of completion of each phase of the 
proposed development, as identified on the application 
drawings, any redundant accesses located within the area of 
development of that phase and not incorporated in the 
development shall be permanently closed with the kerbs, 
footway and verge reinstated in accordance with details to 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

 
REASON: To limit the number of access points along the 
site boundary for the safety and convenience of highway 
users in accordance with Policy TR9 and TR10 of the UDP. 

 
    Car Parking  

q) None of the on-street parking provision shall be made 
available for new residential occupiers in the development, 
apart from those residing in the Haggerston West and 
Kingsland estate development site at time of submission of 
this application. 

 
REASON: In order to cater for only the needs of existing 
residents, in pursuance of aims of minimisation of car usage 
arising from the development in an area of increasing 
accessibility to good public transport links. 

 
  Highway Works 

r) No construction shall commence until such time as the 
Applicant has entered into a legal Agreement with the 
Council pursuant to S278 Highways Act 1980 substantially in 
the format appended at Second Schedule to cover the 
following works to the public highway: 

 
• Provision of a new pedestrian crossing to Whiston Road; 
• All consequential highway junction and pavement works; 
• Provision of new parking bays; 
• Revised highway layout for Haggerston Road ; 

 

Page 12



 13 

 REASON: To ensure that details of construction and 
implementation are acceptable in highway terms. 

 
9. Environment Agency 

a) A water efficiency scheme is to be submitted for approval by 
the Local Planning Authority detailing water efficiency 
measures along with rainwater harvesting and grey water 
reuse.  Where measures are not being used reasons should 
be provided. 

 
REASON: There is a high demand for limited water 
resources in this area, therefore we need to manage water 
use wisely to meet the needs of society and the 
environment. 

 
b) Before the development is commenced a detailed site 

investigation shall be carried out to establish if the site is 
contaminated, to assess the degree and nature of the 
contamination present, and to determine it potential for 
pollution of the water environment.  The method and extent 
of this site investigation shall be agreed with the Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of the work.  Details of 
appropriate measures to prevent pollution of ground water 
and surface water, including provisions for monitoring, shall 
then be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority before development commences.  The 
development shall then proceed in strict accordance with the 
measures approved. 

 
REASON: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 

 
c) Condition: The construction of the foul and surface drainage 

system shall be carried out in accordance with details 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority before the development commences. 

 
REASON: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 

 
d) Condition: The construction of storage facilities for oils, fuels 

or chemicals shall be carried out in accordance with details 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before development is commenced. 

 
REASON: To prevent solid materials from entering the 
Regent’s Canal and causing pollution. 

 

Page 13



 14 

e) Condition: During construction no solid matter shall be 
stored within 10 metres of the banks of the Regent’s Canal 
and thereafter no storage of materials shall be permitted in 
this area. 

 
REASON: To prevent solid materials from entering the 
Regent’s Canal and causing pollution. 

 
f) Condition: Prior to commencement of development a 

landscape management plan, including long term design 
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules  for all landscaped areas (except privately owned 
domestic gardens), shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The landscape 
management plan shall be carried out as approved. 

 
REASON: This condition is necessary to protect the natural 
features and character of the area and identify opportunities 
for enhancement of biodiversity in line with national planning 
policy in PPS9. 

 
g) Condition: The surface water drainage works shall be carried 

out in accordance with details submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 
the Environment Agency prior to development 
commencement. 

 
REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding and improving water 
quality. 

 
 10. Environmental Health 

a) Details of Street Cleansing arrangements for each Quarter to 
be submitted prior to commencement of construction, and  

 
 REASON: To ensure the implementation of the Council’s 

street cleansing  policies.  
 

b) Details of a Waste Management and Recycling Plan to be 
submitted prior to the occupation of each Quarter or Phase.   

 
 REASON: To ensure the implementation of the Council’s 

waste  management and recycling policies.   
 

  11. Energy & other Sustainability Issues 
a) The approved housing shall be constructed to a minimum 

Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 standard in the case of 

Page 14



 15 

Phase 1, and Level 4 in the case of Phase 2 of the 
development. Details of the independent code assessors 
report shall be submitted prior to any work occurring on the 
relevant part of the development. Details of the final Code 
Assessment for dwellings or groups of dwellings shall be 
submitted and approved in writing as soon as they have 
been carried out, prior to first occupation of those dwellings. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the development makes a 

contribution to the energy and resource efficiency priorities 
and other sustainability objectives which are embodied in the 
government’s Code for Sustainable Homes accreditation 
scheme. 

 
b) The proposed development hereby approved shall be 

carried out in accordance with the information and detailed 
proposals contained in the submitted Energy Strategy in 
relation to the whole development, and shall include a 
minimum size of 105kw CHP plant to be installed. A further 
assessment of CHP sizing should be undertaken when an 
energy supply provider (ESCo) is chosen.’ 

 
 REASON: So that the development accords with the aims of 

the London Plan, Hackney UDP and emerging Core Strategy 
to maximise the availability of renewable forms of energy.  

 
c) Details of the fuel sourcing arrangements, plant and 

equipment and treatment of predicted biomass or other 
emissions for the community heating systems shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to installation or commencement of 
operations, and the systems shall be installed in accordance 
with such approved details. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that there are no undue impacts on 

amenity, design, transport movements or air quality arising 
at detailed design stage.  

 
d)  The proposed development hereby approved shall be 

carried out in accordance with the updated sustainability 
strategy (dated July 2008) submitted in support of the 
application and include the measures as specified within the 

Page 15



 16 

submitted document, unless otherwise agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority.’ 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the development makes a 

contribution to the energy and resource efficiency priorities 
and other sustainability objectives which are embodied in the 
Mayor of London’s Supplementary Guidance on Sustainable 
Design and Construction. 

 
e) Full details of a biodiverse, substrate-based (75mm 

minimum depth) extensive 'brown/green’ roof shall be 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before any building works commence. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   

 
 REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the 

development and the river corridor, to provide undisturbed 
refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the 
proposed building. 

 
f) Before development commences in each Phase, details of 

how the following measures are being utilised shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 
• Water recycling measures 
• Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
• Recharging points for electric vehicles 
 

 12. Contamination 
 Prior to the commencement of works, a detailed site investigation 

for each Phase shall be carried out to establish if the site is 
contaminated, to assess the degree and nature of the 
contamination present, and to determine its potential for the 
pollution of the water environment. A soil contamination report shall 
be submitted to, and appropriate remedial measures agreed with, 
the Local Planning Authority, in writing, and implemented prior to 
the commencement of any work on site. 

 
 REASON: To establish whether there are any land decontamination 

measures required to prepare the site for development. 
 
 
 

Page 16



 17 

 13. Archaeology 
No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation for each Phase, 
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall only take place in 
accordance with the detailed scheme approved pursuant to this 
condition. The archaeological works shall be carried out by a 
suitably qualified investigating body acceptable to the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To safeguard the archaeological interest of the site, 
which is within an Area of Archaeological Priority. 

 
 14. Trees 

a) Before development commences in each Phase, a detailed 
Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating 
precise location, species, height and condition of each tree 
accurately plotted and showing which trees are to be 
retained and which are proposed for felling shall be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work 
commences on site. 

 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide 
reasonable environmental standards in the interests of the 
appearance of the site and area. 

 
b)    No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall 

commence until chestnut paling fencing of a height not less 
than 1.2 metres shall have been erected around each tree or 
tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius from the 
trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be 
maintained during the course of development to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during 

building operation and site works. 
 

 15. Lighting 
(a)  Prior to the commencement of the development, details of a 

lighting strategy for the development site shall be submitted, 
setting out the general distribution and design guidelines for 
all installations in the development and its public realm areas 
in accordance with the Council's adopted Public Realm 
Design Guide. 

Page 17



 18 

 REASON: To ensure that the principles of location and 
design of external lighting are acceptable in terms of 
adopted design principles, including the Haggerston West 
and Kingsland Design Code, and enhance public safety and 
crime prevention. 

 
(b)  Prior to the development commencing in the relevant Phase, 

details of lighting of all public areas shall be submitted. The 
approved lighting shall be installed before any use in the 
relevant Phase commences and maintained thereafter. Prior 
to the commencement in the relevant Phase, full details of 
the lighting of all buildings shall be submitted.  The approved 
lighting shall be installed before the relevant use and 
maintained thereafter. 

   
 REASON: To ensure that the detailed location and design of 

external lighting are acceptable in terms of adopted design 
principles, including the Haggerston West and Kingsland 
Design Code, and enhance public safety and crime 
prevention. 

   
 16. Noise/Extraction 

(a)  Before development commences in each Phase, details of 
the following shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and the approved measures 
implemented:  
• soundproofing of premises; 
• insulation of premises (including ventilation);  
• extraction of fumes (for any Class A3, A4 and A5 uses); 
• Details of insulation of plant/machinery before use on 

any non-residential building; 
• Noise/Vibration report details for the community heating 

facilities; 
• Details of the hours of public opening and servicing 

(deliveries and collections) for each commercial use 
prior to occupation of the relevant premises; 

 
  REASON: To ensure no undue loss of amenity for nearby 

occupiers or prospective occupiers or prospective occupiers 
of the development. 

  
(b)  Noise from extractors or flues shall not exceed the 

background noise of noise sensitive or residential premises, 
in accordance with details of noise levels to be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority beforehand. 

  

Page 18



 19 

REASON: To ensure no undue loss of amenity for nearby 
occupiers or prospective occupiers or prospective occupiers 
of the development. 

  
c)  No development shall commence on site until detailed plans 

and a specification of the appearance of and the equipment 
comprising a ventilation system which shall include 
measures to alleviate noise, vibration, fumes and odours 
(and incorporating active carbon filters, silencer(s), and anti-
vibration mountings where necessary) have been submitted 
to the local planning authority.  After the system has been 
approved in writing by the authority, it shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved plans and specification before 
the development hereby approved first commences, and 
shall thereafter be permanently maintained in accordance 
with the approved specification. 

 
 REASON: To ensure no undue loss of amenity for nearby 

occupiers or prospective occupiers or prospective occupiers 
of the development. 

 
 17. Housing  

a) The development shall provide at least 418 affordable 
housing units (55% of the accommodation), to include at 
least 248 social rented units and 170 ‘intermediate’ 
affordable units, comprised as follows:  
social rented: 28 one bed, 65 two bed and 104 three bed 
flats; plus 17 three bed houses, 28 four bed houses and 6 
five bed houses;  
Intermediate: 37 one bed, 103 two bed and 15 three bed 
flats; 15 four bed houses.  

 
REASON: To ensure that the development accords with the 
Council's and London Plan affordable housing and housing 
mix planning policy objectives.  

 
b) No part of the development shall be used and/or occupied 

until such time as the 418 Affordable Housing Units have 
been transferred to a Housing Association registered with 
the Housing Corporation pursuant to Section 1 of the 
Housing Act 1996 and approved by the Council to secure the 
Affordable Housing. 

  
 REASON: To ensure that the development accords with the 

Council's and London Plan affordable housing and housing 
mix policy objectives.  

Page 19



 20 

c)  75% of social rented units shall be designed to meet ‘Parker 
Morris + 10%’ accommodation standards, with a minimum 
total floorspace of 20,891 sq m.  

 
 REASON: To ensure that the development accommodates 

all residents seeking to return after completion, and to further 
the Council's and London Plan affordable housing and 
housing mix policy objectives.  

 
 18. Health, Education, Learning and Community  

a) The development shall ensure that there is suitable provision 
for health facilities, primary and secondary education for the 
additional residents in the completed development, in 
accordance with details to be approved and implemented 
prior to occupation of any of the development.   

 
 REASON: To ensure that provision is made for health and 

educational needs arising from the development, in 
accordance with Policy CS2 of the Hackney UDP. 

 
b) Details of a suitable scheme (site-specific or area-based) 

construction training programme aimed at enhancing access 
to employment and acquisition of construction and allied 
skills shall be approved in writing and implemented or 
utilised as an integral part of the demolition and construction 
programme for the development.      

 
REASON: To ensure that provision is made for educational 
needs arising from the development, in accordance with 
Policy CS2 of the Hackney UDP. 

 
c) The new community facility within Block A shall be 

constructed and fitted out and details of a suitable 
management body approved prior to occupation of any of 
the dwellings within Block A of the development.    

 
 REASON: To ensure that provision is made for community 

groups and activities to serve residents within the 
development, in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Hackney 
UDP. 

 
19. Open Space and Play Spaces 

a)  Details of management arrangements to secure the 
maintenance of internal roads, play and public open spaces 
and landscape shall be approved prior to commencement of 
any new development. 

Page 20



 21 

REASON: To ensure that open areas of the site do not 
deteriorate visually, in the interests of visual amenity across 
this substantial area.   

 
b) The playspaces shown in the Play Strategy shall be laid out 

ready for use prior to occupation of any dwellings in the 
adjoining blocks served by the play space. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that these play spaces are available to 

serve the development, in accordance with the play 
provision policies in the Hackney UDP and London Plan.  

 
20. Other on-site works, Strategies and Restrictions  

a)  Prior to commencement of any development the following 
Strategies or statements shall be submitted and resubmitted 
to the Council until such time as the same are approved in 
writing by the Council  :     
i) Drainage Strategy, to including assuring the attenuation of    
surface water run off, SUDS 

ii) Sustainable waste management 
iii) Construction Environmental Management Strategy  
iv) Water pollution management 
v) Designing out crime – to ensure Secured by Design or  
equivalent  
vi) Landscape Strategy, including public parks, play space, 
public   
realm and private open space 
vii) Nature conservation strategy 
Viii)Sustainable design and construction 
ix) Control of noise pollution 
x)Designing out crime – to ensure Secured by Design or  
equivalent  

 
  21. Technical Reports 

(a)  Prior to the occupation of each quarter or phase of 
development, a TV reception survey shall be submitted 
(carried out pre and post development) to ensure that no 
loss of reception occurs, with mitigation details of any loss of 
TV reception. 

 
  REASON: To minimise any loss of amenity for existing 

occupiers.  
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 22 

22.  Permitted Development Rights – Dwelling-Houses  
 

(a)  No buildings, extensions or alterations to dwelling-houses as 
permitted under Classes A, B, C, D or E shall be carried out 
without prior written approval from the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to 

consider the acceptability of extensions or alterations in 
relation to their impact on garden size, neighbours and 
external appearance of the building(s). 

   
(b)  No plumbing or pipes, other than rainwater pipes shall be 

fixed to the external faces of the buildings 
 
 REASON: To ensure that the elevations as approved at 

detailed stage are not cluttered with pipework which may 
detract from their external appearance.  

 
 23. Section 106 Agreement 

No part of the development or any related operations shall 
commence until such time as the applicant has entered into a legal 
Agreement with the Council pursuant to Section 106 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990 substantially in the format appended at 
the Third Schedule to secure the following financial contributions 
and mitigation measures: 

 
a) Education and Life-Long Learning, Skills Training, 

Construction Training  
• Contributions to primary and secondary education on the 

basis of the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning 
Document on Planning Contributions. Applying the formula 
for ‘child yield’ in the Appendix to the SPD, a total of 
£545,000 towards primary and secondary education is 
payable.  

 
   b) Provision of Health Facilities    

Contribution not exceeding £150,000 towards health 
provision to serve the development 

 
   c) Community Facility 

• A Lease at a peppercorn rent of £1 to be made available to 
Hackney Council of part of Block A (sited as shown on 
Parameter Land Use Plan No A3039/2.1/02) for use as a 
Community Facility. Contribution of a sum of £250,000 to 
maintenance and running of the facility. Details to be 

Page 22



 23 

provided of the locally based management organisation that 
will be responsible for its management and maintenance. 

  
  e)  Open Spaces, Landscape, Environmental Improvements   

• A contribution of £280,000 towards environmental 
improvements towards a new landscaped public square at 
the northern end of the Haggerston West site and 
realignment of Haggerston Road  

 
• A sum of £100,000 towards landscaping and environmental 

improvements  along Dunston Road 
 

• The playspaces in the Play Strategy to be laid out prior to 
occupation of any dwellings in the adjoining blocks. 

 
• A sum of £200,000 to contribute towards provision of 

additional facilities for older children in Stonebridge Park  
 

• A management structure to secure the maintenance of 
internal roads, play and public open spaces, community 
buildings and landscape shall be approved prior to 
commencement of any new development  

 
• A sum of £75,000 shall be payable towards the provision of 

additional tree planting and landscaping as agreed in writing 
around the southern boundary of Stonebridge Park and 
other areas along the perimeter of the estates boundaries; 

 
• Contribution of £100,000 to Travel Plan monitoring and 

establishment of a City Car Club to serve the whole 
development. 

 
• Controlled Parking Zone: Residents not in occupation at the 

date of submission of the application to be restricted from 
making application for residents’ parking permits. 

 
24. Car Parking 

Details of car parking to serve accommodation in Blocks A, B, C, E, 
F and L, including layout, elevations, sections, ventilation and 
management arrangements shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority for each relevant Phase in writing, 
before any work commences on site.  The development shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved. 
 

Page 23



 24 

REASON:  To ensure that these details are satisfactory in terms of 
design, appearance and crime prevention.  
 

 REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
 The London Plan and also the following policies contained in the Hackney 

Unitary Development Plan 1995 are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching the 
decision to grant planning permission: 

 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 
EQ1  - Development Requirements 
EQ12  - Protection of Conservation Areas 
EQ31  - Trees 
EQ40  - Noise Control 
EQ48  - Designing Out Crime 
HO3  - Other Sites for Housing 
TR19  - Planning Standards 
CS3  - Retention and Provision of Community facilities  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 
SPG1  -  New Residential Developments 
SPG11  - Access for People with Disabilities 
SPG16  - Interim Housing Standards 
 
London Plan (2004 – 2007 Numbering differs) 
 
2A.1  - Sustainability criteria 
3A.1  - Increasing London’s supply of housing 
3A.2  - Borough housing targets 
3A.4  - Housing choice 
3A.5  - Large residential developments 
3A.7  - Affordable Housing targets 
3A.8 Negotiating Affordable Housing in residential and   

mixed-use schemes 
3C.1  - Integrating transport and development 
3C.2  - Matching development to transport capacity 
3C.22  - Parking strategy 
3D.12  - Biodiversity and nature conservation 
4A.2  - Spatial policies for waste management  
4A.7  - Energy efficiency and renewable energy  
4A.9  - Providing for renewable energy 
4A.14  - Reducing noise  
4B.3  - Maximising the potential of sites 

Page 24



 25 

4B.4  - Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
4B.5  - Creating an inclusive environment  
4B.6  - Sustainable design and construction  
4B.7  - Respect local context and communities  

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
The following informatives should be added: 

 
11.1 (SI.1) Building Control 
11.2 (SI.2) Work Affecting Public Highway 
11.3 (SI.3) Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
11.4 (SI.7) Hours of Building Works 
11.5 (SI.24) Naming and Numbering 
11.6 (Environment Agency) Conservation 
11.7 (EA) Soil Remediation 
11.8 (EA) Discharge 
11.9 (EA) Potential Contamination 
11.10 (EA) Abstraction Licence 
11.11 (EA) Geothermal systems 

  
   
6. LAND FRONTING WORSHIP STREET & NORTON FOLGATE, 

LONDON, EC2: 2007/2227 
 

Demolition of part of the viaduct structure across Plough Yard; erection of 
a decking structure; and development for mixed use purposes comprising 
of the erection of one 11 storey and one 16 to 32 storey B1 office block 
(87,754 sq.m), one 51 storey mixed use tower comprising Class C1 Hotel 
(13,318 sq.m) and private residential (239 units), one 14 storey block 
providing 39 intermediate housing units and one 6 storey block providing 
eleven affordable rental units. Other proposed uses include Class A1-A4 
Retail, Financial Services, Restaurants and Drinking Establishments (2420 
sq.m) and Class D2 Leisure (452 sq.m), together with the provision of 
parking and cycle spaces; open space; hard and soft landscaping; 
improvements to existing and the creation of new vehicular and pedestrian 
access and highways works; and all ancillary and associated works 
including enabling works, servicing, storage, plant areas and equipment. 
The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement.  

 
6.1 The Chair wished to declare that he had received an email from the 

previous Head of Planning regarding this application, however he 
confirmed that it did not raise any new issues.  

 
6.2 The Principal Solicitor took the opportunity to clarify the Council’s interest 

in this application.  She explained that the Council was the landowner 

Page 25



 26 

however, it was important that the Committee just took into consideration 
planning matters.  Although the Council was the landowner, it did not own 
the whole of the site in question, as the rail tracks and the Light Bar were 
owned separately.  

 
6.3 In response to a question raised by Councillor Shaikh, the Principal 

Solicitor stated that this was the only place for this application to be 
discussed and determined, as the Planning Authority for this site.  

 
6.4 The Urban Design and Conservation Manager clarified the issue 

surrounding the South Shoreditch conservation area consultation, which 
ran from 27 May to 4 July 2008.  A large number of responses had been 
received and the consultation will be responded to in due course.  The 
purpose of the consultation was to determine whether the conservation 
area boundaries around South Shoreditch should be extended.  The 
report was expected to go to Cabinet and then Council in September 
2008. 

 
6.5 Councillor Hanson asked what would happen if the boundary was 

extended to include 233 Shoreditch High Street, known as the Light Bar.  
The Interim Head of Regulatory Services explained that if the boundary 
was extended to include 233 Shoreditch High Street, the PPG guidance 
states that it would be favourable to retain the building.  There were three 
tests set out within the guidance to gauge whether a building should be 
retained; viable to retain, reasonable attempts to retain, quality of 
alternative scheme.  

 
6.6 The Interim Head of Regulatory Services referred to the addendum and 

informed the Committee that ten additional letters of objection had been 
received since publication of the report, including an objection from the 
Hackney Society.  Two letters of support had also been received.  The 
majority of those issues had already been addressed in the report.  

 
6.7 The Interim Head of Regulatory Services introduced the report as set out 

in the agenda.  He gave a detailed powerpoint presentation to Members, 
which displayed the scale and layout of the proposed development and 
the impact on the surrounding area, elevations in comparison with other 
tall buildings in London, CO2 emission savings and the existing planning 
consents on the site.  

 
6.8 He also took the opportunity to show the model of the proposed 

development to Members and also displayed how this differed from the 
previous scheme granted planning permission.  

 

Page 26



 27 

6.9 James Goff, James Pereira (on behalf of James Goff) and Lucy Rogers, 
OPEN Shoreditch all spoke in objection of the scheme, their comments 
are summarised as follows:- 

 
 James Goff 
 

§ Lives and works in the Shoreditch area and is one of the owners of 
the Light Bar.   

§ Proud to be involved in the refurbishment of a number of old 
buildings in the area, particularly 233 Shoreditch High Street (Light 
Bar). 

§ Believes that 233 Shoreditch High Street enhances the 
conservation area and provides a fitting end to the city fringe and 
therefore should be retained.  

§ 7,000 people have petitioned to save the Light Bar. 
§ The Council had previously authorised a consultation for 

consideration to be made for 233 Shoreditch High Street to be 
included in the conservation area.  

§ The application should be deferred to allow for the consultation 
report to be considered before any decision is made.  

 
James Pereira 
 
§ Agreed with James Goff that the application should be deferred.  
§ It was important that a scheme of this size and scale should comply 

with design specifications and read out responses from PPS1, 
CABE and England Heritage, stating their concerns regarding the 
project.  In particular, the impact on the grade 2/3 listed buildings 
that would be overwhelmed by the development and the 
relationship of the new development with the surrounding 
properties. 

§ This is a missed opportunity to incorporate the Light Bar into the 
development. 

§ Reference was made to the 7,000 people who petitioned to save 
the Light Bar.  

 
Lucy Rogers, OPEN Shoreditch 
 
§ OPEN Shoreditch represented a coalition of local groups. 
§ Agree with the responses made by English Heritage and the South 

Shoreditch Conservation Area Committee. 
§ Oppose the demolition of the Light Bar.  

 
6.10 As a statutory consultee, Anthony Thistleton-Smith, on behalf of the South 

Shoreditch Conservation Area Advisory Committee, spoke in objection of 
the scheme, his comments are summarised as follows:- 

Page 27



 28 

 
§ Design of the development is not in keeping with the surrounding 

area, especially with the proximity of the development to the 
neighbouring buildings.  

§ Designed as an extension to the City and doesn’t integrate the 
Shoreditch area.  

§ Fails to meet the requirements of the London Plan.  
§ The scheme has already been criticised by the Hackney Design 

Panel, English Heritage and CABE.  
§ The Light Bar has great architectural merit and is integral to 

Shoreditch’s history.  The inclusion of the building would add great 
value to the conservation area.  

§ Feels it is premature to determine the application before the results 
of the conservation area consultation had been considered.  

§ Strongly propose that the application be deferred.  
 
6.11 Martin Jepson (Hammerson - Applicant), Dan Silbert (Fosters & Partners) 

and Jim Pool (DP9 - Agent), spoke in support of the scheme, their 
comments are summarised as follows:- 

 
 Martin Jepson 
 

§ Hammersons are committed to developing the site and producing 
dynamic buildings.  

§ The scheme presents a major opportunity for real economic 
regeneration and new employment in the area.  

§ Steeping stone for further regeneration aspirations in Hackney.  
§ Three years of consultation has been undertaken, which reflects 

the complex demands of the site. 
§ Worked closely with Fosters & Partners on a number of sites 

previously – shared vision.  
§ The site has been neglected for a long period of time and they have 

submitted a more sustainable proposal.  
§ Lifestyle benefits to be gained, development of a quality public 

realm. 
§ Long-term players in the industry, previously involved in the 

development of the Spitalfields scheme, where they overcame 
similar problems.  This would be used as a benchmark. 

§ Comprehensive Section 106 agreement.  
§ Will promote apprenticeships and job opportunities in the area.  
§ Believe the scheme represents one of the most exciting and stylish 

proposals in Hackney.  
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 29 

Jim Pool 
 
§ The development demonstrates a well considered, high quality 

development.  
§ World class architecture. 
§ Over 40,000 new jobs will be generated, which they would aim to 

source locally.  
§ The new hotel would help to support tourism in the area.  
§ 223 Shoreditch High Street is not located within the conservation 

area and although retention of the building was considered, the 
demolition of the Light Bar helps to achieve greater permeability 
throughout the development.  

§ Well thought through proposal, which provides an exemplary public 
realm.  

 
6.12 In response to a question from the Chair regarding the design philosophy 

of the development, Jim Pool stated that the site had been identified as 
employment space and the transition of the development between the City 
and Shoreditch starts with the architecture and the reduction of the scale 
of the buildings towards the conservation area.  Permeability was also key 
to the scheme.  
 

6.13 Councillor Hanson referred to the fact that 233 Shoreditch High Street was 
not included in the conservation area and asked whether it was 
appropriate for a decision to be made before the results of the 
conservation area consultation had been considered.  

 
6.14 The Urban Design and Conservation Manager stated that a 

recommendation had yet to be made on whether 233 Shoreditch High 
Street would be included in the conservation area.  
 

6.15 Councillor Buitekant asked the applicant to clarify why 233 Shoreditch 
High Street was saved in the previous proposal and was not being saved 
in the current scheme.  

 
6.16 Martin Jepson explained that they had looked at a number of options and 

taken into consideration planning policies, the scale of the development 
and the proximity of it to buildings in the vicinity.  They had felt that there 
was a need to provide the largest amount of public realm and this was not 
possible with the retention of 233 Shoreditch High Street.  

 
6.17 Councillor Bell raised concern regarding the provision of social housing as 

he believed the amount being provided was inadequate, given the size of 
the development.   

 

Page 29



 30 

6.18 The applicant stated that out of a total of £14m, approximately £130,000 
was being allocated per unit, which equated to roughly 120-130 units of 
social housing.  

 
6.19 Councillor Buitekant asked whether it was pressing that the application be 

determined at the meeting and the applicant stated that they needed to 
start somewhere and that they had worked on developing the scheme for 
over two years.  They felt it would be inappropriate to delay the process 
further.  

 
6.20 The Principal Solicitor informed the Committee that Counsel had not given 

a decision on this application but had just advised the Council that there 
was no lawful reason not to consider the application whilst the consultation 
process was still taking place.  

 
6.21 Following the lengthy discussion, the Chair summed up the main points: 
 

(i) The extant permissions and the principle of an office led development; 
(ii) the strategic importance of the site to the Central Activity Zone; (iii) the 
architectural merit of the proposal; (iv) the transitional nature of the site 
juxtaposed between the City and the three conservation areas (v) the 
CABE objection regarding the context; (vi) the English Heritage and Tower 
Hamlet’s objections re the conservation areas and (vii) the London Plan 
policy 4.b.1 – Design principles for a compact city, particularly the policies 
regarding respect for context and London’s built heritage.  
 

6.22 Councillor Desmond proposed a motion that the application be deferred to 
allow the South Shoreditch conservation area consultation report to be 
considered, and to give the applicant a fair and reasonable chance to 
amend the application with a very strong indication from the Committee 
that any further submission to the Committee should be a scheme that 
retains the premises known as the Light Bar.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Shaikh.  

 
 Councillors Hanson and Webb voted against the recommendation. 
 
 RESOLVED that:- 

 

The application be DEFERRED to allow the South Shoreditch 
conservation area consultation report to be considered, and to give 
the applicant a fair and reasonable chance to amend the application 
with a very strong indication from the Committee that any further 
submission to the Committee should be a scheme that retains 233 
Shoreditch High Street, known as the Light Bar, in its current 
location. 

 

Page 30



 31 

 
7. R/O 84 MILTON GROVE, LONDON, N16 8QY: 2007/2723 
 

Erection of a pair of semi-detached, two-storey over basement two 
bedroom houses.  

 
 RESOLVED that:- 

 
This item be WITHDRAWN from the agenda, at the request of the 
applicant.  

 
 
8. SENATE HOUSE, TYSSEN STREET, DALSTON, E8 2ND: 2007/1844 
 

Demolition of existing building on the site and erection of a four storey 
building and a five storey building to facilitate a mixed use development 
consisting of 28 residential units (18 x two bed, 4 x three bed and 6 x four 
bed) and 1173 sq metres of commercial floor space (use class B1) and 
associated landscaping. 

 
 RESOLVED that: 

 
This item be DEFERRED until the next meeting, to allow Cross Rail to 
be consulted.  

 
 
9. 199 – 205 RICHMOND ROAD, LONDON, E8 3NJ: 2008/0846 (Full 

Planning Application) and 2008/0853 (Conservation Area Consent) 
 

Demolition of existing building behind a retained façade to Richmond 
Road  and erection of 74 residential units (31 x 1b, 18 x 2b, 16 x 3b and 
9x4-bed) and 3033 sqm (GEA) commercial floor space including office 
(class B1) accommodation and 2 retail units (class A1/A3) with the 
provision of landscaping and car parking.  
 

9.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
9.2 The Chair raised his concerns regarding the number of parking spaces 

being provided, due to its central location and the fact that a car share 
scheme was not included in the proposal.  

 
9.3 The applicant stated that they had submitted a detailed travel plan and felt 

that the implementation of a car share scheme would prove difficult, due to 
the car park being located in the basement.  

 

Page 31



 32 

9.4 Councillor Webb confirmed that she was also in support of a car share 
scheme being provided and it was proposed that a condition be added for 
reasonable endeavours to be made for a car share scheme to be included 
in the development.  This was AGREED.  

 
 RESOLVED that: 
 

(A) Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions:  

 
 1. SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
 2. SCB1 - Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
three years after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
3. SMC6 – Materials to be approved  

No development shall take place until full details, with samples, of 
the materials to be used in the construction of external surfaces of 
the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
4. SCM7 - Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development 
showing the matters set out below must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any 
work is commenced. The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
• Windows, glazing bar profiles, and architraves; 
• Doors, profiles and architraves 
• All clear and obscure glazing  
• Design and appearance of railings, balconies and roof 

terraces 

Page 32



 33 

• Ground floor elevations and signage of the building 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 
 

5. SCM9 - No extraneous pipework 
No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 
pipework shall be fixed to the elevations of the building other than 
as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
6. SCD1 - Level access 

A level access shall be provided before the use is first commenced. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to 
gain proper access to the development. 

 
7. SCD2 – Provision of access and facilities 

All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as 
shown on the plans and details hereby approved shall be 
implemented in full to the  satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority before the use is first commenced. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people 
with disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make 
full use of the development. 

 
8. SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure and ground 

surface treatment 
No development shall take place until details of all ground surface 
treatment, boundary walls, dustbin enclosures (including recycling 
facilities), private gardens to the rear of third floor level, and roof 
plant enclosures of the development hereby permitted have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
 
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and 
recycling facilities for the development in the interests of the 
appearance and amenity of the area and to ensure that the external 
appearance of the building is satisfactory and does not detract from 
the visual amenity of the area. 

Page 33



 34 

 
 

9. H5 – Provision of parking, turning, unloading facilities 
No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
the accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading 
has been provided  in accordance with the approved plans, and 
such accommodation shall be retained permanently for use by the 
occupiers and or users of, and/or  persons calling at, the premises 
only and shall not be used for any other  purposes. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not 
prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the 
neighbouring highway(s) and to  ensure the permanent retention 
of the accommodation for parking/loading and  unloading 
purposes.  

 
10. SCH10 – Secure bicycle parking 

No development shall take place until details of the provision of 
secure and covered cycle bays have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car 
use, relieving congestion in surrounding streets and improving 
highway conditions in general. 

 
11. SCH8 – Parking for people with disabilities 

No part of the development shall be occupied until at least 7 car 
parking spaces shall be marked out for use by persons with 
disabilities and retained permanently for use by the vehicles of 
people with disabilities. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable number of parking 
spaces are located conveniently for use by people with disabilities. 

 
 12. SCS1 – Shopfront details to be approved 

Details of the proposed shopfront on drawings on a scale of 1:50, 
together with materials used in construction, shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any 
work is commenced on this part of the development. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the design of the shopfront is not 
detrimental to the appearance of the building. 

Page 34



 35 

 
 

13. SCT1 - Landscaping scheme 
A landscape management plan including long term design 
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for all landscaped areas, other than small privately 
owned domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development. The landscape management plan shall be 
carried out as approved.  
 
REASON: In the interest of preserving open views to and from the 
navigation, the living environment for future residents and the 
navigation setting 

 
14. G1 – Restricted House of use of A1/A3 use 

The proposedA1/A3 use in the development hereby permitted shall 
not be open to customers outside the following times; 0900 hours to 
23 hours Mondays to Saturdays, 0900 hours to 1900 hours 
Sundays and Public Holidays. 
REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 
15. NCLS1 – Main contaminated land condition 

Development of the site shall not begin until a contaminated land 
study has been submitted to thelocal planning authority for 
approval. The study will identify the extent of contamination and the 
measures to be taken to avoid risk to the public when the site is 
developed. Details of this study shall include:   
(1) A desk study report documenting the history of the site 
(2) A site investigation report to investigate and identify 
contamination 
(3) A risk assessment of the site  
(4) Proposals for any necessary remedial works to contain, treat or 
remove any contamination.  
 
REASON: To protect the end user(s) of the development, any 
adjacent land user(s) and the environment from contamination in 
line with Planning Policy Statement 23 (published by the Office of 
the Deputy Prime Minister). 

 
16. NSC1 – Non standard condition 

No doors or gates shall be erected in a way that enables them to be 
opened over or across an adjoining footway, carriageway or right of 
way. 

Page 35



 36 

 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not 
prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety. 

 
17. NSC2 – Hours of Delivery 

No deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the site outside 
the hours of 0730 hours to 1800 hours Mondays to Saturdays nor 
at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. Deliveries shall 
take place within the cartilage of the development. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 
 

18. Car Club 
 ……………………………………. 

 
(B) Conservation Area Consent be GRANTED, subject to the 

following conditions:  
 

 1. SCB2- Commencement  
The development hereby permitted must be begun no later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this consent. 
 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18 (a) 
of the  Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990. 

 
2. NSC1 – Works of demolition 

The demolition works hereby permitted shall not be carried out 
otherwise than as part of the completion of development for which 
planning permission reference 2008/0199 is granted and such 
demolition and development shall be carried out without interruption 
and in complete accordance with the plans referred to in this 
consent and any subsequent approval of details. 
 
REASON: As empowered by Section 74(3) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and to maintain the 
character and appearance of the Kingsland and Regents Canal 
Conservation Areas. 

 
3. NSC2 – Non Standard Condition 

Detailed drawings showing the method by which the existing 
structure is to be supported and protected during building works so 
as to ensure that the structural stability and integrity of all the 
elements which are to be retained shall be submitted to and 

Page 36



 37 

approved in writing by the local planning authority before work 
commences on site. The details shall be implemented as approved.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
 4. NSC3 – Non Standard Condition 

All existing original features to be retained part of the Richmond 
Road façade shall be retained in situ except where indicated 
otherwise on the drawings hereby approved.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
5. NSC4 – Non Standard Condition 

A full scheme of external works of repair to the retained part of the 
Richmond Road façade shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of 
any works on site. Works shall not commence until authorised in 
writing by the local planning authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
6. NSC5 – Non Standard Condition 

Detailed drawings to show how the pointing treatment between the 
retained part of the Richmond Road façade and the adjoining part 
of the proposed development shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The works shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.   
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
(C)   That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 

landowners and their mortgagees entering into a deed of 
planning obligation by means of a Section 106 Agreement of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to 
secure the following matters to the following matters to the 
satisfaction of the Assistant Director of Regeneration and 
Planning and the Interim Corporate Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services:  

Page 37



 38 

§ Securing the provision of 26 units (48% by habitable room) as 
affordable housing with a tenure mix of 14 units social rented and 
12 intermediate housing to be given over to One Housing or an 
alternative RSL as agreed by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
dwelling mix comprising the social rental element being 2x 1bed, 1 
x 2bed, 6 x3 bed and 5x 4 bed and the intermediate being 3 x 1bed, 
3 x 2bed and 6 x 3bed. 

§ Securing 562 square metres of B1 floor area as affordable 
workspace at 50% of market value for a period of 5 years.  

§ The B1 floor space shall be fitted to shell and core prior to the 
occupation of the Open Market units. 

§ The developer must have an active programme for recruiting and 
retaining adult improvers and as a minimum take on at least one 
adult improver per £5 million of construction contract value and 
provide the Council with written information documenting that 
programme within seven days of a written request from the Council. 

§ The affordable residential units shall be fitted out before occupation 
of the Open Market units. 

§ Residential units to be built to Lifetime Home Standards as 
scheduled and achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 with 
best endeavours to be demonstrated towards Level 4. 

§ Contribution of £349,125.00 towards Education facilities based on 
calculation within the Supplementary Planning Document  

§ Contribution of £17,937.00 towards Library facilities based on 
calculation within the Supplementary Planning Document  

§ Contribution of £24,420.00 towards Sustainable Transport 
Initiatives. 

§ No CPZ parking permits available to future residents of the site. 
§ Submission of a Travel Plan incorporating sustainable travel 

measures. 
§ Contribution of £2,000.00 towards walking and cycling safety. 
§ Payment by the landowner/developer of £36,902.00 (estimated) as 

a financial contribution towards Section 278 highway works. 
§ Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and 

other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect 
of the negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 
Agreement. 

 
(D)  That in the event of the Section 106 agreement referred to in 

Recommendation B not being completed by 31 July 2008, the 
Interim Head of Regulatory Services be given the authority to 
refuse the application for the following reasons:  

 
1. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing affordable housing, would be to the detriment of 
housing needs in the borough and would fail to promote a mixed 

Page 38



 39 

and inclusive community, and as such would be contrary to policy 
HO3 of the Hackney UDP (1995), policies 3A.7 and 3A.8 of the 
London Plan (2004), the LDF Planning Contributions SPD (2006), 
and advice contained in PPS1 and PPG3. 

 
2. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing educational contributions, would be likely to contribute 
to pressure and demand on the borough’s education provision, 
contrary to policies EQ1 and CS2 of the Hackney UDP (1995), the 
LDF Planning Contributions SPD (2006) and policy 3A.21 of the 
London Plan (2004).  

 
3. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for a Green Travel Plan and sustainable transport initiatives, would 
be likely to lead to an adverse impact on local traffic and pedestrian 
flow and the unsustainable use of transport contrary to policies 
ST3, ST31, ST32, ST33, TR6 and TR19 of the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan and policies 3C.16 of the London Plan 2004.  

 
4. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing B1 to be fitted out to shell and core prior to the 
occupation of the residential component, would be likely to harm 
the employment opportunities and provision of employment 
floorspace in the Borough contrary to policies ST3, ST25, E2, E5 
and E13 of the Hackney Unitary Development Plan. 

 
5. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing best endeavours to use local labour on-site, would be 
likely to harm the employment opportunities in the Borough contrary 
to policies ST3, EQ1, E15 and E18 of the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

 
 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development 

Plan 1995 are relevant to the approved development/use and were 
considered by this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning 
permission: 

 
 EQ1Development Requirements, E12Protection of Conservation 

Areas, EQ12 Protection of Conservation Areas, EQ13 Demolition in 
Conservation Areas, EQ18 Setting of Listed Buildings, EQ20 Buildings 
of Local Significance, EQ29 Archaeological heritage, EQ43 
Development of Contaminated Land, H03 Other sites for housing, E12 
Office Development, E14 Access and Facilities for People with 
Disabilities, E18 Planning Standards, TR19 Parking standards, SPG1 
New Residential Development, SPG11 Access for People with 

Page 39



 40 

Disabilities, SPG12 Conservation Areas, SPD Affordable Housing, 
SPD Planning  Contributions. 

 
 The following policies contained in the London Plan 2004 are relevant 

to the approved development/use and were considered by this Council 
in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 
Sustainability Criteria, 2A.2 The spatial strategy for development, 3A.1 
Increasing London’s supply of housing, 3A.2 Borough Housing 
Targets, 3A.5 Housing Choice, 3A.6 Quality of new housing provision, 
3A.8 Definition of affordable housing, 3A.9 Affordable Housing 
Targets, 3A.10 Negotiating affordable housing in individual private 
residential and mixed-use schemes, 3A.11 Affordable Housing 
Thresholds, 3A.27 Meeting Floor Targets, 3B.1 Developing London’s 
Economy, 3B.2 Office demand and supply, 3B.3 Mixed use 
development, 3B.8 Creative Industries, 3B.11 Improving employment 
opportunities for Londoners, 3C.1 Integrating transport and 
development, 3C.2 Matching development to transport capacity, 3C.3 
Sustainable Transport in London, 3C.17 Tackling congestion and 
reducing traffic, 3C.18 Allocation of street space, 3C.19 Local 
transport and public realm enhancements, 3C.23 Parking strategy, 
4A.1 Tackling climate change, 4A.2 Mitigating climate change, 4A.3 
Sustainable design and construction, 4A.4 Energy assessment, 4A.7 
Renewable Energy, 4A.11 Living Roofs and Walls, 4A.19 Improving 
air quality, 4A.33 Bringing contaminated land into beneficial use, 4B.1 
Design principles for a compact city, 4B.2 Promoting World Class 
Architecture and Design, 4B.3 Enhancing the quality of the public 
realm, 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment, 4B.10 Large scale 
buildings – design and impact, 4B.11 London’s built heritage, 4B.12 
Heritage Conservation, 4B.15 Archaeology. 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Fire Precautions Act  

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

 NSCI No gates shall be erected in a way that enables them to be 
opened over or across the adjoining footways, carriageways 

Page 40



 41 

and rights of way in the interests of public safety and to 
prevent obstruction of the public highway. 

    
 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR IS 
 URGENT 
 
 None.   
 
The meeting closed at 21:45hrs. 
 
 
 Signed  
 
 
 ………………………………………………………………………………..... 
 

Chair of Planning Sub-Committee 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Minutes of the proceedings of the Planning Sub-Committee held  
on Wednesday 4 August 2008 

 
Councillors present: 
 
Councillors Vincent Stops (Chair), Michael Desmond (Vice-Chair), Barry 
Buitekant, Katie Hanson, Ian Sharer and Jessica Webb.  
 
Officers in attendance: 
 
Graham Loveland, Interim Head of Regulatory Services 
Sue Foster, Assistant Director Regeneration and Planning  
Femi Nwanze, Planning Applications Manager 
John McRory, Team Leader, Major Applications 
Adam Flynn, Planning Officer, Major Team 
Anthony Traub, Senior Planner, Major Team 
Gillian Nicks, Deputy Team Leader, Major Applications & Appeals 
Ray Rogers, Urban Design and Conservation Manager 
John Kaimakamis, Senior Planning Officer  
Rokos Frangos, Senior Planning Officer  
Fred Raphael, Highways Officer 
Scott Schimanski, Team Leader, Area Team  
Rosemary Lansdowne, Principal Solicitor 
Emma Perry, Democratic Services Officer  
David Rees, Democratic Services Manager  
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Smith and Stauber.  
 
 
2. MEMBERS TO AGREE THE ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
2.1 Item 5 was withdrawn from the agenda and Item 6 was moved to the end 

of the agenda, taken after Item 16. 
 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
3.1 The Chair informed the Committee that he had previously declared an 

interest on the Dalston Junction Site, however the previous issue had now 
been resolved so he was no longer required to declare an interest in Item 
10.  

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 43



 2 

4. 335 – 337 OLD STREET, LONDON, EC1V 3UD: 2007/3207 (full 
 planning permission), 2007/3208 (listed building consent) 
 
 Conversion of former magistrates court and police station building, and 
 construction of part five, part six, part seven storey building (plus 
 basement and lower ground floor levels) to the rear to create a 128 
 guestroom hotel, including restaurant, bar, lounge, conference/function 
 rooms, health & fitness areas and basement parking for 16 cars.  

 
4.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda and 

paid particular attention to Recommendation C, which set out the Section 
106 agreement.  Reference was also made to the addendum which 
included a revision to Condition 3 of Recommendation C, this specified 
that the payment by the landowner/developer, as an environmental 
improvements contribution, had been reduced from £309,380 to £239,560. 

 
4.2 The Agent clarified the reason for the reduction, stating that following 

further investigation it was found that the north of Hoxton Street had in fact 
already been paved, so they only needed to now go as far as Hoxton 
House, Mundy Street.  

 
4.3 The Chair asked the Agent and the Applicant to confirm that they were 

happy with the Section 106 agreement set out in Recommendation C and 
they confirmed that they were in agreement.  Although, the Applicant 
wished to clarify the terminology of Condition 10 and the definition of local 
residents.  He added that residents of the Borough could apply for a 
discount card to obtain the twenty per cent discount.  

 
4.4 Councillor Desmond asked when the Section 106 payments would be 

made and the Principal Solicitor stated that, in accordance with the legal 
agreement, the payments would be made upon implementation of the 
planning permission.  

 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that:- 
 

(A) Full planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following   
conditions: 

 
 1. SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

  The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

 
  REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 

carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 
 

Page 44



 3 

2. SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
  The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 

the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission. 

 
  REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 
 

3. SCM6 – Materials to be approved  
Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the 
external surfaces of the new extension, boundary walls and ground 
surfaces shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before work on the external surfaces, boundary 
walls and ground surfaces commences on site. The development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
4. SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the new extension showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority, in writing, before work on the matters set 
out below is commenced. The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. All the 
details set out below shall be submitted together and at the same 
time. 
• Windows; all clear and obscure glazing 
• Doors 
• All exterior panelling 
• Design and appearance of accessible entrance on Hoxton 

Street 
• External lighting and signage on Hoxton Street entrance 
• Ground floor elevations.  

 
 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 

satisfactory and satisfies design quality requirements, as well as 
safety of the public realm. 

 
 5. SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 
pipework shall be fixed to the (street) elevations of the building 
other than as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 

 

Page 45



 4 

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
 6. SCI3 – No roof plant 

No roof plant (including all external enclosures, machinery and 
other installations) shall be placed upon or attached to the roof or 
other external surfaces of the building. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
7. SCD2 – Provision of access and facilities 
  All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as 

shown on the plans and details hereby approved shall be 
implemented in full to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority before the use is first commenced. The details as 
approved and implemented shall be permanently retained on the 
site. 

 
  REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people 

with disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make 
full use of the development. 

 
8.  SCH2 – Loading/unloading within site/building 
  No loading or unloading of goods, including fuel, by vehicles 

arriving at or departing from the premises shall take place 
otherwise than within the curtilage of the building/within the 
building. 

 
  REASON: To assist in ensuring that the Public Highway is available 

for the safe and convenient passage of vehicles and pedestrians. 
 
 9. SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

  No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has 
been provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such 
accommodation shall be retained permanently for use by the 
occupiers and/or users of, and/or persons calling at, the premises 
only, and shall not be used for any other purposes. 

 
  REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not 

prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the 
neighbouring highway(s) and to ensure the permanent retention of 
the accommodation for parking/ loading and unloading purposes. 

Page 46



 5 

10. SCH8 – Parking for people with disabilities 
Before the use hereby permitted first commences, two car-parking 
spaces shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the 
vehicles of people with disabilities. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking 
spaces are located conveniently for use by people with disabilities. 

 
11.  SCH10 – Secure bicycle and motorcycle parking 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 22 bicycles in the 
form of Sheffield stands (or an alternative approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority), and spaces for 7 motorcycles, as shown 
on the plans hereby approved, before use of the development 
hereby permitted commences. The secure, covered parking as 
approved shall be permanently retained on the site. 

 
  REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 

site for the parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car 
use, relieving congestion in surrounding streets and improving 
highway conditions in general. 

 
12.  SCH11 - Adequate visibility 

Adequate visibility shall be provided to the highway within the 
application site above a height of one metre from footpath level for 
a distance of three metres on both sides of the permitted points of 
vehicular access, in accordance with details to be approved by the 
Local Planning Authority before any work on the site is 
commenced, and be so maintained. 

 
  REASON: To provide a suitable standard of visibility to and from 

the highway and to ensure that the use of the access does not 
prejudice the free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety 
along the neighbouring highway. 

 
13.  SCH15 – Forward vehicle ingress/egress only 

All vehicles shall enter and leave the site only in a forward direction. 
 

  REASON: In the interests of road safety generally and avoidance of 
obstruction of the highway. 

 
 14. NSC1 – Non-standard condition 

  Ground-sourced heating (or any such reasonable alternative, 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
installed in order to contribute to the production of at least 10% of 
the proposed development’s energy requirements and the 
proposed development shall achieve a minimum BREEAM rating of 

Page 47



 6 

‘Very Good’, with certification to that effect to be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and acknowledged in writing prior to 
occupation of the building. 

 
  REASON: In the interests of maximising the environmental 

performance of the building. 
 
 15. NSC2 – Non-standard condition 

An extensive vegetation-covered roof (or ‘green roof’) system is to 
be established on all the new extension’s roof surfaces as well as 
on the roof on the western half of the listed building. A rainwater 
harvesting system shall be installed and details thereof shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing 
before occupation of the development hereby approved first 
commences. 

 
  REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the 

development. 
 

16.  NSC3 – Non-standard condition 
  Any plant must be so positioned, designed and acoustically 

insulated so as not to cause noise disturbance or affect the amenity 
of residents and shall be designed to operate at a level of 10dB(A) 
below the background noise level to render it inaudible whilst 
operating.  

 
  REASON: To ensure the development does not unreasonably 

impact upon surrounding residents. 
 
 17. NSC4 – Non-standard condition 

  A waste storage plan must be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing before occupation of the 
development hereby approved first commences. The details as 
approved shall be implemented on the site prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be permanently 
maintained on the site. 

 
  REASON: To ensure the satisfactory provision of waste storage 

facilities. 
 
 18. NSC5 – Non-standard condition 

  A Travel Plan must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
and approved in writing before occupation of the development 
hereby approved first commences. The Travel Plan as approved 
shall be implemented within the site immediately and shall be 
permanently maintained. 

Page 48



 7 

 
  REASON: To assist the achievement of sustainable travel targets. 

 
19.  NSC6 – Non-standard condition 
  The gated vehicular entrance to the service yard shall remain open 

during the hours of 7.30 a.m. to 11.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. to 7.30 
p.m. 

 
  REASON: To ensure that vehicles are not waiting on the Transport 

for London Road Network to enter the site. 
 

20.  NSC7 – Non-standard condition 
  The roof terrace and bar hereby approved shall not operate outside 

of the hours of 11.00 a.m. to 11.00 p.m. and shall not extend onto 
the area marked as a green roof on approved drawing P09 rev. B, 
which is to remain inaccessible to hotel residents and members of 
the public at all times other than in the event of an emergency. 
Details of how the roof terrace/bar and the adjoining green roof 
are to be separated, and how that separation is to be secured, shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in 
writing before use of the roof terrace and bar first commences. 

  
  REASON: In the interests of maintaining the amenity and security 

of neighboring residents. 
 

21.  NSC8 – Non-standard condition 
  All scaffolding erected in association with the implementation of the 

works hereby permitted shall be alarmed, and anti-climb measures 
shall be applied to the south-western corner of the former 
magistrates court building (behind the BT exchange box), details of 
which are to be submitted to the Council and approved in writing 
before use of the development hereby approved first commences. 

 
  REASON: In the interests of the security of the building and of 

neighboring buildings. 
 

(B) Listed Building Consent be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. SCBN2 – Commencement with three years (Listed Building 

Consent) 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this consent. 

 

Page 49



 8 

REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18(a) of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
as amended. 

 
2.  SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the conversion of the listed 
building hereby consented showing the matters set out below must 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before work on the matters set out below is commenced. 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. All the details set out 
below shall be submitted together and at the same time. 
• Windows; all clear and obscure glazing 
• Doors 
• Design and appearance of footbridges 
• Design and appearance of parapets 
• External lighting and signage  
• Ground floor elevations. 
 

  REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and satisfies design quality requirements, as well as 
safety of the public realm. 

 
3.  SCL2 – Works to match existing 

All new works, and works of making good to the retained fabric, 
whether internal or external, shall be finished to match the original 
work with regard to the methods used and to material, colour, 
texture and profile, and in the case of brickwork, facebond and 
pointing. 

 
  REASON: To ensure that the special architectural and historic 

interest of this building is safeguarded / and that the proposal does 
not detract from the character and appearance of the area / this 
part of the conservation area. 

 
4.  SCL4 – Brickwork to be approved 

Sample panels of brickwork, indicating the colour, texture, facebond 
and pointing shall be resubmitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the work are 
commenced. 

 
  REASON: In order that the works approved are carried out in a 

satisfactory manner which safeguards the special historic and 
architectural interest of the building. 

 
 

Page 50



 9 

5. SCL6A – Original features to be retained (specific)  
All existing original features of all public spaces (including entrance 
hall, staircase, court rooms and panelling) shall be retained in situ, 
except where indicated otherwise on the drawings hereby 
approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that those features that contribute to the 
special architectural and historic interest of the building are 
retained. 

 
6. SCL6B – Original features to be retained (general) 

All existing ornamental features including chimney pieces, 
plasterwork, architraves, panelling, doors, staircase balustrade 
shall remain undisturbed in their existing position and shall be fully 
protected during the course of works on site, unless specifically 
authorised otherwise on the drawings hereby approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that those features which contribute to the 
special architectural and historic interest of the building are 
retained. 

 
7. SCL7 – Details of preservation of features 

Detailed drawings or specifications showing the method by which 
the existing features are to be protected during building works so as 
to ensure their retention shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority, in writing, before the relevant parts of the 
work are commenced. 

 
REASON: To ensure that those features which contribute to the 
special architectural and historic interest of the building are 
retained. 

 
8. NSC1 – Non-standard condition  

No demolition or building works shall commence until a Structural 
Engineer’s method statement for the partial demolition and 
protection of the building to be retained are submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, and no 
demolition or building works shall be carried otherwise than in 
accordance therewith.  

 
  REASON: In the interests of preserving the special historic and 

architectural character and appearance of the site’s heritage 
buildings and the Conservation Area in general. 

 
 
 
 

Page 51



 10 

9. NSC2 – Non-standard condition 
No cleaning or repointing of the external walls of the Grade II-listed 
building shall commence without prior approval in writing of the 
method statement and specification proposed for this work. 

 
  REASON: In the interests of preserving the special historic and 

architectural character and appearance of the Grade II-listed 
building. 

 
10.  NSC3 – Non-standard condition 
  No works shall take place until the applicant has secured the 

implementation of a programme of recording and historic analysis, 
which considers building structure, architectural details and 
archaeological evidence. This shall be undertaken in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation, to include a detailed 
schedule of existing features, and submitted by the applicant to – 
and approved in writing by – the Local Planning Authority. 

 
  REASON: Important structural remains are present on the site. 

Accordingly the planning authority wishes to secure the provision of 
historic building recording prior to development, in accordance with 
the guidance and model condition set out in PPG15. 

 
(C) That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 

landowners, their mortgagees and any other person with an 
interest in the land entering into a deed of planning obligation by 
means of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended), in order to secure the following 
matters to the satisfaction of the Council:  

 
1. Payment of £50,000 to Transport for London (TfL) as a highways 

contribution for works to the public highway through provisions 
under both Section 106 and Section 278 of the Highways Act. (This 
sum was calculated and requested by TfL.) 

 
2. Provision for the use of local labour for construction of the 

development in the form of 25% on-site employment, including the 
facilitation of apprentices and adult improvers for a defined period. 

 
3. Payment by the landowner/developer of £239,560 as an 

environmental improvements contribution, comprising refurbished 
pavements to both sides of Hoxton Street (up to Hoxton House), 
Mundy Street, the easternmost side of Hoxton Square and the 
southernmost side of Hoxton Square between Old Street and Rufus 
Street, plus fourteen Sheffield cycle stands. (This sum is an 

Page 52



 11 

estimate for the above works calculated and provided by the 
Council’s Streetscene department.) 

 
4. Payment by the landowner/developer of £30,000 towards the 

employment of a Town Centre Manager for Shoreditch for the 
duration of one year. (This sum is an estimate of a year’s salary for 
a Town Centre Manager, and is to be pooled with financial 
contributions anticipated from other recent developments in the 
local area with the intention of enabling medium- to long-term 
employment in this position.) 

 
5. Submission by the landowner/developer of a feasibility study to 

develop a multi-agency programme to tackle policing, crime and 
community safety issues. 

 
6. Provision for payment of all the Council’s legal and other relevant 

fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiation and completion of the proposed Section 106 
Agreement. 

 
7. Payment by the landowner/developer of £9682.40 towards library 

facilities in the borough. (This sum has been calculated in 
accordance with the approved formula in the Planning 
Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2006).) 

 
8. Payment by the landowner/developer of £2066.40 towards 

children’s play areas in the South Shoreditch area. (This sum has 
been calculated in accordance with the approved formula in the 
Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
(2006). The sum is being directed towards children’s play areas 
rather than other types of open space or recreational facilities 
because South Shoreditch has been identified as a Child Play 
priority area, one of the Special Planning Areas in the Planning 
Contributions SPD.) 

 
9. Provision for the employment within the hotel, once it has 

commenced operations, of persons within a defined and ongoing 
training scheme to be carried out in perpetuity and reserved for 
residents of the borough, to number no fewer than five new starters 
annually. 

 
10. Provision for the gym, spa and pool to be open to non-patrons of 

the hotel, and for residents of the borough to be entitled to a twenty 
per cent discount on the standard entry fee thereto (as charged to 
other non-residents (of the hotel)), upon production of two valid 
proofs of address.  

Page 53



 12 

11. Provision for not-for-profit organisations, charities, the Council and 
other local authorities that share a boundary with the London 
Borough of Hackney to be permitted use of the hotel’s conference 
facilities free of charge a maximum of three days a year, with in-
house catering to be provided at a twenty per cent discount on the 
price charged for the equivalent service to all other users of the 
hotel conference facilities. 

 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

 
The following policies saved in the Hackney Unitary Development 
Plan (1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and 
were considered by this Council in reaching the decision to grant 
planning permission: EQ1 - Development Requirements; EQ16 -
Protection of Listed Buildings; EQ17 - Alterations to Listed 
Buildings; EQ18 - Setting of Listed Buildings; EQ19 -  Changes of 
Use of Listed Buildings; EQ20 - Buildings of Local Significance; 
ACE7 - Hotel Development; ACE8 - Planning Standards; TR19 - 
Planning Standards. 

 
The following policies in the South Shoreditch SPD (2006) are 
relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 
SSSPD 1.1 - Townscape quality and character; SSSPD 1.3 - 
Environmental sustainability; SSSPD 1.4 - Sustainable design and 
construction; SSSPD 1.5 - Increased densities; SSSPD 1.6 - 
Adaptability and longevity of urban fabric; SSSPD 1.7 - Efficient use 
of urban land and buildings; SSSPD 1.8 - An offer of jobs and a 
variety of employment sectors; SSSPD 1.12 - A place to enjoy 
yourself; SSSPD 3.4 - Development; SSSPD 3.7 - Alterations 
and extensions to buildings of intrinsic merit; SSSPD 4.1 - Building 
heights; SSSPD 7.1 - Impact of new development; SSSPD 7.9 - 
TLRN road network; SSSPD 8.1 - Planning gain guidance; SSSPD 
12.2 - Design guidance in the Shoreditch Triangle; SSSPD 12.6 - 
Encouraging the visitor economy and managing the night-time 
economy. 

 
The following policies in the London Plan (2004) are relevant to the 
approved development/use and were considered by this Council in 
reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 - 
Sustainability criteria; 3B.1 - Developing London’s economy;  3C.2 - 
Matching development to transport capacity; 3D.7 - Visitor 
accommodation and facilities; 4A.1 - Tackling climate change; 4A.6 
- Decentralised energy: Heating, cooling and power; 4A.7 - 
Renewable Energy; 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city; 
4B.2 - Promoting world-class architecture and design. 

Page 54



 13 

INFORMATIVES 
 
  The following Informatives should be added: 
 

 SI.1  Building Control 
  SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
  SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

 SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
     SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
  SI.25  Disabled Persons’ Provisions 
   SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

 SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
  

 NSI.1 All materials submitted pursuant to the discharge of condition 
3 of this granting of full planning permission ('materials to be 
approved') should be supplied and delivered at the same 
time in a container clearly marked with the address of the 
application site, reference to the application number 
2007/3207, and accompanied by coloured copies of relevant 
elevational drawings, to which each material sample should 
be clearly referenced and labelled accordingly. Full 
specifications detailing each material's manufacturer and 
colour (as per manufacturer's description/name thereof) 
should also be submitted at the same time. 

 
 NSI.2 Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 

pressure of 10m head (approx. 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 
litres/minutes at the point where it leaves Thames Water’s 
pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum 
pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

 
   
5. 357 – 359 KINGSLAND ROAD, LONDON, E8 4DR: 2008/0622 (full 

planning permission), 2008/0740 (Conservation area consent) 
 

Redevelopment of site to comprise the erection of a part six, part seven 
storey building containing a 290 room hotel (including restaurant, bar and 
conference space), with a car park for 26 vehicles and independent 
theatre workshop space on the lower ground floor.   

 
 RESOLVED that:- 

 

This item be WITHDRAWN from the agenda, at the request of the 
Applicant.  

 
 

Page 55



 14 

7. MILLFIELDS DEPOT, MILLFIELDS ROAD, LONDON, E5 
OAR:2008/1397 

 
 Revisions to include: revised pedestrian access; revised canopy to the 
 north elevation of the Office and Welfare Building; coverings to the five 
 green waste, salt and grit bays; an electricity sub station; a mustering 
 cabin; and an IT server room of approved application reference 2007/2196 
 for ‘Redevelopment of the site to provide a waste transfer station for the 
 handling and transfer of municipal waste with ancillary development 
 including administrative, welfare and security buildings, storage facilities, 
 vehicle storage, maintenance and refuelling facilities and related 
 engineering and site works, including Environmental Statement.  
 
7.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
7.2 Stephen Cook, Agent, was in attendance to answer any questions that 

arose. 
 
7.3 Reference was made to the addendum, which set out a consultation 

response from British Waterways and an additional informative, to be 
added.  This was AGREED.  

 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 

 
Planning permission be APPROVED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 

the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission.   

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1)(a) 
of the Town and Country Act.  

 
2. SG2  - Restricted hours of use 
 The operation of the waste transfer depot hereby permitted may 

only be carried out between 0730 to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 
0730 to 1330 Saturdays  and not at all on Sundays/Bank 
Holidays. No deliveries of waste shall be taken  at or dispatched 
from the site outside this house. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 

and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 

Page 56



 15 

3. SH9 – Marking of parking/service areas 
 Before the use hereby permitted first commences, appropriate 

markings shall be used to delineate all car parking spaces and 
service areas within the site/development as shown on the 
permitted plans, such marking to be maintained permanently. 

 
 REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking 

provision being made on the site to ensure that the proposed 
development does not prejudice  the free flow of traffic or public 
safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
4. SH10 – Provision for cycles 
 Space shall be made available for the secure and covered parking 

of at least ten cycles within the site before the use is first 
commenced. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that reasonable provision is made within the 

site for the parking of cycles in the interest of sustainable modes of 
transport. 

 
5. SM7 – Details to be approved 
 Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development 

showing the  matters set out below must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning  Authority, in writing, before any 
work is commenced.  The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 a. Cross section and elevation of the pedestrian entrance to the 
site; 

 b. Cross section and elevation of the vehicular entrance to the site; 
 c. Vegetation screening to the northern part of the east elevation; 
 d. Green and Brown roofs. 
 
 REASON: To ensure that the appearance of the site is satisfactory 

and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the 
area. 

 
6. SCM11 – Modifications 
 Detailed drawings showing the following modifications to the 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Council before 
any work is commenced on site.  This part of the development shall 
be completed only in accordance with the details thus approved: 

 a. Reorganisation of the vehicular crossover.  
 
 REASON: The crossover is considered to be too wide and 

therefore unsafe for pedestrians and should be modified to ensure 
an acceptable form of development. 

Page 57



 16 

7. NSC1 – Signage 
 Signs showing ‘IN’, ‘OUT’ and ‘NO TURN LEFT’ must be erected 

and retained  adjacent to the vehicle accesses in accordance with 
details to be submitted to  and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the first use of the site. 

 
 REASON: To avoid obstruction of the surrounding streets and 

safeguard public safety and the amenity of the surrounding area. 
 
8. NSC3 – Lighting 
 External lighting shall be provided on movement sensors, directed 

away from the River Lee. 
 
 REASON: To ensure that lighting is not on permanently through the 

night and does not deter wildlife, especially foraging bats 
 
9. NSC4 – Refuse for Office Building 
 Provision shall be made for the storage of refuse and recycling 

facilities for the office building in accordance with details to be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the commencement of the  development.  Such provision shall be 
made prior to the occupation of the building and shall  thereafter be 
made permanently available for the occupiers of the building. 

 
 REASON: To protect amenity and ensure adequate provision for 

the storage of refuse. 
 
10. NSC5 – Plant and associated equipment 
 The plant and any associated equipment hereby approved for the 

transfer building shall be so designed to a level of 10db below the 
lowest measured background noise (LA90, 15 minutes) as 
measured one metre from the nearest affected window of the 
nearest affected residential property.  The assessment of the 
background noise shall be made in the absence of all operating 
plant that services the premises that is the subject of this planning 
application.  In addition the plant shall not create an audible tonal 
noise nor cause perceptible vibration to be transmitted through the 
structure of the building. 

 
 REASON: To safeguard the amenity of surrounding occupiers and 

the area generally by preventing noise nuisance. 
 
11. NSC6  - Travel Plan 
 Prior to the use first commencing a travel plan shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 58



 17 

 REASON: To ensure the workers of the site have sufficient 
information in relation to sustainable means of transport to and from 
the site. 

 
12. NSC7 – Construction Management Plan 
 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted a 

construction  management plan shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 REASON: To ensure the proposed development does not result in 

a negative impact upon the surrounding area and especially the 
River Lee and adjacent Metropolitan Open Land and the mitigation 
recommendations of the ES are addressed. 

 
13. NSC8 – Programme of cleansing works 
 Prior to the first commencement of the use hereby permitted, a 

programme of cleansing works to wash down hard standing areas 
on a regular basis shall be  submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 REASON: To ensure that the proposed development has no 
adverse impact upon the surrounding area and the mitigation 
recommendations of the ES are addressed. 

 
14. NSC9 – Sustainability statement 
 Prior to the first occupation of the site, details shall be submitted to 

and approved by the Local Planning Authority outlining where the 
development has sought to meet the targets set out within the 
Sustainability Statement hereby approved.   

 
 REASON: To ensure that the proposed development accords with 

the objectives of the London Plan. 
 
15. NSC10 – Giant Hogweed 
 Full details, including drawings, shall be provided of the 

removal/management of the Giant Hogweed on site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by  the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
 REASON: To avoid serious disturbance to and adverse effects 

upon occupiers of the site. 
 
16. NSC11 – Site clearance 
 Site clearance should be undertaken outside the bird nesting 

season (generally accepted as being between March and July).  If 
this is not possible,  all the trees, scrub and buildings should be 
searched for the presence of nesting birds. If any are found the 

Page 59



 18 

nests should be protected until such time as the young have 
fledged and left the nest.  

 
 REASON: In the interests of ecology and the setting of the River 

Lee.  
 
17. NSC12 – Bird Boxes 

Bird and bat boxes should be placed within and around the new 
development to mitigate for any loss of nesting habitat.   

 
REASON: In the interests of ecology and the setting of the River 
Lee. 

 
18. NSC13  - Renewable Energy 
 Prior to work commencing on site details of the provision for ten per 

cent of the known energy demand of the site being provided 
through the installation of  renewable energy means shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the  Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall not be carried out otherwise than 
in accordance with the details thus approved.  

 
 REASON: To ensure the development accords with the London 

Plan and provides an adequate source of renewable energy on-
site. 

 
19. NSC14 – No burning 
 There shall be no burning of waste materials on the site. 
 
 REASON: In the interest of the local environment. 
 
20. NSC15 – Containment of waste 
 All waste shall be contained within the transfer building, containers 

or vehicles at all times. 
  

REASON: In the interest of the local environment. 
 
21. NSC16 – Storage of oils, fuel and chemicals 
 Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited 

on impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls.  
The volume of the bunded compound shall be at least equivalent to 
the capacity of the tank plus 10%.  If there is multiple tank age, the 
compound shall be at least equivalent to the capacity of the largest 
tank, or the combined capacity of interconnected tanks, plus 10% 
All filling points, gauges and sight glasses must be located within 
the bund.  The drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no 
discharge to any watercourse, land or underground strata.  

Page 60



 19 

Associated pipe work shall be located above ground and protected 
from accidental damage.  All filling points and tank overflow pipe 
outlets shall be detailed to discharge downwards into the bund. 

  
 REASON: In the interest of the local environment. 
 
22. NSC17 – Traffic management plan 
 Prior to commencement of work, details of the management of 

vehicles at the entrance to the site, and their circulation around the 
site, shall be provided.  

 
 REASON: To ensure the proposed development does not impeded 

upon the safety of pedestrians or the flow of traffic in the 
neighbourhood. 

 
23. BW1 – feasibility study 
 Before development is commenced, a detailed feasibility study shall 

be carried out to assess the potential for moving freight by water 
during the construction cycle (waste and bulk materials) and 
following occupation of the development (waste and recyclables). 

 
 REASON: To encourage the use of the canal for transporting waste 

and bulk materials in accordance with Policies 3C.24 and 4C.14 of 
the London Plan and the Draft Further Alterations to the London 
Plan. 

 
24. BW2 – Lighting scheme 
 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, 

full details of  the proposed lighting scheme shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by  the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with British Waterways.  The approved lighting should 
be implemented prior to first occupation of the development.  

 
 REASON: In the interest of, ecology, visual amenity and the River 

Lee setting. 
 
25. EA1 – Surface water source control 

Surface water source control measures shall be carried out in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences. 

 
REASON: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and to improve 
water quality. 

 
 

Page 61



 20 

26. EA2 - Contaminants 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is 
found to be present at the site then no further development (unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall 
be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained 
written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an 
amendment to the Method statement detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 

 
REASON: To prevent pollution to groundwater. 

   
INFORMATIVES 
 
SI.1  Building Control 
 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 
SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 
 
TW1: Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 

pressure of 10m head (approximately 1 bar) and a flow rate 
of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Water 
pipes.  The developer should take account of this minimum 
pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

 
EA1: It is recommended that the requirements of Planning Policy 

Statement 23 and the Environment Agency Guidance on 
Requirements for Land Contamination Reports and the Land 
Contamination: A Guide for Developers should be followed.  
Please refer to our website for further information 
(www.environment–agency.gov.uk click on the land quality 
link). 
 

EA2: Surface water from the car park should be passed through a 
suitable type of oil/ grit separator. 

 
EA3:  Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 as 

amended by the Water Act 2003, an abstraction licence will 
normally be required from the Environment Agency for the 
abstraction (removal) of water (even temporarily) from any 
inland  waters (rivers, streams, ditches, lakes, etc.) or 
underground strata (e.g. from a well, borehole or catchpit). 

Page 62



 21 

The granting of a licence will be dependent on the availability 
of water resources locally and on the acceptability of any 
resulting impact on the environment and existing protected 
rights 

 
British Waterways: 

 
“The applicant is advised that any discharge of surface water into the 
waterways requires British Waterway’s written permission before 
development commences.” 
 
“In the event of any encroachments into British Waterway’s airspace, 
land or water, the applicant must enter into an appropriate 
commercial agreement with British Waterways before development 
commences.” 
 
“Any access from the townpath, scaffolding oversail or closures of the 
townpath during the construction must be agreed in writing with 
British Waterways before development commences.” 
 
“The applicant/developer is advised to contact third party works 
engineer, Andy Nicholls, (020 7985 7245) in order to ensure that any 
necessary consents are obtained and the works are compliant with 
the current British Waterways Code of Practice for Works affecting 
British Waterways.”  

 
 
8. MILLFIELDS DEPOT, MILLFIELDS ROAD, LONDON, E5 OAR: 

2008/1280  
 

Development of a temporary waste transfer station as an interim 
replacement of an existing facility, comprising an enclosed site compound, 
covered storage bays, ancillary office, weighbridge and other related 
engineering works and structures.  
 

8.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
8.2 Stephen Cook, Agent, was in attendance to answer any questions that 
 arose.  
 
8.3 Councillor Buitekant made reference to paragraph 6.4.2 of the report and 

asked where the two temporary relocation sites would be located.  The 
Planning Officer stated that these would be located in Chapman Road and 
a self  access road in Waltham Forest.  

 
 

Page 63



 22 

 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions:  

 
1. NSC1 – TEMPORARY DEPOT 
 The Waste Depot hereby permitted shall be retained for a limited 

period only  until 30/04/2009 on or before which date the 
structures hereby approved shall  be removed, and the land put to 
the condition as approved under planning application 2007/2196 
unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

  
 REASON: In order to safeguard the long-term standard of 

accommodation proposed under application reference 2007/2196 
to provide strategic refuse services within the Borough. 

 
2. SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
3. SG2  - Restricted hours of use 
 The operation of the waste transfer depot hereby permitted may 

only be carried out between 0730 to 1730 hours Monday to Friday, 
0730 to 1330 Saturdays and not at all on Sundays/Bank Holidays. 
No deliveries of waste shall be taken  at or dispatched from the 
site outside these hours. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 

and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 
4. SH10 – Provision for cycles 
 Space shall be made available for the secure and covered parking 

of at least ten cycles within the site before the use is first 
commenced. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that reasonable provision is made within the 

site for the parking of cycles in the interest of sustainable modes of 
transport. 

 
 
 

Page 64



 23 

5. NSC1 – Lighting 
 External lighting shall be provided on movement sensors, directed 

away from the River Lee. 
  

REASON: To ensure that lighting is not on permanently through the 
night and does not deter wildlife, especially foraging bats. 

 
6. NSC2 – No burning 
 There shall be no burning of waste materials on the site. 
 
 REASON: In the interest of the local environment. 
 
7. NSC3 – Containment of waste 
 All waste shall be contained within the compound, containers or 

vehicles at all times. 
 
 REASON: In the interest of the local environment. 
 
8. NSC4 – Foundations 

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority pursuant to this condition, the temporary Waste Transfer 
Station compound and weighbridge shall not be brought into use 
until that part of the drainage system approved under application 
reference 2007/2196 which will drain the compound and 
weighbridge areas to the public sewer network is completed and 
brought into use. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the surrounding environmental amenity 

 
9. NSC4 – Removal of materials 
 All materials from the removal of the temporary structures shall, 

apart from any which can be reasonably re-used, be removed from 
the site in accordance with a clearance scheme to be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority not later than one month  prior to the 
expiry date of this permission and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority prior to their removal from the site. 

 
 REASON: In the interests of sustainable development. 
  

INFORMATIVES 
 
SI.1  Building Control 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 2002 

Page 65



 24 

9. 24 MURRAY GROVE, LONDON, N1:2008/1273 
 
 Variation of Condition 2 for alterations to access points and 

reconfiguration of parking spaces of Planning Application reference 
2007/0988 dated 21st August 2007 for the demolition of existing building 
and erection of a 28.5m high nine storey building (with roof access) 
comprising 11 x 1 bed, 9 x 2 bed, 6 x 3 bed and 3 x 4 bed homes, 89sqm 
of commercial or community floor space (use classes A1, A2, B1 or D1) 
together with 2 disabled car parking spaces, cycle parking, refuse and 
recycling storage and landscaping, including children’s play area.  

 
9.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
9.2 Tim Gaskell, Agent, was in attendance to answer any questions that 

arose.  
 
9.3 There being no questions from Members the Chair moved to the vote. 
 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

(A) Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions:  

 
1. SCBO – Development in accordance with Plans 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out strictly 
in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details.   
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
2. SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
three years after the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
3. SMC6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external 
surfaces of the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before any work commences on site. The development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 

 

Page 66



 25 

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
4. SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development 
showing the matters set out below must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any 
work is commenced.  The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
a. windows and doors including sections; 
b. Ground floor elevations and signage; 
c. Eternit cladding including joinery. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
5. SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 
pipework shall be fixed to the (street) elevations of the building 
other than as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
6. SCD2 – Provision of access and facilities 

All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as 
shown on the plans and details hereby approved shall be 
implemented in full to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority before the use is first commenced. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people 
with disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make 
full use of the development. 

 
7. SCI4  - Details of roof plant 

Full details of all the roof plant enclosures (plans/sections and 
elevations) shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before any building works commence.  The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 

 

Page 67



 26 

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
8. NSC1 – D1 use 

The D1 use hereby approved shall be operated as a nursery/crèche 
only and for no other purpose included in the D1 class of the 
Schedule to the town and Country Planning (Use Classes ) Order  
1987 (as amended) or in any provision equivalent to that Class in 
any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order. 

 
REASON: In granting this permission the Local Planning Authoirty 
has had special regard to the circumstance of this case and to the 
policies within the Unitary Development Plan and considers that 
planning permission would have been refused for unrestricted use 
within Class D1 of the Use Classes Order. 

 
(B) The above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 

landowners and their mortgagees enter into a deed of planning 
obligation by means of a Section 106 Agreement of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to secure 
the following matters to the satisfaction of the Assistant 
Director of Regeneration and Planning and the Interim 
Corporate Director of Legal and Democratic Services: 

 
1. To secure the provision of 34% of habitable units as affordable 

housing with a tenure mix of 90% social rent and 10% intermediate.  
The dwelling mix comprising the social rental element being 3x 
1bed, 3 x3 bed and  3x 4 bed and the intermediate being 1 x 1bed. 

 
2. The affordable workspace and residential units shall be fitted out 

before occupation of the Open Market units. 
 
3. The developer must have an active programme for recruiting and 

retaining adult improvers and as a minimum take on at least one 
adult improver per £5 million of construction contract value and 
provide the Council with written information documenting that 
programme within seven days of a written request from the Council. 

 
4. The development shall be ‘car free’.  The developer shall notify the 

occupants of the residential units that they shall not be able to 
obtain any residential parking permit, with the exception of blue 
badge holders. 

 
5. On occupation, the owner should provide the residents with a 

handbook detailing local public transport services and walking 

Page 68



 27 

routes to schools in the area, to help achieve sustainable 
development. 

 
6. Contribution of £142,572.00 towards Education based on 

calculation within the Supplementary Planning Document secured 
 

7. Provision of ground floor unit on long lease (125 years) at nil cost to 
Wenlock Barn TMO or similar subject to agreement with the 
Council. 

 
8. The signing of a section 278 legal agreement under the Highways 

Act to pay the Council to reinstate and improve the footway 
adjacent to the boundary of the site, and include if required, any 
access to the Highway, measures for the street furniture relocation, 
carriageway markings, and access and visibility safety 
requirements.  Unavoidable works required to be undertaken by 
Statutory Services will not be included in the London Borough of 
Hackney estimate or payment. 

 
9. Contribution of £16,000.00 towards car parking works should 

easement rights not be acquired by 1st November 2008.  
 

(C) In the event of the Section 106 agreement referred to in 
Recommendation B not being completed by 21st August 2008, 
the Assistant Director of Regeneration and Planning be given 
the authority to refuse the application for the following reasons:  

 
1. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing affordable housing would be to the detriment of 
housing needs in the Borough and fail to promote a mixed and 
inclusive community and as such would be contrary to policy H03 of 
the Hackney Unitary Development, policies 3A.9-11 of the London 
Plan (amended 02/2008) and PPS1 and PPS3. 

 
2. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing provision of the ground floor commercial unit at nil cost, 
would be likely to contribute to pressure and demand on the 
Borough’s affordable workspace provision contrary to policy 3B.11 
of the London Plan (amended 02/2008). 

 
3. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

for securing a contribution towards sustainable travel 
initiatives/walking and cycling/and public transport in the area, 
would be contrary to policy 3C.21-22 of the London Plan (amended 
02/2008). 

 

Page 69



 28 

INFORMATIVES 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 
 S1.1 Building Control 
 SI.2 Work affecting Public highway 
 SI.3 Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
 Si.6 Control of pollution (Clean air, noise etc) 
 SI.7 Hours of building works 
 SI.24 Name and numbering 
 SI.25 Disabled Person’s provisions 
 SI.27 Fire precautions Act  
 SI.28 Refuse storage and disposal arrangements 
 SI.33 Landscaping 

 
 
10. LAND TO THE WEST OF BEECHWOOD ROAD SOUTH OF DALSTON 

LANE EAST OF ROSEBERRY PLACE AND NORTH OF HOLY TRINITY 
PRIMARY SCHOOL, DALSTON, LONDON, E8 3DE: 2008/1049 

 
 Section 73 application for the variation of the wording of conditions 3 

(ground surface treatment), 4 (boundary walls), 5 (details to be approved), 
6 (lighting & balcony details), 7 (soft and hard landscaping  public realm 
design details), 10 (highway boundary details), 19 (details of public realm 
hard and soft landscaping), 20 (detail of non public realm hard and soft 
landscaping), 21 (landscape management plan), 24 (cycle storage), 29 
(artefact details), 30 (safe by design), 37 (phasing plan), 39 (contaminated 
land study) of planning permission 2007/1803 dated 27/02/2008: Section 
73 application for the variation of condition 3 (ground surface treatment), 4 
(boundary walls), 5 (details to be approved), 6(modifications), 7 (signage), 
12 (roof plant enclosures), 17 (shop fronts), 18 (landscaping public realm), 
19 (landscaping excluding public realm), 20 (landscape management 
plan), 21 (waste, recycling enclosures), 23 (cycle stands), 28 (artefact 
details), 29 (certificate of compliance to safe by design) and 35 (restricted 
delivery hours) of planning permission dated 9/11/2006 (ref: 2006/0886 for 
Town and  Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1999 (SI 1999 No.293): Environmental 
Statement accompanying a planning application for the redevelopment of 
the site through the erection of two blocks being part 8, part 10 and part 
19 storey buildings for the purposes of a mixed use development 
comprising a total of 244 residential units (81x1bed, 82 x 2 bed, 59 x 3 
bed, 16 x 4 bed and 6 x 6 bed); 1711sqm of class A1 (Retail), A2 
(Financial and Professional services), A3 (Restaurant/Café), A4 (Drinking 
Establishments) floor space; 424sqm of B1/D1 floor space (workshop, 
studio, community); 3168sqm of D1 floor space (Library and Archive); 
4900sqm public open space; 65 car parking spaces, 62 cycle spaces for 

Page 70



 29 

public use; new site access points, relocation to taxi stands from 
Roseberry Place to Dalston Lane; The proposal includes the demolition of 
all existing building on the subject site (amended description). 

 
10.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
10.2 The Chair stated that there was a considerable amount of interest in this 

site and that variations to the scheme would come back to future 
meetings.  

 
10.3 There being no questions from Members the Chair moved to the vote. 
 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

(A) On the basis of the above the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable and the Local Planning Authority, which into account 
the environment information required under Regulation 3 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999, resolves to 
GRANT approval, subject to any direction by the Mayor of 
London and the following conditions:   

 
1. SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

  
2. SCM2 – Materials to be approved 

Full details, including samples, of the materials to be used on the 
external surfaces of the building, including glazing, shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to 
implementation.  The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
3. SCM4 – Ground Surface Treatment 

Full details of all ground surface treatments to the site shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within one month of the 
date of this permission and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works 
associated with the ground surface treatments.  The development 

Page 71



 30 

shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the visual amenity of the 
area. 

 
4. SCM5 – Boundary Walls 

Full details including materials of all boundary walls, screening and 
enclosures shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 
one month of the date of this permission and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
works associated with boundary walls, screening and enclosures.  
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
5. SM7 – Details to be approved 1 
 Detailed drawings (at least at 1:50 scale) including modifications to 

the following  matters must be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority within one month of the date of this permission and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the works associated with these items. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 
a. Glazing; 
b. winter gardens and balconies 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
appearance of the area. 

 
6. SCM7 – Details to be approved 2 
 Detailed drawings (at least at 1:50 scale) of the proposed 

development showing the matters set out below must be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority within one month of the date of this 
permission and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, prior to the commencement of the works associated with 
these items. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved: 

 a. All proposed louvers; 
 b. Part elevation drawings; 
 c. External doors 

Page 72



 31 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
7. SCM7 – Details to be approved 3 
 Detailed drawings (at least at 1:50 scale) of the proposed 

development showing the matters set out below must be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority within one month of the date of this 
permission and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of the works associated with the 
external lighting scheme.  The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 a). External lighting; 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

  
8. SCM11 - Modifications 

Detailed drawings showing further design and consideration of soft 
and hard landscaping, layout, street furniture and useable area of 
the public realm shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
within one month of the date of this permission and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, following consultation with 
the GLA’s Architecture and Urbanism Unit, prior to the 
commencement of the works associated with the soft and hard 
landscaping, layout, street furniture and useable area of the public 
realm.  This part of the development shall be completed in 
accordance with the modification(s) thus approved. 

 
REASON: The proposed landscaping requires further, detailed 
consideration to ensure an acceptable form of development. 

 
9. NSC1 - Signage 
 Prior to occupation of the first phase of development full details of 

the signage,  including site signs and signs on buildings must be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before 
any work associated with signage is commenced.  The 
development should not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

  
REASON: To assist in directing members of the public around the 
site and ensure a consistency in design. 

 
 
 

Page 73



 32 

10. NSC2 – Car Parking details 
Detailed drawings showing the matters set out below must be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before any work is commenced.  The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved: 
a. layout and dimensions of the new basement car park 
b. details of new access routes/routes 

 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking 
provision being made on the site to ensure that the development 
hereby approved does not prejudice the free flow of traffic or public 
safety along the adjoining highway.  

 
11. NSC3  - Site boundary 

A detailed drawing to show a clear demarcation must be provided 
to distinguish the boundary of the site from the Public Highway 
within one month of the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the amenity of the public highways is 
protected and that the development does not encroach upon it. 

 
12. SCM9 – No extraneous pipe work 
 No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipe 

work shall be fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other 
than as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
13. SCD1 – Level Access (units and shops) 

A level access shall be provided to all ground floor units hereby 
approved before the use is first commenced of that unit. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to 
gain proper access to the development. 

 
14. SCI4 – Roof plant enclosures 

Full details of all roof plant enclosures (as shown on the approved 
drawings) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning  

 
REASON: To safeguard the appearance of the property. 

 
 

Page 74



 33 

15. SCH3 – Parking within site 
 No parking of vehicles arriving at or departing from the premises 

shall take place otherwise than within the cartilage of the premises. 
  

REASON: To assist in ensuring that the public highway is available 
for the safe and convenient passage of vehicles and pedestrians. 

 
16. SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading facilities 
 No individual phase of the development herby approved shall be 

occupied until the accommodation for car parking, turning and 
loading/unloading associated with that phase has been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans and phasing strategy, and 
such accommodation shall be retained permanently for use by the 
occupiers and/or persons. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not 
prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the 
neighbouring highway(s) and to  ensure the permanent retention 
of the car parking for residents, users and/or persons calling at the 
premises. 

 
17. SCH9 – Marking of parking/ service areas 
 Before the use hereby permitted first commences, appropriate 

markings shall be used to delineate all car parking space and 
service areas within the site/development as shown on the 
permitted plans, and such markings shall be retained permanently. 

  
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking 
provisions being made on the site to ensure that the development 
does not prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the 
adjoining highway. 

 
18. SCH11 – Adequate visibility to entrance 
 Adequate visibility shall be provided to the highway within the 

application site above a height of one metre from footpath level for 
a distance of three metres  on one/both side(s) of the permitted 
points of vehicular access, in accordance with details to be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work on the 
site is commenced, and so maintained. 

   
 REASON: To provide a suitable standard of visibility to and from 

the highway  and to ensure that the use of the access does not 
prejudice the free flow of  traffic and conditions of general safety 
along the neighbouring highway. 

 
 

Page 75



 34 

19. SCS1 – Details of Shopfront 
 Details of the proposed shop fronts on drawings of a suitable scale, 

together with materials used shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning  Authority, in writing, before any work is 
commenced on that part of the development.  The development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the design of the shop front is not 
detrimental to the appearance of the building. 

  
20. NSC4 – Landscaping of public realm 
 Full details of both hard and soft landscaping works associated with 

the public realm within the scheme shall be submitted in writing to 
the Local Planning  Authority within one month of the date of this 
permission and approved in writing prior to the commencement of 
the works associated with the details thus approved following 
consultation with the GLA’s Architecture and  Urbanism Unit.  Soft 
landscape works shall include: a planting plan; a schedule of plants 
noting species, type of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be 
included; and details of areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  Hard 
landscape works shall include details of ramps, steps, railings, 
lighting, vehicular and pedestrian circulation areas, street furniture, 
the water feature, proposed drainage system and details of the 
location of a tree with associated plaque dedicated to the victims of 
the New Cross fire tragedy.  All hard and soft landscaping works 
associated with the public open space shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  The works shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved phasing plan and 
shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date 
on which the development commences  or the first planting season 
following completion of the relevant phase. 

    
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide a reasonable 
environmental standard in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and area. 

 
21. NSC5 – Landscaping excluding Public Realm 
 Full details of both the hard and soft landscaping works associated 

with the scheme excluding the public realm, balconies and winter 
gardens shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 
one month of the date of this permission and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the  commencement of the 
works associated with the details thus approved following 
consultation with the GLA’s Architecture and Urbanism Unit.  These 

Page 76



 35 

details shall include: surface materials, steps, railings, balustrades, 
bat boxes and or bricks, green and brown roofs, ramps and planting 
plans  including a schedule of plants noting species and type of 
stock.  All hard and soft landscaping works associated with the 
residential terraces shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  The works shall be carried out in the first planting 
season following completion of the relevant phase of development 
as set out in the approved phasing plan.  

  
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable 
environmental standards  in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and area. 

 
22. NSC6 – Landscape management plan 
 A landscape management plan (including long term design 

objectives,  management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules) for all landscaped areas, shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the date of this permission 
or as otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the first occupation of the development.  All works specified 
in the approved Landscape Management Plan shall be carried out 
within a period of twelve months from the date on which the 
development of the site commences or the first planting season 
following completion of the development and shall be maintained to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten 
years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants 
that die or are severely damaged, seriously diseased or removed.  

  
REASON: To make sure open spaces and amenity spaces are of a 
high quality. 

 
23. NSC7 – Waste, Recycling enclosures 
 Full details of all waste, recycling and dustbin enclosures showing 

the design,  location and external appearance, shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before the 
development commences.  The  development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

  
REASON: To protect amenity and ensure adequate provision for 
the storage of refuse. 

  
24. NSC8 – Waste Management Plan 
 A Waste Management Plan, including long term objectives, 

management responsibilities, maintenance schedules, cleaning 
schedules, refuse collection and servicing for all parts of the 

Page 77



 36 

development, shall be submitted to and  approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before any work is commenced on the 
development.  The Waste Management Plan shall be  carried out in 
accordance with the details thus approved.  

  
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory measures are in place for the 
provision of  refuse storage and its ongoing maintenance. 

 
25. NSC9 – Cycle Stands 
 Full details of the on site provision for all cycle stands to have 

secure storage shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
within one month of the date of this permission and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement 
of works for the details thus approved or the first occupation of the 
development, whichever is earlier.  The approved details shall be 
implemented before first occupation and the development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved.   

 
REASON: In order to ensure that a safe and secure provision for 
cycle storage is located conveniently for use by cyclists. 

 
26. NSC10 – Environment Agency 
 Details of surface water drainage and source control measures 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences, after consultation with 
the Environment Agency. 

  
REASON: To prevent an increased risk of flooding, to improve 
water quality and to provide improved amenity and wildlife habitat. 

 
27. NSC11 - Crossrail 
 No construction work of any part of the development forming part of 

this permission shall begin until detailed design and method 
statements for all the ground floor structures, foundations, 
basements and other structures, including piling (both temporary 
and permanent), below ground level (the Foundation works) which 
accommodate: 
a. the proposed location of the Crossrail structures and tunnels; 
b. the ground movement arising from the construction of the 

Crossrail structures and tunnels; 
c. the effects of noise and vibration arising from the use of the 

running tunnels have been submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority, after consultation with 
Cross London Rail Links, all such works which form part of the 
design and method statements shall be completed, in their 

Page 78



 37 

entirety, before any part of the building hereby permitted is 
occupied. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that the development does not impact 
and/or is not impacted by the proposed Cross Rail Network. 

 
28. NSC12 - Crossrail 
 The developer shall provide written notice to the Local Planning 

Authority prior to its intention to commence the foundation works.  
Within 28 days of receipt of such prior written notice, the Local 
Planning Authority, may issue a counter  notice to the developer 
prohibiting the commencement of the Foundation works during any 
period when the construction of the Crossrail structures and tunnels 
is in progress or is scheduled to commence or be in progress. 
    
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not have 
a negative impact upon the construction of Crossrail. 

 
29. NSC13 – English Heritage 
 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a  written scheme for investigation which has 
been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall only take place in 
accordance with the detailed scheme pursuant to this condition.  
The  archaeological works shall be carried out by a suitably 
qualified investigating body acceptable to the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
REASON: Significant archaeological remains may survive on the 
site.  The planning authority wishes to secure the provision of 
archaeological investigation and the subsequent recording of the 
remains prior to development, in  accordance with the guidance 
and model condition set out in PPG15. 

 
30. NSC14 – Artefact details 
 Details of the type of any artefacts from the original buildings which 

have been identified by the Museum of London in accordance with 
a condition attached to the planning permission for the demolition of 
the existing buildings at this site and details of their future display 
within the site shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
within three months of the date of this permission or as otherwise 
agreed in writing and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of those works. 

  

Page 79



 38 

REASON: In the interests of preserving a link with the social and 
cultural history of the site. 

 
31. NSC15 – Certificate of Compliance to Secured by Design 
 The development shall achieve a Certificate of Compliance to 

Secure by Design  or alternatively achieve Secure by Design 
standards to the satisfaction of the Metropolitan Police, details of 
which, to include consultation with the police during the 
construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 

  
REASON: To provide a safer environment for future residents and 
visitors to the site and reduce the fear of crime.   

 
32. NSC16 – Residential space standards  
 The internal layout of all residential units shall comply with unit size 

standards outlined in Supplementary Planning Guidance No.1 and 
Policy H09 (4 bed units). 

  
REASON: To ensure a reasonable standard of internal amenity for 
future  occupiers. 

 
33. NSC17 – Disabled car parking 
 Details of the location of at least 25 car parking spaces for disabled 

users in the  basement car park shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local  Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development.  The spaces  shall be retained 
permanently for use by the vehicles of residents with  disabilities.  
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details approved. 

  
REASON: In order to ensure a reasonable minimum of parking 
spaces are  located conveniently for use by persons with 
disabilities. 

 
34. NSC18 – Communal Heating System 
 Details of the communal heating system shall be submitted to and 

approved by  the Local Planning Authority. The details shall 
demonstrate that all users within the development will be connected 
to the communal heating system.  The  development shall not be 
carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved. 

  
REASON: In the interests of sustainable design and energy saving. 

 
 

Page 80



 39 

35. NSC19 – Code of Construction practice 
 No development shall commence until a code of construction 

practice has been  submitted and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The code of construction practise shall provide a control 
framework that the developer, contractors and sub-contractors will 
employ: to control on site working conditions; in relation to site 
fencing/site security; to minimise construction noise impact on 
surrounding properties likely to be adversely affected by 
construction  activities; to provide details of traffic routes to be used 
by construction vehicles.   The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

  
REASON: To avoid serious harm upon members of the public. 

 
36. NSC20 – Renewable Energy 
 Details of the scheme to achieve no less than 10% reliance on 

renewable  energy sources shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development.  The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the development provides an acceptable 
amount of onsite renewable energy. 

 
37. NSC21 – Restricted delivery hours 
 Confine delivery access to the service locations, excluding the 

basement car park, between the following hours:  
 5am to 7am  and 9.30am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday 
 9.30am to 1.30pm Saturday 
 No deliveries shall be made on Sundays or Public Holidays 
  

REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 
38. NSC22 – Phasing Plan 
 A phasing plan showing details of the phased delivery of the 

scheme hereby approved shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority within one month of the date of this permission and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of works on the public realm works.  The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the Phasing Plan. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the development is implemented to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 81



 40 

39. NSC23 – Site clearance and nesting season 
Site clearance should be undertaken outside of the bird nesting 
season (generally accepted as being between March and July).  If 
this is not possible, all the trees, scrub and buildings should be 
searched for the presence of nesting birds. If any are found the 
nests should be protected until such time as the young have 
fledged and left the nest.  These details should be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
implementation of the development. 

 
REASON: In the interest of preserving ecology on the development 
site. 

 
40. NSC24 – Contaminated Land 
 Development of the site shall not begin until a contaminated land 

study has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written 
approval.  The study will identify the extent of the contamination 
and the measures to be taken to  avoid risk to the pubic and local 
environment when the site is developed.  Details of this study 
should include: 

 a.  A desk study report documenting the history of the site; 
 b. A site investigation report to investigate and identify 

contamination; 
 c. A risk assessment of the site; 

d. Proposals for any necessary remedial works to contain, treat or 
remove any contamination. 

 Occupation of the site and development shall not commence until 
the measures approved in the study have been implemented. 
      
REASON: The development proposed for this site should not 
expose future users or occupiers of the site, any buildings and 
services, or the wider environment to risks associated with the 
contaminants present.  This condition should ensure that the 
contaminated land is properly treated and made safe before 
development to protect public health and to meet the requirements 
of Council policy EQ43. 

 
(B) The above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 

landowners and their mortgagees entering into a section 106 
agreement in order to secure the following matters to the 
satisfaction of the Assistant Director of Regeneration and 
Planning and the Interim Corporate Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services:   

 
1. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall contribute 

£579,325.00 for the purpose of providing education and/or training 

Page 82



 41 

facilities for the residents of the London Borough of Hackney; 
 
2. The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways 

Act to pay the Council £508,676.00 to reinstate and improve the 
footway adjacent to the boundary of the site, and include if 
required, any access to the Highway, measures for street furniture 
relocation, carriageway markings, access and visibility safety 
requirements.  Unavoidable works required to be undertaken by 
Statutory Services will not be included in London Borough of 
Hackney estimate or payment; 
a. Footway reinstatement works; 
b. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall provide 

temporary and permanent public open space plus associated 
Bond(s) for the open space works; 

c. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall provide a plan 
for the provision of a programme of public art to require the 
expenditure of at least £20,000.00 but no more than £25,000.00 
inclusive of design and consultation costs; 

d. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall provide a plan 
setting out a package of security measures to be adopted by the 
developer which shall include the provision of CCTV and 
lighting; 

e. To secure the provision of Affordable Housing comprising 8 x 2 
bedroom units, 18 x 3 bedroom units and 6 x 4 bedroom units 
as affordable intermediate housing to be created and used 
exclusively as Intermediate Housing and 8 x 2 bedroom units, 
11 x 3 bedroom units, 6 x 4 bedroom units and 6 x 6 bedroom 
units as affordable rented being the units to be created and 
used exclusively as Social Rented Housing; 

f. A travel plan shall be provided towards assisting occupiers (both 
residential and commercial) to achieve sustainable travel targets 
with the services of a Travel Plan co-ordinator; 

g. The development shall be limited to 65 car parking spaces.  The 
developer shall notify the occupants of the residential units that 
they shall not be able to obtain any residential parking permit, 
with the exception of blue badge holders; 

h. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall endeavour to 
secure at least twelve per cent of the workforce for construction 
of the development shall be Local Labour; 

i. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall convene a 
community working group monthly during the construction 
phase and provide a code of construction practice; 

j. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall provide a 
Housing Standards Plan in accordance with Lifetime Home 
Standards 

k. That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall provide a 

Page 83



 42 

Sustainable Development Plan securing the incorporation of 
sustainable measures in the carrying out of the development; 

l. Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal 
and other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in 
respect of the proposed negotiations and completion of the 
proposed Section 106 Agreement 

 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

 
 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary 

Development Plan (1995) are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching 
the decision to grant planning permission:  

 EQ1-Development Requirements, EQ29-Archaeological Heritage, 
EQ30-Areas  of Special Landscape Character, EQ32-Shop fronts, 
EQ40-Noise Control, EQ46-Recycling Facilities, EQ48-Designing 
out crime, H03-Other Sites for Housing, H016-Housing for People 
with Disabilities, E3-Development outside Defined Employment 
Areas, E18-Planning Standards, TR19-Planning Standards, R1-
Town Centre, R3-Development within shopping frontages, CS2-
Provision of Community Facilities, AE6-Arts and Open Space, AE8-
Planning Standards, 3A.1-Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 
3A.2-Borough Housing Targets, 3A.4-Housing Choice, 3A.7-
Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10-Special Needs and Specialist 
Housing, 4B.1-Design Principles for a Compact City, 4B.2-
Promoting World Class Architecture and Design, 4B.4-Enhancing 
the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.7-Respect Local Context and 
Communities, 4B.8-Tall Buildings- Location, 4B.9-Large-scale 
buildings design and impact, 4B.10-London’s Built Heritage, 4B.11-
Heritage Conservation, PPS1-Delivering Sustainable Development, 
PPS3-Housing, PPS6-Planning for Town Centres: Guidance on 
Design and Implementation, PPG13-Transport, PPG15-Planning 
and the Historic Environment, Guidance on Tall Buildings 2003 
(CABE/English Heritage). 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions   

Page 84



 43 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI  Relevant Fire Legislation  
NSI Reliance upon Renewable Energy Sources shall not be less 

than 10% for the site and where efficiencies are possible 
with the above ground development on Dalston Junction, a 
25% reliance upon renewable energy is recommended.   

NSI The stair riser from Roseberry Place will be required at 
150mm. 

NSI The development of this site is likely to damage 
archaeological remnants.  The applicant should therefore 
submit detailed proposals in the form of an archaeological 
project design.  The design should be in accordance with the 
appropriate English Heritage Guidelines. 

NSI Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 
pressure of 10m head (approximately one bar) and a flow 
rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames 
Water pipes.  The developer should take account of this 
minimum pressure in the design of the proposed 
development. 

NSI Please note that the Architecture and Urbanism Unit of the 
Greater London Authority will be consulted on all 
Landscaping plans submitted pursuant to this permission. 

 
 
11. 63 – 65 BROADWAY MARKET, LONDON, E8 4PH:2007/3178 
 
 Use of lower ground floor and ground floor as Art Gallery (Class D1) with 

operating hours from 10:00 hours to 16:00 hours Monday to Sunday and 
Wine Bar (Class A4) with operating hours of 16:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Monday to Sunday.  

 
11.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
11.2 Oliver Walker spoke in objection of the scheme, his comments are 
 summarised as follows:- 
 

§ Noise pollution is already an issue in the surrounding area and this 
application would increase the existing noise problem, especially on 
Dericote Street.  

§ Felt that the plans were not clear and did not specify whether it was 
just for Broadway Market or whether the application also covered 
Dericote Street, at the rear.  

§ Would another bar improve the area?  
§ No history of building previously being used as a bar.  
§ Very unclear application. 

Page 85



 44 

11.3 Stephen Selby, owner of the property, spoke in support of the scheme, his 
 comments are summarised as follows:- 
 

§ Last drinks will be served at 11pm. 
§ There were 5 pubs previously in Broadway Market and there were 

now only 2 gastro pubs, so there was a need for a wine bar in the 
area. 

§ Continue to support Broadway Market and be considerate to his 
neighbours.  

§ Will not have loud music playing.  
 
11.4 The Chair stated that the Committee had to concentrate purely on 
 planning matters, as the application would also be considered by the 
 Licensing Sub-Committee.  
 
11.5 The Chair also referred to Dericote Road and wished to clarify whether the 

application included a garden at the rear of the property.  The Planning 
Officer stated that the garage and carport to the rear of the property were 
not included in the application and it only referred to the internal use of the 
property.  The Chair requested that a condition be added to ensure that it 
would not be used as a garden.  This was AGREED.   

 
11.6 Councillor Desmond asked the owner of the property about the signage 
 and whether neon signs would be used.  The owner confirmed that no 
 neon signs would be used.  
 
11.7 The Chair raised the issue of amplified noise and requested that the 

Planning Officer look back at a previous application where a condition had 
been added to restrict the level of amplified noise and that the same 
condition be added to this application.  This was AGREED.  

 
11.8 Condition 3 – Restricted Hours of Use, was slightly altered to clarify the 
 use as D1 (Art Gallery) and A4 (Wine Bar).  This was AGREED.  
 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. SCB0  Development in accordance with plans 

The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

Page 86



 45 

2. SCB1  Commencement within three years 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
3. Restricted Hours of use  

The D1 (Art Gallery) unit hereby permitted may only be carried out 
between 10:00 to 16:00 Monday to Sunday, and the Wine Bar (A4) 
may only be carried out between 16:00 hours and 23:00 Monday to 
Sunday  

 
REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally.   

 
4. NS01  - Non Standard  

The premises shall not be used for the playing of live music or for 
dancing at any time, only background music maybe played at 
ground floor level.  No live or amplified music shall be played in the 
wine bar. 

 
REASON: To ensure the restaurant use hereby approved does not 
impact adversely upon residential amenity. 

 
5. Amplified Noise 

No amplified sound emanating from the hereby approved 
development, including associated land shall be audible within the 
curtilage of any nearby residential premises. 

  
REASON: To ensure that the occupiers of neighbouring premises 
do not suffer a loss of amenity by reason of noise and nuisance 
from activities within the hereby approved premises. 
 

6. Clarify Use – Garden 
The rear garden of 63-65 Broadway Market shall not be used in 
connection with the approved Class A4 (Wine Bar) use. 

  
REASON: To safeguard the amenities of surrounding residential 
properties.  

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
SI       Reason for approval:  

Page 87



 46 

The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan (1995) are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching 
the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 - Development 
Requirements; EQ12 [Protection of Conservation Areas], 
EQ40[Noise control], R7 [Changes of use in shopping centres], R10 
[Cafes, Restaurants, wine Bars and Take-Away’ Hot Food Shops]  
 
S3 Hours of Building works 

 
  Your attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 

Control of Pollution Act 1974 which imposes requirements as to the 
way in which building works are implemented including the hours 
during which the work may be carried out. This Act is administered 
by the Councils Pollution Control Service, 205 Morning Lane, 
London, E9 6JX (Telephone: 020 7356 5000) and you are advised 
to consult that Division at an early stage. 

 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation, and Drainage Arrangements 

 
Before any drainage works are commenced on site, detailed plans, 
giving notice of intention to build/permission to 
drain/construct/reconstruct or alter pipes and drains must be 
submitted for approval under the Building Regulations 1991 to the 
Planning and Transportation Service, Dorothy Hodgkin House, 12 
Reading Lane, London, E8 1HJ, Telephone No: 020 8356 5000. 
Please note that it will be necessary to consult the Thames Water 
Utilities Ltd., Waste Water Connections, Kew Business Centre, 
Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE. Telephone No: 020 7713 3865, 
Fax No: 020 7713 3875. 

 
1) All information appertaining to the existing public sewerage 

system. 
2)  Requests for sewer connections. All works will be carried out by 

the London Borough of Hackney at the applicant expense. All 
new developments will be required to have new sewer 
connections. 

3)  Building over sewers. 
4)  System of drainage to be provided on site. 
5)  Adoption of sewers. 

 
Advisory Note: 

 
It should be noted that most sewers throughout the Borough flow 
full or surcharge during periods of heavy storm and conditions may 
be imposed restricting discharge to the system. The prime condition 

Page 88



 47 

is that any large development shall not cause an increase in the 
rate of flow to the public sewerage system. This requirement is 
normally met in the case of new developments by separation on 
site and storage of surface water flows in tanks or oversized pipes 
on sites. Where sites adjoin a suitable watercourse or storm relief 
sewer into which surface water can be discharged by gravity then 
the policy is for sites to be separated and have their surface water 
discharged to the watercourse or storm relief sewer. In the case of 
developments/ rehabilitation/ conversions etc., involving the use of 
basements these are likely to be particularly vulnerable to the 
effects of surcharge and applicants must therefore demonstrate 
that adequate drainage arrangements exist at all times. 

 
 
12. 157 BLACKSTOCK ROAD, LONDON, N4 2JS:2008/0560 
 
 Refurbishment and change of use from shop (Class A1) with ancillary 

residential accommodation above to shop (Class A1) with separate House 
in Multiple Occupation (HMO) on upper floors together with the erection of 
a part single storey part two storey rear extension, enlargement of rear 
dormer extension, installation of two roof lights, and external alterations.  

 
12.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
12.2 Barney Crocker spoke in objection of the scheme, on behalf of residents, 

his comments are summarised as follows:- 
 

§ The proposal would create a significant amount of noise pollution.  
§ Extension not in keeping with the character of the terrace and was 

not welcomed by current residents.  
§ The appearance of the proposed development and its bulk is out of 

keeping with the local area.  
§ Issue with car parking – it is already too crowded. 
§ Concerned with the rubbish collection, as it is currently left out on 

the street in bags.  The number of bags will therefore be increased.  
§ Feels the scheme represents overdevelopment. 
§ Does not feel that the development fits with the planning criteria 

and contradicts the LDF and Community Strategy.  
 
12.3 Patrick Oetiker, Agent, spoke in support of the scheme, his comments are 
 summarised as follows:-  
 

§ Need for affordable housing in the area.  
§ Does not feel that the scheme represents overdevelopment.  

Page 89



 48 

§ Building has been empty for several years and was in a state of 
disrepair and the development would improve the appearance of 
the building.  

§ In relation to the concerns regarding car parking, he was doubtful 
that the development would dramatically increase the number of 
cars, as many of them were expected to be students and use public 
transport.  

§ Proposing to provide bin storage at the back of the property, which 
would be collected on a weekly basis.  

 
12.4 Councillor Hanson made reference to the proposed bin storage and 

 whether it was felt that this was adequate and also whether it would be 
 appropriate to make the development a car free scheme.  

 
12.5 The Planning Officer stated that the bin storage was included in the 

drawings and that further details could be obtained if required.  With 
regard to car parking, he stated that it would be unusual for a scheme of 
this size to be car free and this was not encouraged.  It was requested that 
this be investigated.  This was AGREED.  

 
12.6 In response to a question from the Chair regarding soundproofing, the 

Agent confirmed that the development would comply with building 
regulations, with sufficient soundproofing between the residential 
properties and the shop. 

 
12.7 Councillor Buitekant wished to clarify whether each of the 5 units had their 

 own toilet or whether there was shared facilities.  The Agent confirmed 
 that there was one bathroom to be shared between the 5 units.  

 
12.8 Councillor Hanson raised strong concerns regarding the density of the 

development and felt that the application should be revisited to 
concentrate on the bathroom density issue.  It was felt that there should 
be more than one bathroom to be shared between the 5 units.  

 
12.9 The Agent responded by stating that if the 5 units each had their own 

bathrooms the development would not be classed as a House in Multiple 
Occupation (HMO).   

 
12.10 The Interim Head of Regulatory Services confirmed that rooms 1 and 2 

shared a shower room, rooms 3 and 4 did not have their own bathroom 
and room 5 in the roof space also had their own separate shower room.  
There was the possibility that room 1 could be used as a bathroom.  

 
12.11 Councillor Desmond wished to clarify what the minimum standard was for 

bathroom ratio in HMOs and the Planning Applications Manager confirmed 
that the minimum standard was that no more than 5 units should share 

Page 90



 49 

bathroom facilities; therefore this application did meet with minimum 
standards.  

 
12.12 Following the discussion, Councillor Hanson proposed a motion that the 

application be deferred to give the Applicant a chance to amend the 
application with a very strong indication from the Committee that any 
further submission to the Committee should be a scheme that provides an 
additional bathroom.  This was seconded by Councillor Webb.  

 
Unanimously RESOLVED that: 

 
The application be DEFERRED to give the Applicant a chance to 
amend the application with a very strong indication from the 
Committee that any further submission to the Committee should be a 
scheme that provides an additional bathroom. 

 
 
13. 5 GARNHAM STREET, LONDON, N16 7JA:2008/0184 
 
 Erection of a new three-storey building to provide four self-contained 

residential units (comprising 1 x 3 bed maisonette and 3 x 1 bed flats) 
together with creation of rear garden and provision of one parking space, 
refuse and cycle store.  

 
13.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda. 
 
13.2 A representative of Leon Frotscher spoke in objection of the scheme, on 

behalf of residents, her comments are summarised as follows:- 
 

§ Representing 12 local residents. 
§ Bulk of the development is not in keeping with the neighbouring 

properties.  
§ Loss of sunlight/daylight and overshadowing to neighbouring 

properties.  
§ The height of the proposed development was a concern.  The 

development is 2m higher than the chimney of the neighbouring 
property.  

§ Garnham Street is located within the conservation area.  
§ ‘Ugly’ and ‘cheap’ design, not in keeping with the conservation 

area.  
§ Issue of space, should be 18m between habitable rooms, the 

development only allows 7m.  
§ Previous applications for a three storey extension on neighbouring 

properties had been refused.  
§ A water tank was being used instead of a water pump.  

 

Page 91



 50 

13.3 A representative from Southern Housing Group spoke in support of the 
scheme, his comments are summarised as follows:- 

 
§ A water tank was being used because the property was not high 

enough to use a water pump.  
§ The proposed development provides affordable housing.  
§ Sensitively designed property.  
§ The architect was not in attendance so he was unable to answer 

many of the questions regarding the design of the property.  
 

13.4 Councillor Hanson made reference to the residential use details and 
 wished to clarify the number of bedrooms per unit, as it also specified 2 
 studio flats.  The Planning Officer confirmed that this was a mistake and it 
 should have stated 3 x 1 bed flats and 1 x 3 bed maisonette.  
 
13.5 Councillor Sharer asked why no consideration had been made to the fact 

that the development would be included in a conservation area and  asked 
whether there was any guarantee that the development would be 
allocated as affordable housing.  

 
13.6 The Planning Officer stated that the development would not be required to 

provide affordable housing under Council policy, as it was only 4 units.  
The representative from the Southern Housing Group stated that the land 
was currently owned by the Council and that the Council was selling it on 
the basis that affordable housing would be provided.  

 
13.7 With regard to the proposed development being located in the 
 conservation area, the Urban Design and Conservation Manager stated 
 that it was a question of whether the development improved the 
 appearance of the surrounding area.  The advice given had been that the 
 small, contemporary in-fill development would improve the appearance of 
 the area.   
 
13.8 In response to a question from Councillor Webb regarding the level of car 
 parking being provided, the Planning Officer confirmed that only 1 parking 
 space was being provided, which was also disabled.  Councillor Webb 
 requested that a condition be added for this car parking space be 
 allocated to the 3 bed maisonette.  This was AGREED.  
 
13.9 The Planning Officer stated that the building would be a mixture of brick 

and render and a condition was already in place for the materials to be 
approved before commencement of the development, if granted approval.  

 
13.10 The Chair wished to clarify the issue of loss of daylight and asked whether 

a daylight/sunlight report had been carried out.  The Planning Officer 
stated that a daylight/sunlight report had not been submitted with the 

Page 92



 51 

application and that only one of the ground floor windows of the 
neighbouring properties would fall below the set guidelines and therefore 
did not warrant refusal of the scheme.  

 
13.11 The Chair also asked whether a green roof was being provided and the 

representative from the Southern Housing Group stated that it was not felt 
appropriate to provide this due to the small size of the development and it 
therefore not being financially viable.  The Chair requested that a condition 
be added for all endeavours to be made to provide a green roof.  This was 
AGREED.  

  
Councillor Sharer voted against the recommendation.  

 
 RESOLVED that: 
 

Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. SCG10 – Contaminated Land 

No development shall take place until details and results of a soil 
contamination survey of the site and details of remedial measures 
proposed to treat/eradicate any contamination found have been 
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing.  The survey shall be carried out by a suitably 
qualified person or body to be agreed by the Council.  The 
development shall not take place otherwise than in accordance with 
the details so approved. 

 
2. SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
3. SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
 
 

Page 93



 52 

4. SCM6 – Materials to be approved  
Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the 
external surfaces of the buildings, boundary walls and ground 
surfaces of this development shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on implementing this planning permission. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
5. SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 
pipework shall be fixed to the (street) elevations of the building 
other than as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

  
6. SCI3 – No roof plant 

No roof plant (including all external enclosures, machinery and 
other installations) shall be placed upon or attached to the roof or 
other external surfaces of the building. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
7. SCD1 – Provision of level access 

A level access shall be provided to all ground floor units of this 
development hereby permitted before the use is first commenced. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to 
gain proper access to the development. 

 
8. SCR4 – Wheelchair-accessible homes 

The housing units proposed to be located on the ground floor must 
be designed to wheelchair standards and be in accordance with 
details to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
REASON: In the interests of providing satisfactory and convenient 
housing accommodation for persons with disabilities. 

Page 94



 53 

9. SCH8 – Parking for people with disabilities 
The parking space shown on drawing 0219PL100 and forming part 
of this development shall be marked and retained permanently for 
use by the vehicles of people with disabilities. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking 
spaces are located conveniently for use by people with disabilities. 

 
10. SCH10 – Secure bicycle parking 

Internal lockable space shall be made available within the building 
for the secure parking of 6 bicycles, as shown on the plans hereby 
approved, before the first occupation of the development. 

 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of bicycles in the interest of relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

 
 11. Green Roof 

Every attempt should be made to ensure the provision of a 'Green 
Roof' to the flat roof element of the development hereby approved. 
If this element cannot be provided details of why this is the case are 
to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
writing before development on site commences. 

  
REASON: To encourage sustainable urban drainage systems in 
order to increase biodiversity and minimise water run off. 
 

12. SCH8 – Parking for people with disabilities 
The parking space shown on drawing 0219PL100 and forming part 
of this development shall be marked and retained permanently for 
use by the vehicles of people with disabilities, and assigned only for 
use by the occupants of the ground floor 3-bedroom maisonette 
hereby approved. 

  
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking 
spaces are located conveniently for use by people with disabilities. 
 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

 
The following policies are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching 
the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 (Development 
Requirements), HO3 (Other Sites for Housing) of the Hackney 
Unitary Development Plan 1995; and policies 3A.1 (Increasing 
London’s Supply of Housing), 3A.2 (Borough Housing Targets), 
3A.4 (Housing Choice), 3A.6 (Definition of Affordable Housing), 

Page 95



 54 

3A.7 (Affordable Housing Targets), 4B.1 (Design Principles for a 
Compact City), 4B.4 (Sustainable Design and Construction) and 
4B.7 (Respect Local Context and Communities) of the London Plan 
2004. 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
The following Informatives should be added: 

 
SI.1  Building Control 

  SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
  SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
     SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
  SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
   SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
   SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
  SI.32  Consultations with TWU  

SI.33  Landscaping 
SI.36  Soil Contamination Survey 

 
  

14. 14 – 16 KENWORTHY ROAD, LONDON, E9 5RB: 2007/2786 
 
 Demolition of the existing 2 residential buildings for medical staff, 

comprising 358 studio flats and 360sqm nursery and the erection of a part 
two, part four & part 6 storey building to provide 119 residential flats (32 x 
1 bed, 50 x 2 bed, 27 x 3 bed & 10 x 4 bed) and 423sqm nursery.  

 
14.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda and 

confirmed that the applicant was in agreement with the additional 
conditions suggested by TfL, detailed within the report.  

 
14.2 There being no questions from Members the Chair moved to the vote.   
 
 RESOLVED that: 
 

Members AUTHORISE the inclusion of (B) as a new head of term 
within Section 106 Agreement (not yet completed) and (A), (C) and 
(D) be addressed by way of condition as follows:  

 
Highway Works 

 
(a) No construction shall commence until such time as the Applicant has 

entered into a legal agreement with TfL pursuant to Section 278 of the 

Page 96



 55 

Highways Act 1980 substantially in the format appended at the First 
Schedule to cover the following works to the public highway: 

 
• formation of a new access onto the public highway for which TfL is 

the Highway Authority. 
 

REASON: to ensure that details of construction and implementation 
are acceptable in highway terms. 
 

(b) No construction shall commence until such time as the Applicant has 
submitted a Construction Logistics Plan to TfL and such plan has been 
approved by TfL. 

 
REASON: to ensure that details of construction and implementation 
are acceptable in highway terms. 

 
(c) Prior to the occupation of the development a Delivery and Servicing 

Plan shall be submitted to and approved by TfL. 
 

REASON: to ensure that the development is acceptable in highway 
terms. 

   
 
15. ST JOSEPH’S CONVENT, MARE STREET, LONDON: E8 4SA 
 
 Demolition of existing “Norfolk Wing” of St Joseph’s Hospice and the 

erection of a new purpose built four storey convent building in place of the 
Norfolk Wing accommodating 25 individual bedrooms including ensuites, 
two flats at ground floor level with ancillary communal areas, kitchens and 
landscaping.  

 
15.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda and 

added that the Council’s Environmental Health Officer had reviewed the 
submitted noise reports and raised no objections to the application. 

 
15.2 The Chair referred to the replanting of trees and asked whether there was 

any management plan in place to control this.  The Planning Officer stated 
that there was already a condition in place regarding landscaping, 
however an additional condition could be added to include the 
implementation of a landscaping management plan.  This was AGREED.  

 
15.3 In response to a question from the Chair regarding the type of brick being 

used, the applicant gave his assurance that the yellow brick would have 
the appearance of traditional London yellow stock brick and would be in 
keeping with the surrounding area.  

 

Page 97



 56 

 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

Planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. SCBO – In accordance with plans 
 The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 

completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

  
 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 

carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 
 
2. SCB1N - Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 
three years after the date of this permission.  

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
3. SCM2 - Materials to be approved 

Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the 
external surfaces of the building and boundary walls shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before any work commences on site. The development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved.  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
4.  NSC - Ecological roofs  
  Full details of a biodiverse, substrate-based (75mm minimum 

depth) extensive 'brown/green’ roof shall be submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 
building works commence. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved.   

 
  REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the 

development and the river corridor, to provide undisturbed refuges 
for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage and to enhance 
the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

 
 
 

Page 98



 57 

5. NSC - Renewable Energy and Sustainability 
Full details of renewable energy provisions, including evidence of at 
least compliance with BREEAM’s ‘Very Good’ rating for Multi-
Residential proposals with best endeavours to achieve an 
‘Excellent’ rating, shall be submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before any building works commence. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development achieves the level of 
renewable energy provision on site as proposed. 

 
6. SCT1 - Landscaping 
 A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, before any work commences on site, for the planting of 
trees and shrubs showing species, type of stock, numbers of trees 
and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be grass seeded 
or turfed; all landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from 
the date on which the development of the site commences or shall 
be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) season following 
completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years, 
such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants that die, 
or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 

 
 REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable 
environmental standards in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and area.   

 
7. NSC - Waste 
 Full details of the bin storage area, including bin sizes and 

locations, are to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the occupation/use of the proposed 
building. 

 
 REASON: To ensure suitable storage for refuse is provided for on 

site. 
 
8. SCS5 - Waste 
 Except on day(s) of collection, all refuse and waste shall be stored 

in sealed containers in the refuse area shown on the plans hereby 
approved. 

 

Page 99



 58 

 REASON: To ensure refuse is not left in the street in the interests 
of visual amenity and to reduce the likelihood of infestation.   

 
9. SCH10 - Cycle spaces 
 Provision for 5 cycles within a covered and secure facility. Details of 

which are to be submitted to an approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before the commencement of works on site, 
and subsequently installed in a satisfactory manner, before the 
development is first occupied/use commences. 

 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of cycles in the interest of relieving congestion in 
surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general.  

 
10. NSC - Wheel washing facilities  
 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the 

site during construction works shall be installed in accordance with 
details approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of works on site. 

 
 REASON: In the interest of highway safety. 
 
11. NSC – Highway Works 
 No construction shall commence until such time as the applicant 

has entered into a legal agreement with the Council pursuant to 
s278 Highways Act 1980 substantially in the format appended at 
Second Schedule to cover all costs related to consequential 
highway junction and pavement works. 

 
12. Landscape Management Plan  

Upon two years from the completion of the development hereby 
approved the applicant shall submit a landscaping management 
plan to be approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
This management plan shall indicate, but is not limited to, 
methodologies for on-going maintenance and replacement planting, 
should it be necessary, for any dead or diseased trees and/or 
shrubs.  
 
REASON:  To ensure the level of landscaping proposed within the 
approved scheme is maintained to an appropriate level and 
contribute to the amenity of the site and surrounding area.  

  
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

 
The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan 1995 are relevant to the approved 

Page 100



 59 

development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching 
the decision to grant planning permission:  

 
  EQ1 - Development Requirements 
  H03 - Other sites for housing 
  H017 -   Residential Accommodation for Care 
  TR19  - Planning Standards 

 
INFORMATIVES 

 
 The following informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 

  SI.8     Soundproofing 
 SI.19   Health, Safety and Welfare at Work 

SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 
SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
SI.32  Consultations with TWU  
 

 
16. 227, 227A, 227B, 227C CITY ROAD AND 4 WINDSOR TERRACE, 

LONDON, EC1V 1JT: 2008/0525 
 
 Section 73 application for minor amendments, namely revisions to 

elevations and an increase in height, connected to approved planning 
permission ref. 2005/0272 (for the demolition of existing part 3, part 4 
storey building and erection of a 9 storey plus basement level building to 
provide 633sqm of Class A1 (Retail) or A3 (Restaurant) at ground and 
basement level, 379sqm of Class B1 (Office) at first floor level with 26 
residential units, comprising 6 x 1 bed, 11 x 2 bed, 8 x 3 bed and 1 x 4 bed 
units at 2nd to 8th floor level with roof terraces/balconies together with the 
formation of a new vehicular access off Wellesley Terrace and the 
provision of 2 basement level parking spaces).   

 
16.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda and 

added that Members were only considering the minor amendments to an 
already approved scheme.  These amendments were listed and 
considered in Section 6 of the report. 

 
16.2 There being no questions from Members the Chair moved to the vote.  

Page 101



 60 

 Unanimously RESOLVED that: 
 

(A) The proposal is considered acceptable and is recommended for 
APPROVAL subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than 

the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this 
permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
2. The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 

completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is 
carried out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved.  

 
3. Details including samples, of all materials to be used on the 

external surfaces of the building shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before work on the 
external surfaces commences on site. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area.  

 
4. Detailed drawings showing the following modification(s) to the 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Council before 
any work is commenced on site: This part of the development shall 
be completed only in accordance with the modification(s) thus 
approved. 
a)  Design and appearance of the railings; 
b)  Undercroft to the balconies; and 
c)  Landscaping of the roof terraces. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
5. Detailed drawings showing the following modification(s) to the 

scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Council before 
any work is commenced on site:     This part of the development 

Page 102



 61 

shall be completed only in accordance with the modification(s) thus 
approved. 

 a) Details of disabled car parking provision; and  
 b) Details of car lift and mechanism. 
 
 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 

satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
6. No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 

pipework shall be fixed to the (street) elevations of the building 
other than as shown on the drawings hereby approved. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 

satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area 

 
7. A level access shall be provided to all ground floor units/shops 

hereby approved before the use is first commenced. 
 
 REASON: In order to ensure people with disabilities are able to 

gain proper access to the development. 
 
8. The A3 use hereby permitted may only be carried out between 

08:00 hours and 23:00 hours on any day. 
 
 REASON: To ensure that the use is operated in a satisfactory 

manner and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or 
prejudice local amenity generally. 

 
9. Outdoor dining in connection with the A3 use hereby permitted may 

only be carried out between 08:00 hours and 22:00 hours on any 
day. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the use is operated in a satisfactory 

manner and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or 
prejudice local amenity generally. 

 
10. The A3 use hereby permitted shall only involve the consumption of 

food on the premises and shall not include the sale of food to be 
consumed off the premises or home deliveries. 

 
 REASON: In order to limit the number of callers at the premises in 

the interests of maintaining a free flow of traffic in the adjoining 
streets, and amenity of adjoining occupiers. 

 

Page 103



 62 

11. Details of the position, type and finish of external flue, and ductwork 
and any other ventilation equipment shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before use 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
 REASON: To safeguard the appearance of the property and area 

generally. 
 
12. The motor system for any fume extraction equipment hereby 

approved shall not be fitted externally and shall be located within 
the fabric of the building. 

 
 REASON: To avoid serious disturbance to and adverse effects 

upon the environment and to occupiers of nearby residential 
properties. 

 
13. No roller shutters other than of the perforated grille type shall be 

installed on the premises.  Details of any proposed perforated grille 
shutter on drawings of a suitable scale shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing; and no shutter 
shall be installed otherwise than in accordance with the details thus 
approved. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the premises maintain an appropriate 

contribution to the streetscene, in order to safeguard visual interest, 
an attractive shopping environment, and on-street amenity 
generally. 

 
14. Except on day(s) of collection, all refuse and waste shall be stored 

in sealed containers in the refuse area shown on the plans hereby 
approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure refuse is not left in the street in the interests 
of visual amenity and to reduce the likelihood of infestation. 

 
15. Full details of all the roof plant enclosures (plans, sections, front 

and rear elevations, etc.) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any building works 
commence. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To safeguard the appearance of the property. 

 
16. Internal lockable storage space shall be made available for the 

secure parking of 28 cycles within the building as shown on the 

Page 104



 63 

plans hereby approved before the first occupation of the 
development. 

 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of cycles in the interest of relieving congestion in 
surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

 
17. The garage doors shall not open over the public highway.   
 

REASON: To avoid inconvenience and danger to vehicles and 
pedestrians on the highway. 

 
18. Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the 

site during construction works shall be installed in accordance with 
details approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of works on site. 

 
REASON: In the interest of highway safety. 

 
19. The permission being granted for outdoor dining relates solely to 

the area within the curtilage of the site and not the public highway. 
 

REASON: In the interest of highway safety. 
 
20. Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed ground floor 

shopfront elevations and all associated signage to the ground floor 
retail unit must be submitted to and be approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, in writing, before any work on the manufacture 
and construction of the ground floor shopfronts is commenced. This 
Condition does not prevent the commencement of the main building 
structure, nor does it prevent the occupation and use of the 
residential flats and office units. However, the ground elevations 
and signage should be installed as approved no later than 12 
months after the date of first occupation. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the visual amenity of the 
area. 

 
(B) That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 
landowners and their mortgagees enter into a deed of planning 
obligation by means of Section 106 Agreement of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to secure the 
following matters to the satisfaction of the Assistant Director of 
Planning and Transportation and the Interim Corporate Director of 
Legal and Democratic Services:  

Page 105



 64 

1. To secure the provision of 35% of the residential units, comprising 
6 x 2 bed units and 3 x 3 bed units within the development as 
affordable housing on a shared ownership basis.  

   
2. Phasing of affordable housing – All the affordable housing units 

shall be built and transferred to Peabody Group (RSL) or another 
nominated RSL prior to the occupation of the private units for sale. 

 
3. Phasing of commercial floorspace – The B1 (Office) and A1 (Retail) 

/ A3 (Restaurant) accommodation shall be built and fitted to shell 
and core finish prior to the occupation of the residential units. 

 
4. Should any future planning application for a change of use from 

commercial (B1 and/or A1/A3) floorspace to residential be 
submitted, that such an application be considered in conjunction 
with the approved permission so that additional affordable housing 
units can be secured in accordance with the Council’s Affordable 
Housing Policy(s). 

5. Housing Standards – 3 residential units shall be provided to full 
wheelchair standard. 

 
6. Housing Standards – all residential units to be built to lifetime home 

standards (except parking requirement). 
 
7. Payment by the landowner/developer of £75,000 towards education 

contribution. 
 
8. Open Space / Environmental improvement Plan – The landowner / 

developer / mortgagee to submit and agree an environmental 
improvement plan in writing with the LPA for the Windsor Terrace 
open space. Such an agreed plan to be implemented by the 
developer prior to the first occupation of the approved development 
and the value of improvements should not be less than £30,000. 

 
9. The developer must use its reasonable endeavors to secure local 

labour (residents of the London Borough of Hackney) for the 
redevelopment of the development site. The reasonable endeavors 
appropriate are that the contractor notifies the Hackney 
Construction Recruitment Centre of all vacancies, supplies 
Hackney Construction Recruitment Centre with a full labour plan, 
that there is an active programme for recruiting and retaining 
apprentices and retaining adult improver that the contractor must 
provide the council with a detailed monthly labour return for 
monitoring, that  the Hackney Construction Recruitment Centre is 
supplied with a full procurement plan. 

 

Page 106



 65 

10. Car Free – Retention of the development as car free with the 
exception of those who are medically certified disabled. All on site 
car parking spaces shall be used and retained for disabled parking 
purposes only. 

 
11. Sustainable Travel Plan – The submission of a Travel Plan 

covering both residential and business use, including servicing of 
the site. The contents to be included to be agreed with the 
Council’s Transport Officer. 

 
12. Considerate Contractor Scheme – the applicant to carry out all 

works in keeping with the National Considerate Contractor Scheme.  
 
13. Section 278 – Highways Act The owner will be required to 

enter into agreement under Section 278  of the Highways Act to pay 
to the Council costs to reinstate and repair the public footway as a 
result of the demolition and construction process. 

 
14. Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and 

other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect 
of the proposed negotiations and completion of the proposed 
Section 106 Agreement. 

 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
The following informatives should be added: 
 
SI.1  Building Control 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 2005 
SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
SI.32  Consultations with TWU  
SI.33  Landscaping 

 
 
6. OLYMPICS AND PARALYMPICS SITE – HACKNEY AND ADJOINING 
 BOROUGHS: LAND BETWEEN RIVER LEA NAVIGATION, A12 EAST 
 CROSS ROUTE, RIVER LEA AND SILVERLINK RAILWAY LINE, 
 HOMERTON, LONDON, E9: 2008/1313 
 

Page 107



 66 

Observations to the Olympic Development Authority (ODA) regarding the 
reserved matters application (Stage 2) for the Main Stadium located within 
the London Borough of Newham (Planning Delivery Zone 3) providing 
details of layout, scale appearance and external materials. 
 

6.1 The Planning Officer introduced the report as set out in the agenda and 
informed Members that paragraph 6.1 should have stated that the EDF 
requires the sub-station to be located on the ground floor not in the 
basement, louvered doors required in the western elevation for ventilation. 

 
6.2 Councillor Desmond asked the Planning Officer whether there were 

indications as to the future use of the stadium and the rest of the Olympic 
site, once the Olympics had finished.   

 
6.3 The Chair made reference to paragraph 10.23 of the report and requested 

that the dual carriageway be made more like a homezone and include 
cycle lanes.   

 
 Unanimously RESOLVED that:- 

 
Overall, the London Borough of Hackney (LBH) supports the 
principle of the proposal and considers the Main Stadium during 
games mode to be an elegant response to such an immense and 
pivotal structure to the Olympic site.  LBH raise the following 
observations, specifically relating to the design and appearance of 
the proposal and what the legacy aspirations for the stadium are:  

 
1. The London Borough of Hackney would like to see more detail as 

to the provision of cycle parking both during games mode and 
legacy mode.  

 
2. As there is little information pertaining to the ‘Transformation Mode’ 

of the Stadium, the London Borough of Hackney does not wish to 
approve any details regarding the legacy status of the Stadium.  As 
the current application pertains to aspects of the Games Mode 
Stadium only, the London Borough of Hackney would like to see 
details of the ‘Transformation Mode’ Stadium at a later date 
considered separately by the Olympic Delivery Authority (ODA).  

 
3. The London Borough of Hackney would like to encourage the ODA 

and London Organising Committee of the Olympic Games 
(LOCOG) to minimise the use of non-essential motorised vehicles 
travelling to the site and using the loading and unloading facilities 
(particularly in the western drop-off).  

 

Page 108



 67 

4. The London Borough of Hackney would like indications as to the 
future use of the stadium and the rest of the Olympics Site, once 
the Olympics had finished.  

 
5. The London Borough of Hackney accepts the operational 

requirements for vehicular access to the Main Stadium site during 
Games Mode, however, the dual carriageway Loop Road should be 
restricted to a Homezone with provision and priority made for 
cyclists on the carriageway in Legacy Mode.  

  
  
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR IS 
 URGENT 
 
17.1 The Chair made reference to the article in the East London Advertiser 

which praised the conduct of the Planning Sub-Committee held on 24 
July, which dealt with the controversial ‘Land fronting Worship Street & 
Norton Folgate’ application.   

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 20:15hrs. 
 
 
 Signed  
 
 
 ………………………………………………………………………………..... 
 

Chair of Planning Sub-Committee 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee – 03.09.2008 

  

ADDRESS: Senate House, Tyssen Street, Dalston, E8 2ND 

REPORT AUTHOR: Anthony Traub 
 

WARD: Dalston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/1844 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 204060 / 110c, 
120c, 121c, 122c, 123c, 124b, 125c, 130d, 
131e, 132b, 133b and 140. 
 
Design and Access Statement 
Planning Statement  
Daylight Sunlight Report 
Transport Statement 
Energy and Renewable Technology 
Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 18/09/2007 

APPLICANT:  
Family Mosaic 
113 The Timberyard 
Drysdale Street 
London N1 6ND 

AGENT:   
CMA Planning 
113 The Timberyard 
Drysdale Street 
London  N1 6ND 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing building on the site and erection of a four storey 
building and a five storey building to facilitate a mixed use development consisting of 28 
residential units (18 x two bed, 4 x three bed and 6 x four bed) and 1173 sq metres of 
commercial floor space (use class B1) and associated landscaping. 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: Grant conditional planning permission subject to 
S106 Legal Agreement.  
 
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
ZONING DESIGNATION:  
CPZ  YES 
Conservation Area  NO 
Listed Building (Statutory)  NO 
Listed Building (Local)  NO 
DEA  YES 
 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  B1 Office (Vacant) 1000sq.m. (approx) 

    
Proposed B1  1173 sq.m. 
 C3  Residential dwelling 

houses 
2215 (approx) 
sq.m.  

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 111



Planning Committee – 03.09.2008 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential 
Type 

No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing None      
Proposed Flat  0 18 4 6 0 
Totals (Total = ) 28 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces (General) Parking Spaces (Disabled) 

Existing  0 0 
Proposed  0 (Car Free Development) 0 
Cycle Parking - Proposed 28 (residential) + 5 

(commercial). 33 in total. 
 

 
OFFICERS REPORT 

 
 
1. SITE DESCRIPTION: 
 
1.1 The site is located to the northern side of Dalston Lane and fronts 

Tyssen Street and Ramsgate Street.  
 
1.2 The site is currently occupied by three to four storey commercial 

buildings which are currently vacant. 
 
1.3 The surrounding area is mixed. To the south there is a new mixed use 

development consisting of ground floor commercial floorspace and 8 
flats.  Opposite the site on Tyssen Street is Springfield House, a large 
live work conversion.  Adjoining to the north is a commercial 
warehousing building with an older building adjoining to the east. 

 
1.4 Opposite the site on Ramsgate Street is a newly built residential 

development consisting of 3 storey residential units.  The northern 
adjoining site known as 15 Ramsgate Street has had planning 
permission granted for a part 14 storey tower consisting of 66 
residential units and approximately 1100 sq m of B1 floor space with 
the portion of the new development adjoining the application site being 
4 storeys. 

 
1.5 Hackney Downs is located approximately a mile away to the north east 

of the application site. 
 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 None. 
 

Page 112



 

  

3. HISTORY 

3.1 2003/1672: Change of use of first floor B1 space to Live/Work, erection 
of a two storey extension above existing two storey building & erection 
of five storey buildings to rear to create 836m2 of A1 (ground floor) 
accommodation, 19 Live Work units and 6 x 2 bedroom flats. 
Withdrawn. 

3.2 2004/0746: Demolition of existing building and construction of a four 
storey residential building comprising eleven flat units and one five 
storey with commercial on ground floor and twenty flats on upper 
floors. Withdrawn. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 16 October 2007. 

Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 06 November 2007. 

Site Notices: Yes 

Press Notice: Yes  

 
4.1 Neighbours  
 

315 surrounding occupiers have been consulted. 1 letter of objection 
and 1 letter in support have been received.  The issues raised are 
summarised as follows: 
 

4.1.1 Concerned that the proposed four storey building is overly large along 
the Ramsgate Street frontage as the opposite houses are only three 
storey and would not only detract from the streetscene but also affect 
light of those properties opposite; 

 
4.1.2 The proposal will result in the loss of the only mature tree on 

Ramsgate Street. 
 
4.2 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.2.1 Metropolitan Police: No reply received. 
 
4.2.2 Thames Water: No objection to the application.   
 
4.2.3 The Learning Trust: No reply received.  
 
4.2.4 Cross Rail: Recommends conditions and informatives should the 

Council be minded to grant planning permission. 
 

Page 113



 

  

4.3 Community Groups 
 
4.3.1 Invest in Hackney: Supports the proposal. 
 
4.3.2 Thames Water Utilities Limited: No objection to the application. 

Recommends some advice notes should the application be granted 
planning permission. 

 
4.3.3   The Hackney Society: No reply received. 
 
4.3.4 London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA): The LFEPA 

is not satisfied with the application. However, all aspects regarding 
fire safety will be considered and dealt with through building 
regulations. 

 
4.4 Other Council Departments: 
 
4.4.1 Waste Management: provides requirements for storage of domestic 

and commercial waste. 
 
4.4.2 Planning Policy: No comments received. 
 
4.4.3 Arboricultural Officer: No comments received.  
 
4.4.4 Economic Development: No comments received. 
 
4.4.5 Housing Association Team: No objection. 
 
4.4.6 Environmental Health: Objects to the proposal.  Concerns regarding 

the noise level of the proposed business activities and plant 
equipment and its impact on the proposed residential flats.  
Recommends that should the application be granted, conditions be 
imposed requiring the submission of details ensuring that suitable 
noise insulation is provided to the residential accommodation. 

 
4.4.7 Conservation and Design: Recommend approval subject to 

conditions.  
 
4.4.8 Traffic and Transport: Objects as the proposal does not provide the 2 

required disabled car parking spaces on site.  Several other matters 
were considered regarding travel plans, access, cycle stores which 
were recommended as conditions and S106 agreements should the 
application be approved.  

 
4.4.9 Building Control: No comments received. 
 

Page 114



 

  

4.4.10 Highways: Estimate provided of £27,850.00 for foreseeable highway 
works. 

 
5. POLICIES: 

 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995  

 
EQ1 - Development Requirements 
H03 - Other sites for housing 
E12 - Office Development 
E14 - Access and Facilities for People with Disabilities 
E18 - Planning Standards 
TR19 - Planning Standards 
 

5.2 Other Relevant Planning Policies  
 
SPG1 - New Residential Development 
SPG11 - Access For People With Disabilities 
SPD   - Affordable Housing 
SPD - Planning Contributions 

  
5.3 London Plan Policies 
   

2A.1 - Sustainability Criteria 
3A.1 - Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
3A.2  - Borough Housing Targets 
3A.5  - Housing Choice 
3A.7 - Large residential developments 
3A.8  - Definition of Affordable Housing 
3A.9 - Affordable Housing Targets 

  3A.10 - Negotiating Affordable Housing in Residential and Mix-used 
Schemes 

  3A.17 - Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 
3C.1  - Integrating Transport and Development 
3C.2  - Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
3C.3  - Sustainable Transport in London 
4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
4A.22- Spatial policies for waste management  
4A.7 - Renewable energy  
4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city 
4B.3 - Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment  
4B.6 – Safety and Security 
4B.8 - Respect local context and communities 
4C.6 - Sustainable growth priorities – Blue Ribbon Network 
4C.20 – Development adjacent to Canals 

Page 115



 

  

5C.1 - Strategic Priorities for North East London 
 

5.4 National Guidance and Other Relevant Planning Policies 
 
PPS1 - Creating Sustainable Communities 
PPS3 - Housing 
PPS9 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
PPG13 - Transport 
PPS22 - Renewable energy 

 
6. OFFICERS COMMENT: 

 
6.1 Proposal 

 
6.1.1 Permission is sought to demolish the existing multi storey building on 

site consisting of existing office/industrial floorspace (Use Class B1, 
approx. 1000 sq.m). 

 
6.1.2 The scheme involves the erection of a four storey building (fronting 

Ramsgate Street) and a five storey building (fronting Tyssen Street) 
to facilitate a mixed use development consisting of 28 residential units 
(18 x two bed, 4 x three bed and 6 x four bed) and 1173 sq metres of 
commercial floor space (use class B1) and associated landscaping. 

 
6.1.3 The building will be formed from a yellow stock brick with metallic 

elements at the uppermost floor.  Roof materials will be metallic as 
well as balustrades.  The material for window framing is not clear 
from the submitted plans. 

 
6.1.4 Considerations 

 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 

 
• The principle of the use; 
• Design and appearance of the proposed development; 
• Sustainability; 
• Quality of commercial floor area; 
• Traffic and transport considerations; 
• Consideration of representations; 
• Planning Contributions. 

 
Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 

 
6.2 Principle of Use 
 
6.2.1 The principle of mixed use development is considered to be 

Page 116



 

  

acceptable at this site. 
 
6.2.2 Whilst the site is situated within a Defined Employment Area, the 

proposal replaces the existing 1000 sq metres of commercial (B1) 
floor space with 1173 sq metres of proposed commercial space. The 
residential component of the development is located within the floors 
above the proposed commercial ground floor and within the block 
fronting Ramsgate Street. 

 
6.2.3 The proposal is seeking approval for B1 commercial use.  From a 

policy perspective, use classes B1, B2 or B8 can be considered as 
employment floorspace. Therefore, for the proposal to be considered 
acceptable as the lost employment floorspace is replaced by an 
appropriate use class.  

 
Housing Provision 

 
6.2.4 The residential element would accommodate a residential mix of 28 

units consisting of 18 two bed units, 4 three bed units and 6 four bed 
units.  This unit mix is considered acceptable and the high number of 
family sized accommodation (three and four bed) is welcomed. 

 
6.2.5 The proposal includes an internal courtyard (approximately 240 

square metres) accessible to the Tyssen Street Block and a 
communal roof terrace (approximately 155 square metres) at the top 
of the Ramsgate Street Block.  Ground floor family units within the 
Ramsgate Street Block have direct access from living rooms to a 
private garden with above ground units having access to balconies.  
These provisions for onsite amenity are considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 All of the accommodation complies with the Council’s residential 

standards within SPG1 (New Residential Development).  The 
residential units are built to Lifetime Homes standards. 

 
6.2.7 The proposal would provide 69% (by habitable room) and 64% (by 

unit) of the residential component for affordable housing, brought 
forward by the applicant, Family Mosaic.  This quantum is above the 
required 50% as stipulated in the London Plan and is therefore 
welcomed.  The layout of tenures is considered acceptable. 

 
 
 
6.2.8 Mix of housing table: 
 

 Market Sale Shared Social Totals 
   Ownership Rented   
1 Bed 0 0 0 0 

Page 117



 

  

2 Bed 9 8 1 18 
3 Bed 1 2 1 4 
4 Bed 0 0 6 6 
Totals 10 10 8 28 
% by Habitable 
Room 31% 32% 37%   
 

 
6.3 Design and Appearance 
 
6.3.1 The subject site is located in the heart of an area subject to new 

development.  The overall design, massing and scale of four and five 
storeys fits in with the type of development occurring in the immediate 
locale. 

 
6.3.2 The proposal has been reviewed by the Council’s Conservation and 

Design (CD) team.  The CD team state ‘… drawings are satisfactory 
from a design point of view, sustainability statement and details still 
need to be addressed and conditioned.’ 

 
6.3.3 Recommended conditions of consent pertain to sustainability, 

materials and boundary treatments.  
 
6.4 Sustainability 
 
6.4.1 The planning statement indicates that the development will be to a 

‘Very Good’ Eco Homes rating (equivalent of Level 3 Code of 
Sustainable Homes).  Whilst this is deemed acceptable, the emerging 
LDF Core Strategy prefers new residential developments to achieve a 
level 4 rating.  This matter will be addressed via a Section 106 
agreement requiring that best endeavours are used in providing up to 
level 4. 
 

6.5 Quality of Commercial Floor Space 
 
6.5.1 The proposal provides for 1173 square metres of B1 commercial floor 

space to replace approximately 1000 square metres of existing B1 
floor space.  This is provided for at ground level and basement level.  
For light at basement level, there are light wells on two aspects.  The 
size of floor area for the commercial space is relatively vast with little 
detail on the plans as to how these are to be configured.  Invest in 
Hackney indicate that smaller commercial units are more desirable 
and suited to the  local market.  The location of the proposed 
commercial floor space is considered acceptable.  However, it is 
recommended as a condition, should permission be granted, that 
details be submitted clearly depicting the layout of any proposed 

Page 118



 

  

commercial units within the basement and ground floors to ensure the 
most viable commercial unit sizes are created.   

 
6.5.2 The Council’s Pollution Team have viewed the proposal and have 

concerns pertaining to potential noise from the proposed commercial 
activity on proposed residential units on site.  A condition of consent 
requiring soundproofing to be installed, details of which to be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to works commencing, 
is recommended should permission be granted. 

 
6.6 Traffic and Transport Considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Transportation Team have viewed the proposal and 

provided comments.  Whilst they do not consider the proposal to 
unduly impact on the surrounding road network, they do object to the 
underprovision of disabled car parking spaces within the site.  Several 
other matters regarding cycle parking, travel plans and sustainable 
transport contributions were suggested as S106 matters. 

 
6.6.2 Taking into consideration the Transportation Teams comments, it can 

be acknowledged that the principle of the development is acceptable 
as the proposal would not “unduly impact on the surrounding road 
network”.   

 
6.6.3 With regards to the lack of disabled car parking on site.  Originally the 

proposal included a disabled car parking space at ground level 
accessed directly from the street.  However, this did little for the street 
scene, appearance of the building, safety of such a space so close to 
the footpath nor visibility for manoeuvring a vehicle into such a space 
with the logistics of opening and closing a gate difficult.  The parking 
space was duly removed and the additional floor area allowed for a 
larger family unit at ground level and promoted a continuity to the 
building façade.   

 
6.6.4 It is considered that the removal of such a space made a positive 

change to the overall appearance and layout of the scheme and 
whilst there is an underprovision of disabled spaces on site, on 
balance, the scheme is considered to be acceptable. 

 
6.6.5 The development is ‘car free’.  The Council’s Transportation Officer 

recommends that a s106 requirement restricting residents’ parking 
permits unless for a holder of a Disabled Person’s Badge/ or for an 
electrically powered vehicle and securing a sum of £9,240.00 for 
sustainable transport initiatives.  Should the application be granted, 
these are recommended as s106 requirements. 

 

Page 119



 

  

6.6.6 The Council’s Highways Officer has also recommended securing a 
sum of £27,850.00 for upgrading works required to facilitate the 
development.  Should the application be granted, this is 
recommended as a s106 requirement. 

 
6.6.7 Crossrail have been consulted regarding the proposal as the 

application site is located within the safeguarding area for the 
Chelsea-Hackney Line.  Crossrail have recommended as a condition 
of consent should permission be granted that any foundation works 
and basement details be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  An informative is also recommended 
encouraging dialog between the applicant and Crossrail to make 
aware Crossrails requirements and guidelines regarding the 
safeguarding area. 

 
6.7 Consideration of Representatives 
 
6.7.1 Representations have raised the following issues (in italic font).  A 

response to each is followed directly below. 
 
6.7.2 Concerned that the proposed four storey building is overly large along 

the Ramsgate Street frontage as the opposite houses are only three 
storey and would not only detract from the streetscene but also affect 
light of those properties opposite; 

 
6.7.3 The Council’s Conservation and Design Team consider the massing, 

scale and appearance of the development to be acceptable and in 
accord with similar developments on surrounding sites.  The street 
scene of Ramsgate Street is considered to not be detrimentally 
affected as having buildings lining both sides will provide visual 
interest and definition to the street.  Ramsgate Street has a north 
south axis and therefore ample amounts of daylight.  Any shadowing 
created by the new building is considered to be minimal on those 
buildings opposite due to the separation between these buildings of 
some 10 to 12 metres. 

 
6.7.4 The proposal will result in the loss of the only mature tree on 

Ramsgate Street. 
 
6.7.5 The surrounding area is a mix of commercial and residential with very 

little by way of vegetation within the street scene and buildings built 
up close to the footpath.  Whilst this is the only mature tree on 
Ramsgate Street, the site frontage will display railings and some low 
level landscaping at street level to replace some greenery and 
provide some amenity back to the street scene.  On balance, the tree 
removal is considered to be acceptable. 

Page 120



 

  

 
6.8 Planning Contributions 
 

The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 
legal agreement to offset the impact of the development proposal: 

 
• Securing 64.3% of units (69% by habitable room) as affordable 

housing with a tenure mix of 8 units social rented and 10 units 
shared ownership.  

• Contribution of £149,049.15 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £2,587.10 towards open space. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the 

Highways Act for works to the public highway and securing 
£27,850.00 to fund these works. 

• The provision of a Green Travel Plan to all residents and 
commercial lease holder/employees on occupation of the site. 

• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction 
initiatives (25% on site employment).  

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all the 
affordable units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of 
renewable energy sources and use of low energy technology. 

• Considerate Contractor Scheme – the applicant to carry out all 
works in keeping with the National Considerate Contractor 
Scheme. 

• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal 
and other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax 
in respect of the negotiations and completion of the proposed 
Section 106 Agreement. 

• Achievement of a minimum Level 3 under the Code for 
Sustainable Homes with best endeavours to achieve Level 4. 

• No change of architect or changes to the design as a result of 
value engineering measures after planning approval has been 
secured. 

• B1 to shell and core prior to occupation of any residential unit. 
• Car Free Development.  No car parking permits except for 

those with a valid disability badge. 
• Sustainable Transport Contribution to the amount of £9240.00. 

(Calculated at £330 per residential unit). 
• All residential units are to be built to Lifetime Homes 

Standards. 
 
 

7.0 CONCLUSION 
 
7.1.1 Planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site at 

Page 121



 

  

Senate House, Tyssen Street London E8 2NDB. The proposal 
involves the demolition of existing buildings and the erection of a four 
storey building (fronting Ramsgate Street) and a five storey building 
(fronting Tyssen Street) to facilitate a mixed use development 
consisting of 28 residential units (18 x two bed, 4 x three bed and 6 x 
four bed) and 1173 sq metres of commercial floor space. 

 
7.2 The proposal will provide 69% (by habitable room) and 64% (by unit) 

of the residential component for affordable housing, brought forward 
by the applicant, Family Mosaic.   

 
7.3 Overall, for the reasons discussed above, the proposed development 

is considered to accord with national, strategic and Unitary 
Development Plan Policies.  Accordingly, approval is recommended 
subject to conditions and the signing of a Section 106 legal 
agreement. 
 
 

8 RECOMMENDATION A: 
 

8.1 That permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
8.1.1  SCBO – In accordance with plans 

The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and 
completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby 
approved and any subsequent approval of details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried 
out in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
8.1.2 SCB1N - Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three 
years after the date of this permission.  

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 
 

8.1.3 SCM2 - Materials to be approved 
Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the external 
surfaces of the building and boundary walls shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved.  

 

Page 122



 

  

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual amenity 
of the area. 

 
8.1.5 SCN1 – Soundproofing 

 Full particulars and details of provisions for soundproofing between the 
B1/B1 use and residential units shall be submitted to an approved by 
the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before the commencement of 
works on site, and subsequently installed in the building in a 
satisfactory manner, before the development is first occupied/use 
commences. 

 
 REASON: In order to minimise the transmission of noise between and 
within units in the interests of providing satisfactory accommodation.   

 
8.1.6 SCD2 - Provision of access and facilities 

 All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as 
shown on the plans and details hereby approved shall be implemented 
in full to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before the use 
is first commenced. 

 
REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people with 
disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make full use 
of the development. 

 
8.1.7 SCT1 - Landscaping 

 A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, 
before any work commences on site, for the planting of trees and 
shrubs showing species, type of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to 
be included and showing areas to be grass seeded or turfed; all 
landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when approved, shall be 
carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the 
development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the 
development, and shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority for a period of ten years, such maintenance to 
include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 

 
 REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable 
environmental standards in the interests of the appearance of the site 
and area.   

 
8.1.8 SCR3 - Mobility standards 

Page 123



 

  

 Ten-percent of all housing units proposed must be designed to mobility 
standards and be in accordance with details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 REASON: In the interest in providing satisfactory and convenient 
housing accommodation for persons with disabilities.   

 
8.1.9 SCS5 - Waste 

 Except on day(s) of collection, all refuse and waste shall be stored in 
sealed containers in the refuse area shown on the plans hereby 
approved. 

 
 REASON: To ensure refuse is not left in the street in the interests of 
visual amenity and to reduce the likelihood of infestation.   

 
8.1.10 SCH10 - Cycle spaces 

 Provision for 33 cycles (28 for residential component and 5 for B1 use). 
The B1 spaces are to be located separate to the residential cycle 
parking spaces and clearly sign posted. The spaces are to be secure. 
Details of which are to be submitted to an approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, in writing, before the commencement of works on 
site, and subsequently installed in the building in a satisfactory manner, 
before the development is first occupied/use commences. 

 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of cycles/motorcycles in the interest of relieving 
congestion in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in 
general.  

 
8.1.11 NSC - Wheel washing facilities  

 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site 
during construction works shall be installed in accordance with details 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement 
of works on site. 

 
 Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 

 
8.1.13 NSC - External ventilation 

 Full details of mechanical ventilation equipment from kitchen areas, 
bathroom areas and any air conditioning units must be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before the 
commencement of works on site, and subsequently installed in the 
building in a satisfactory manner, before the development is first 
occupied/use commences. Mechanical ventilation equipment from 
kitchen areas, bathroom areas and any air conditioning units must be 
so positioned, designed and acoustically insulated so as not to cause 

Page 124



 

  

noise disturbance or affect the amenity of residents as a result of fume 
or odorous discharge. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 
8.1.14 NSC - External Fixed Plant Items 

 Any external fixed plant items must be so positioned, designed and 
acoustically insulated so as not to cause noise disturbance or affect the 
amenity of residents. As such they shall be designed to operate at a 
cumulative noise level of LAeq Tr, measured or predicted at 1 metre from 
the façade of the nearest noise sensitive premises and shall be a rating 
level of 10dB(A) below the background noise level of LAF90. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner 
and does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local 
amenity generally. 

 
8.1.15 NSC - Noise Levels 

 Upon completion of the development, internal noise levels must 
comply with BS 8233:1999. A validation noise report demonstrating 
that this has been achieved must be submitted for approval by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the residential units. 
 
 REASON: To ensure that the amenity of the future occupants of the 
residential units is protected.  

 
8.1.16 NSC - Dust emissions 

 An environmental plan demonstrating how dust emissions from the 
site, traffic and plant during the construction phase will be controlled 
shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority in 
writing, and implemented, prior to any works commencing on site. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the development is not prejudicial to the 
health of environment and prospective occupiers. 

 
8.1.17 NSC - Highway works 

 The development hereby permitted will not be implemented 
until/unless the owner of the site has entered into a legal agreement 
with the Local Planning Authority for works to Ramsgate St and/or 
Tyssen St pursuant to a Section 278 Highways Act 1980 and provided 
a copy of the same to the Local Planning Authority. 

 
8.1.20 Renewable energy 
 

Page 125



 

  

Full details of renewable energy provision shall be submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any building 
works commence. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development achieves the level of 
renewable energy provision on site as proposed. 

 
8.1.21 Layout of Commercial Units 

 
Full details of the layout/fitout of the commercial floorspace within the 
basement and ground floor levels shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing prior to the occupation of 
any commercial floorspace on site. 
 
REASON:  To ensure the size and layout of the commercial floorspace 
is appropriate. 

 
8.1.22 Crossrail Condition 
 

No construction work of any part of the development forming part of 
this permission shall begin until detailed design and method 
statements for all the ground floor structures, foundations, basements 
and other structures, including piling (both temporary and permanent), 
below ground level (the Foundation Works) which accommodate: 
 
i) the proposed location of the Chelsea-Hackney Line structures 

and tunnels; 
ii) the ground movement arising from the construction of structures 

and tunnels; 
iii) the effects of noise and vibration arising from the use of the 

running tunnels; 
 
have been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority, after consultation with Cross London Rail Limited (CLRL), all 
such works which form part of the design and method statements shall 
be completed, in their entirety, before any part of the building hereby 
permitted is occupied.  

 
 

 RECOMMENDATION B: 
 

9.2 That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 
landowners and their mortgagees entering into a deed of planning 
obligation by means of a Section 106 Agreement of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), in order to secure the 

Page 126



 

  

following matters to the satisfaction of the Corporate Director of 
Neighbourhoods and Regeneration and the Secretary and 
Solicitor to the Council: 

 
9.2.1 Securing 64.3% of units (69% by habitable room) as 

affordable housing with a tenure mix of 8 units social rented 
and 10 units shared ownership.  

9.2.2 Contribution of £145,049.15 towards education and libraries. 
9.2.3 Contribution of £2,587.10 towards open space. 
9.2.4 The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the 

Highways Act for works to the public highway and securing of 
£27,850.00 to fund these works. 

9.2.5 The provision of a Green Travel Plan to all residents and 
commercial lease holder/employees on occupation of the site. 

9.2.6 Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction 
initiatives (25% on site employment).  

9.2.7 No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all the 
affordable units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

9.2.8 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of 
renewable energy sources and use of low energy technology. 

9.2.9 Considerate Contractor Scheme – the applicant to carry out 
all works in keeping with the National Considerate Contractor 
Scheme 

9.2.10 Achievement of a minimum Level 3 under the Code for 
Sustainable Homes with best endeavours to achieve Level 4. 

9.2.11 No change of architect or changes to the design as a result of 
value engineering measures after planning approval has been 
secured. 

9.2.12 B1 to shell and core prior to occupation of any residential unit. 
9.2.13 Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal 

and other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax 
in respect of the negotiations and completion of the proposed 
Section 106 Agreement. 

9.2.14 Car free development.  No car parking permits except for 
those with a valid disability badge. 

9.2.15 Sustainable transport contribution to the amount of £9240.00. 
(Calculated at £330 per residential unit). 

9.2.16 All residential units are to be built to Lifetime Homes 
Standards. 

 
10. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development 
Plan 1995 are relevant to the approved development/use and were 
considered by this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning 
permission:  

Page 127



 

  

 
EQ1 - Development Requirements 
H03 - Other sites for housing 
E12 - Office Development 
E14  - Access and Facilities for People with Disabilities 
E18  - Planning Standards 
TR19 - Planning Standards 
 

11. INFORMATIVES 
 

 The following informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
SI.8     Soundproofing 
SI.19   Health, Safety and Welfare at Work 
SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 
SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
SI.32  Consultations with TWU  
 
NSI.1 The hours of construction work on site that are audible at the 
nearest noise sensitive premises shall be restricted to 08:00 to 18:00 
Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 Saturday and at no time on 
Sundays & public holidays except by written permission of the Council 
or where the works are approved under section 61 Control of Pollution 
Act 1974. 

 
NSI.2 The best practice detailed within the Building Research pollution 
control guides Parts 1 to 5 for controlling particles, vapour and noise 
pollution from construction sites must be followed throughout the 
enabling works, demolition and construction phase of the development.   
 
NSI.3 The applicant is advised that they will be required to enter into a 
Section 61 agreement under the Control of Pollution Act 1974 with the 
Pollution Section before commencing work on site in order to control 
noise and vibration from the demolition/construction work. 
 
NSI.4 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the 
provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 where 
applicable. The provision of satisfactory means of escape in the event 
of a fire is the concern of the London Fire and Emergency Planning 

Page 128



 

  

Authority as fire authority, and information relating thereto may be 
obtained from the Fire Safety Department, 210 High Street, East Ham, 
E6 3RS. 
 
NSI.5 There is a Thames Water main crossing the development site 
which may/will need to be diverted at the developer’s cost, or 
necessitate amendments to the proposed development design so that 
the aforementioned main can be retained.  Unrestricted access must 
be available at all times for maintenance and repair.  Please contact 
Thames Water Developer Services, Contact Centre on Telephone No: 
0845 850 2777 for further information. 
 
NSI.6 Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 
pressure of 10m head (approximately 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 
litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Water pipes.  The 
developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design 
of the proposed development. 

 
NSI.7 Cross London Rail Limited (CLRL) (Portland House, 
Bressenden Place, London SW1E 5BH) has indicated its preparedness 
to provide guidelines in relation to the proposed location of the 
Chelsea-Hackney Line structures and tunnels, ground movement 
arising from the construction of the running tunnels, and noise and 
vibration arising from the use of the running tunnels.  Applicants are 
encouraged to discuss the guidelines with the Chelsea-Hackney Line 
Engineer in the course of preparing detailed design and method 
statements.  Please contact the CLRL helpdesk on 0203 023 9100 for 
guidance on who to speak to. 
 

 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION 
CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Anthony Traub (ext. 
7219) 

263 Mare 
Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub Committee –04.06.2008 
 

ADDRESS: Babik House, 124-130 Shacklewell Lane, London, E8 2EJ.   
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Dalston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2931 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS:  
2739-P-101, 2715/D01, D02 Rev A, 
D03, D04, D05, D06, D08, D10, D15 
Rev B & D16A. TSP/P1434/104 

VALID DATE: 23/11/2007 

APPLICANT: Mizen Design Build Ltd 
Heron House, 109 
Wembley Hill Road, 
Wembley, Middlesex HA9 
8DA 

 

AGENT:  Cunnane Town Planning, 67  
Strathmore Road 
Teddington 
TW11 8UH 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a part 4 and part 5 storey plus basement mixed use 
development to provide 650 sq m Class B1 floorspace on the ground floor and 
basement and 34 residential units comprising 5x1 bed, 17x2 bed, 8x3 bed, 3x4 
bed and 1x5 bed flats with balconies, together with the provision of bin stores 
and cycle spaces and landscaping.  
 
Resubmission of previously approved application 2006/2342 involving the 
following changes: 
 
1. Removal of basement car park, increase in B1 floorspace by 36 m² and  
2. Elevational alterations involving a) the realignment of the eastern wall at 
 ground floor level, b) minor realignments of windows, c) the location of 
 exits from the car lift. 
3. Variation of planning condition 6 "provision of residential parking 
 facilities"  
4. Removal of condition no’s 5 "forward vehicle ingress/ egress only", 8 

"adequate visibility to entrance", 9 "adequate visibility along frontage", 12 
"no extraneous pipework", 18 "provision of mechanical ventilation 
equipment from car park". 

NOTE TO MEMBERS: This proposal was previously presented to 
members at the Planning Sub-Committee held on 4 June 2008. A decision 
on the applications was deferred to allow the Planning Officers to 
reconsider the lay-by and parking issues.   This matter has now been 
resolved to officer satisfaction. An additional Drawing number is included, 
paragraphs 4.11 and 6.24 have also been amended. The report is in every 
other regard the same as the report and addendum seen previously. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 131



 

  

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: Grant conditional planning permission 
subject to S106 legal agreement 
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
ZONING DESIGNATION:  
CPZ  Yes (Dalston) 
Conservation Area  No 
Listed Building (Statutory)  No 
Listed Building (Local)  No 
 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  B1  Clothing 
Manufacturer  

1800m² (1308 
m² Usable) 

Proposed C3 Residential 3060 m² 
 B1 Offices & Light 

Industrial  
695m² 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential 
Type 

No of Bedrooms per Unit 

  Studio 1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing Flat/House 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Proposed Flat/House  0 5 17 8 3 1 

Total Units: 34        

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Proposed                  3 
Cycle Parking 38  

 

OFFICERS REPORT 

1. SITE DESCRIPTION 

1.1 The application site relates to 124-130 Shacklewell Lane, The site is 
currently cleared, but previously contained a clothing manufacturing 
business built circa early twentieth century. These buildings consisted of 
two linked buildings one of which was three-storeys high and the other 
was one-storey high. Access to the site is gained via a small drive off 
Shacklewell Lane. 

  
1.2 The site area measures approximately 0.15 ha and is an irregularly 

shaped back land site that is particularly constricted by bordering 
residential and factory buildings.  

 

Page 132



 

  

1.3 The area consists of a variety of uses including light industrial, retail, a 
school and residential. To the north west of the site and to the north east 
are rows of terrace houses, two and four-storeys in height, of which a 
large number have been converted into residential flats. To the south east 
is a residential estate and to the south/south west is a four/five-storey old 
industrial building. On nearby Amhurst Road there are a number of retail 
uses, and further south, along Shacklewell Lane there is the Kingsland 
Secondary School.  

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The site is not in a conservation area and it is not adjacent or near any 
statutory or locally listed buildings. Therefore there are no conservation 
implications, arising from this application.  

 
3. HISTORY 

3.1 2007/1417 - Amendment to permission ref: 2006/2342 dated 22-02-07 for 
the erection of a part 4, part 5 storey plus basement mixed use 
development to provide 650 sq.m  Class B1 floorspace comprising 
removal of underground car park & car lift; addition of 3rd disabled parking 
space; alterations to approved elevations; increase of 35sq.m in B1 
business space; alteration of  tenure to comprise 100% social rented 
housing on the ground floor and basement and 34 residential units 
together with the provision of underground car park, bin storage, cycle 
space & landscaping. Application withdrawn on the 23rd November 2007. 

 
3.2 2006/2342 – Application for the: Erection of a part 4 and part 5 storey plus 

basement mixed use development to provide 650 sqm Class B1 
floorspace on the ground floor and basement and 34 residential units 
comprising 5x1 bed, 17x2 bed, 8x3 bed, 3x4 bed and 1x5 bed flats with 
balconies, together with the provision of underground car park, bin stores 
and cycle spaces and landscaping. Planning Permission granted by 
Planning Committee on the 14th November 2006. 

 
3.3 2005/0219 – Application for the: Demolition of existing single storey 

warehouse building and erection of a new 6-storey plus basement level 
building together with the extension (3-storey  side and single storey roof 
extension plus external alterations) and conversion of the existing 2-storey 
retained building to provide 529sqm of B1 (Office/Light Industry) 
floorspace and 14 residential units, comprising 1 x studio, 10 x 2 bed and 
3 x 3 bed units together with the provision of 14 live/work units (Sui 
Generis) and the provision of 9 car parking bays (including 3 disabled 
bays). An appeal was submitted for the non determination of this 
application. This appeal was withdrawn on 31/05/2006. 

 

Page 133



 

  

3.4 2005/2796 – Application for the: Erection of a new part 2, part 3, part 6 
and part 7 storey plus basement level building to provide 632sqm of B1 
(officer /light industry) floor space and 46 residential units, comprising 6 x 
1 bed; 25 x 2 bed; 12 x 3 bed; and 3 x 4 bed units together with the 
provision with the provision of 6 car parking spaces plus demolition of 
existing buildings. This application was refused on 24th January 2006 for 
the following reasons: 

 
 

1. The proposed development would result in the loss of existing 
and/or potential employment generating floorspace to the detriment 
of the employment potential of this site and needs in the Borough, 
contrary to Policies ST25, E3 and E6 of the Adopted Hackney UDP. 

 
2. The proposed development by reason of its bulk, scale, height and 

close proximity to adjoining properties, would have an overbearing 
and intrusive impact on the visual amenities of nearby residents, 
would result in the overlooking and loss of privacy to nearby 
surrounding residents and would result in an obtrusive and 
incongruous development. Contrary to Policies EQ1, HO3, HO11, 
HO20 and Strategic Policies ST1, ST2 and ST4, Policies 4B.1 
(Design Principles for a Compact City), 4B.2 (Promoting World 
Class Architecture and Design) and 4B.7 (Respect Local Context 
and Communities) of the London Plan 2004 and SPG1 (New 
Residential Development). 

 
3. The proposed landscaping arrangements and courtyard would fail 

to contribute positively to the public realm and would not provide an 
adequate amenity space for future residents thereby being contrary 
to Policies EQ1, EQ7 HO20 of the Hackney Unitary Development 
Plan. 

 
4. The proposed mix of residential units would not provide a sufficient 

proportion of large family-sized accommodation (4 bedroom units 
suitable for 6 or more persons), to the detriment of housing needs in 
the Borough, and would therefore be contrary to Policies HO9 and 
ST21 of the Hackney Unitary Development Plan, London Plan 
Policies 3A.2 (Borough Housing Targets), 3A.4 (Housing Choice), 
3A.5 (Large Residential Developments) and PPG3: Housing. 

 
5. The proposed development, by reason of its design, scale, bulk and 

height would fail to contribute to or respect the existing urban 
townscape and would not be sympathetic with the scale and 
proportion of the surrounding buildings. The scheme would 
therefore be contrary to Policies EQ1, ST1, ST2 and ST4 of the 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan and Policies 4B.1 (Design 

Page 134



 

  

Principles for a Compact City), 4B.2 (Promoting World Class 
Architecture and Design) and 4B.7 (Respect Local Context and 
Communities) of the London Plan 2004. 

 
The applicant appealed the above refusal. The appeal however was 
subsequently withdrawn on 31st May 2006 following further negotiations 
between the applicant and Hackney Planning Department. 

 

4. CONSULTATIONS 

4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 08/01/2008 
 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 29/01/2008 
 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 Date Statutory re-consultation period started: 28/02/2008 
4.6 Date Statutory re-consultation period ended: 13/03/2008 
 
4.6 Neighbours 
 
4.7 A total of 165 neighbouring occupiers have been consulted by personal 

letter and 1 email of representation was received. Issues raised within the 
email concerned included: 
 
• Boundary Wall being reduced to 2.4m this will impact upon privacy. 

should be reinstated to its original height. 
• Impact upon privacy as a result of clear glazing to upper storeys. 

 

4.8 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.9 Thames Water: No Objections 

 

4.10 Council Departments 
 
4.11 Traffic and Transportation: 
  

Condition 5: Traffic & Transportation is happy to remove the condition with 
respect to the large service vehicles. The lay-by provisions in Shackelwell 
lane can be used for servicing the site. However, there are 3 disabled 
parking places within the curtilage of the site. Turning provision within the 
site is required for the cars using these 3 parking places. The parking 

Page 135



 

  

layout shown in Drawing no. 2715/D02 does not seem to provide 
adequate turning provision. A drawing shown the turning circles for these 
3 cars is required prior to T&T approval. We can allow a variation of this 
condition but there must be turning provision for the cars using the onsite 
parking places. 
  
Condition 6: variation of condition 6 is acceptable but we cannot approve 
the parking layout until they have produced drawings showing that cars 
can turn within the site. 
 
Condition 8 & 9: we are satisfied with the argument put forward by the 
applicant regarding the existing constraints of the site, which makes it 
impossible to implement both conditions. Notwithstanding some highway 
improvements will be necessary to address potential pedestrian/vehicular 
conflict – perhaps a raised crossing at the entrance to the site; secured 
through the s278. 

 
 Subsequent to these comments the applicant has submitted drawings 
showing turning circles for the proposed car parking spaces. Transport 
has confirmed that these details are considered acceptable. 
 
Additional comments concerning Loading Area. 
 
Informal loading area  as outlined in Option 4 (Plan TSP/P1434/104) in 
front of nos. 124 – 130 Shacklewell Lane is acceptable and would not 
affect vehicular access to their site. The highway improvements will now 
consist of the widening of footway outside no. 2 (red line on attached 
drawing), the closure of existing roundabout and footway resurfacing. The 
shared surface driveway and other  potential  highway improvements in 
front of nos. 124/130 can only be implemented in the future when this site 
comes up for redevelopment.  The Council also intends to keep current 
the Traffic Management Order (i.e. yellow line restrictions) in Shacklewell 
Lane.  
 

4.12 Pollution Group –  
 

Given that the underground car parking has been removed, no objection to 
removal of condition relating to mechanical ventilation. 
 

4.13 Housing  
 

Planning permission (2006/2342) has been granted  for a mixed use 
development including 34 residential units, of which 12 were to be 
Affordable in the form of ; 6 Rented and 6 Intermediate units. Newlon 
Housing Trust were to take the S106 element i.e. the 12 Affordable.  
  

Page 136



 

  

Subsequently, the site was sold on (in January 2007) and the new owner 
then sold the Freehold of the entire development to Newlon Housing Trust.  
Newlon Housing Trust subsequently received Corporation funding (in 
March 2007) for 12 units for Rent and 22 Intermediate, i.e. a 100% 
Affordable scheme. Changing the whole S106 element (12 units) to Rent 
is, therefore, quite understandable. Also, the six proposed Intermediate 
units included 3 x 4 bed and 1 x 5 bed, which are not feasible for 
Intermediate housing in any case. 

 
5. POLICIES 

Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995 
EQ1 Development Requirements 
E3 Development outside Defined Employment Areas 
E6 Retention of Employment sites and Premises outside Defined    
Employment Areas 
HO3 Other sites for Housing 
TR19 Planning Standards 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG 1 New Residential Development  
 
London Plan 2008 
3A.1: Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
3A.2: Borough Housing Targets  
3A.5: Housing Choice 
3A.8: Negotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and 
mixed-use schemes 
3A.8 Definition of Affordable Housinh 
3A.9: Affordable housing targets 
3A.10: Negotiating Affordable Housing 
3A.11 Affordable Housing Thresholds 
3A.24: Education facilities 
3B.1: Developing London's economy 
3B.2: Office Demand and Supply 
3B.3: Mixed Use Development 
3C.23 Parking Strategy 
4B.1: Design Principles for a Compact City.  
4B.3 Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
 
National Planning Guidance 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development  
PPG3 – Housing 
PPG4 – Industrial and Commercial and Small Firms 
PPG13 – Transport  

 

Page 137



 

  

6. COMMENT 

 
6.1 The proposal involves the redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-

use scheme entailing both residential and commercial uses. The scheme 
is substantially the same as the previously extant scheme 2006/2342 with 
some , minor changes, these are as follow: 

 
6.2 Main Changes from previous scheme (2006/2342): 
 

• The previous scheme proposed the retention and extension of the 
original warehouse building. This has now been demolished and the 
application is for the erection of a new building of identical proportions 
in its place. 

• Underground car park has now been deleted from the proposal, part of 
this space is to be used for B1 Office purposes. 

• Three ground floor disabled car parking spaces are now proposed in its 
place. 

• Elevational alterations involving a) the realignment of the eastern wall 
at  ground floor level, b) minor realignments of windows, c) the location 
of exits from the car lift. 

• Increase in commercial floorspace from 650 sq.m to 695 sq. m 
• Change in proposed tenure of social housing to 100% social housing. 

 
6.3 The Scheme also involves: 
 

Variation of planning condition 6 “provision of residential parking 
 facilities”  
 
Deletion of conditions 5 “forward vehicle ingress/ egress only”, 8 
“adequate visibility to entrance”, 9 “adequate visibility along frontage”, 12 
“no extraneous pipework”, 18 “provision of mechanical ventilation 
equipment from car park”. 
 

6.4  The Main issues to consider in relation to this scheme are: 
A  Design and Scale  
B Layout and mix of land uses;  
C Residential Amenity;  
D Transport, access and waste; and   
E  S106 Heads of Terms 
 

A.  DESIGN AND SCALE 
 
6.5 The general scale, massing and detailed design of the scheme has (with 

the exception of some small changes on the ground floor), not changed 
from the extant scheme. 

 

Page 138



 

  

6.6 The previous scheme envisaged the refurbishment and extension of the 
existing factory building, facing Milton House mansions to the north west 
of the site. Extra floorspace was also provided by the creation of a lower 
ground level although this did not increase the overall massing of the 
proposal over the previous existing building. This building linked to the 
rear to a modern five storey building abuting the blank gable wall of a 
converted warehouse building to the south east of the site. Both these 
elements of the proposal faced onto a shared garden/ courtyard space.  

 
6.7 In relation to the current proposal this involves the erection of a new 

building facing Milton House Mansions, the design, position and height of 
this building is (with some minor changes at ground floor) identical to that 
previously approved, as such it will not differ significantly in its visual 
impact over the scheme already approved and is considered acceptable 
therefore. 

 
6.8 The quality and size of the amenity and the open space/courtyard is 

identical to the extant scheme 
 
B.  LAYOUT AND MIX OF LAND USES 
 
6.9 The site was last used as a clothes manufacturing business (floor area 

1825 sq.m). The application proposes a mix of B1 office and light industrial 
floorspace and 33 residential units.  

 
Employment 
 
6.1 The current proposal involves the creation 695 sq. m of B1 Office 

floorspace compared to 650 sq. m of office space in the extant scheme. 
This increase in floor area is as a result of the basement office space 
expanding into the area previously occupied by the basement car park. 

6.2 In support of the previous application the applicant submitted marketing 
evidence in support of their application showing evidence of the 
unsuccessful marketing of the building since 1996 up until last year (it has 
been vacant since February 2000). An assessment was also provided by 
Tarn and Tarn concerning why the building had been unsuccessful to let. 
Principally these concerned: 

 
• The poor condition of the building (significant expenditure needed to 

bring up to lettable condition and to meet building regulations 
requirements) 

• Poor access and servicing facilities 
• Design of building not suited to modern warehouse and distribution 

users, i.e. not single storey, no self contained service areas which 
can handle 60 ft lorries. 

Page 139



 

  

• Location of site in close proximity to residential properties. 
 
6.11 The report concluded that the provision of good quality modern smaller B1 

units would be lettable, although this element of the proposal would need 
to be cross subsidised by residential development, as the anticipated rent 
levels would not pay for the cost of redevelopment. 

 
6.12 Also during the consideration of the previous application advice was 

received from Invest in Hackney, that the fitting out of the B1 space to a 
higher specification than shell and core to enable immediate occupation by 
potential tenants was appropriate offsetting the loss of employment space 
as a result of the development. This was covered by clauses in the 
submitted S106 agreement. A similar clause is suggested in this instance. 

 
6.13 Overall given that the current scheme proposes a greater quantity of 

employment space over the extant scheme and given the previous 
evidence submitted in support of the application, the quantity of 
commercial space is considered acceptable in this instance. 

 
Housing 
 
Affordable Housing 

 
6.13 The previous scheme proposed proposes six affordable rented units in the 

form of five 3 bed and one 1 bed units, as well as six shared ownership 
units in the form of one 5 bed, three 4 bed, one 3 bed and one 2 bed units. 
This equated to 35% unit split with a 50/ 50 split between rental and 
intermediate or 47.5% on a habitable room basis. 

 
6.14 The current scheme proposes that the scheme will be for 100% social 

housing, with the units previously being allocated for private housing being 
designated as intermediate housing, and entirety of the units previously 
being identified as affordable allocated for affordable rented 
accommodation. The new configuration would therefore be one 1 bed, one 
2 bed, six 3 bed, three 4 bed and one 5 bed affordable rented units and 
five x1 bed, seventeen x2 bed and two x 3 bed intermediate units. The 
change in tenure type from a mixed private/ intermediate and rented 
scheme to an intermediate/ affordable rented scheme is also considered 
acceptable. The provision of a larger number of intermediate units in this 
instance (70% intermediate to 30% affordable rental) is also considered 
acceptable in this instance due to the absence of private units and the 
need to create mixed and balanced communities. 

 
 Mix of Residential Accommodation 
 
6.15 Now deleted Policy HO9 of the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

Page 140



 

  

requires that new developments should provide a minimum of 33% of new 
residential units as family sized accommodation and 33% of this figure as 
larger sized family units of 4 bedrooms or mores. The Borough’s need for 
family sized accommodation is further supported by PPG3: Housing, 
which encourages local authorities to meet the housing requirements of 
local areas as well as providing a mix of dwelling types in order to create 
mixed and balanced communities. Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan 
encourages new development to offer a range of housing choices, taking 
into account the housing requirements of different groups. 

 
6.16 Identically to the previous scheme, the current scheme proposes eight 3 

bed, three 4 bed and one 5 bed units (out of 34 units). This equates to 
35% family sized units, half of which are four bed or larger. As such the 
current scheme complies with Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan as well as 
the now deleted policy HO9. 

 
C.  RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
6.17 In terms of the mix of uses on the site it is considered that the proposed 

commercial floorspace would not have an impact on the amenity of future 
residents as it is generally considered that B1 commercial floorspace is 
compatible with residential accommodation. The main amenity issues that 
related to the previous proposal and thereby also this proposal are 
overlooking and daylight and sunlight issues as a result of the proposed 
development. 

 
 Daylight and Sunlight 
 
6.18 The applicant previously submitted a daylight and sunlight analysis which 

showed tests for the terrace dwellings along Shacklewell Lane and 
Amhurst Road, and other surrounding buildings. After reviewing the 
analysis it was considered that the proposal would not have a significant 
effect on the amenity of existing residents. Given that the scale and 
massing of the current proposal is identical to the extant scheme, it is 
considered that the impact of the proposal in terms of daylight and sunlight 
is also acceptable in relation to the current application. 

 
 Overlooking and Overbearing Nature 
 
6.19 The fenestration arrangements of the current application has not changed 

(on upper stories) from the previously approved scheme. The first and 
second storeys of the converted warehouse building facing Milton House 
Mansions is designed so that an external corridor runs along this elevation 
which is marked as being fitted with obscured glazing. Balcony screening 
is also proposed on the roof terrace to the north west, the third storey on 
the converted warehouse building as well as all balconies on the new build 

Page 141



 

  

building to the south east. Conditions were previously attached requiring 
relevant fenestration to be obscurely glazed and requiring details of 
proposed balcony screening. Similar Conditions are suggested in this 
instance. 

 
6.20 In relation to the objectors property on Amhurst Road, the windows facing 

this direction are at right angles to the rear gardens of these properties. A 
corner roof terrace is also proposed adjacent to Amhurst Road. As 
previously mentioned conditions were previously attached and are 
similarly suggested in this instance requiring screening of this roof terrace. 
In relation to overlooking from the rear facing windows of this property, 
while some oblique overlooking of the rear portion of the gardens of these 
properties will occur, no direct overlooking of habitable room windows will 
occur. On balance the degree oblique overlooking of rear gardens, which 
is the same as the extant permission, is considered acceptable given the 
tight knit urban nature of the site. 

 
6.21 In relation to the reduction of the boundary wall. The factory building 

previously formed the boundary of the site with Amhurst Road. This wall 
has been demolished. The applicant is currently proposing a 2.4m 
replacement wall. While this is lower than the previously demolished wall it 
is still higher than a standard 1.8m dividing wall between residential 
properties and I do not consider that this reduction should significantly 
impact upon the residential amenities of neighbouring residential 
properties.  

 
D.  TRANSPORT, ACCESS AND WASTE 
 

Transport Issues 
 
6.22 The current proposal seeks the amendment and removal of various 

transport related conditions as well removing of the proposed underground 
car park. Each of these issues is discussed in turn. 

 
 Removal of Condition 5  
 

Condition 5 ‘All vehicles shall enter and leave the site only in a forward 
direction. 
REASON: In the interests of road safety generally and avoidance of 
obstruction of the highway.’ 

 
6.23 Advice from transport officers is that this condition should be upheld due 

to the high level of pedestrian activity relating to the academy in 
Shacklewell Lane, which includes the footway adjacent to the vehicular 
access to the site. It is accepted however that a servicing of the site and 
loading and unloading of vehicles will need to take place outside of the 

Page 142



 

  

site, as it is not possible for larger vehicles to turn around within the site. 
This requires the construction of a lay-by for this purpose.  

 
6.24 Condition 4, which requires all loading/ unloading and servicing within the 

site would also therefore have to be removed. It is similarly necessary for 
the applicant to enter into a S278 agreement to cover the cost of the 
construction of this lay-by as well as other necessary highway works and 
footpath repairs pursuant to this. 

 
 Additional Comment 
 
 Following Members Decision to defer this application. A meeting was held 

between Council Officers and the Applicant to discuss options. Following 
this meeting the Applicant provided a series of options to the Council for 
consideration. 

 
 The initially preferred option was option 3B which involved the provision of 

a dedicated loading bay, the introduction of a shared service drive, the 
building out of the pavement and alterations to the approach road and 
traffic island including the closure of the existing roundabout. This option 
was dependent on reaching agreement with the adjacent office occupiers 
of the adjacent building at 124-130 Shacklewell Lane. 

 
 Further inquiries found that this building is occupied by numerous 

leaseholders who each had historic rights of access to the frontage of this 
building. Due to the legal difficulties that this would cause an alternative 
plan Option 4 was produced. 

 
 This option proposes the closure of the roundabout and enlargement of 

the existing traffic island, alterations to the approach road, the building out 
of the pavement adjacent to 1 & 2 Milton House Mansions, the resurfacing 
of the existing footway. The introduction of a shared surface drive to the 
application site to be used by the three disabled spaces only and the 
creation of a marked loading bay on Shacklewell Lane. The Council’s 
Transport Officer has advised that this option is considered acceptable.  It 
is also proposed to keep the existing yellow line restrictions in force 
allowing vehicles to unload, but only for limited periods of time and does 
not allow vehicles to be left unattended. 

 
 It is considered that this matter has now been resolved and that it is 

considered appropriate to re-report this application to Committee for 
determination. 

 
6.25 The applicant has agreed with the above and it is therefore considered 

that notwithstanding the contents of this application, Condition 4 rather 
than Condition 5 should be removed. 

Page 143



 

  

 
Variation of condition 6: 
 

6.26 Advice from Transport is that there is no objection in principle to the 
removal of the basement car parking. Concerns are however expressed 
concerning the manoeuvring space for parking places 1 & 2.  

 
6.27 Two above ground car parking spaces were similarly proposed in the 

extant scheme in the same position, as such there is not considered to be 
any objection in principle to the car parking layout as proposed. Initially 
Council Transport Officers raised concerns regarding the ability of cars to 
turn around within the site. However the applicant has submitted additional 
drawings showing turning circles for the proposed car parking spaces. 
Council Transport Officers have confirmed that they are now satisfied with 
the proposal. The reduction of car parking on the site is considered 
acceptable given the existence of parking restrictions outside the site and 
is in accordance with council and London plan policy to reduce car usage. 
Similarly to the extant scheme it is also proposed that the applicant enter 
into a S106 agreement that future occupiers will not be eligible for resident 
parking permits. 

 
Deletion of Condition 8 & 9:  

 
6.28 The wording of these conditions is as follows: 
 

Condition 8 ‘Adequate visibility shall be provided to the highway within the 
application site above a height of one metre from footpath level for a 
distance of three metres on one/both side(s) of the permitted points of 
vehicular access, in accordance with details to be approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before any work on the site is commenced, and be so 
maintained. 
 
REASON: To provide a suitable standard of visibility to and from the 
highway and to ensure that the use of the access does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety along the neighbouring 
highway.’ 
 
Condition 9 ‘The forecourt/wall, fence or hedge shall be restricted to a 
height not exceeding 1 metre along the whole frontage of the site and shall 
be so maintained. 
REASON: To provide adequate visibility for drivers in the interests of road 
safety.’ 

 
6.29 Advice from transport is that there is no objection to the deletion of these 

conditions owing to the physical constraints which are outside the control 
of the applicant that it would not be possible to implement these 

Page 144



 

  

conditions. Given this the removal of these conditions is considered 
acceptable in this instance. 

 
Waste  
 

6.30 The provision for bin storage appears to be adequate, the Council’s waste 
and recycling officer previously advised that the size and location of the 
proposed refuse facilities are acceptable. 

 
Other Matters: 

 
6.31 The application also proposes the Deletion of Conditions 12 ‘No 

extraneous pipework & 18 ‘details of mechanical ventilation’ : 
 
6.32 In relation to Condition 12, the reason why the applicant has advised that 

they wish to remove this condition is due to the absence of necessary 
pipework on the approved drawings such as rain water downpipes. These 
are now shown on the currently submitted drawings. 

 
6.33 In order to allow for necessary minor modifications necessary for the 

operation of these buildings but also to safeguard the visual amenities of 
the area, I consider that it would be more appropriate to modify the 
condition requiring no additional pipework, without the prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
6.34 In relation to Condition 18, this related to ventilation from the proposed 

underground car park, with the removal of this condition, the need for this 
ventilation does not apply and this condition can therefore be removed. 

 
E. Section 106 Contributions  

6.35 Council’s strategic Policy ST3 states that the Council, where appropriate 
will seek planning obligations to secure relevant planning benefits from 
new developments. Planning obligations will be judged appropriate where 
they are necessary to granting of permission, relevant to planning and the 
development, the need for the benefit arises directly from the development 
and where benefits sought are reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
proposed development.  

6.36 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 
agreement to offset the impacts of the development and to address 
matters arising directly from the development: 

• Secure the provision of 100% of units as affordable housing. The 
dwellings to comprise one 1 bed, one 2 bed, six 3 bed, three 4 bed 
and one 5 bed affordable rented units and five x1 bed, seventeen x2 
bed and two x 3 bed intermediate units. 

Page 145



 

  

• Contribution of £73,040.43 towards education facilities within the 
borough 

• Contribution of £5267.23 towards library facilities within the borough. 

• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways 
Act to pay the Council to reinstate and improve the footway adjacent 
to the boundary of the site, provide a servicing lay-by on Shacklewell 
Lane and include if required, any access to the Highway, measures 
for street furniture relocation, carriageway markings, access and 
visibility safety requirements.  Unavoidable works required to be 
undertaken by Statutory Services will not be included in London 
Borough of Hackney estimate or payment.  

• The Owner should contribute to alteration of the access from the 
highway to increase safe access to the site for pedestrians, to be 
secured as a S106 measure. 

• On occupation, the owner should provide the residents with a 
handbook detailing local public transport services and walking routes 
to schools in the area, to help achieve sustainable development. 

• The parking for residents should be for family –sized dwellings / and 
should be distributed across the tenures.   

• No Residents’ Parking Permits.  

• Best endeavours to provide local labour on site.  
 

• B1 to be fitted to occupational standard (Full schedule of Works to be 
included in S106. 

 
•  Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and 

other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect 
of the proposed negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 
106 Agreement. 
 

7. CONCLUSION: 
 
7.1 It is considered that the proposal satisfies both the relevant Hackney 

UDP 1995 Policies and relevant London Plan 2004 Policies, specifically 
those policies relating to employment and affordable housing provision.  

 
7.2 The changes to the scheme are generally considered acceptable, with 

relation to the deletion of the underground car parking (and associated 
modification to condition 6) and the removal of conditions 8 “adequate 
visibility to entrance”, 9 “adequate visibility along frontage” and 18 
“provision of mechanical ventilation equipment from car park” as well as 
the proposed modification to . As mentioned previously in the report the 
Council does not consider that condition 5 “forward vehicle ingress/ 

Page 146



 

  

egress only” should be removed. However the Council does consider 
that  condition 4 “loading/ unloading and servicing in curtilage of site 
only” should be removed, with servicing taking place on a lay-by outside 
of the application site. A variation of condition 12 “no extraneous 
pipework” is proposed rather than the deletion of this condition. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATION A:  
 
8.1 On the basis of the above the proposal is considered to be acceptable 

and is recommended for approval, subject to appropriate conditions and 
the applicant entering into a deed of planning obligation by means of a 
Section 106 Agreement of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 
secure matters set out below. 

 
9. CONDITIONS: 
 
(i) (SCB1N) ‘The development hereby permitted must be begun not 

later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of 
this permission. 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 990 as amended.’ 

(ii) (SCD1) ‘A level access shall be provided to all ground floor 
units/shops hereby approved before the use is first commenced. 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to 
gain proper access to the development.’ 

(iii) (SCD2) ‘All provisions and facilities to be made for people with 
disabilities as shown on the plans and details hereby approved 
shall be implemented in full to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority before the use is first commenced. 
REASON:  In order to ensure that access and facilities for people 
with disabilities are provided in order that they make full use of the 
development.’ 

(iv) (SCH4) ‘All vehicles shall enter and leave the site only in a forward 
direction. 
REASON: In the interests of road safety generally and avoidance of 
obstruction of the highway.’ 

(v) (SCH6) ‘The whole of the car parking accommodation hereby 
approved shall be provided before the occupation of any of the 
approved units, and retained permanently for the accommodation of 
vehicles for purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the residential 
accommodation. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not 
prejudice the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining 
highway, to ensure the permanent retention of the car parking 
accommodation and to safeguard the environment of the area.’ 

Page 147



 

  

(vi) (SCH10) ‘Space shall be made available for the secure parking of 38 
cycles and within the site/development/building before the use is 
first commenced. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the 
site for the parking of cycles in the interest of relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in 
general.’ 

(vii)  (SCM2) ‘Full details, with samples, of the materials to be used on 
the external surfaces of the buildings, including glazing, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
writing before any work on the site is commenced. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area.’ 

(viii) (SCM6) ‘Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the 
building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before any 
work commences on site. The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area.’ 

(ix) (SCM9) ‘No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other 
pipework shall be fixed to the elevations of the building other than 
as shown on the drawings hereby approved, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 
satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
amenity of the area.’ 
 

(x)  (SCR2) ‘Details of dustbin enclosures showing the design, location 
and external appearance, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority, in writing, before the use/development 
commences.  The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: In order to provide for adequate bin enclosures in the 
interest of the appearance of the site and area.’ 

(xi)  (SCR8) ‘The windows in the north east wall of the building shall be 
permanently glazed in obscured glass and kept fixed shut. 
REASON: To safeguard against overlooking of adjoining sites and 
premises.’ 

(xii)  (SCT2) ‘The landscaping scheme hereby approved as part of the 
development shall be carried out within a period of twelve months 
from the date at which the development of the site commences or 

Page 148



 

  

shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) season 
following completion of the development and shall be maintained to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten 
years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants 
that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and in the interests of the 
appearance of the site and of the area generally.’ 

(xiii)  (NSC) ‘Details of proposed screening to the north west corner roof 
terrace,  the third floor roof balcony to the of the converted 
warehouse building. The proposed balconies on the south east 
elevation of the proposed new build structure. 
REASON: In order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring 
residential occupiers.’ 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION B: 
 
10.1 That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the 

landowners and their mortgagees enter into a deed of planning 
obligation by means of a Section 106 Agreement of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to secure the 
following matters to the satisfaction of the Assistant Director of 
Planning and Transportation and the secretary and solicitor to the 
Council: 

 
• To secure the provision of 100% of units as affordable housing. The 

dwellings to comprise one 1 bed, one 2 bed, six 3 bed, three 4 bed 
and one 5 bed affordable rented units and five x1 bed, seventeen x2 
bed and two x 3 bed intermediate units. 

• Contribution of £73,040.43 towards education. 

• Contribution of £5267.23 towards library facilities within the 
borough. 

• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways 
Act to pay the Council to reinstate and improve the footway 
adjacent to the boundary of the site, provide a servicing lay-by on 
Shacklewell Lane and include if required, any access to the 
Highway, measures for street furniture relocation, carriageway 
markings, access and visibility safety requirements.  Unavoidable 
works required to be undertaken by Statutory Services will not be 
included in London Borough of Hackney estimate or payment.  

• The Owner should contribute to alteration of the access from the 
highway to increase safe access to the site for pedestrians, to be 
secured as a S106 measure. 

Page 149



 

  

• On occupation, the owner should provide the residents with a 
handbook detailing local public transport services and walking 
routes to schools in the area, to help achieve sustainable 
development. 

• The parking for residents should be for family –sized dwellings / 
and should be distributed across the tenures.   

• No Residents’ Parking Permits.  

•  Best endeavours to provide local labour on site.  
   

• B1 to be fitted to occupational standard (Full schedule of Works to 
be included in S106. 

 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and 

other relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect 
of the proposed negotiations and completion of the proposed 
Section 106 Agreement. 

 
11. RECOMMENDATION C: 
 
11.1 That in the event of the Section 106 agreement referred to in 

Recommendation B has not been completed by 22 December 2005, 
the Head of Planning be given the authority to refuse the application 
for the following reasons:  

 
(i) The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement for 

securing  affordable housing, would be to the detriment of housing 
needs in the Borough and fails to promote a mixed and inclusive 
community and as such  would be contrary to policy HO3 of the 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995, policies 3A.8, 3A.9 and 
3A.10 of the London Plan 2008 and advice contained in PPS1 and 
PPG3.  

 
(ii) The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement for 

securing educational contributions, would be likely to contribute to 
pressure and demand on the Borough’s education provision 
contrary to policies EQ1 and CS2 of the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan 1995 and policy 3A.24 of the London Plan 2004.  

 
(iii) The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement 

securing no residential parking permits for future occupiers of the 
development, may contribute to the creation of an unsafe and poor 
quality environment contrary to policies EQ1 and TR19 of the 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995.  

 

Page 150



 

  

(iv) The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement for 
a Section 278 of the Highways Act Agreement, would lead to the 
creation of an unsafe and poor quality environment contrary to 
policy TR19 of the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995. 

 
(v) The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement for 

securing B1 to be fitted out to occupational standard prior to the 
occupation of the residential component, would be likely to harm 
the employment opportunities and provision of employment 
floorspace in the Borough contrary to policies 3B1 and 3B3 of the 
London Plan 2008.  

 
12.0 INFORMATIVES: 

 
(i) SI1 Building Control 
(ii) SI2 Works Affecting Public Highway 
(iii) SI3 Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
(iv) SI7 Hours of Building Works 
(v) SI8 Soundproofing  
(vi) SI19 Health, Safety and Welfare at Work 
(vii) SI24 Naming and Numbering 
(viii) SI27 Fire Precautions Act  
(ix) SI28 Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
(x) SI33 Removal of Asbestos 
(xiv)     The applicant is reminded that due to the sensitive nature of the site 

the Council wish to see the general quality of the design maintained 
and the highest quality materials should be used throughout the 
scheme.  

 
12.0 REASONS FOR APPROVAL 

The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan 1995 are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching 
the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 Development 
Requirements, E3 Development outside Defined Employment Areas, 
E6 Retention of Employment sites and Premises outside Defined   
Employment Areas, HO3 Other sites for Housing, TR19 Planning 
Standards Other relevant policies which were considered include 
Hackney Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 1 New Residential 
Development. London Plan Policies 3A.1: Increasing London’s 
Supply of Housing, 3A.2: Borough Housing Targets, 3A.5: Housing 
Choice, 3A.8: Negotiating affordable housing in individual private 
residential and mixed-use schemes, 3A.8 Definition of Affordable 
Housing, 3A.9: Affordable housing targets, 3A.10: Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.24: 
Education facilities, 3B.1: Developing London's economy, 3B.2: 

Page 151



 

  

Office Demand and Supply, 3B.3: Mixed Use Development, 3C.23 
Parking Strategy, 4B.1: Design Principles for a Compact City, 4B.3 
Enhancing the quality of the public realm were also taken into 
account in the determination of this planning application as were 
national policy guidance contained within PPS1 – Delivering 
Sustainable Development, PPG3 – Housing, PPG4 – Industrial and 
Commercial and Small Firms, PPG13 – Transport. 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATIO
N AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. 

2 

3. 

Hackney UDP 1995 

London Plan 2008 

2006/2342 

Andrew Dillon 

020 8356 8356 

263 Mare Street, 
London, E8 3HT 

 

Page 152



              Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

ADDRESS: Avigdor Site, 65 - 67 Lordship Road, London, N16 0QY 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn WARD: Lordship 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/1173  
 
DRAWING NUMBERS:  
01/05/1123, 572S/001, 572S/002, 
572S/003, 572/020B, 572/010C, 
572/013B, 572/014C, 572/016C, 
572A/101B, 572A/102B, 572A/103B, 
572A/104A, 572A/105A, 572A/106A, 
572A107A, 572A/111A, 572A/112A, 
572A/121A, 572B/102D, 572B/103C, 
572B/104C, 572B/105C, 572B/106C, 
572B/107C, 572B/108A, 572B/111D, 
572B/112C, 572C/101B, 572C/102B, 
572C/115C, 572EW/101C, 
572EW/102C  
 
REPORTS: 
Design & Access Statement  
Nursery Inspection Report 
Transport Statement 
School Travel Plan 
BREEAM Pre-Assessment 
Arboricultural Report 
Statement on Effect on Tree T12 
Daylight Impact Assessment 
Energy & Renewables Strategy (for 
Agudas Israel Housing Association) 
Renewable Energy & Energy Strategy 
(Avigdor School Site)  
Sustainability Strategy 
Internal Daylighting Assessment 
 

VALID DATE: 14/05/07 

APPLICANT:  
Aiha Ltd and Side by Side (Kids) Ltd 
C/O 206 Lordship Road 
London 
N16 5ES 
 

AGENT:   
Peter Currie Architects 
1 - 5 Clerkenwell Road 
London 
EC1M 5PA 

NOTE TO MEMBERS: The application was granted conditional planning 
permission subject to the signing of a S106 Legal Agreement at Planning Sub-
Committee on 13th February 2008 for: 
 Redevelopment of site with erection of new part 2, 3, 4 and 5 storey 
 building comprising new school & nursery (4715sqm) (Use Class D1), 29 
 residential units consisting of 4x two-beds and 25 x four-beds (100% 
 affordable units), associated, landscaping and parking. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 153



              Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Planning permission was granted on 13th February 2008 subject to the signing of 
a S106 legal agreement.  Clarification is now sought from members as to the 
terms and wording of the S106 legal agreement, namely the phasing of the 
development of the school and the housing. 
 
 
SUMMARY:  
Members are asked to clarify the detailed terms of the phasing issues and 
what Members require in the S106 Agreement. 
 

 
CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
1.1 The application was granted conditional planning permission subject to the 

signing of a S106 Legal Agreement at Planning Sub-Committee on 13th 
February 2008. 

 
1.2 At this meeting it was resolved that: 

  
Conditional planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the signing of a 
S106 Legal Agreement. 

 
The clause relating to the building of the school and the residential units 
in the legal agreement is as follows: 

 
‘Paragraph 9.2.7 – Specific arrangements will be required for the 
possible temporary accommodation of part of the site for 
educational purposes.  This should include a temporary planning 
application as appropriate with a phasing plan indicating the 
manner in which the provision of both the school and the housing 
would be implemented.’ 

 
1.3 The clause under paragraph 9.2.7 in the S106 Legal Agreement seeks to 

ensure that the school is implemented on the site, by way of temporary 
buildings if required, before the housing element of the scheme is implemented, 
in order to ensure that the site remains in educational use.  The phasing plan 
was intended to ensure the building of the school on the site, as the site is 
designated for education purposes. 

 
1.4 The wording of this clause now requires clarification to clearly reflect the 

intention of this clause.  Therefore, this report seeks clarification of what 
members wish to see in the terms of the S106 legal agreement.  As mentioned 
above, planning permission has already been resolved for granting, and as 
such whether planning permission should be approved has already been 
established. 

 
 
 
 

Page 154



              Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

1.5 The applicants have already agreed to a clause in the legal agreement ensuring 
that only the Side by Side School shall occupy the site, which states: 

 
  The school building hereby approved shall be used solely to accommodate 

the Side By Side School for Jewish pupils and shall not be used by any other 
school than the named user above. 

 
 The applicants have now suggested the following clause: 
 
  Side by Side covenants with the Council that within three months of Practical 

Completion of the affordable housing development, it shall either: 
  a) Enter into a contract with a contractor for the construction and 

completion of the permanent school; or 
  b) (where it has been unable to enter into such a contract) make an 

application to the Council for a temporary school on the Side by Side 
land, and use all reasonable endeavours to secure the grant of 
planning permission and upon the receipt of such planning permission 
shall forthwith construct and provide the temporary school. 

 
1.6 Following discussion with Council Officers, it was considered that there should 

be more constraint in the clause to ensure the provision of a school on the site.  
As such, it is considered that restricting the occupation of the final 20% of the 
housing until the completion of a temporary school or the letting of a contract for 
the permanent school would be more suitable, and that within eight months of 
the signing of the S106 agreement, confirmation must be provided of either 
works on the school starting, or an application made for temporary planning 
permission. 

 
1.7 As such, a clause could be worded as follows: 
 
  Side by Side covenants with the Council that within eight months of the 

signing of this legal agreement, it shall either: 
 a) Provide the Council with a confirmation that works are to begin on the 

permanent school, with a date specifying when works are to begin; or 
 b) Submit an application for temporary planning permission for a 

temporary school, and stipulating when the school shall be completed. 
 
  The occupation of the final 20% of the affordable housing provision shall be 

restricted until the temporary school is fully located on site or the contracts 
have been let for building works to begin. 

 
  The applicant shall take out a bond for the completion of the works, to enable 

the works on the permanent school to be completed should works on the 
school be started and not be completed. 

 
1.8 Although this wording will not necessarily secure the provision of a permanent 

school building on the site, it will at least ensure the site is brought into 
education use.  This wording would also allow the housing to be built prior to the 
school.  However, as this would ensure that a school is established on the site, 
be it in temporary accommodation, this is considered to be more beneficial than 

Page 155



              Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

no use of the site or a development that is never implemented.  An application 
for temporary planning permission would be required for the school, and this 
could be made conditional to ensure a good quality of temporary buildings is 
implemented on the site for education use. 

 
1.9 Members are therefore asked to confirm that the proposed wording of the 

clause relating to the phasing of the development is acceptable, as worded in 
paragraph 1.7 and if not, which direction Members would require officers to take 
in this matter. 

 
1.10 The previous Officer’s Report is attached for member’s information. 

 
 

 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 

 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME AND 
TELEPHONE 

EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Adam Flynn (ext. 
8442) 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 156



Planning Sub Committee 03/09/2008 

  1 

ADDRESS: Olympics and Paralympics site – Hackney and adjoining Boroughs: 

Land between River Lea Navigation, A12 East Cross Route, River Lea and 

Silverlink railway line, Homerton, London, E9 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: Anthony Traub 

 
WARD: Planning Delivery Zones 1, 2, 

3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10. 

APPLICATION NUMBER (ODA):  

08/90143/REMODA 

 

APPLICATION NUMBER (LB 

Hackney): 

2008/1313 

 

DRAWING NUMBERS: See 

submitted drawing list dated June 

2008. 

Documents: 

Planning, Design and Access 

Statement. 

 

VALID DATE:  11/07/2008 

APPLICANT:  

Olympic Delivery Authority 

 

One Churchill Place 

23rd Floor 

Canary Wharf 

London 

E14 5LN  

 

AGENT:   

None submitted. 

 

PROPOSAL IN BRIEF: Observations to the Olympic Development Authority 

(ODA) regarding the full planning application for the construction of sections of 

the Loop Road (including venue drop off areas, secondary roads and utility 

corridors).  

Agenda Item 9

Page 157



Planning Sub Committee 03/09/2008 

  2 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

The general location of the Loop Road was approved under the Site Preparation 

Permission (Ref:07/90011/OUMODA). The current application endeavours to 

gain approval for those sections of the Loop Road that are in a different location 

to that approved previously. 

 

Overall, the London Borough of Hackney (LBH) supports the Games Mode Loop 

Road configuration but objects to several matters regarding indicative legacy 

road configurations.  

 

1.0 SUMMARY OF PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

  

 Introduction 

  

1.1 

 

This application has been submitted to the Planning Decisions Team of the Olympic 

Delivery Authority (ODA).  Since December 2006, the ODA has been the 

determining authority for planning applications and enforcement matters within the 

area by virtue of powers granted by the Olympic and Paralympic Games Act 2006.  

The London Borough of Hackney, together with the London Boroughs of Tower 

Hamlets, Newham, Waltham Forest and Greenwich are statutory consultees. 

 

1.2 The application has been referred to LBH as part of the ODA’s consultation process. 

 

1.3 This report provides comments and analysis of the application in respect to its 

potential impacts on the London Borough of Hackney and provides specific 

observations from the Council’s internal consultees.    

  

2.0 PLANNING CONTEXT & HISTORY 

  

2.1 On the 28th September 2007, Outline Planning Permission 

(Ref:07/90010/OUMODA) was granted for the development in connection with the 

2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and subsequent Legacy Transformation. This 

planning permission allowed for the development of the Olympic Park and the 

associated venues and facilities.  

Page 158



 

  3 

 

  

3.0 THE SITE 

  

3.1 The Loop Road accesses various venues throughout the Olympic Park providing 

circulation throughout the site.  Portions of the Loop Road will be retained to provide 

the infrastructure to the development of the Legacy Masterplan Framework (LMF). 

  

  

4. PROPOSAL 

  

4.1 

 

 

 

4.2 

 

 

 

The application covers the full planning application (ODA ref: 08/90194/FULODA) 

for the construction of the Loop Road (including venue drop off areas, secondary 

roads and proposed utilities corridors). 

 

The Loop Road will provide vehicle circulation throughout the Olympic Site to 

Olympic venues and form an integral piece of infrastructure that the LMF will be 

developed around. 

 

  

5. INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS 

 

5.1 Sustainability and Design – No comments received. 

  

5.2 Highways and Transportation – Supports the Games Mode Loop Road 

configuration only but raises concerns regarding depicted Legacy Mode road 

configuration.  

  

6. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 

 Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995 

  

 EQ1:  

EQ9:  

EQ21:  

EQ30:  

Development Requirements 

Development and the River Lee Navigation Floodplain 

Metropolitan Open Land 

Areas of special landscape character 

Page 159



 

  4 

EQ31 

EQ40:  

EQ41 

EQ42:  

EQ43:  

EQ44:  

EQ46:  

EQ48 

 

Trees 

Noise Control 

Development Close to Existing Sources of Noise 

Air Pollution 

Development of Contaminated Land 

Water Pollution 

Recycling Facilities 

Designing out Crime 

 

 E6 

 

E8 

E14: 

E18 

 

Retention of Sites and Premises within Defined 

Employment Areas 

Employment Uses and Nuisance 

Access and Facilities for People with Disabilities 

Planning Standards 

 

 TR19:  

 

Planning Standards 

 

 OS1:  

OS2:  

OS3:  

OS4:  

 

OS6:  

OS7:  

OS9:  

OS13 

OS14 

OS16 

  

OS17:  

 

Enhancing Metropolitan Open Land 

Open Spaces and Parks 

Loss of Open Spaces and Parks 

Protection of Character of Open Spaces and Parks 

Green Chains and Links 

Sports grounds and Playing Fields 

Recreational Footpaths, Towing Paths, Cycleways and 

Bridleways 

Access and Use of Water Areas 

Areas of Nature Conversation  

Development and Areas of Nature Conservation 

Importance 

Wildlife Habitats 

 

 ACE1:  

 

ACE2:  

ACE4 

 

New Arts, Culture and Entertainment Development 

Promoting the Development of Arts, Cultural and 

Entertainment Facilities 

Art and Art Space 

 

Page 160



 

  5 

 Other Hackney Planning Policies  

 

Lower Lea Valley Joint Area Action Plan (Hackney Wick SPG) 

 Core Theme A: A Water City 

 Core Theme B: Thriving Centres 

 Core Theme C: Neighbourhood & Communities 

 Core Theme D: A Working Valley 

 Core Theme E: A Connected Valley 

 Core Theme F: A Sustainable & Enduring Legacy 

 Core Theme G: Reaping the Benefits of the Olympic 

Investment 

  

London Plan Policies  

 

 Policy 3C.2 

Policy 3B.10 

 

Policy 3D.7 

Policy 3D.9 

Policy 3D.12 

Policy 4A.1 

Policy 4A.6 

Policy 4A.7 

 

Matching Development to Transport Capacity 

Development of sustainable tourism including the Olympic & 

Paralympic Games (Proposed Alteration to London Plan) 

Realising the value of open space 

Metropolitan Open Land 

Biodiversity & Nature Conservation 

Waste Strategic Policy Targets 

Improving Air Quality 

Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy 

 

 Policy 4A.9 

Policy 4A.10 

Policy 4A.11 

Policy 4A.12 

Policy 4A.16 

Policy 4B.1 

Policy 4B.2 

Policy 4B.3 

Policy 4B.4 

Policy 4B.5 

Policy 4B.6 

Policy 4B.7 

Providing for Renewable Energy 

Supporting the Provision of Renewable Energy 

Water supplies 

Water Quality 

Bringing Contaminated land back into beneficial use 

Design Principles for a compact city 

Promoting world class architecture and design 

Maximising the potential of sites 

Enhancing the Quality of the Public realm 

Creating an inclusive environment 

Sustainable Design and construction 

Respect Local context and communities 

Page 161



 

  6 

Policy 4B.8 

Policy 4B9 

Policy 4B.14 

Policy 4C.1 

Policy 4C.2 

Policy 4C.3 

Policy 4C.8 

Policy 4C.12 

Policy 4C.14 

Policy 4C.17 

Policy 4C.20 

 

OA Framework 

Tall buildings, location 

Large scale buildings, design and impact 

Archaeology 

The strategic importance of the blue ribbon network 

Context for sustainable growth 

The natural value of the blue ribbon network 

Sustainable Drainage 

Sustainable growth priorities for the blue ribbon network 

Freight uses on the blue ribbon network 

Increasing access alongside and to the  blue ribbon network 

Design Starting from the water 

 

Lower Lea Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework 

 

National Planning Guidance  

 

 PPS1 Sustainable Development 

 PPG4 

PPS9 

Industrial and Commercial Development 

Biodiversity & Geological Conservation 

 PPG13 Transport 

 PPG16 Archaeology & Planning 

 PPG17 Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

 PPS22 Renewable Energy 

 PPS23 Planning & Pollution Control 

 PPG24 Planning and Noise 

 PPG25 Development and Flood Risk 

 

7. COMMENTS 

 

 Introduction 

 

7.1 The 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and the Legacy proposals will have major  

implications for the local and wider environment.  They will benefit the quality of life 

for residents and businesses in the Borough.  The Olympic Games are warmly 

welcomed by Hackney for the contribution they will make to the regeneration in East 

London.  

Page 162



 

  7 

7.2 The Loop Road provides vital infrastructure during the games, but even more so post 

games with retained roads influencing heavily the development of the LMF.  The 

LBH encourages that the ODA approach the development and approval of the Loop 

Road to not prejudice the development of the LMF and promote sustainability and 

accessibility to any Legacy development for the general public and particularly those 

existing residents abutting in Hackney Wick. 

 

  

 

 

Council Consultee Comments 

7.3 

 

 

7.3.1 

 

 

The London Borough of Hackney makes the following comments with regards to the 

application: 

 

Highways and Transportation 

 
Games Mode 
 

The London Borough of Hackney generally does not have any objection to the 

Games Mode loop road layout or operation. We accept that the Games Mode road 

layout is an un-adopted private road and has specific criteria in order to provide 

adequate access to venues during the games. We are however concerned with how 

this Games Mode road will influence legacy layouts especially with infrastructure that 

is unlikely to be changed in legacy transformation, such as bridges and utility 

corridors.  
 

Legacy Transformation 

 

The London Borough of Hackney has serious concerns regarding the “Indicative 

Legacy Transformation Roads” layout shown on drawing no. SBH-ATK-NPK-HWY-

DR-T-1-D128-0006. The current plans show an unacceptable legacy transformation 

layout. We are concerned that by approving this application it will force this layout for 

Legacy and remove any chance of amending these layouts.  We have no objection 

to the Games Mode loop road, and in the interests of keeping the planning process 

moving, we will accept these plans if all reference to “Indicative Legacy 

Transformation Roads” is removed.  

 

Page 163



 

  8 

It is considered that approving any legacy layouts will pre-empt the Legacy 

Masterplan Framework (LMF) discussions due to take place.  Given the changes 

from the original approved proposals and uncertainty over future development 

platforms within the LMF, the road layout should be reviewed prior to approval of the 

LMF and not as part of this planning application. 

 

Access to Eastway and A12 Lea Interchange 

 

The indicative legacy transformation road layout at this location is not justified and 

will have serious transportation impacts on the area. It also forces the London 

Borough of Hackney into accepting a development platform which has not yet been 

agreed.  In order to justify any legacy transformation road layout at this location, the 

applicant will need to submit a full Transport Assessment including a Transport 

Impact Assessment to the Council for approval. In its current state, it is considered 

that this layout is unacceptable and will cause serious adverse transportation 

impacts on the surrounding area.  

 

Legacy Transformation Road to east of Handball Arena 

 

This section of road has not been agreed as a dual carriageway.  In its current form it 

will create a barrier surrounding Hackney Wick and will cause major severance 

issues by cutting off the newly created parkland from Hackney.  Instead, the London 

Borough of Hackney would like to see any Legacy Road in this location downgraded 

and on an alignment which will discourage high levels of fast moving vehicular traffic. 

 

North East Access to Stratford City 

 

The London Borough of Hackney are concerned that the section of road linking 

Stratford City to the North East (between the Fencing Venue and Olympic Village) is 

shown as temporary and not permanent. It is recommended that this should remain 

as the main route to Stratford City from the north. By removing this link, large 

amounts traffic will be forced to pass through Hackney in order to gain access to the 

western access of Stratford City.  The North East link to Stratford City is vital to 

ensure that this does not occur.  

 

 

Page 164



 

  9 

Utilities Corridors 

 

It is considered that the proposed utilities corridors will potentially force the London 

Borough of Hackney into accepting a legacy transformation road layout that is not 

considered acceptable due to the likely permanence of these utilities and the 

likelihood that any legacy road will be built aligning with these utility corridors.  

Currently a utilities corridor is shown near to the A12 Lea Interchange on a road 

alignment that has not been agreed.  The utility corridor at this location should be 

removed.  There is also concern with regard to the major corridor shown to the east 

of the Handball Arena which would force a legacy road at this location.  The London 

Borough of Hackney does not want to be in a situation where utility corridors are 

forcing inappropriate road layouts.   

 

  

 

8.0 Conclusion 

 
The London Borough of Hackney (LBH) does not object to the proposed Games 
Mode layout and operation of the Loop Road. However, LBH does object to the 
following matters: 

 
• The inclusion of ‘Indicative Legacy Transformation Roads’ on the submitted 

plans.  Removal of these from the plans will remove any pre-empting of 
Legacy roads and allow a thorough development of the road network 
through the Legacy Masterplan Framework (LMF); 

• Legacy Transformation Road to east of Handball Arena being dual 
carriageway.  The LBH would like to see this road downgraded and aligned 
in such a way to discourage high levels of fast moving traffic; 

• The indicative legacy transformation road at the access to Eastway and A12 
Lea Interchange.  This formation indicates a division of this portion of the 
site with the potential to create a development platform; 

• The North East Access to Stratford City being temporary.  This access 
needs to be permanent and is a vital link to Stratford City; 

• The proposed Utilities Corridors.  The locations of such corridors will 
determine where the Legacy road network will be located;   

• The Utility Corridor shown near to the A12 Lea Interchange on a road 
alignment that has not been agreed and should be removed.   

 

 

 

Page 165



 

  10 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

10.1 The Council supports the principle of the proposed Games Mode Loop Road. 

 

10.2 The Council raise the following objections with regard to the proposed proposal: 

 

10.2.1 The LBH objects to the inclusion of ‘Indicative Legacy Transformation 

Roads’ on the submitted plans.  Removal of these from the plans will 

remove any pre-empting of Legacy roads and allow a thorough 

development of the road network through the LMF; 

 

10.2.2 The LBH objects to the Legacy Transformation Road to east of Handball 

Arena being dual carriageway.  The LBH would like to see this road 

downgraded and aligned in such a way to discourage high levels of fast 

moving traffic; 

 

10.2.3 The LBH objects to the indicative legacy transformation road at the access 

to Eastway and A12 Lea Interchange.  This formation indicates a division of 

this portion of the site with the potential to create a development platform; 

 

10.2.4 The LBH objects to the North East Access to Stratford City being temporary.  

This access needs to be permanent and is considered a vital link to 

Stratford City; 

 

10.2.5 The LBH objects to the proposed Utilities Corridors.  The approval of these 

corridors will pre-determine where the Legacy road network will be located 

with little chance of amendment once utilities/infrastructure has been 

installed.   

 

10.2.6 The LBH objects to the Utility Corridor shown near to the A12 Lea 

Interchange on a road alignment that has not been agreed.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 166



 

  11 

 

    

 

 

Signed …………………………………………   Date  …………………………………… 

 

SUE FOSTER 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

 

 

 

 BACKGROUND PAPERS NAME/DESIGNATION 

AND TELEPHONE 

EXTENSION OF 

ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 

OFFICER 

1. 

2.  

3 

 

 

 

4. 

 

Hackney UDP 

London Plan 

Lower Lea Valley Joint 

Area Action Plan and 

Opportunity Area 

Planning Framework 

Lower Lea Valley 

Opportunity Area 

Planning Framework 

 

Anthony Traub 

 

020 8356 7219 

Ground Floor, 263 Mare 

Street, Hackney E8 

3HT. 

 

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

  
ADDRESS: James Taylor Building, Collent Street, London E9 6SG 

REPORT AUTHOR: Gillian Nicks 
 

WARD: Chatham 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2008/1006 
 
DRAWING NUMBER: HER AL 101 (0) 
001, 002, HER-023 AL (9) 9100, JT001 
PL2, 149-150 PL3, 151-154 PL2, 155 – 
159 PL3, 1510 PL3, 160-165 PL3, 170 
-173 PL3, 175-176 PL3, 100-103.D 
PL1, 110, 120-123.D PL1. 
 

VALID DATE: 28/04/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Constable House Ltd 
12 George Street 
Alderly Edge 
Cheshire 
SK9 7EJ 
 

AGENT:   
Matthew Lloyd Architects 
1 The Hangar, 
Perseverance Works 
38 Kingsland Road, 
London  
E9 7JH 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing community centre and part of existing 
warehouses, and erection of part four-, part five-, part six-, part ten-storey 
(29.42m) building containing 1150sqm basement and ground-floor commercial 
space (use class B1/D1), with 69 residential units above (one studio, six one-
bedroom flats, 38 two-bedroom flats, 16 three-bedroom flats and 8 four-bedroom 
flats) and 15 basement parking spaces, together with the erection of a single-
storey replacement community centre (325sqm D1) set within new landscaped 
open space on Brooksbank Street. (Revised description) 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
 Grant conditional planning permission subject to a section 106 agreement 

          ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
     ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floor space 
sqm 

Existing  B8 
D1 

Other 

Storage/distribution 
Community Hall 
Vehicle Bay 

1948 
150 
450 

Proposed B1/D1 
D1 

Office 
Non-residential institutions 

1150 
352 

 C3 Residential  

Agenda Item 10

Page 169



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

Type  Studio 1 2 3 4 5 
Existing Not applicable Not applicable 
Proposed  Flats 1 6 38 16 8 - 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  - - - 
Proposed  8 9 75 

 
CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The site, approximately 4215sqm in area, is situated south of Retreat Place to 

the northern side of Collent Street, with Cresset Road running through the 
middle.  The site can be broken down into two parcels: north and south 
elements. 

 
1.2 The northern part of the application site is currently open space with part vacant 

scrubland, with remnants of hard surfacing (Brooksbank Street).  The site is 
bordered by a pedestrian footpath to the east, providing access between 
Retreat Place and Cressett Road.  Against the western boundary of this part of 
the site and adjacent to Lennox House (see discussion below under section 2) 
is a strip of mature vegetation.  The whole of this part of the application site is 
designated as: ’suitable for development as public open space’, proposal 
number 321. 

 
1.3 The southern element lies between Cressett Road and Collent Street and is 

currently occupied by the existing James Taylor Buidling (JTB), a vacant 
warehouse equivalent to 4 residential storeys, with a frontage to both roads.  To 
the south east junction of the streets, adjacent to the JTB is the existing 
community hall, a single storey structure providing approximately 150 sqm of 
community floor space.  The hall has some amenity space running the length of 
the building along Collent Street, behind a metre high breeze block wall 
patterned by Children’s murals.   

 
1.4 The surrounding area is predominately residential, with the wider Morningside 

Estate to the west and north of the site.  Residential red brick blocks of five to 
six storeys are most charactistic, with low rise property to the south and east of 
the existing JTB.  To the east, low rise, mixed use, properties front Well Street 
market that runs down from Well Street to the far south of the site and Morning 
Lane to the north.  The Well Street market is occupied by a number of local 
conveniences and a mini supermarket. 

 
1.5 Across the site, there is a slight topographical level change with the ground 

running down from north to south.  This means that Retreat Place is marginally 
higher than Collent Street.  

Page 170



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The site does not lie within a Conservation Area.  Lennox House, to the west of 

the site, is a Grade II listed building.  The James Taylor Warehouse was 
considered for listing by English Heritage who concluded that: ‘Although a 
characterful building of local interest, in the national context it does not meet the 
criteria for listing’. 

  
3. HISTORY 

 
Applications relating to the Warehouse and existing Community Centre site: 

 
3.1 2007/2008 – Planning application for ‘Part demolition of existing warehouse 

(retain South façade) and demolition of existing community centre and the 
erection of a part 6 and part 8 storey building to facilitate B1 light/industrial unit 
at ground floor (1150 sqms), basement parking and 70 residential units on 
upper floors (9 x one bed, 38 x two bed, 15 x three bed and 8 x four bed) with 
associated landscaping’ WITHDRAWN. 

 
3.2 2005/2663 – Planning application for ‘Erection of a single storey rear extension, 

change of use and conversion of the existing warehouse (B8) to provide 
229sqm B1 (Office) floor space on part of ground floor and 9 residential units at 
part ground floor, first and second floor levels, with roof terrace at first floor 
level, comprising 5x1 bed flats and 4x3 bed flats together with external 
alterations to the elevations and the provision of one disabled parking space, 10 
cycle racks and bin stores including demolition of parts of the building’ 
WITHDRAWN. 
 
Applications relating to Proposal site 321: 

 
3.3 2007/2459 - Redevelopment of 5 sites to consist of the following Site A 

(Brooksbank Street) - Erection of a three storey building to provide 2 x one bed; 
2 x two bed and 1 x three bed flats and 3 x four bedroom town houses 
demolition of existing community centre and erection of a two storey building 
replacement community centre with associated land & soft landscaping. Site B 
(Collent Street) - Erection of six storey building to provide 8 x one bed, 4 x two 
bed and 4 x three bed flats with associated car & cycle parking spaces. Site C 
(Cresset Road) - Erection of a six storey building to provide 4 x one bed, 6 x two 
bed and 5 x three bed flats with associated cycle and car parking spaces. Site D 
(Homerton Terrace) - Erection of five, two storey 3 bedroom terrace houses and 
Site F (Retreat Place) provision of a community garden - landscaping works. 
REFUSED – Public Inquiry to be held October 2008. 

 
3.4 North/161/94/FP – Planning application for ‘Erection of part 3, part 2 storey 

residential building of 14 flats and provision of 7 car spaces and 1 car port’ 
WITHDRAWN 
 
 
 

Page 171



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 7th May 2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 31st July 2008 
 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 Neighbours 

 
Letters were sent to 700 neighbouring occupiers.  A total of 11 responses have 
been received, of which 9 raise objections, 1 makes no comment.   
 
The grounds of objection are as follows: 

• Do not want the community hall knocked down and want it to remain 
where it has been for the last sixty years. 

• Community centre will be far too near our block of flats (Lennox House).  
Some ‘green’ should be left, the disturbance a community centre will 
cause will be unbearable, affecting our health; 

• Insufficient car parking capacity currently; 
• Proposal will result in the loss of light and privacy to Lennox House with 

proposed community centre too close. 
• Increase in residential units will increase social problems we experience 

in the neighbourhood. 
• The proximity of proposal to flats 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50 of Cresset and 

Brooksbank House.  Due to orientation of buildings limited light levels, 
with only direct light coming from large bedrooms and living rooms which 
face the proposed development.   

• Development will encroach on the public right of way and provide areas 
of concealment at night time for potential criminals. 

• Proposed building is not in accord and compatible to the height of 
neighbouring buildings.  It is particularly disproportionate to adjacent 
properties on Collent and Wells treet.  Building will appear obtrusive to 
Well Street properties and appear larger at this point because Well street 
lies on a lower plane (approximately 1-1.5 metres.  The east side of the 
new building will dominate the view from the west facing side of Well 
Street at this point, as can be seen from the latest artists impression.  
Overall, the building seems to dominate the local street block pattern 
resulting in the appearance of over development contrary to policy. 

• The idea of creating a vista between Cressett House and Brooksbank 
House on the north side is a good one in theory but because the 
structure doesn’t follow the line of Well Street the angle of the Central 
tower looks odd when viewed from Well Street itself. 

• Proposal includes the retention of the south façade and part of the east 
wall of JTB.  The angle of the new building is at odds with the south 
façade of JTB and the union of old elements and the new structure 
seems unsatisfactory.  It appears that this particular design problem 
remains unresolved. 

Page 172



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

• A larger proportion of the building should be incorporated into the design 
of the proposal, current proposal tokenistic. 

• JTB complements Lennox House in terms of proportion and size and 
brick stock, the predominate material in the area.  The proposed brightly 
coloured gazed tiles would be incongruous with existing architecture and 
create a potential eyesore. 

• The provision of car parking for the proposal is inadequate for the 
number of residential units proposed. 

• Sunlight and daylight report does not take into consideration the impact 
of he building on the light levels of the private gardens of 8, 10 and 12 
Collent Street (referred to as Brooksbank Street in the assessment 
document).   

• Sense of enclosure has not been addressed by the applicant. 
• Rather than building more housing why can’t existing building be 

renovated first.   
• To access the proposed building the new residents would have to go 

through Well Street or a narrow route through an estate which will 
exacerbate the existing gridlock in the narrow market end of Well Street 
which has to be navigated to reach the cul-de-sac containing the 
proposed development.  

• If no affordable housing is proposed does not meet Councils nor Mayors 
targets to provide for poorer communities. 

• B1 content unsuitable for let because of location and development.   
• Plans seek to destroy a significant wildlife area in front of Lennox House.  

A significant band of this area could be maintained with sensitive tidying 
and attractive fencing.  Object to the inevitable killing of birds and 
animals and the destruction of habitats and feeding grounds that these 
plans necessitate. 

• Proposal fails to utlisie the space, height and potential light of the 
building with its potential for arts and community space.  No imagination 
given to artistic or light industrial usage in this large building.  The flats 
themselves will be crammed into a small space in an already optimally 
populated area.   

• Time between withdrawn application and resubmission effectively 
renders void a massive public response to the proposed eight storey 
development.   

• Ten storeys too high, six storeys should be prevailing height of 
development in line with surroundings 

• Position of refuse adjacent to adjoining properties along Cresset Road 
would be unacceptable 

 
One petition with 20 signatures was also received with the following comments 
added: 
 
Flats too high, eyesore, not in keeping with the surrounding area.  There would 
be a loss of space, light, wildlife.  Would create congestion.  No infrastructure. 

 
A number of comments received are not planning grounds for refusal (such as 
construction nuisance). 

Page 173



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

4.6 Statutory consultees 
 
4.6.1 Greater London Authority 
 At 19.42 metres the proposal falls just outside the referable remit for the Mayor 
 of London’s consideration. 
 
4.6.2 Invest In Hackney 
 Invest in Hackney welcome the provision of both the new D1 space and new 

B1/light industrial commercial space in the development. We are pleased to see 
that the development is attempting to mitigate the loss of employment land on 
site. However, we are concerned of the suitability of 1150 square meters of B1 
space in this area and how this may impact on the actual take up of the 
commercial space and employment in reality. 

 
 The Ancer Spa study of small business workspace provision in Hackney 

identifies that there are high levels of vacancy in a number of B1 developments 
for five principal reasons: 

 
1. Current price levels are relatively high and above the level many prospective 
occupiers can afford.  

 
2. The floorspace areas provided are unlettable because they are too large. In 
such cases, developers have built out the B1 provision to satisfy the policy 
requirements but have not sub divided the units into smaller sizes, which match 
demand.  

 
3. Some such developments are in predominantly residential areas, some 
distance away from mainstream commercial centres well served by public 
transport and shops in safe, high quality environments.  

 
4. Often the quality of space provided in new build does not match the demand  

 
5.  Developers are not proactively marketing the workspace element of mixed 
use schemes.  

 
At present this development has the potential to fall into a number of these 
traps. There is low demand in the area for B1 office of this size and therefore 
any floor space provided should by subdivided in accordance with factor 2. The 
study identifies that in this area there is a demand for B1 space below 5,000 
square feet and of light industrial space between 2,000 – 5,000 square feet. 

 
With regard to factor three, while the development is close to an established 
retail area on Well Street it is not particularly well served by public transport and 
the quality of the environment is not high. This combined with the lack of other 
B1 offices in the area further calls into question the viability of the office space. 

 
Based on this and Invest in Hackney’s own knowledge of commercial demand 
in the area we recommend the following. 

 
• The B1 space is subdivided into smaller units, certainly below 5,000 sq ft and 

Page 174



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

preferably multiple units of around 1000-2000 square feet. A construction that 
allows the space to be subdivided in a variety of different ways dictated by 
demand would certainly assist in letting the space. 

 
• Invest in Hackney has concerns over the intention to locate light industrial 
space within this predominantly residential development. Our data shows that it 
is likely that there will be demand for this type of space in this area, particularly 
distribution and light manufacturing, and therefore it is important that there is 
consideration of how these to often averse uses will sit together on site. 

 
• There is high demand in this area for affordable D1 space. While the 
community centre will provide valuable D1 space Invest in Hackney have had 
numerous enquiries from community and voluntary organisations wishing to find 
premises to run all manner of community activities. Providing part of the space 
allocated to B1 for this use will most likely increase demand for this space. In 
this way the space is more likely to provide both employment and community 
benefits. However, it must be mentioned that these organisations often have 
smaller budgets and the achievable rent on the D1 space is likely to be lower 
than B1.  

 
• The commercial space should be affordable. The demand in this area is for 
affordable premises. It’s location away from mass transit nodes and in an area 
not traditionally considered for B1 use will reduce demand and achievable rents. 
High rents, as identified in factor 1, will hinder the intended mitigation of the loss 
of employment in the borough. 

 
The Ancer Spa study makes it clear that simply matching the amount of 
commercial space lost is not sufficient to protect and improve employment and 
the economy in the borough. A thorough considered approach is required to 
ensure commercial developments are successful. Invest in Hackney would be 
happy to work with the developer to achieve this. 

 
4.6.3 London Fire and Civil Authority 
 Satisfied with the proposals in relation to access.   
 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust 
 No representation received. 
 
4.6.5 Thames Water Utilities 
 Waste comments –request applicant incorporate protection to the property by 
 installing non-return valve or other device to avoid risk of backflow at later date.  
 It is the responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to 
 ground, water courses, or a suitable sewer.  Recommend that petrol/oil 
 interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities.   
 Water comments – No objection.  Informatives proposed.   
 
4.7 Other Council Departments 

 
4.7.1 Conservation and Design:  

We welcome the redevelopment of the James Taylor Building with the 

Page 175



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

associated square and community centre. This scheme presents a strong 
regeneration potential in an area that generally displays signs of under 
investment and a lack of vitality. We believe that the contemporary design of the 
scheme’s two elements can act strongly as a visual and physical catalyst for the 
area. 
The scheme has been followed intensively during pre application and has kept 
evolving positively following comments of the design team at pre application 
and at the previous application stage. Notably, the core of the scheme at 
ground level has largely improved since the previous application, and more 
importantly, the bulk and mass issues have been successfully addressed. The 
present solution provides a better complement to the preserved part of the 
existing building and creates a new built form that contributes to enhance the 
local built environment. 
 
The replacement community centre has also been part of previous discussion 
with the Conservation and Design team, and it is felt that its detailed design is 
creating a positive addition to the new square by creating a welcoming front to 
the landscaped area. 
 
James Taylor Building 
 
Massing, scale and bulk 
The main flaw of the previous scheme was the expression of its high density 
through a bulky massing which appeared to be over dominating in particular on 
the Well street elevation.  
Following design officer’s comments, the mass has been remodeled to reflect a 
much more sensitive response to the different aspects of the context.  Along 
Cresset Road, the presence of the building is accentuated by increasing its 
height to 10 storeys within its central part to create a focal point between 
Brooksbank House and Cresset House. On the other hand, the height has been 
reduced to 5 storeys along the existing building at the back of the preserved 
building to create a smoother transition with the existing warehouse.  
This change in massing has enabled a much more articulated mass along Well 
Street which introduces a transition between the low density of the street and 
the height of the new scheme. 
Overall, it is felt that the massing is much more respectful of the preserved 
warehouse by stepping up progressively to the tallest element of the scheme. 
Although a preference was initially expressed as to preserve the warehouse 
more extensively, it appears that the current design response enhances both 
the new and the preserved part of the scheme and the relationship between the 
different elements is complementary. 
 
Layout 
The external layout is well organized, and the original issues with the 
predominance of the ramp to the car park within the central courtyard has been 
resolved by introducing different design solutions to counterbalance its 
presence, such as the pool/roof light , the bamboo screening separating clearly 
the shared garden and the play area from the B1  access. The layout of the flats 
is acceptable. 
 

Page 176



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

Architectural detailing and elevations 
The expression of the elevations shows a clear design hierarchy and enhances 
the verticality of the scheme through an original cladding pattern. The treatment 
of the ground floor has been revised and is well detailed.  We cannot over 
emphasize the importance of maintaining a high level of detailing throughout all 
the design development stages. The quality of the scheme will ultimately 
depend on the material and proposed construction details. 
 
Public Square and community centre 
 
The square has been the subject of several pre application discussions with the 
Council landscape architect, and the urban design officer. Its design has 
successfully overcome the initial concerns about its layout. The amount of soft 
landscaping has been increased and the proposed planting areas are 
acceptable –subject to further detailing and material specifications.  The narrow 
passageway between Cresset house boundary wall and the community centre 
is mitigated by the 2 open spaces at both ends of the passage. Detailing will 
have to address Secure by Design principles. The relocation of the disabled 
parking space closer to the community centre is a functional solution and is 
much preferred than the original location by the edge of the street. The 
community centre garden is well enclosed and is a positive extension to the 
community facility. 
 
The community centre has been redesigned to integrate initial concerns. Its 
layout appears to be direct, functional and efficient. The elevations are well 
articulated and the height and massing is respecting the vicinity of Lennox 
House, a grade II listed building. 
 
Summary 
The James Taylor proposal and the redevelopment of a public square with an 
associated community centre are felt to be positive additions of a high design 
quality to the existing townscape and we are confident that they will contribute 
to a much needed regeneration in the area. We encourage the applicant to 
persevere in the research of quality by keeping a high level of detailing and 
material throughout the next design stages. 
Supportive of the scheme and recommend that it is approved, 
 

4.7.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 
 No representation received. 
 
4.7.3 Highways:  

The estimated cost of the works is £303, 578 that has been compiled using 
drawings No. 001, 100D and 151 as part of the planning application submission 
and an OS extract as attached.  
  
The proposals include the following:- 
  
Take up and dispose of wearing course on footway (Bit Mac paving)  
Take up existing footway base course and dispose (Concrete) 
Take up and dispose of existing granite kerbs 

Page 177



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

Provide and lay new granite straight kerbs and transition kerbs 
Provide and lay new base course on footway 
Provide and lay new PCC paving in accordance with the Streetscene urban 
design guide 
Reconstruct / Renew 3 No. existing vehicular crossovers, at various locations 
on the site, in accordance with the Streetscene urban design guide 
  
It is important to note the following: The cost of relocation / removal / 
replacement of any street lighting, within the highlighted area, have not been 
included in this estimate 
  
The estimate includes for traffic management in accordance with Chapter 8 
however the estimate does not include any statutory apparatus adjustments that 
may be required as a part of the construction of the crossover. A minimum of 
450 – 500mm cover from the top of services is required for residential/ light use 
crossovers however 600mm cover is required for heavy duty crossovers. This is 
a task required to be carried out and paid for by the developer and should be 
carried out in advance of LB Hackney carrying out any highway works. 
  
Please note that the Highways department must be advised when payment has 
been made and a minimum of three months lead in to be given by the 
developer before highway works are expected to start on site. The street 
lighting team/department must also have three months lead in time prior to 
any works commencing on the development to enable them to carry out any 
required electrical works on the lighting columns etc. 
  

4.7.4 Housing:   
 The housing component of this application (2008/1006) is welcome on all 
 accounts.  The percentage of family and large family housing is excellent and it 
 is unusual (but encouraging) to see so few 1 beds in relation to 2 beds.  The 
 tenure split is fine particularly as Sanctuary have not raised any Management 
 concerns. 

 
4.7.5 Policy 
 No representation received. 
 
4.7.6 Transport: 
 The pedestrian access is acceptable. They have confirmed that the pedestrian 
 path which runs alongside the community centre is 2.0m wide at it narrowest – I 
 have scaled off from the plan to confirm this measurement. 
  
 The basement layout and level of disabled parking is satisfactory. I did suggest 
 that the door to lobby/lift area be relocated to improve safety at the bottom of 
 the ramp, particularly for disabled people but they’ve argued that the relocation 
 of this door would undermine security in the basement. Having re-examined the 
 layout from a security perspective, I agree that the door is probably best left in 
 its current location.  
  
 The outstanding issue is the highways alteration in Collent Street and 
 Brooksbank Street which might be dealt with as a planning condition – details to 

Page 178



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 be approved by T&T prior to implementation of the development. 
  
4.7.7 Waste management; 
 Application requires 15,510 litres of waste storage and provision for 2 recycling 
 frames plus an addition 2700 litres of waste storage for the commercial waste.  
 The floor plan shows they have two designated domestic Bin areas which are 
 ample for the site and three recycling frames all easy accessible from the road 
 for collection.  They also have a designated bin area for their commercial waste 
 which is also more than enough storage and accessible from the road for 
 collection. 
   
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 

EQ1  - Development Requirements 
EQ43  - Development of Contaminated Land 
H03  - Other sites for housing 
E12  - Office Development 
E18  - Planning Standards 
TR19  - Parking standards 
OS2  - Open spaces and parks 
OS5  - Development affecting open spaces and parks 
OS10  - Children’s Play areas 
OS17  - Wildlife Habitats 
 

5.2 Local Development Framework – Core Strategy Preferred Policy Options 
(April 2008) 

 
PPO1  - Planning Policy Context (Future development and  
    Regeneration in Hackney) 
PPO3  - Spatial Vision for Hackney (Re-establish   
    neighbourhoods) 
PPO4  - Spatial Vision for Hackney (Co-existence of a diverse  
    mix of uses) 
PPO6  - Spatial Vision for Hackney (Highest possible quality of 
    development) 
PPO8  - Strategic Spatial Implications (Residential development) 
PPO9  - Strategic Spatial Implications (Employment land) 
PPO10  - Strategic Spatial Implications (New employment floor  
    space) 
PPO11  - Strategic Spatial Implications (Sustainability principles) 
PPO13  - Promoting Quality (Built environment, sense of place  
    and local distinctiveness) 
PPO14  - Promoting Quality (Statutory Listed Buildings) 
PPO15  - Promoting Quality (Climate change) 
PPO17  - Providing Better Homes (Needs residents) 
PPO18  - Providing Better Homes (Affordable Housing) 
PPO19  - Providing Better Homes (Mix of housing)  
PPO20  - Providing Better Homes (Sustainable Homes) 

Page 179



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

PPO22  - Supporting Hackney’s Neighbourhoods and   
    Communities (Strengthening) 
PPO24  - Dynamic and Creative Economy (Employment land) 
PPO25  - Dynamic and Creative Economy (No net loss of  
    employment) 
PPO29  - Promoting Sustainable Transport (Strategic Transport 
    Networks) 
PPO30  - Promoting Sustainable Transport (Spatial arrangement 
    of activities) 
PPO32  - Making a safer cleaner place (High quality design) 
PPO33  - Making a safer cleaner place (Open space) 
PPO34  - Making a safer cleaner place (Sustainable construction) 
PPO35  - Making a safer cleaner place (Sustainable Waste  
    Management) 
PPO36  - Planning Obligations and Area policies (S106 planning 
    obligations) 

 
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 

SPG1   - New Residential Development 
SPG11  - Access For People With Disabilities 

 
5.4 Proposals 

Proposal 321 
 
5.5 London Plan (2004) 
 

2A.1  - Sustainability Criteria 
2A.2  - The spatial strategy for development 
3A.1  - Increasing London’s supply of housing 
3A.2  - Borough Housing Targets 
3A.5  - Housing Choice 
3A.6  - Quality of new housing provision 
3A.8  - Definition of affordable housing 
3A.9  - Affordable Housing Targets 
3A.10  - Negotiating affordable housing in individual private  

     residential and mixed use schemes 
3A.11  - Affordable Housing Thresholds  
3A.27  - Meeting Floor Targets 
3B.1  - Developing London’s Economy 
3B.2  - Office demand and supply 
3B.3  - Mixed use development 
3B.11  - Improving employment opportunities for Londoners 
3C.1  - Integrating transport and development 
3C.2  - Matching development to transport capacity 
3C.3  - Sustainable Transport in London 
3C.17  - Tackling congestion and reducing traffic 
3C.18  - Allocation of street space 
3C.19  - Local transport and public realm enhancements 
3D.14  - Biodiversity and nature conservation 

Page 180



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

4A.1  - Tackling climate change 
4A.2  - Mitigating climate change 
4A.3  - Sustainable design and construction 
4A.4  - Energy assessment 
4A.7  - Renewable Energy 
4A.11  - Living Roofs and Walls 
4A.14  - Sustainable drainage 
4A.17  - Water quality 
4A.19  - Improving air quality 
4A.33  - Bringing contaminated land into beneficial use 
4B.1  - Design principles for a compact city 
4B.3  - Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
4B.4  - Retrofitting 
4B.5  - Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.10  - Large scale buildings – design and impact 
4B.12  - Heritage Conservation 
4B.15  - Archaeology 

 
5.6 National Planning Policies 
 

PPS1  - Delivering Sustainable Development  
PPS3  - Housing 
PPG13  - Transport 
PPS22  - Renewable energy 
PPS25  - Development and Flood Risk 

 
6. COMMENT 
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of two buildings: 
 
The first building, on the existing James Taylor Building and Community Centre site, 
would be a part four, part five, part six, part ten storeys inverted L-shaped building to 
provide commercial floor space at basement (plus car parking) and ground floor level 
with a mix of residential accommodation from the ground floor upwards.   
 
At ground floor level the building would be accessible from three sides:   
 
i. Along Cressett Road: pedestrian access to a single main residential entranceway, a 
separate entrance for upper residential units and two commercial entrances would be 
accommodated.   
ii. Collent Street: given the orientation of the proposed building and line of the Street, 
two frontages to the street would be presented - 1. The western façade of the building 
would accommodate the main entrance to one ground level residential unit, plus 
access the remaining residential accommodation within the corner element to the 
proposed development along the Cressett Raod/Collent Street juncture.  2. The third 
accessible side of the proposal would be along the South elevation, the northern side 
of Collent Street.  As well as being the primary commercial entrance, ramped access to 
basement car parking (accommodating fifteen spaces (seven being disabled) plus 
cycle parking) would be accommodated through a full height metal entrance gate.   
 

Page 181



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

Whilst at ground level, along the west elevation, patio space would be provided in front 
of ground floor residential units, a raised terrace would be provided within a central 
courtyard towards the rear of the building; full building plate coverage of the site is not 
proposed.   A shared garden/children’s play area (approximately 65 sqm) would also 
be found alongside this element, with a bamboo screen against its boundary and that 
of the courtyard servicing the commercial units.  The majority of units would be 
provided with some form of private amenity space, with balconies along the internal 
east and west elevations of the site in addition to private terraces at first floor to the 
east elevation residential units, and to two units along the west elevation at sixth floor, 
communal terraces would be provided at first (100 sqm) and fifth (1x 70sqm and 1 
x110 sqm) level.   
 
The second building would be located upon a site diagonally across from the current 
community hall with Cressett Road lying to the South, and Reteat Place to the North.  
An existing footpath would remain running parallel to this part of the site.   
 
The hall would be accommodated within an inverted L-shaped single-storey building, 
with ancillary facilities including meeting rooms, crafts and IT room.  A new public 
square fronting the hall and in the shade of Lennox House to the west with Cresset 
Road to the south would be facilitated with one disabled car parking space. 
 
Considerations 
 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 
6.1 The principle of the use 
 
6.2 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3 Potential impact on the amenity of prospective and adjacent residents 
 
6.4 Traffic and transport considerations 

 
6.5 Response to objectors 
 
6.6 Planning Contributions 
 
Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the use 
 
6.1.1 The existing site holds employment generating uses and UDP policy 

designations.  The proposal seeks to retain a large majority of the existing 
employment floor space.  Whilst there is a presumption towards a no net loss of 
employment floor space given the site falls outside a defined employment area, 
the quantum of reprovision (60%) is considered reasonable in consideration of 
the sites context and the retention of part of the existing building (to be detailed 
further below).  In addition, an increase in community floor space across the site 
is proposed.  Nonetheless, the comments of Invest in Hackney need to be taken 
into consideration.  Given the location of the site and notwithstanding market 

Page 182



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

conditions which are not for consideration here, the provision of unallocated 
community floor space within an area identified as being deficient is considered 
appropriate taking advantage of the sites position outside a Defined 
Employment Area.  Consequently, the applicant has been encouraged and 
presents a flexibility of uses to the Commercial space between B1 and now D1 
also, allowing for optimal uptake of the space. 

 
6.1.2 The site as a whole lies within a predominately residential area, and 

consequently, the introduction of residential use upon the southern part of the 
site is considered acceptable within a mixed use scheme alongside the 
principles set out above. 

 
6.1.3 The northern parcel of the site, designated as suitable for development as 

public open space, is proposed to be part covered by a community hall.  
Notwithstanding the relatively poor condition of the existing hall, and its current 
home being on the edge of the wider Morningside estate, the proposed 
relocation to a more central position within the estate adjacent to larger amenity 
areas that would complement its usability for a range of activities is considered 
advantageous.  Overall, the proposed community use with associated 
landscaping works is considered appropriately related to the designation of 
Proposal 321.   

 
Residential mix, layout and affordable housing provision 

 
6.1.4 The proposal seeks to bring forward 69 residential units, including one studio 

and two x three bed maisonettes.  A total of twenty four family units, equating to 
35% of the residential component, would be provided seeking to accord with the 
objectives within the London Plan to provide housing choice.  Twelve per cent 
of the family units would be large (four bed) units.  Whilst this falls short of the 
London Plans expected forty per cent for large family sized units, this policy is 
London wide and the proposal contributes to the context of the site alongside 
the required needs within the Borough.  Furthermore, the ratio of two to one 
bedroom flats is welcomed. The Councils Housing Needs Survey demonstrates 
a high demand for family sized units, and whilst not wholly meeting this need, 
the scheme does seek to make an acceptable contribution given the 
surrounding character of the area and taking on board the retention of part of 
the warehouse.  

 
6.1.5 The application was accompanied with a financial viability toolkit to comply with 

policy as the proposal fails to bring forward a policy compliant fifty per cent 
quantum of both Council and London Plan policy.  Thirty nine per cent of the 
residential element would be provided as affordable housing by habitable room 
with a 78:22 tenure split between social rented and shared ownership units.  
Whilst this does not follow the expected tenure split set out in the London Plan 
nor the fifty per cent provision expected, it does illustrate the high proportion of 
family sized units being given over to the partner RSL, Sanctuary Housing.  
Overall, following the submission of further input details, the provision of 
affordable housing is considered acceptable in line with policy.   

 
6.1.6  All the residential units comply with the Councils space standards, with some 

Page 183



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

generous layouts without under-developing the site.  A number of family units 
do not have separate kitchen and living spaces.  The internal design lends itself 
to future partition that whilst not the most acceptable resolution could be 
addressed through a planning condition and in this instance is not considered 
grounds reasonable for refusal in light of the former commentary.  All units 
would be built to Lifetime Home standards. 

 
6.1.7 Overall, the principle of the development is considered appropriate in 

accordance with policy, bringing forward a mix of uses, with an accepted level 
of affordable housing on the basis of the viability, an adequate housing mix and 
a new, enlarged community hall with associated public open space. 

 
6.2 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.2.1 The comments of the design officer are found above at paragraph 4.7.1.  During 

the course of the application, further design iterations have evolved, seeking to 
address the sensitivity of the application site in sight of the adjacent listed 
building whilst allowing for contemporary additions.  The tallest element of the 
scheme, as submitted eight storeys but under consideration here at ten storeys, 
has been increased to assist the articulation of the massing towards a more 
refined form, with a reduction in the overall massing from views from the east, 
and framing this element between Brooksbank and Cresset House from the 
north.  No additional floor space is accrued through this exercise. 

 
6.2.2 Under the Councils commissioned ‘Tall Buildings’ Strategy (2005), a ten storey 

development is considered high rise.  Whilst the prevailing height of the 
surrounding area is six storeys, the ten storey element to the proposal has been 
considered appropriate as discussed above.  This element is not considered to 
negatively impact upon the ground level conditions, and adequate relief is 
provided within the surrounding area, particularly with the proposed square, to 
accommodate ten storeys.  

 
6.2.3 The retention of the existing Warehouse building is not required to meet the 

tests under PPG15 that would be afforded consideration to the demolition of a 
listed building or a building situated within a Conservation Area.  
Notwithstanding, the proposal does not involve total demolition of the existing 
warehouse; the community hall at the site is considered of no merit to the 
existing street scene being a single storey pre-fab.  The extent of retention is 
considered appropriately demonstrated to sensitively exhibit the main features 
of the warehouse, i.e. the triangulated roofline, whilst complementing the 
proposed contemporary design also.  This would accord with London Plan 
policy 4B.4.  The success of the proposed design would successively be 
expressed through the material palette of high quality materials, including light 
weight terracotta cladding. 

 
6.2.4 The community centre, a single storey structure would not compete with the 

dominate building within the street scene, Lennox House.  The massing is well 
articulated, and provides a reference to the buildings functionality and is 
appropriately orientated to the surrounding context and the landscaping 
proposed. 

Page 184



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 
6.2.5 Overall, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in design terms with a 

duality of both existing warehouse and contemporary design within the setting 
of a listed building.   

 
 

Sustainability and Renewable Energy Provision 
 
6.2.6 The proposal seeks to meet code for sustainable homes level 3 for both Private 

and Social housing units so long as a commitment through to construction stage 
is secured.  It is suggested that Level 4 is achievable for the social housing 
units whilst that for the Private is not yet determinable.  However, this is not 
accepted as the level is in any case an estimate based on certain assumptions 
that through to construction the scheme would need to comply with to achieve 
the stated Code level.  It is expected that the scheme achieve level 3, with best 
endeavours demonstrated in detail that level 4 is sought through section 106 
obligations. 

 
6.2.7 The London Plan presumes new development shall provide twenty per cent of 

its energy demand on site through renewable modes following the Energy 
Strategy of ‘Lean, Clean and Green’ savings.   

 
6.2.8 The proposal is demonstrated to have been considered with a range of different 

renewable energy and low carbon technologies. Solar Thermal Panels and CHP 
are proposed to be integrated for the development.  It is estimated that a total 
carbon saving of over twenty percent could be achieved under this provision in 
accordance with the requirements of the London Plan. 

 
Refuse provision 

 
6.2.9 The proposal includes the provision of three areas of refuse storage and two 

recycling stations at ground level.  These are located for ease of access at street 
level and each station is reasonably accommodated to serve the residential and 
commercial elements of the development.  All the stations are enclosed and 
considered an acceptable distance away from prospective and existing 
residential occupiers of approximately nine metres from existing properties on 
Collent Street and Cresset Road. 

 
6.3 Potential impact on the amenity of prospective and adjacent residents  

  
 Daylight and Sunlight 
 
6.3.1 The application is accompanied by a Daylight and Sunlight report assessing 

219, 223 and 235 Well Street, 5 Collent Street, 8 Brooksbank Street (actually 8 
Collent Street) and the south, return elevation to both Cresset and Brooksbank 
House.  As a starting point, in consideration of the orientation of adjacent 
residential properties the extent of the study is considered adequate.  
Assumptions made within the report result in all study windows being presumed 
as serving habitable rooms as defined by BRE guidelines.   

 

Page 185



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

6.3.2 The British Research Establishment has produced guidance notes on site layout 
planning for daylight and sunlight that provides tests and recommendations 
against which to consider the acceptability of a proposal on current 
environmental conditions.  These tests and recommendations are widely 
recognised and accepted as a point of reference in this regard.  One of the tests, 
the ‘Vertical Sky Component’ (VSC), is a measure of the amount of sunlight 
available at the centre point to the external pane of a window.  The target value 
is equal to 27% and any change from the existing level of less than 0.8% would 
result in a noticeable loss of light.    Of the eight reference points, two reference 
points, those of Cresset and Brooksbank House, would see resultant VSC levels 
from the proposal fall below the target of 27% and a change of less than 0.8% 
would occur.   

 
6.3.3 Where the VSC levels are not met an Average Daylight Factor (ADF) test is 

carried out, and considers the amount of light that will be received within the 
interior of the room.   

 
6.3.4 The results show that the ADF levels accord with BRE targets for bedrooms, 

and Cresset House meets that for living rooms also. 
 
6.3.5 It is recognised that the guidance discounts the context of sites.  It has been 

shown during the application process that the change in building profile has 
generally had a positive effect on the resultant impact relating to day and 
sunlight for the survey sites.  Only three of the reference points surveyed are 
orientated within 90 degrees that meet the threshold for requiring assessment.  
The results show that the resultant sunlight quality would accord with BRE 
guidelines except for Cresset House that in winter would see a noticeable 
change but fully exceeds that within summer months. 

 
6.3.6 Overall, the resultant daylight and sunlight to existing properties is anticipated to 

have a limited noticeable impact.  
 

Privacy/overlooking 
 
6.3.7 The site is surrounded on three sides by residential use, and on the eastern 

elevation by a mix of uses, some of which include residential to upper levels.  
Along Collent Street, terrace houses lie to the south of the proposal site, with 
rear private gardens.  The profile of the proposed building is such that it respects 
the building line of these terraces, so as not to be forward of it, or behind it to the 
rear.  A screen, in bamboo, is proposed against the north elevation to the rear 
garden of 8 Collent Street, a height to be dealt with by condition.  Whilst a 
balcony is proposed to project from the east elevation of the Collent Street wing, 
given the urban context of the site, this is considered to be acceptable subject to 
a condition requiring details that would provide screening against the southern 
side of these balconies looking towards adjacent properties.  Consequently, no 
detrimental overlooking concerns are envisaged from this part of the proposed 
design. 

 
6.3.8 Within the proposal, a children’s play area is proposed that will be immediately 

overlooked by flats above.  This is considered to benefit the overall usability of 

Page 186



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

this space, with the adjacent units being family units and it being envisaged that 
passive surveillance can monitor the space from above. 

 
6.3.9 Along Cresset Road, Cresset and Brooksbank House of the Morningside Estate 

are approximately thirteen and twenty five metres from the proposal site.  Along 
Cresset Road, at the junction with Well Street, a public house is situated, with its 
entrance some twenty to twenty five metres from the boundary of the application 
site.  Whilst there are some terraces visible from street level to the rear of the 
Well Street properties, there are also extant planning permissions for 221, 223 
and 233 Well Street that are relevant.  The building line along the east elevation 
of the proposal would not follow the boundary of the site, with a cut out from first 
floor level upwards.  The general building line of the Well Street units would be a 
distance of between eight and fourteen metres from the proposed building line.  
Whilst the introduction of residential units to the west of the Well Street terrace 
brings an element of overlooking, it is considered given the urban context of the 
site, combined with both the internal layout and set back in the building line not 
to be sufficient as to be grounds for refusal.   

 
6.3.10 For prospective residents, across the site there is a distance between residential 

units of eighteen metres, considered acceptable in consideration of the Councils 
supplementary planning guidance on New Residential Development.   

 
6.3.11 Overall, the proposal is envisaged to have no detrimental impact on the privacy 

of existing and prospective residents, and no sense of enclosure should occur 
given the reasonable distance of neighbouring properties from the proposed 
building line. 

 
Open space and amenity 

 
6.3.12 It has been discussed that the northern element of the site lies upon a 

designated proposal site within the UDP – Proposal 321.  In line with the 
objective of this designation, the proposal seeks to bring forward public open 
space, and is considered to be of benefit to the wider Morningside Estate, and is 
especially well related and optimised by the presence of the proposed 
community centre.  Whilst an element of open space will be lost through the infill 
at the existing community site, overall, the placing of the Community Centre 
adjacent to the public square is appropriately orientated to enhance the visability 
of each. 

 
6.3.13 It has been discussed that the majority of residential units would be provided 

with some form of amenity space.  This is welcomed, and it is noted that the 
design has been developed to make best use of the opportunity to 
accommodate an appropriate amount of terrace space at roof level.   

 
6.4 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.4.1 The site falls under a PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) rating of three.  

Within close proximity to the site are a number of bus routes serving routes 
through to the centre of London and out to the north and east of London also.  
Homerton Station, part of the Overground rail network, is within an eight minute 

Page 187



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

walk from the site. 
 
6.4.2 Currently, there is no on-site parking at the site.  Servicing can currently be 

carried out on the street either from marked out loading bays on Cressett Road  
or from Collent Street from a roller shutter door.  The site does not fall within a 
Controlled Parking Zone.  Current on-street parking is found along Well Street, 
both sides of Collent Street and the north side of Cressett Road. 

 
6.4.3 The proposal would provide basement car park, accessed off from the existing 

access on Collent Street down a ramp, with a width to allow two cars to pass 
safely passed each other.  The provision of fifteen car parking spaces, with 
seven disabled bays, leaves eight spaces that could be allocated for large 
family units.  In addition to the car parking provision, cycle storage for 76 bikes 
would be accommodated across the site.  Whilst 69 spaces for the residential 
element (according with minimum standards within the London Plan) would be 
found at basement level (52) and within cycle lockers (17) adjacent to the 
properties along the west of the site.  The commercial element would be 
provided with seven spaces within the private courtyard area at the south of the 
development, with Sheffield stands to be fitted under a pergola. 

 
6.4.4 A Transport Statement was submitted with the application.  This included a 

Traffic Impact Assessment that assumes the limited parking provision within the 
vicinity of the site will mean there is no significant highway impact, coupled with 
the low onsite provision.  Such an assumption is not accepted.  There is no 
correlation between the provisions of limited car parking provision in the vicinity 
of the site resulting in no highway impact.  Given the site does not lie within a 
controlled parking zone an obligation to ensure future occupiers shall not park 
on the street can not be enforced until such time as a CPZ is desiganted.  The 
Transport Statement includes a parking survey to ‘establish the optimum car 
parking available, the number of parkers in each road and therefore, the spare 
capacity’ the study area, of a circumference of 200 metres from the site, 
covered thirteen roads, all outside a CPZ.  Whilst the survey was carried out 
across one day, the number of ‘spare’ parking spaces is recorded as being 104  
early morning and 110 early evening, peak periods, whilst at midday 62 spare 
parking spaces within the study area were found.  A number of spaces were 
particularly found in close proximity to the site.   

 
6.4.5 Nonetheless, it is recognised that despite the study undertaken, there are still 

limitations.  Overall, the Council encourages the use of sustainable modes of 
transport.  The site is not poor in terms of its PTAL rating.  Consequently, it is 
recommended that an obligation be applied that requires the developer to 
advise future occupiers of the fact that they will be denied the right to apply for a 
parking permit were the area to become a CPZ at any time in the future.   

 
6.5 Response to objectors 
 
6.5.1 Do not want the community hall knocked down and want it to remain where it 

has been for the last sixty years 
 

There are no powers to prevent the demolition of the community hall.  However, 

Page 188



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

the opportunity to accommodate a new, larger hall that is adjacent to a public 
square considered to be a valuable asset to the wider community as discussed 
above. 

 
6.5.2 Community centre will be far too near our block of flats (Lennox House).  Some 

‘green’ should be left, the disturbance a community centre will cause will be 
unbearable, affecting our health.  Plans seek to destroy a significant wildlife 
area in front of Lennox House.  A significant band of this area could be 
maintained with sensitive tidying and attractive fencing.  Object to the inevitable 
killing of birds and animals and the destruction of habitats and feeding grounds 
that these plans necessitate 

 
It is not envisaged that undue noise will be experienced from the use of the 
Community Centre.  The Centre would be approximately eight metres from 
Lennox House with an element of landscaping proposed between the two sites.  
It is proposed that the extent of landscaping be provided in detail by condition, 
and the clearance of the area, an extent of which to be agreed by condition, 
would be controlled. 

 
6.5.3 Proposal will result in the loss of light and privacy to Lennox House with  

proposed community centre too close. 
 
Given the centre would be a single storey building, and in consideration of the 
brick wall marking Lennox House site boundary, it is not expected that any 
undue impact in terms of daylight and sunlight would be incurred.   
 

6.5.4 Insufficient car parking capacity currently, proposal will exacerbate the situation. 
 
This has been addressed above in section 6.4. 

 
6.5.5 Increase in residential units will increase social problems we experience in the 

neighbourhood 
 
The proposal brings forward a scheme with a range of benefits to the local area, 
including an enlarged Community Centre and Public Square.  The density of the 
proposal is considered to be in accordance with the London Plan.   

 
6.5.6 The proximity of proposal to flats 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50 of Cresset and 

Brooksbank House.  Due to orientation of buildings limited light levels, with only 
direct light coming from large bedrooms and living rooms which face the 
proposed development. 
 
The application has been submitted with a daylight and sunlight report.  It is 
envisaged that only one unit would be effected, though marginally, by the 
proposed development as detailed in section 6.3 above. 

 
6.5.7 Development will encroach on the public right of way and provide areas of 

concealment at night time for potential criminals. 
 
The proposal does not encroach on the public right of way, but is considered to 

Page 189



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

enhance the passive surveillance to public footpaths.  No areas of 
‘concealment’ are envisaged from the proposal. 

 
6.5.8 Proposed building is not in accord and compatible to the height of neighbouring 

buildings.  It is particularly disproportionate to adjacent properties on Collent 
and Wells Street.  Building will appear obtrusive to Well Street properties and 
appear larger at this point because Well street lies on a lower plane 
(approximately 1-1.5 metres.  The east side of the new building will dominate 
the view from the west facing side of Well Street at this point, as can be seen 
from the latest artists impression.  Overall, the building seems to dominate the 
local street block pattern resulting in the appearance of over development 
contrary to policy 
 
The design has been developed to ensure that the views from Well Street 
especially provide for a slender tower element, than an obtrusive bulk.  It is 
considered that the proposal is an acceptable height in aligning with Cresset 
House and Brooksbank House to frame the tower element, and sympathetically 
align existing warehouse and contemporary parts of the design.  A further 
discussion of this is found above at paragraph 6.2.1. 

 
6.5.9 The idea of creating a vista between Cressett House and Brooksbank House on 

the north side is a good one in theory but because the structure doesn’t follow 
the line of Well Street the angle of the Central tower looks odd when viewed 
from Well Street itself 
 
The design iteration has developed and it is considered that the design is seen 
as a tower rather than a mass from Well Street, with a reduction in the bulk to 
the south of the proposal. 

 
6.5.10 Proposal includes the retention of the south façade and part of the east wall of 

JTB.  The angle of the new building is at odds with the south façade of JTB and 
the union of old elements and the new structure seems unsatisfactory.  It 
appears that this particular design problem remains unresolved. A larger 
proportion of the building should be incorporated into the design of the proposal, 
current proposal tokenistic 

 
The extent of retention of the proposal is considered appropriate, and its 
alignment to the contemporary portion of the development is sensitively 
proportioned.  This is discussed in more detail above. 
 

6.5.11 JTB complements Lennox House in terms of proportion and size and brick 
stock, the predominate material in the area.  The proposed brightly coloured 
glazed tiles would be incongruous with existing architecture and create a 
potential eyesore 
 
The appropriateness of the design has been discussed above, and the material 
palette is considered to be of a high quality.  The use of alternative materials, 
away from the localised palette of brick, ensures a pastiche is not brought 
forward to appropriately complement the contemporary design of the new 
additions. 

Page 190



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 
6.5.12 The provision of car parking for the proposal is inadequate for the number of 

residential units proposed. 
 
This has been discussed under the Transport section above. 

 
6.5.13 Sunlight and daylight report does not take into consideration the impact of he 

building on the light levels of the private gardens of 8, 10 and 12 Collent Street 
(referred to as Brooksbank Street in the assessment document. 
 
Given the retention of part of the JTB adjacent to these properties, coupled with 
the openness to the south of these gardens, no significant loss of light is 
envisaged, and nor is an assessment deemed necessary given the orientation.   

 
6.5.14 Sense of enclosure has not been addressed by the applicant 
 

The proposed development is considered to have adequate distances between 
sites so that no adverse sense of enclosure would be felt. 

 
6.5.15 Rather than building more housing why can’t existing building be renovated first.  

Proposal fails to utilise the space, height and potential light of the building with 
its potential for arts and community space.  No imagination given to artistic or 
light industrial usage in this large building.  The flats themselves will be 
crammed into a small space in an already optimally populated area 
 
The authority can only assess the suitability or otherwise of the current 
application in accordance with policy.  The extent of retention has been 
assessed above and is considered to be appropriate.  The quality of internal 
accommodation is considered acceptable. 

 
6.5.16 To access the proposed building the new residents would have to go through 

Well Street or a narrow route through an estate which will exacerbate the 
existing gridlock in the narrow market end of Well Street which has to be 
navigated to reach the cul-de-sac containing the proposed development. 

 
The site is considered to have reasonable accessibility and no cul de sac is 
present. 
 

6.5.17 If no affordable housing is proposed does not meet Councils nor Mayors targets 
to provide for poorer communities 
 
The proposal would bring forward 22 units as affordable housing. 

 
6.5.18 B1 content unsuitable for let because of location and development 

 
This has been addressed above under paragraph 6.1.1.  A duality of B1 and D1 
use is proposed. 

 
6.5.19 Time between withdrawn application and resubmission effectively renders void 

a massive public response to the proposed eight storey development 

Page 191



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 
The authority has no control over the timing of applications being submitted.  
The statutory consultation requirements have been met. 

 
6.5.20 Ten storeys too high, six storeys should be prevailing height of development in 

line with surroundings 
 
This has been discussed under section 6.1 above. 

 
6.5.21 Position of refuse adjacent to adjoining properties along Cresset Road would be 

unacceptable 
 
This has been addressed above in paragraph 6.2.9 and the distance from these 
properties is considered acceptable. 

 
6.6 Planning Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The proposal meets the trigger to provide contributions under the Planning 

 Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (PCSPD). 
 
6.7.2 In accordance with the PCSPD financial contributions towards Education and 

 Highway works are required.  The affordable housing would be secured in 
 perpetuity by the Councils preferred list of RSLs in the instance that they are 
 transferred from the applicant.  It would be required within the legal agreement 
 that, the B1/D1 uses be built to shell and core specification prior to the 
 occupation of the residential component.   

 
6.7.3 In recognition of the GLAs sustainability policies details of the renewable energy 

 provision after the first occupation of the site is required and where this does not 
 meet the provision detailed at application stage alternative means should be 
 sought.   This is to ensure that the development makes the expected provision 
 towards  the London Plans target of cutting carbon emissions.  A clause 
 requiring the proposal to accord with Lifetime Home Standards as approved 
 will be sought.   Additionally, the requirement to build to Code for Sustainable 
 Homes Level 3,  but best endeavours (to be demonstrated) towards Level 4 
 should be sought. 

 
6.7.4 Given the outstanding application overlapping the proposal site, a mechanism 

 to secure the reprovision of the Community Centre, and securing the proposed 
 quantum of affordable housing shall be dealt with through obligations under a 
 S106 agreement. 

 
6.7.5 Other heads of terms that are as standard are found within Recommendation B 

 below. 
 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 In summary, the proposed development is considered to be of an appropriate 

use and of a high quality of design, with no adverse impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers by way of loss of light, privacy, outlook, traffic 

Page 192



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

generation, nor on the of the listed Lennox House is envisaged. 
 
7.2 The proposal complies with pertinent policies in the Hackney UDP (1995) and 

the London Plan (2004) and the granting of permission is therefore 
recommended subject to the completion of a section 106 agreement. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Recommendation A 
 
8.1 That permission be GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 
 
8.1.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 
strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
8.1.2 SCB1 - Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
8.1.3 SMC6 – Materials to be approved  

Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 

8.1.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 
 Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
 matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
 Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
 be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
 a. Windows, glazing bar profiles, and architraves; 

b. Doors, profiles and architraves; 
c. All clear and obscure glazing ; 

 d. Design and appearance of railings,  terraces, sliding  metal shading screen 
 (Community centre); 
 e. design and appearance of roof solar panels; 
 f. Ground floor elevations and signage of the building at 1/50 including entrance 
 gates; 
 g. 1:20 drawing showing the balcony details, including balustrade section; 

Page 193



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 h. boundary between Lennox House and the site including land level 
 details(Cross section and plan); 
 i. Bamboo Screen adjacent to 8 Collent Street 
 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory, 
 the existing natural habitat is not detrimentally impacted and does not detract 
 from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.5 SCM9 - No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the elevations of the building other than as shown on the drawings 
hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.6 SCM11 – Modifications 
 Detailed drawings showing the following modifications to the scheme shall be 
 submitted to and approved by the Council before any work is commenced on 
 site.  This part of the development shall be completed only in accordance with 
 the modifications thus approved: 
 a. Screening to balconies; 
 b. feasibility report of partitions between living rooms and kitchens 
  These parts of the proposal are considered unsatisfactory in the form shown on 
 the drawings submitted to date and these aspects of the scheme should be 
 modified to ensure an acceptable form of development. 
 
8.1.7 NSC0 – D1 Use 
 The D1 use hereby approved shall not be operated as clinic, health centres, 
 crèches, day nurseries, day centres, art gallery, museums, libraries, halls, non 
 education and training centre only and for no other purpose included in the D1 
 class of the Schedule  to the town and Country Planning (Use Classes ) Order  
 1987 (as amended) or  in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 
 instrument revoking or  re-enacting that Order. 

REASON: In granting this permission the Local Planning Authority has had 
special regard to the circumstance of this case and to the policies within the 
Unitary Development Plan and considers that planning permission would have 
been refused for unrestricted use within Class D1 of the Use Classes Order. 

 
8.1.8 SCG2 – Restricted Hours 
 The D1 use (including the Community Centre) hereby permitted may only be 
 carried out between 0800 to 2200 hours Mondays to Saturdays and 0930 to 
 2000 hours Sundays and Bank Holidays.  
 REASON: To ensure that the use operates in a satisfactory manner and does 
 not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local amenity generally. 
 
8.1.9 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 
 Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
 the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
 approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
 commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
 accordance with the details thus approved.   

Page 194



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
 facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
 the area. 
 
8.1.10 SCS1 – Shopfront details to be approved 
 Details of the proposed shopfront on drawings on a scale of 1:50, together with 
 materials used in construction, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
 Planning Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced on this part of the 
 development. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
 accordance with the details thus approved.  
 REASON: To ensure that the design of the shopfront is not detrimental to the 
 appearance of the building 
 
8.1.11 SCD2 – Provision of access and facilities 
 All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as shown on 
 the plans and details hereby approved shall be implemented in full to the 
 satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before the use is first commenced. 
 REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people with 
 disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make full use of the 
 development. 

 
8.1.12 H5 – Provision of parking, turning, unloading facilities 
 No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the 
 accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
 provided  in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
 shall be  retained permanently for use by the occupiers and or users of, and/or 
 persons  calling at, the premises only and shall not be used for any other 
 purposes. 
 REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
 free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
 ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/loading and 
 unloading purposes.  
 
8.1.13 H11 – Adequate visibility to entrance 
 Adequate visibility shall be provided to the highway within the application site 
 above a height of one metre from footpath level for a distance of three metres 
 on the side of the permitted point of vehicular access, in accordance with details 
 to be provided by the Local Planning Authority before any work on the site is 
 commenced, and be so maintained. 
 REASON: To provide a suitable standard of visibility to and from the highway 
 and to ensure that the use of the access does not prejudice the free flow of 
 traffic and conditions of general safety along the neighbouring highway. 
 
8.1.14 SCT1 - Landscaping scheme 
 A landscape scheme illustrated on detailed drawings including details of the 
 phasing of the works across the site and a management plan shall be submitted 
 to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
 commences on site, planting of trees and shrubs showing species, sedum roof, 
 lighting strategy type of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included to be 
 included and showing  areas to be grass seeded or turfed; all landscaping in 

Page 195



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 accordance with the scheme, when approved, shall be carried out within a 
 period of twelve months from the date on which the development of the site 
 commences or shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season 
 following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
 satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years, such 
 maintenance to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
 damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
 REASON: To provide reasonable environmental standards in the interests of 
 the appearance of the site and the wider Morningside Estate. 
 
8.1.15 NSC1 – Habitat Survey 
 A detailed habitat survey, to consider the extent of natural habitat at the site 
 including details of the proposed extent of removal of vegetation and likely 
 impact on any habitats encounter and remediation methods shall be submitted 
 to local Planning Authority and approved in writing prior to the commencement 
 of works on site.  
 REASON: To safeguard established habitats across the site. 
 
8.1.16 NSC2 – Site Clearance 
 No part of the site shall be cleared outside of the bird nesting season (generally 
 accepted as being between March and July).  If this is not possible, all the trees, 
 scrub and building should be searched for the presence of nesting birds.  If any 
 are found the nests should be protected until such time as the young have 
 fledge and left the nest details of which shall be provided in writing and 
 approved by the Local Planning Authority before works commence on site.  
 REASON: To safeguard the established habitats across the site. 
 
8.1.17 NSC3 – D1 use 
 Before the D1 use commences provision of facilities for the disposal of litter and 
 refuse by members of the public within the site shall be provided in accordance 
 with details to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  
 REASON: In order to assist the proper disposal of waste and to protect the 
 appearance of the area generally.  
 
8.1.18 SCI3 – No roof plant 
 No roof plant (including all external enclosures, machinery and other 
 installations) shall be placed upon or attached to the roof or other external 
 surfaces of the building REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of 
 the building is satisfactory and does not detract from the character and visual 
 amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.19 G1 Restricted Hours of use play space 
 The child play space hereby approved shall be restricted in its use between the 
 hours of 0800 to 1800 hours seven days a week. 
 REASON: To ensure that the space operates in a satisfactory manner and does 
 not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers. 
 
Recommendation B 
 
8.3 That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the landowners 

Page 196



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

and their mortgagees enter into a deed of planning obligation by means of a 
Section 106 Agreement of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) in order to secure the following matters to the satisfaction of the 
Assistant Director of Regeneration and Planning and the Secretary and Solicitor 
of the Council: 

 
8.3.1 To secure the provision of 39% of habitable units as affordable housing with a 

tenure mix of 77% social rented units and 23% intermediate units to be given 
over to Sanctuary Housing or an alternative RSL as agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The dwelling mix comprising the social rental element being 
4x 2 bed, 5 x 3 bed and 8 x 4 bed units and the intermediate 2 x 2 bed and 3 x 3 
bed units. 

 
8.3.2 The affordable residential units shall be fitted out before occupation of the Open 

Market units. 
 
8.3.3 The B1/D1 floor space shall be fitted to shell and core prior to the occupation of 

the Open Market units. 
 
8.3.4 The Community Centre shall be fitted to shell and core prior to the occupation of 

the Open Market units and following notice of the written satisfaction of 
Sanctuary Housing. 

 
8.3.5 The developer must have an active programme for recruiting and retaining adult 

improvers and as a minimum take on at least one adult improver per £5 million 
of construction contract value and provide the Council with written information 
documenting that programme within seven days of a written request from the 
Council. 

 
8.3.6 The Developer will, through a environmental management system, provide 

monitoring information in relation to the Development to the Local Planning 
authority on the first anniversary of the occupation of the site with respect to: 
(a)                     energy consumption; 
(b)                     air quality; 
(c)                     waste generation and recycling; 
(d)                     water use; 
(e)                     biodiversity; and 
(f)                      percentage of energy requirements resourced from Renewable 

Energy. 
 
8.3.7 Residential units to be built to Lifetime Home Standards and achieve Code for 

Sustainable Homes Level 3 with best endeavours to be demonstrated in 
detailed towards Level 4. 

 
8.3.8 The developer will provide a Public Open Space plan and Public Open Space 

management plan prior to implementation of the development.  The Public 
Open Space to be completed prior to the occupation of the Open Market Units. 

 
8.3.9 A considerate construction and neighbourhood co-ordination group to be set up, 

to meet bi-monthly, the members of which are to be agreed in advance with the 

Page 197



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

Local Planning Authority and minutes to be circulated by the developer to all 
those involved. 

 
8.3.10 The developer will provide a construction management plan including a 

construction logistics plan with details of vehicle types, movements and timings. 
 
8.3.11 The development shall be ‘car free’.  The developer shall notify the occupants of 

the residential units that they shall not be able to obtain any residential parking 
permit, with the exception of blue badge holders, in the instance that the site 
falls within a Controlled Parking Zone at the time of occupation or subsequently. 

 
8.3.12 On occupation, the owner should provide the residents with a handbook 

detailing local public transport services and walking routes to schools in the 
area, to help achieve sustainable development. 

 
8.3.13 Contribution of £455,699.00 towards Education based on calculation within the 

Supplementary Planning Document  
 

8.3.14 Contribution of £22,770.00 towards Sustainable Transport Initiatives. 
 
8.3.15 Should application reference 2007/2459 or an alternative scheme with an 

overlying red line be approved prior to the implementation of this application, 
then the Local Planning Authority shall be permitted to revoke this consent 
without penalty or compensation brought upon the LPA.  

 
8.3.16 The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act to pay 

the Council £303,578.00 to reinstate and improve the footway adjacent to the 
boundary of the site, and include if required, any access to the Highway, 
measures for street furniture relocation, carriageway markings, access and 
visibility safety requirements.  Unavoidable works required to be undertaken by 
Statutory Services will not be included in London Borough of Hackney estimate 
or payment. 

 
9. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 
(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission:  

 EQ1, E12, EQ13, EQ18, EQ29, EQ30, EQ43, H03, E12,  E18, TR19,OS6, OS9, 
OS12, OS13, OS14 and OS16. 

 
10. INFORMATIVES 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 

Page 198



Planning Sub-Committee – 03.09.2008 
 

  

 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION  

 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP (1995) 
and the London Plan 
(2004 with Alterations 

Feb 2008) 

Gillian Nicks  

Deputy Team Leader 

(020 8356 8350) 

263 Mare Street, London 
E8 3HT 

 

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 HANOVER IN HACKNEY PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
INTRODUCTION 

 
VALID DATES:  
19/06/2008 (Major applications) 
31/07/2008 (Minor applications) 
 

REPORT AUTHORS:  
Adam Flynn & Andrew Dillon 
 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permissions subject to a S106 legal agreement. 

       
LAND USE DETAILS: 
Proposed (across all 12 sites): 136 new units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
1.1  12 planning applications have been submitted by Hanover in Hackney (HIH) for 

the redevelopment of their sites across the borough.  HIH have assessed their 
29 sites, and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for 
additional units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for 
development and others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the 
existing units. 

 
1.2 These sites have been assessed and reported individually for the purpose of 

making decisions.  The reports are attached as follows: 
 

Report: Reference: Address: 
A 2007/2975 Appleton Court, 5 Harcon Place, London E8 
B 2007/2979 Plumpton Lodge, 59 Caldecott Way, London E5 
C 2007/2982 Keswick Lodge, Cumberland Close, London E8 
D 2007/3000 Newnton Close, Woodberry Down Estate, London N4 
E 2007/3012 Bayton Court, Lansdowne Drive, London E8 
F 2007/2972 2-20 Lauriston Road, London E9 
G 2007/2976 Benabo Court, Ferncliffe Road, London E8 
H 2007/2977 303 Green Lanes, London, N4 
I 2007/2980 Cester Street, London E2 
J 2007/2999 Morrel Court, 91 Goldsmiths Road, London E2 
K 2007/3002 Parton Lodge, Laurel Street, London E8 
L 2008/1954 

2007/3003 
Thirlmere House, Howard Road, London N16 
(Listed Building Consent) 

M RECOMMENDATIONS 

Agenda Item 11

Page 201



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

1.3 The sites have been assessed individually for the purpose of making a decision.  
The individual proposals are considered acceptable.  It should be noted that the 
12 schemes are consolidated under one S106 legal agreement for the purposes 
of providing affordable housing and other planning contributions. 

 
1.4 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent) (see table above).  The 12 schemes are 
considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s housing, affordable 
housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks. 

 
1.5 The reports and recommendations follow. 

Page 202



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 REPORT A: 
 

ADDRESS: Appleton Court, 5 Marcon Place, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn 
 

WARD: Hackney Central 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2975 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 198_00_001, 
100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 310, 
311, 198_20_200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 
220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 230, 231, 232, 
233, 234, 235, 236, existing plans x 6 
 
Design & Access Statement, 
Supporting Planning Statement, 
Energy & Sustainability Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 19/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey common room and the erection 
of two x 4 storey extensions comprising 14 sheltered units of accommodation 
(four x 1 bed and ten x 2 bed), new common room and associated landscaping 
including allotment courtyard and twelve private flats (one x 1 bed and eleven x 2 
bed). 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ Hackney Central  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 203



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 31 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 26 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 1 11 0 0 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 4 10 0 0 
Total (proposed)  5 21 0 0 
Total (for site) 57 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  2 0 0 
Proposed  2 0 12 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located on the southern side of Marcon Place, at the 

junction Spurstowe Road.  Poulton Close runs to the south of the site.  The site 
contains a four-storey block of sheltered accommodation with a poor visual 
appearance.  A railway line runs past the site to the east. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominantly residential, with a mixture of terraced 

properties and similar flatted blocks surrounding the site.  To the east of the site 
are commercial/industrial properties, mainly located under the railway line. 

 
1.3 The site is well connected to public transport, with Hackney Downs station a 

short walk away, and Amhurst Road to the east with a number of bus routes.  
Hackney Central station is also nearby, as are the amenities of Hackney 
Central. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal. 
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 No relevant history. 
 
 
 

Page 204



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 15/07/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 05/08/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
 
4.5 167 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  Four letters of objection were 

received.  The grounds of objection were as follows: 
• Additional private flats. 
• Loss of light. 
• Loss of trees. 
• Increase in traffic. 
• Potential loss of wall along Poulton Close for access. 
• Overlooking. 
• Noise. 

  
4.6 Local Groups 

 
4.6.1 Invest in Hackney: 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.2 London Fire & Emergency: 

No comments received. 
 

4.6.3 Metropolitan Police Design Advisor: 
No objections. 

 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust (NHS): 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.5 Private Sector Housing 

Provide comments on standards the proposal should take into account. 
 
4.6.6 The Learning Trust: 

No comments received. 
 

4.7 Statutory Consultees  
 
4.7.1 Environment Agency: 

Proposal has low environmental risk. 
 
4.7.2 Thames Water: 

Provide comments and informatives on drainage and waste. 
 
 

Page 205



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Conservation and Design:  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

 
4.8.2 Highways 

No objections.  Provide details of works required under S278 Highways 
agreement.  
 

4.8.3 Housing: 
 No comments received. 
 
4.8.4 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.5 Policy: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.6 Pollution:   

No comments received. 
 

4.8.7 Traffic & Transport: 
Consider the proposal will not unduly impact on the Borough’s transport 
infrastructure.  Highway works indicated are outside site boundary. 
  

4.8.8 Waste management: 
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
 

Page 206



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 
 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 Housing SPD 2005 

 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing single storey common 
room and the erection of two x 4 storey extensions comprising 14 sheltered units of 
accommodation (four x 1 bed and ten x 2 bed), new common room and associated 
landscaping including allotment courtyard and twelve private flats (one x 1 bed and 
eleven x 2 bed). 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 207



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
 

Page 208



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 1 x 1-bed private unit, 11 x 2-bed private units, 4 x 1-bed 

sheltered accommodation units and 10 x 2-bed sheltered accommodation units.  
Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed 
units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This scheme provides 14 units of affordable 
housing. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal creates two four-storey extensions to the ends of the existing four-

storey building, while demolishing the existing communal lounge and a small 
portion of the existing building.  The proposal creates a new main entrance into 

Page 209



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

the sheltered accommodation block.  To the west the existing building will be 
extended with a new building providing 12 new flats of sheltered 
accommodation, and a new communal lounge.  Extending to the east will be a 
triangular block of private flats.  The existing block will be refurbished. 

 
6.3.2 The four-storey extension to the west follows the height and massing of the 

existing block.  This block creates a new entrance to the sheltered 
accommodation block, which also provides access to the new communal areas.  
This block will be clad in a core-ten steel cladding system, interspersed with 
glazed units.  The cladding, windows, new entrance and balconies will help to 
reanimate this section of the street scene, and better defines the street corners 
and the site. 

 
6.3.3 The four-storey extension to the east also follows the height of the existing 

building, with a slight variation in the massing due to the shape of the building.  
This building will be made up of three blocks linked by the lift and stair core and 
lobbies to the flats.  The façade of this building will be clad in a combination of 
polished and unpolished stone.  The shape, scale and massing of the building 
respects the site’s characteristics and surrounding built form generally. 

 
6.3.4 The internal layout and circulation spaces of the proposal are considered 

satisfactory.  All but one of the new private flats will have outdoor amenity space 
in the form of a patio or balcony, and most of the new build units will be dual 
aspect.  The new sheltered accommodation units will all enjoy access to the 
large areas of communal space which is to be upgraded as part of this 
proposal.  The existing boundary treatment, a solid wall, is to be replaced with a 
metal railing system with planting and foliage behind, which provides more 
visual interest from outside the site whilst maintaining resident’s privacy. 

 
6.3.5 The location of the bin stores is considered satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  However, a condition requiring details of the refuse 
arrangements to be submitted for approval prior to the commencement of 
works, is recommended to be imposed on any grant of planning permission. 

 
6.3.6 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable.  The Conservation and Design Team have recommended several 
conditions regarding materials, surface treatments, boundary and façade 
treatments and landscaping.  These are all recommended as conditions of 
consent to be submitted prior to building works commencing, should the 
application be granted. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 A number of options have been considered for meeting the renewables 

requirements for the scheme.  Solar panels have been proposed for hot water 
requirements which will reduce carbon emissions over the entire site by 11.5%.  
The London Plan requires a 20% reduction in carbon emissions for new 
developments.  However, due to the constraints of the site, and that the 
development involves an existing building, an 11.5% reduction is considered 

Page 210



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

acceptable in this instance. 
 
6.4.2 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4.  The London Borough of Hackney 
endeavours that all new developments target level 4.  Therefore, this matter will 
be addressed via a Section 106 agreement and subject to this the matter of 
sustainability is considered to be acceptable. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  

 6.5.1 The only residential properties to be potentially affected by the proposed 
development are those immediately to the east of the site at Marcon Court and 
to the south along Poulton Close.  The majority of the letters of objection that 
were received are from residents living in these streets. 

  
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The site is separated from all the adjoining properties by roads.  A submitted 
daylight and sunlight assessment indicates that there would be no material 
impact on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed receiving 
adequate sunlight and daylight.  Therefore, the report concludes that the 
proposal meets British Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The separation between the proposed building and those existing buildings to 

the south ranges from 17 metres to 19 metres, and the existing buildings to the 
north are 21 metres away.  The Council’s SPG1 considers a distance of 21 
metres window to window from habitable rooms and 12 metres window to 
window from habitable to non-habitable rooms an adequate distance with 
screening and boundary treatments between suitable mitigation in some 
instances.  In a built up urban environment a distance ranging between 17-19 
metres is considered to be acceptable, as the facing windows are front windows 
(to both existing and proposed dwellings).  On balance, the development is 
considered acceptable with no material effect on privacy due to adequately 
proposed setbacks and screening measures. 

 
Noise 
 
6.5.4 As the proposal is for a residential use, there is not likely to be any significant 

increase in noise over and above that already experienced in a residential area. 
    

Overbearing/Enclosure 
 
6.5.5 The proposals are considered sufficiently distanced from the neighbouring 

properties to not create an increased sense of enclosure or to be overbearing 
on these properties. 

 
 
 

Page 211



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Highways officer has been consulted on the proposal and has 

raised no objections, outlining the highway works required, and the amount of 
contribution requested.  These requirements have been secured under the 
Heads of Terms in the S106 legal agreement. 

 
6.6.2 The Council’s Transport department have been consulted on the proposal and 

raise no objection, stating that the development would not have any undue 
effect on the surrounding roading network, due to the fact the any highway 
works associated with the site are located outside the site boundary. 

 
6.6.3 The site currently has two car parking spaces accessed off Marcon Place, one 

for staff and one for visitors.  These are to be reprovided on the street to the 
front of the site.  Additionally, it is recommended that a travel plan be 
implemented on the occupation of the new units to promote the local public 
transport links of the area and that a ‘no residents permit’ clause be entered into 
by the applicant, both via a S106 agreement. 

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 

Page 212



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.8 Response to objections 
 

6.8.1 Additional private flats: The development will make use of an underutilised 
piece of land within an urban environment in accordance with London Plan 
Policy.  The development fits in with the use, scale, and massing of surrounding 
developments.  Furthermore, the development improves the urban fabric of the 
area by improving the street scene and providing more informal surveillance to 
the public footpath/highway area. 

 
6.8.2 Loss of light: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.2 of this report.  

 
 6.8.3 Loss of trees: The existing trees on the site are not protected, and are 

scheduled to be replaced as part of the landscaping plan for the site. 
 

6.8.4 Increase in traffic: The development is car free, apart from two car parking 
spaces (1 staff and 1 visitor) on Marcon Place.  There will be a requirement of 
the S106 agreement to include a travel plan to promote alternative modes of 
transport.  Furthermore, residents of the new development will not be able to 
apply for parking permits for the CPZ within the street and it is considered there 
will be a negligible affect on on-street parking and traffic on the surrounding 
road environment. 

 
 6.8.5 Potential loss of wall along Poulton Close for access: The existing wall is to be 

replaced by metal railings.  However, only two access points are proposed off 
Poulton Close as part of the replacement fencing, but these are pedestrian 
accesses only, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the neighbouring 
properties. 

 
6.8.6 Overlooking: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.3 of this report. 

 
 6.8.7 Noise: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.4 of this report. 
  

7. CONCLUSION 
 

7.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design, bulk, scale, and 
massing, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the surrounding 
properties.  As such, the proposed development is considered compliant with 
pertinent policies saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan 
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  
Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 

Page 213



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 
2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 214



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT B: 
  

ADDRESS: Plumpton Lodge, 59 Caldecott Way, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn 
 

WARD: Kings Park 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2979 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 205_00_001, 
100, 101, 150, 310, 311, 205_20_200, 
201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 230, 231, 232, 
233, existing drawings x 7 
 
Design & Access Statement (including 
drawings), Supporting Planning 
Statement, Energy & Sustainability 
Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 19/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey communal lounge and 2 storey 
wardens flat and the erection of one x 4 and one x 5 storey extensions to provide 
10 shared ownership flats (5 x 1-bed, 5 x 2-bed), and seven units of sheltered 
accommodation (one x 1-bed and six x 2-bed), communal lounge with 
conservatory, together with associated landscaping. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 215



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 32 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 17 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 0 0 0 0 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 6 11 0 0 
Total (proposed)  6 11 0 0 
Total (for site) 49 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  6 0 0 
Proposed  6 0 10 

 
 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the north-west of a housing estate, to the west 

of Caldecott Way.  Millfields Recreation Ground is directly to the west of the 
site, and a large substation is located to the north.  The site contains a four-
storey block of sheltered accommodation with a poor appearance. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is residential in nature. 

 
1.3 The site is well connected to public transport and is a short walk from a number 

of bus routes, and is close to Clapton station. 
 

2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 No relevant history. 
 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 15/07/2008 

 

Page 216



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 05/08/2008 
 

4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 84 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  Six letters of objection were 

received.  The grounds of objection were as follows: 
• Loss of view. 
• Loss of light. 
• Loss of privacy. 
• Car parking and traffic. 
• Construction nuisance. 
• Noise. 
• Loss of property value. 
• Design. 

  
4.6 Local Groups  

 
4.6.1 Invest in Hackney: 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.2 London Fire & Emergency: 

No comments received. 
 

4.6.3 Metropolitan Police Design Advisor: 
No objections. 

 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust (NHS): 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.5 Private Sector Housing 

No comments. 
 
4.6.6 The Learning Trust: 

No comments received. 
 

4.7 Statutory Consultees  
 
4.7.1 Environment Agency: 

Proposal has low environmental risk. 
 
4.7.2 Thames Water: 

Provide comments and informatives on drainage and waste. 
  
 
 
 
 
  

Page 217



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Conservation and Design:  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

 
4.8.2 Highways 
 No highway works required.  

 
4.8.3 Housing: 
 No comments received. 
 
4.8.4 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.5 Policy: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.6 Pollution:   

No comments received. 
 

4.8.7 Traffic & Transport: 
 The proposal will not unduly impact on the Borough’s transport infrastructure. 

  
4.8.8 Waste management: 
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
  
5. POLICIES 
 

5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 
EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 

5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 

 
 
 
 

Page 218



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 
 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 Housing SPG 2005 

 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 
 

6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing single storey communal 
lounge and 2 storey wardens flat and the erection of one x 4 and one x 5 storey 
extensions to provide 10 shared ownership flats (5 x 1-bed, 5 x 2-bed), and seven units 
of sheltered accommodation (one x 1-bed and six x 2-bed), communal lounge with 
conservatory, together with associated landscaping. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 219



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 

6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
 

Page 220



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 10 x 2-bed flats for shared ownership, and 7 shared 

ownership units (6 x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed).  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 
x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This 
scheme provides 17 units of affordable housing. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal creates a four-storey extension to the southern end of the existing 

four-storey building, and a five storey extension to the north of the existing 
building, demolishing the existing communal lounge to the south and a two-
storey warden’s flat to the north.  The proposal creates a new main entrance 

Page 221



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

into the sheltered accommodation block.  To the south the existing building will 
be extended with a new building providing six new flats of sheltered 
accommodation, and a new communal lounge.  Extending to the north will be a 
block of 10 private (shared ownership) flats.  The existing block will be 
refurbished. 

 
6.3.2 The four-storey extension to the south follows the height and massing of the 

existing block.  The five-storey extension to the north also follows this massing, 
but has an additional floor that provides a break to the building line, rising up to 
the north.  The southern block creates a new entrance to the sheltered 
accommodation block, which also provides access to the new communal areas.  
The extensions will be clad in a coloured ‘Fibre-C’ cladding system with yellow 
stock brick, interspersed with glazed units.  The cladding, windows, new 
entrance and balconies will help to reanimate this section of the street scene, 
breaks up the repetitive façade of the building, and better defines the building 
providing a clear finish to the building at both ends. 

 
6.3.3 The internal layout and circulation spaces of the proposal are considered 

satisfactory.  All but one of the new flats will have outdoor amenity space in the 
form of a patio or balcony, and most of the units will be dual aspect.  The new 
sheltered accommodation units will all enjoy access to the large areas of 
communal space which is to be upgraded as part of this proposal. 

 
6.3.4 The location of the bin stores is considered satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  However, a condition requiring details of the refuse 
arrangements to be submitted for approval prior to the commencement of 
works, is recommended to be imposed on any grant of planning permission. 

 
6.3.5 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable.  The Conservation and Design Team have recommended several 
conditions regarding materials, surface treatments, boundary and façade 
treatments and landscaping.  These are all recommended as conditions of 
consent to be submitted prior to building works commencing, should the 
application be granted. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 A number of options have been considered for meeting the renewables 

requirements for the scheme.  Solar panels have been proposed for hot water 
requirements which will reduce carbon emissions over the entire site by 12%.  
The London Plan requires a 20% reduction in carbon emissions for new 
developments.  However, due to the constraints of the site, and that the 
development involves an existing building, a 12% reduction is considered 
acceptable in this instance. 

 
6.4.2 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4.  The London Borough of Hackney 
endeavours that all new developments target level 4.  Therefore, this matter will 
be addressed via a Section 106 agreement and subject to this the matter of 

Page 222



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

sustainability is considered to be acceptable. 
 

6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The only residential properties to be potentially affected by the proposed 

development are those immediately to the east of the site on Caldecott Way.  
The majority of the letters of objection that were received are from residents 
living in these streets. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The site is well separated from all the adjoining properties.  A submitted daylight 
and sunlight assessment indicates that there would be no more than a minor 
effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed receiving 
adequate sunlight and daylight.  The only apparent loss of light would occur to 
the rear of the closet property (63 Caldecott Way) in the evening.  Therefore, 
the report concludes that the proposal meets British Research Establishment 
(BRE) guidelines. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The closest the proposed extensions come to existing buildings is 8.5 metres, 

and at this point the new windows will look onto the flank wall of the 
neighbouring building.  Other existing buildings are at least 18 metres away.  
On balance, the development is considered acceptable with no material effect 
on privacy due to adequately proposed setbacks and screening measures. 

 
Noise 
 
6.5.4 As the proposal is a residential use, there is not likely to be any significant 

increase in noise over and above that already experienced in a residential area. 
 
Overbearing/Enclosure 
 
6.5.5 The proposals are considered sufficiently distanced from the neighbouring 

properties to not create an increased sense of enclosure or to be overbearing 
on these properties. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Highways officer has been consulted on the proposal and has 

raised no objections, outlining the highway works required, and the amount of 
contribution requested.  These requirements have been secured under the 
Heads of Terms in the S106 legal agreement. 

 
6.6.2 The Council’s Transport department have been consulted on the proposal and 

raise no objection, stating that the development would not have any undue 
effect on the surrounding roading network. 

 
 

Page 223



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6.3 The site currently has six car parking spaces accessed off Caldecott Way.  
These are to be retained in their current location.  Additionally, it is 
recommended that a travel plan be implemented on the occupation of the new 
units to promote the local public transport links of the area via a S106 
agreement.  Car parking is not currently controlled by a CPZ, and this will 
continue.  However, due to the nature of the majority of the accommodation 
provided, and the sites location near to public transport, development should 
not cause a material impact on car parking in the area. 

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
6.8 Response to objections 

 
6.8.1 Loss of view: This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
6.8.2 Loss of light: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.2 of this report. 
 
6.8.3 Loss of privacy: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.3 of this 

report. 
 
 

Page 224



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.8.4 Car parking and traffic: The development is car free, apart from six existing car 
parking spaces on Caldecott Way.  There will be a requirement of the S106 
agreement to include a travel plan, and car parking in the area in currently no 
controlled.  As such it is considered there will be a negligible affect on on-street 
parking and traffic on the surrounding road environment. 

 
6.8.5 Construction nuisance: The S106 agreement requires the applicant to comply 

with the Considerate Contractors Scheme, which will minimise any disruption 
due to construction. 

 
6.8.6 Noise: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.4 of this report. 
 
6.8.7 Loss of property value: This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
6.8.8 Design: This issue has been addressed in section 6.3 of this report. 
 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design, bulk, scale, and 

massing, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the surrounding 
properties.  As such, the proposed development is considered compliant with 
pertinent policies saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan 
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  
Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 

Page 225



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 226



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT C: 
  

ADDRESS: Keswick Lodge, Cumberland Close, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn 
 

WARD: Dalston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2982 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 201_00_001, 
100, 102, 103, 121, 150, 300, 310, 311, 
201_200_200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 
206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 220, 221, 230, 
231, 232, 233, 234, 235, 236, 237, 
existing drawings x 10 
 
Design & Access Statement (including 
drawings), Supporting Planning 
Statement, Energy & Sustainability 
Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 16/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey communal lounge and two 
storey wardens flat and the erection of two x 4 storey buildings to facilitate four x 
1 bed sheltered flats, one x 1 bed, six x 2 bed and one x 3 bed private flats and 
the erection of a single storey communal lounge building with associated 
landscaping. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ Dalston  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 227



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 32 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 12 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 1 6 1 0 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 4 0 0 0 
Total (proposed)  5 6 1 0 
Total (site) 44 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  7 0 0 
Proposed  4 2 9 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the east of Cumberland Close, with frontage to 

Forest Road to the south.  A footpath accessing Skelton Close and Hayton 
Close runs around the north and west of the site.  The site contains a four-
storey block of sheltered accommodation with a poor appearance. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is residential in nature. 

 
1.3 The site is well connected to public transport and is a short walk from a number 

of bus routes, and is close to Dalston Kingsland station. 
 
 

2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal. 
  
 

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 No relevant history. 
 
 
 
 

Page 228



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 15/07/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 05/08/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 126 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  10 letters of objection were 

received.  The grounds of objection were as follows: 
• Loss of garden and sitting room. 
• Noise. 
• Construction nuisance. 
• Parking. 
• Security. 

  
4.6 Local Groups  

 
4.6.1 Invest in Hackney: 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.2 London Fire & Emergency: 

Not satisfied with proposal, cannot access development plans. 
 

4.6.3 Metropolitan Police Design Advisor: 
No objections. 

 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust (NHS): 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.5 Private Sector Housing 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.6 The Learning Trust: 

No comments received. 
 

4.7 Statutory Consultees  
 
4.7.1 Environment Agency: 

Proposal has low environmental risk. 
 
4.7.2 Thames Water: 

Provide comments and informatives on drainage and waste. 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 229



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Conservation and Design:  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

 
4.8.2 Highways 
 No comments received.  

 
4.8.3 Housing: 
 No comments received. 
 
4.8.4 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.5 Policy: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.6 Pollution:   

Recommend conditions to control construction nuisance. 
 

4.8.7 Traffic & Transport: 
The proposal will not unduly impact on the Borough’s transport infrastructure, 
but recommend conditions to ensure pedestrian amenity and access issues are 
resolved. 
  

4.8.8 Waste management: 
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 

SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
 

Page 230



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 
 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 Housing SPG 2005 

 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 
 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing single storey communal 
lounge and two storey wardens flat and the erection of two x 4 storey buildings to 
facilitate four x 1 bed sheltered flats, one x 1 bed, six x 2 bed and one x 3 bed private 
flats and the erection of a single storey communal lounge building with associated 
landscaping.. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 231



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
 

Page 232



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 4 x 1-bed units of sheltered accommodation, and 1 x 1-

bed, 6 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed private units.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 
x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This 
scheme provides four units of affordable housing. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal creates a four-storey extension to the northern end of the existing 

four-storey building, and a separate four-storey building to the south of the 
existing building, demolishing the existing communal lounge to the south and a 
two-storey warden’s flat to the north.  The proposal creates a new main 

Page 233



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

entrance into the sheltered accommodation block.  To the north the existing 
building will be extended with a new extension providing four new flats of 
sheltered accommodation, a single-storey extension to the west will provide the 
new entrance and a new communal lounge.  To the south will be a separate 
block of eight private flats.  The existing block will be refurbished. 

 
6.3.2 The four-storey extension to the north follows the height and massing of the 

existing block.  This block will be clad in a stock brick and render, interspersed 
with glazed units.  The cladding, windows, new entrance and balconies will help 
to improve the visual appearance of the building. 

 
6.3.3 The four-storey building to the south also follows the height of the existing 

building, with a slight variation to correspond to the adjacent neighbouring 
building.  This building will be made up of essentially two blocks in an ‘L’ shape 
linked by the lift and stair core and lobbies to the flats.  The façade of this 
building will be clad in a high density timber panels incorporating perforated 
timber panels and timber-framed glazing.  The shape, scale and massing of the 
building respects the site’s characteristics and surrounding built form generally. 

 
6.3.4 The internal layout and circulation spaces of the proposal are considered 

satisfactory.  All but one of the new private flats will have outdoor amenity space 
in the form of a garden (for the ground floor units) or balcony, and most of the 
new build units will be dual aspect.  The new sheltered accommodation units 
will all enjoy access to the large areas of communal space which is to be 
upgraded as part of this proposal. 

 
6.3.5 The location of the bin stores is considered satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  However, a condition requiring details of the refuse 
arrangements to be submitted for approval prior to the commencement of 
works, is recommended to be imposed on any grant of planning permission. 

 
6.3.6 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable.  The Conservation and Design Team have recommended several 
conditions regarding materials, surface treatments, boundary and façade 
treatments and landscaping.  These are all recommended as conditions of 
consent to be submitted prior to building works commencing, should the 
application be granted. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 A number of options have been considered for meeting the renewables 

requirements for the scheme.  Solar panels have been proposed for hot water 
requirements which will reduce carbon emissions over the entire site by 15.7%.  
The London Plan requires a 20% reduction in carbon emissions for new 
developments.  However, due to the constraints of the site, and that the 
development involves an existing building, a 15.7% reduction is considered 
acceptable in this instance. 

 
 

Page 234



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.4.2 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 
best endeavours to reach level 4.  The London Borough of Hackney 
endeavours that all new developments target level 4.  Therefore, this matter will 
be addressed via a Section 106 agreement and subject to this the matter of 
sustainability is considered to be acceptable. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The only residential properties to be potentially affected by the proposed 

development are those immediately to the north of the site in Skelton Close, to 
the east in Hayton Close, and 39 Forest Road to the southwest.  However, no 
letters of objection were received from these properties. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The site is separated from all the adjoining properties by roads and/or footpaths.  
A submitted daylight and sunlight assessment indicates that there would be no 
material impact on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight.  Therefore, the report concludes that 
the proposal meets British Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 No windows in the proposed development will face windows in existing 

buildings.  All windows will face flank walls.  As such, the development is 
considered acceptable with no material effect on privacy due to the proposed 
layout of the new development. 

 
Noise 
 
6.5.4 As the proposal is for a residential use, there is not likely to be any significant 

increase in noise over and above that already experienced in a residential area. 
    
Overbearing/Enclosure 
 
6.5.5 The proposals are considered sufficiently distanced from the neighbouring 

properties to not create an increased sense of enclosure or to be overbearing 
on these properties. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Highways officer has been consulted on the proposal and has 

raised no objections, outlining the highway works required, and the amount of 
contribution requested.  These requirements have been secured under the 
Heads of Terms in the S106 legal agreement. 

 
6.6.2 The Council’s Transport department have been consulted on the proposal and 

raise no objection, stating that the development would not have any undue 
effect on the surrounding roading network, subject to the imposition of 
conditions to ensure pedestrian safety and amenity, and safe access. 

Page 235



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
6.6.3 The site currently has seven car parking spaces accessed off Cumberland 

Close.  Six of these are to be reprovided on the site, one for staff, one for 
visitors, and four for residents (with two of these DDA compliant).  Additionally, 
it is recommended that a travel plan be implemented on the occupation of the 
new units to promote the local public transport links of the area and that a ‘no 
residents permit’ clause be entered into by the applicant, both via a S106 
agreement. 

 
 

6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
6.8 Response to objections 

 
6.8.1 Loss of garden and sitting room: The scheme reprovides garden space on the 

site with an overall loss of 9% of the existing amenity space.  The layout of the 
proposed amenity space is considered an improvement to the current layout.  A 
communal lounge will also be reprovided. 

 
 
 

Page 236



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
 6.8.2 Noise: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.4 of this report. 
 
 6.8.3 Construction nuisance: The S106 agreement requires the applicant to comply 

with the Considerate Contractors Scheme, which will minimise any disruption 
due to construction. 

 
 6.8.4 Parking: This issue has been addressed in section 6.6 of this report. 
 
 6.8.5 Security: The client seeks to ensure all their developments comply with Secured 

by Design.  They have discussed the scheme with Crime Prevention Design 
Advisors with a view to achieving Secured by Design Certification.  This is 
recommended to be secured by planning condition on any grant of planning 
permission. 

 
 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design, bulk, scale, and 

massing, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the surrounding 
properties.  As such, the proposed development is considered compliant with 
pertinent policies saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan 
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  
Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
 

8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 

Page 237



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 238



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT D: 
  

ADDRESS: Newnton Close, Woodberry Down Estate, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn 
 

WARD: Brownswood 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/3000 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 123_00_001, 
100, 102, 103, 120, 121, 122, 123, 300, 
301, 302, 401, 402, 123_20_200, 201, 
202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 210, 230, 231, 
232, 233, 234, 235, 236, 240, 241, 242, 
243, 244, 252, existing drawings x 10 
 
Design & Access Statement (including 
drawings), Supporting Planning 
Statement, Energy & Sustainability 
Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 19/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey extension, two x 3 storey extensions 
and one x 5 storey extension to create 4 x 1 bedroom units of sheltered 
accommodation and 15 private dwellings (four  x 1 bed, seven x 2 bed, four x 3 
bed) and associated internal and external works. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
 

LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 239



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 29 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 19 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 4 7 4 0 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 4 0 0 0 
Total (proposed)  8 7 4 0 
Total (for site) 48 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  19 0 0 
Proposed  17 2 19 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the north of Newnton Close, with frontage to 

Seven Sisters Road to the north.  A footpath accessing between these roads 
runs along the west of the site.  The site contains a three-four storey block of 
sheltered accommodation. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is residential in nature, and forms part of the wider 

Woodberry Estate regeneration. 
 

1.3 The site is well connected to public transport and is a short walk from a number 
of bus routes, and is close to Manor House station along Seven Sisters Road. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 No relevant history. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 240



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 15/07/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 05/08/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 236 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  One letter of support was received, 

and one letter of objection was received.  The grounds of objection were as 
follows: 
• Loss of privacy. 
• Loss of light. 

  
4.6 Local Groups  

 
4.6.1 Invest in Hackney: 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.2 London Fire & Emergency: 

The Brigade is satisfied with the proposals. 
 

4.6.3 Metropolitan Police Design Advisor: 
No objections. 

 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust (NHS): 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.5 Private Sector Housing 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.6 The Learning Trust: 

No comments received. 
 

4.7 Statutory Consultees  
 
4.7.1 Environment Agency: 

No comments received. 
 
4.7.2 Thames Water: 

Provide comments and informatives on drainage and waste. 
 
4.7.3 Transport for London: 

No comments received. 
   
 
 
 

Page 241



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Conservation and Design:  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

 
4.8.2 Highways 

No London Borough of Hackney roads involved.  Transport for London should 
be consulted as site borders Seven Sisters Road.  
 

4.8.3 Housing: 
 No comments received. 
 
4.8.4 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.5 Policy: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.6 Pollution:   

Recommend conditions to control noise and construction nuisance. 
 

4.8.7 Traffic & Transport: 
Car parking provided at one space per dwelling which is the upper limit of the 
UDP parking standards.  No detail provided of parking layout, management, or 
justification of parking numbers.  Site not located in a CPZ so development may 
result in overprovision of parking.  Scheme not considered acceptable. 
  

4.8.8 Waste management: 
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
  
5. POLICIES 
 

5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 
EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
 
 
 

Page 242



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 

 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 Housing SPG 2005 

 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey extension, two x 3 
storey extensions and one x 5 storey extension to create 4 x 1-bed units of sheltered 
accommodation and 15 private dwellings (four x 1-bed, seven x 2-bed, four x-3 bed) 
and associated internal and external works. 

 
 

Page 243



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 

6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
 

Page 244



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 4 x 1-bed units for sheltered accommodation, and 4 x 1-

bed, 7 x 2-bed, and 4 x 3-bed private units.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 
x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This 
scheme provides four units of affordable housing. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal creates a single-storey extension in an internal courtyard, two 

three-storey extensions to the north and east of the existing three-storey 
building, and a five storey extension to the south of the existing building.  The 
proposal creates a new main entrance into the sheltered accommodation block.  

Page 245



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

To the north the existing building will be extended with an extension providing 
three private flats, the extension to the east provides three new flats of 
sheltered accommodation, a single-storey extension within the buildings 
courtyard provides an additional flat of sheltered accommodation, and the five 
storey extension to the south will provide 12 private flats.  Extending to the east 
will be a triangular block of private flats.  The existing block will be refurbished. 

 
6.3.2 The single-storey extension is located in a courtyard of the existing building, 

and is of a small scale.  It will not be highly visible from outside the site, and will 
be clad with brick and copper. 

 
6.3.3 The three-storey extension to the north follows the height and massing of the 

existing block.  This block will be clad in acrylic render, red cedar cladding and 
brick, interspersed with glazed units.  The cladding, windows and new entrance 
will help to reanimate this section of the street scene, which is at present a 
featureless wall. 

 
6.3.4 The three-storey extension to the east also follows the height of the existing 

building.  The façade of this building will be clad in a combination of brick and 
copper cladding.  The shape, scale and massing of the building respects the 
site’s characteristics and surrounding built form generally. 

 
6.3.5 The five-storey extension to the south, while being higher than the majority of 

the existing building, respects the height and massing of the existing building.  
This block will be clad with a mixture of red cedar cladding, timber shutters and 
balustrades, acrylic render, and brickwork.  A timber pergola will sit on the top 
floor over the roof terrace for the top floor flats.  This block creates a new street 
frontage to Newnton Court, integrating the new access for the sheltered 
accommodation and the car park ramp.  It removes the ad-hoc frontage that 
currently exists, and helps define the site and street scene in general. 

 
6.3.6 The internal layout and circulation spaces of the proposal are considered 

satisfactory.  All one of the new private flats will have outdoor amenity space in 
the form of a patio or balcony, and most of the new build units will be dual 
aspect.  The new sheltered accommodation units will all enjoy access to the 
large areas of communal space which is to be upgraded as part of this 
proposal. 

 
6.3.7 The location of the bin stores is considered satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  However, a condition requiring details of the refuse 
arrangements to be submitted for approval prior to the commencement of 
works, is recommended to be imposed on any grant of planning permission. 

 
6.3.8 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable.  The Conservation and Design Team have recommended several 
conditions regarding materials, surface treatments, boundary and façade 
treatments and landscaping.  These are all recommended as conditions of 
consent to be submitted prior to building works commencing, should the 
application be granted. 

Page 246



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 A number of options have been considered for meeting the renewables 

requirements for the scheme.  Solar panels have been proposed for hot water 
requirements which will reduce carbon emissions over the entire site by 11%.  
The London Plan requires a 20% reduction in carbon emissions for new 
developments.  However, due to the constraints of the site, and that the 
development involves an existing building, an 11% reduction is considered 
acceptable in this instance. 

 
6.4.2 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4.  The London Borough of Hackney 
endeavours that all new developments target level 4.  Therefore, this matter will 
be addressed via a Section 106 agreement and subject to this the matter of 
sustainability is considered to be acceptable. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The only residential properties to be potentially affected by the proposed 

development are those immediately to the east of the site on New River Way.   
 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The site is well separated from all the adjoining properties.  A submitted daylight 
and sunlight assessment indicates that there would be no more than a minor 
effect on all the surrounding properties with only one window assessed, a 
ground floor window in Brockhurst House, failing to receive adequate sunlight 
and daylight.  Therefore, the report concludes that the proposal meets British 
Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 No windows in the proposed development will face windows in existing 

buildings.  One window is offset that faces the rear of another property, but this 
is located 16 metres away.  As such, the development is considered acceptable 
with no material effect on privacy due to the proposed layout of the new 
development. 

 
Noise 
 
6.5.4 As the proposal is for a residential use, there is not likely to be any significant 

increase in noise over and above that already experienced in a residential area. 
    
Overbearing/Enclosure 
 
6.5.5 The proposals are considered sufficiently distanced from the neighbouring 

properties to not create an increased sense of enclosure or to be overbearing 
on these properties. 

    

Page 247



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Highways officer has been consulted on the proposal and has 

raised no objections, and states no highway work should be required as the 
roads are estate roads.  Any possible requirements have been secured under 
the Heads of Terms in the S106 legal agreement. 

 
 6.6.2 The Council’s Transport department have been consulted on the proposal and 

state that car parking is provided at one space per dwelling which is the upper 
limit of the UDP parking standards.  No detail has provided of parking layout, 
management, or for the justification of parking numbers.  They are concerned 
that as the site is not located in a CPZ, the development may result in the 
overprovision of parking. 

 
6.6.3 The site currently has 19 underground car parking spaces accessed off 

Newnton Close.  These are to be retained in their current location and one each 
allocated to the 15 new private flats, with the remaining four used for the 
sheltered accommodation.  Additionally, it is recommended that a travel plan be 
implemented on the occupation of the new units to promote the local public 
transport links of the area via a S106 agreement.  Car parking is not currently 
controlled by a CPZ, and this will continue.  However, due to the nature of the 
majority of the accommodation provided, and the sites location near to public 
transport, development should not cause a material impact on car parking in the 
area. 

 
 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
 

Page 248



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 
Considerate Constructors Scheme. 

• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
 
6.8 Response to objections 

 
6.8.1 Loss of Privacy: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.3 of this 

report. 
 

6.8.2 Loss of Light: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.2 of this report. 
 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design, bulk, scale, and 

massing, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the surrounding 
properties.  As such, the proposed development is considered compliant with 
pertinent policies saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan 
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  
Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 

Page 249



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 250



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT E: 
  

ADDRESS: Bayton Court, Lansdowne Drive, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adam Flynn 
 

WARD: Queensbridge 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/3012 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 187_00_001, 
100, 101, 103, 104, 105, 106, 120, 123, 
126, 300, 301, 187_20_200, 201, 202, 
203, 204, 205, 215, 216, 217, 218, 220, 
221, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 241, 242, 
243, 300, 302, existing drawings x 5 
 
Design & Access Statement (including 
drawings), Supporting Planning 
Statement, Energy & Sustainability 
Statement 
 

VALID DATE: 19/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing sheltered accommodation block and the 
erection of a part 3 / part 5 storey building to facilitate four x 2-bed flats and 16 x 
4-bed town houses with associated landscaping. 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ Queensbridge  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C3 Private Residential Units 

 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 251



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 27 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 20 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 0 0 0 12 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 0 4 0 4 
Total (proposed)  0 4 0 16 
Total (for site) 20 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  3 (approx.) 0 0 
Proposed  8 3 13 (plus in house 

storage) 
 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located on the eastern side of Lansdowne Drive.  The site 

sits on the northern boundary of the western side of London Fields.   
 

1.2 The surrounding area is residential in nature, with an estate and tower block to 
the north, and London Fields to the south. 

 
1.3 The site is well connected to public transport, and is a short walk from London 

Fields station and a number of bus routes.  The amenities of Hackney Central 
are also nearby. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 No relevant history. 
 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 15/07/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 05/08/2008 

Page 252



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 310 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  10 letters of objection were 

received.  The grounds of objection were as follows: 
• Loss of light. 
• Loss of view. 
• Parking / traffic. 
• Appearance of building. 
• Construction nuisance / noise. 
• Overcrowding / density. 
• Affect on property values. 
• Location of car parking. 
• Loss of privacy. 
• Noise. 
• Loss of open space. 
• Displacement of residents. 
• Loss of amenity to Blackstock Estate. 

  
4.6 Local Groups  

 
4.6.1 Invest in Hackney: 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.2 London Fire & Emergency: 

No comments received. 
 

4.6.3 Metropolitan Police Design Advisor: 
No objections. 

 
4.6.4 Primary Care Trust (NHS): 

No comments received. 
 
4.6.5 Private Sector Housing 

No comments. 
 
4.6.6 The Learning Trust: 

No comments received. 
 

4.7 Statutory Consultees  
 
4.7.1 Environment Agency: 

No comments received. 
 
4.7.2 Thames Water: 

Provide comments and informatives on drainage and waste. 
 

Page 253



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Conservation and Design:  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

 
4.8.2 Highways 

No objections.  Provide details of works required under S278 Highways 
agreement.  
 

4.8.3 Housing: 
 No comments received. 
 
4.8.4 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.5 Policy: 
 No comments received. 

 
4.8.6 Pollution:   

No comments received. 
 

4.8.7 Traffic & Transport: 
The proposal will not unduly impact on the Borough’s transport infrastructure, 
but recommend conditions to ensure the needs of disabled residents are 
maintained and the management of the on-site parking is agreed. 
  

4.8.8 Waste management: 
 No comments received. 
  
5. POLICIES 
 

5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 
EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 

5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 

 

Page 254



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 
 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 Housing SPG 2005 

 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 
 

6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing sheltered 
accommodation block and the erection of a part 3 / part 5 storey building to facilitate 
four x 2-bed flats and 16 x 4-bed town houses with associated landscaping. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 

Page 255



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 
 

6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 
 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 

6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 12 x 4-bed private houses and 4 x 2-bed flats and 4 x 4-

bed houses for shared ownership.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-bed 
units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This scheme 
provides eight units of affordable housing. 

 

Page 256



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 
provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2.6 Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal creates a row of 16 three-storey 4-bed town houses across the 

site in an ‘M’ formation, running west to east.  To the western end of the site, 
fronting onto Lansdowne Drive, is a five-storey building containing 4 x 2-bed 
flats. 

 
6.3.2 The proposal follows the height and massing of the existing buildings in the 

area.  The dwellings will be clad in a mixture of horizontal and vertical red cedar 
rainscreen cladding (with kalwall panelling to the rear), interspersed with timber-
framed glazed units with a pre-patinated copper roof.  The five-storey building to 
the front of the site will be clad with pre-patinated copper, interspersed with 
glazed areas of varying shape and size and some cedar cladding at ground 

Page 257



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

floor.  The cladding, windows, and new entrances will help to reanimate this 
section of the street scene, continues the existing building line of the street, and 
better defines urban edge to London Fields. 

 
6.3.3 The internal layout and circulation spaces of the proposal are considered 

satisfactory.  All one of the new 2-bed flats will have outdoor amenity space in 
the form of a balcony, and all of the units will be dual aspect.  The new 4-bed 
dwellings will all have private garden space and balconies overlooking London 
Fields. 

 
6.3.4 The location of the bin stores is considered satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  However, a condition requiring details of the refuse 
arrangements to be submitted for approval prior to the commencement of 
works, is recommended to be imposed on any grant of planning permission. 

 
6.3.5 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable.  The Conservation and Design Team have recommended several 
conditions regarding materials, surface treatments, boundary and façade 
treatments and landscaping.  These are all recommended as conditions of 
consent to be submitted prior to building works commencing, should the 
application be granted. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 A number of options have been considered for meeting the renewables 

requirements for the scheme.  Solar panels have been proposed for hot water 
requirements which will reduce carbon emissions over the entire site by 10.4%.  
The London Plan requires a 20% reduction in carbon emissions for new 
developments.  As the scheme is a complete new-build, a 10.4% reduction is 
not considered acceptable in this instance, and it is recommended that a clause 
requiring this be included in the S106 legal agreement should consent be 
granted. 

 
6.4.2 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4.  The London Borough of Hackney 
endeavours that all new developments target level 4.  Therefore, this matter will 
be addressed via a Section 106 agreement and subject to this the matter of 
sustainability is considered to be acceptable. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The only residential properties to be potentially affected by the proposed 

development are those immediately to the north of the site in Adlington Court, 
and to the east on Hopwood and Rochford Walks.  The majority of letters of 
objection were received from these properties. 

 
 
 
 

Page 258



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The site is well separated from all the adjoining properties.  A submitted daylight 
and sunlight assessment indicates that there would be no more than a minor 
effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed receiving 
adequate sunlight and daylight.  Therefore, the report concludes that the 
proposal meets British Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 No windows in the proposed development will face windows in existing 

buildings.  All balconies are positioned in a way which avoids overlooking.  As 
such, the development is considered acceptable with no material effect on 
privacy due to the proposed layout of the new development. 

 
Noise 
 
6.5.4 As the proposal is for a residential use, there is not likely to be any significant 

increase in noise over and above that already experienced in a residential area.  
The location of the car park has the potential to generate noise disturbance to 
the neighbouring properties.  However, the ground floor flats of these properties 
are raised above ground level, and boundary treatments will help to mitigate this 
impact. 

    
Overbearing/Enclosure 
 
6.5.5 The proposal is well separated from most surrounding properties.  However, at 

the most eastern point of the site the final dwelling is located 10 metres from the 
rear of four flats in Rochford Walk.  These are two maisonettes, so the upper 
two flats are not considered to be affected.  The bottom two flats will have a 10 
metre separation, which is considered adequate as it will not impact on privacy 
or sunlight.  While it is acknowledged that the proposal does result in an 
increased sense of enclosure to these two properties, it is not considered 
sufficient to justify refusal on these grounds. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The Council’s Highways officer has been consulted on the proposal and has 

raised no objections, outlining the highway works required, and the amount of 
contribution requested.  These requirements have been secured under the 
Heads of Terms in the S106 legal agreement. 

 
6.6.2 The Council’s Transport department have been consulted on the proposal and 

raise no objection, stating that the development would not have any undue 
effect on the surrounding roading network, subject to conditions to ensure the 
needs of disabled residents are maintained and the management of the on-site 
parking is agreed. 

 
 
 

Page 259



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6.3 The site currently has approximately three car parking spaces accessed off 
Lansdowne Drive.  11 car parking spaces (including 3 accessible spaces) are to 
be provided to the northwest of the site.  No details of the management of the 
car park have been submitted, so it is recommended that a condition requiring 
this information be submitted be imposed on any grant of planning permission.  
Additionally, it is recommended that a travel plan be implemented on the 
occupation of the new units to promote the local public transport links of the 
area and that a ‘no residents permit’ clause be entered into by the applicant, 
both via a S106 agreement. 

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
6.8 Response to objections 

 
6.8.1 Loss of light: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.2 of this report. 
 
6.8.2 Loss of view: This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
6.8.3 Parking / traffic: This issue has been addressed in section 6.6 of this report. 
 
 

Page 260



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.8.4 Appearance of building: This issue has been addressed in section 6.3 of this 
report. 

 
6.8.5 Construction nuisance / noise: The S106 agreement requires the applicant to 

comply with the Considerate Contractors Scheme, which will minimise any 
disruption due to construction. 

 
6.8.6 Overcrowding / density: The development will make use of an underutilised 

piece of land within an urban environment in accordance with London Plan 
Policy.  The development fits in with the use, scale, and massing of surrounding 
developments.  Furthermore, the development improves the urban fabric of the 
area by improving the street scene and providing more informal surveillance to 
the public footpath/highway area. 

 
6.8.7 Affect on property values: This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
6.8.8 Location of car parking: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.4 of 

this report. 
 
6.8.9 Loss of privacy: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.3 of this 

report. 
 
6.8.10 Noise: This issue has been addressed in paragraph 6.5.4 of this report. 
 
6.8.11 Loss of open space: The proposed building footprint is considered to be similar 

to the existing building.  As such, the openness of the site and area generally is 
not considered to be adversely affected. 

 
6.8.12 Displacement of residents: Residents will be housed in alternative, modernised 

scheme by Hanover in Hackney. 
 
6.8.13 Loss of amenity to Blackstock Estate: This issue has been addressed in section 

6.5 of this report. 
 

7. CONCLUSION 
 

7.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design, bulk, scale, and 
massing, and will not materially impact on the amenity of the surrounding 
properties.  As such, the proposed development is considered compliant with 
pertinent policies saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan 
(Consolidated with Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  
Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 

Page 261



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 
 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 262



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT F: 
 

ADDRESS: 2- 20 Lauriston, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Victoria 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2972 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
202_00_001,002,100,102,103,104, 
120,121,202_00_300,301,302,303, 
310,311, 20_200,201,202,203,220,221, 
222,230,231,232,233,234,235, 
LR_030_01,02,03,04 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/09/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of detached three-storey building fronting Holcroft Road to 
provide 3 x 4 bed houses and landscaping to existing sheltered housing including 
new garden pavilion.  

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 30 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 3 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses    3 

Agenda Item 17

Page 263



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses     
Total (proposed)     3 
Total (for site) 33  units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  5   
Proposed  5  6 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the rear 2-20 Lauriston Road which is a three 

storey terrace containing 30 sheltered housing units. The proposed location of 
the 3 houses fronts Holcroft Road to the West of the Site. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with residential 

properties located to the south east of the site (20-26 Holcroft Road) and north 
west (30- 34 Holcroft Road). Orchard Primary School is located on the opposite 
side of Holcroft Road to the south. 

 
1.3 The site is reasonably serve by public transport with 2 bus routes (the 26 and 

277 routes) and London Fields and Homerton stations being within reasonable 
walking distance from the site. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 2007/0299 Erection of 3 dwelling houses and landscaping to sheltered housing. 
Withdrawn 29/06/2007. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 

Page 264



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.4 Press Advert: No 
 

42 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers. No letters of objection have been 
received.   

  
4.5 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

 
4.6 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.7 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 

 
 
 

Page 265



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8.6 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.7 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
 

5. POLICIES 
 

5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 
EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 

5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 

 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 

Page 266



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 

5.5 National Planning Policies 
 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of detached three-storey building fronting 
Holcroft Road to provide 3 x 4 bed houses and landscaping to existing sheltered 
housing including new garden pavilion. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 

6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 

Page 267



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 3 x 4-Bed Houses.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 

1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  All of the 
proposed four bed houses are for private sale. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 

Page 268



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 
50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the erection of a three storey terrace to provide 3 x 4 bed 

units. The proposed design of the building is of a modern contemporary 
appearance, involving differing modulation, balcony insets and set backs. The 
proposed materials include horizontal and vertical timber cladding, acrylic 
render and glass block work. Overall it is considered that the proposal 
represents a high quality of design that will positively enhance the visual 
appearance of the locality. 

 
6.3.2 The proposal also involves the erection of a detached single storey garden 

pavilion to the rear of 12 – 14 Lauriston Road for the use of the Sheltered 
Housing Residents together with a new landscaped garden. This is a single 
storey timber and glazed structure which is also considered acceptable in visual 
terms. 

 
6.3.2 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of private gardens and 
balconies are also provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, metal 
railing, timber cladding, paving and entrance gate details. Suitable conditions 
concerning these details are suggested. 

 
 

Page 269



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.4 Sustainability 
 

6.4.1  The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 
best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units at 2- 20 Lauriston Road and the houses at 20 -26 
Holcroft Road to the south east of the site. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The proposed balconies are located to the front of the premises and do not 

cause any unreasonable loss of privacy to neighbouring properties. The 
proposed rear facing windows are located 22m from the rear of the sheltered 
housing units at 2 – 12 Lauriston Road. The Council’s SPG1 considers a 
distance of 21 metres window to window from habitable rooms and 12 metres 
window to window from habitable to non-habitable rooms an adequate distance 
with screening and boundary treatments between suitable mitigation in some 
instances.  In a built up urban environment a distance ranging between 17-19 
metres is considered to be acceptable, as the facing windows are front windows 
(to both existing and proposed dwellings).  On balance, the development is 
considered acceptable with any adverse effect on privacy minor due to 
proposed setbacks and screening measures. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has 5 car parking spaces for visitors and staff, 

with access off Holcroft Road. The proposed houses partially use the existing 
car parking area, which is proposed to be remodelled, providing 5 replacement 
spaces. The application proposes that 2 of these spaces will be for the 
sheltered housing units and 3 for the private residential houses. Given that 
family accommodation is being proposed the provision of car parking spaces is 
considered acceptable in this instance. 

 
6.6.2 The applicant has advised that two cycle spaces will be provided for each 

proposed residential unit of 3 beds or more. A suitable condition is attached 
requiring the provision of secure cycles storage. 

 
 

Page 270



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6.3 The site benefits from reasonable public transport accessibility in the form of 2 
bus routes (the 141 and 171a routes) and the Manor House underground 
station being within reasonable walking distance from the site.  

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

Page 271



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 272



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT G:   
 

ADDRESS: Benabo Court, Ferncliffe Road, London, E8 2JL 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Hackney Central 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2976 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 199_00_001, 
100, 150, 151, 300, 301, 302, 303, 310, 
311, 199_20_200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 
220, 230, 231, 232, 233, 3463_A_101, 
102, 103, 104, 105, 106 and 
DLE03/BC/022/06 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/07/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a four storey building fronting Sandringham Road to 
provide 8 x 2 bed units.  Internal alterations involving conversion of offices to new 
1 bed sheltered flat and conversion wardens flat to 2, one bed sheltered flats 
relocation of existing sheltered communal lounge and new conservatory. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 30 Units 
 
 

Agenda Item 18

Page 273



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 8 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses  8   
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses     
Total (proposed)   8   
Total (for site) 38 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  2   
Proposed  2 3 8 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site consists of two four storey blocks with a central 5 storey 

linking structure and a single storey element fronting Sandringham Road to the 
South. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character. Other uses 

include a post office to the east of the site at 165 Sandringham Road and a Day 
Centre to the north on Ferncliffe Road.  

 
1.3 There are two car parking spaces on the site for visitors and staff to the existing 

sheltered housing. Three additional disabled spaces are proposed for the 
sheltered housing with no car parking allocated for the private residential units. 
The site is reasonably served by public transport in the form of the 30 and 56 
buses and Hackney Downs Station. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

 2007/0285 Erection of 4 storey extension and other alterations to provide 11 
additional units.  Withdrawn 29/06/2007. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

Page 274



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: No 
 

• 147 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers. No letters of objection have 
been received.  

  
4.5 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

 
4.6 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.7 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 

Page 275



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.8.6 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 

Page 276



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a four storey building fronting 
Sandringham Road to provide 8 x 2 bed units.  Internal alterations involving conversion 
of offices to new 1 bed sheltered flat and conversion wardens flat to 2, one bed 
sheltered flats relocation of existing sheltered communal lounge and new conservatory. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 

Page 277



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 8 x 2-bed units and one additional 1-bed unit due to the 

conversion of the wardens flat.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-bed 
units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This scheme 
provides 8 private 2 bed units and one additional sheltered unit due to the 
conversion of the wardens flat. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 

Page 278



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 
50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the demolition of the existing single storey structure 

fronting Sandringham Road and the erection of a four storey structure to 
provide 8 x 2-bed flats. The proposed building is timber clad with glass 
balconies screens and metal framed windows. The proposal also involves the 
conversion of the existing wardens flat, there erection of a single storey 
conservatory extension to the new repositioned residents lounge along with new 
entrance foyer. 

 
6.3.2 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of balconies are also 
provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, 
Balustrade, Timber cladding and Paving details. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
 

Page 279



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units and the adjoining residential flats above the post office 
at 165 Sandringham Road. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The majority of the windows and all of balconies face towards the front on 

Sandringham Road and Ferncliff Road. The only exceptions to this are one 
kitchen window facing towards the flank wall of 165 Sandringham Road and 
several rear facing hallway windows facing towards the sheltered housing. The 
arrangement of these is satisfactory and will not result in any direct overlooking. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has 2 car parking spaces for visitors and staff, 

with access off Sandringham Road. It is proposed to retain this car parking for 
the sheltered housing and to provide 3 additional disabled spaces for their use. 
No additional car parking is proposed for the private housing. The surrounding 
roads are covered by a Controlled Parking Zone and a S106 clause is 
suggested restricting future occupiers from applying for permits. The non 
provision of car parking is considered and is in accorddance with Council and 
London Plan policies to reduce car usage. 

 
6.6.2 The applicant has advised that 8 cycle spaces will be provided. A condition 

requiring the provision of these spaces is suggested.  
 
6.6.3 The site is reasonably served by public transport in the form of the 30 and 56 

buses and Hackney Downs Station. 
 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 

Page 280



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 

Page 281



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 282



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT H:   
 

ADDRESS: 303 Green Lanes, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Brownswood 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2977 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 172_20_230, 
231,232,233,172_20_200,201,202,220,221, 
222,223,230,231,233,172_0_001,100,102, 
103,300,301, 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/09/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single-storey four bed dwelling unit in rear garden of 
existing sheltered housing at 303 Green Lanes and associated landscaping. 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 11 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 1 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses    1 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses     
Total (proposed)     1 
Total (for site) 1 units (both existing and proposed) 

Agenda Item 19

Page 283



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  2 - 3   
Proposed  2 -3  2 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the rear of 303 - 305 Green Lanes, which is a 

1970’s block of 11 sheltered flats, forming part of the existing garden to the 
sheltered housing units. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential with residential properties 

being located to the North, South and West. 
 
1.3 The site is located within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ). No car parking is 

proposed as part of this application, however the area is reasonably accessible 
by public transport with 2 bus routes (the 141 and 171a routes) and the Manor 
House underground station being within reasonable walking distance from the 
site.  

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 2007/0297 Erection of 1 x 4 bed dwelling house in rear garden of 303 Green 
Lanes. Withdrawn by Applicant on 29/06/2007. 

 
3.2 2005/2027 Single storey rear extension to provide communal lounge, Single 

storey front extension to provide new entrance lobby. Approved 12/01/2006. 
 
 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 

Page 284



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.4 Press Advert: No 
 
4.5 87 letters were sent to adjoining occupiers.  No letters of objection have been 

received.   
  

4.6 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 
 
No Objections 

 
4.7 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 
 
 
 

Page 285



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8.6 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  

Page 286



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 'Housing SPG 2005' 
 

5.5 National Planning Policies 
 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single-storey four bed dwelling unit in 
rear garden of existing sheltered housing at 303 Green Lanes together with associated 
landscaping. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

Page 287



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides1 x 4 bed unit.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-

bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  The 
proposed four bed house is for private sale. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 

Page 288



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the erection of a single storey structure , consisting of 

two lower parts either side with a raised middle part over the proposed livening 
room dining room to provide additional light to this room in the form of roof 
lights. The proposal is for a timber clad structure with a green sedum roof. The 
structure has been designed to be cause minimal visual impact and will also be 
partly hidden from view of the care home when the approved extension to the 
residents lounge is built (Ref: 2005/2027). 

 
6.3.3 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. The proposed living room/ dining room at 39 sq.m is 
welcomed providing adequate amenity space for this family unit. Outdoor 
amenity space in the form of two courtyards is also provided.  

 
6.3.5 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.6 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials. These 
along with conditions covering landscaping boundary treatment are all 
recommended as conditions of consent should the application be granted. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
6.4.2 The proposal incorporates a green roof which will improve the biodiversity value 

of the site.  
 

Page 289



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units  at 303-305 Green Lanes, the flats at 1-12 Warwick 
House to the West,  the Garden of 301 Green Lanes to the South and 307 to 
the north. The proposed building is single storey only which limits the degree of 
intrusion when viewed from these properties. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 All of the proposed windows face inwards and do not afford views over 

boundary wall height. As such the proposal will not result in problems of 
overlooking to neighbouring residential properties. 

    
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has approximately 2-3 ad hoc spaces in the front 

and side of the premises for visitors and staff. The current proposal does not 
include any additional car parking for the proposed residential unit. The 
submitted plans do show double gates leading into the courtyard of this 
premises, so the applicant could potentially use this space to park a car. While it 
would be possible to attach a condition requiring an altered boundary treatment 
to prevent this area being used for car parking, given that the proposal is for a 
single family unit, there is not considered to be any objection in principle to this 
unit having off street car parking, should they wish to use this space in this way. 
The premises is restricted from applying for residents parking permits along with 
all the other Hanover in Hackney Schemes located within Controlled Parking 
Zones. 

 
6.6.2 The applicant has advised that two cycle spaces will be provided for each 

proposed residential unit of three bed or more. While no spaces are indicated 
on the submitted plans it is noted that the layout of the premises including the 
enclosure of the site cartilage would allow for a larger number of cycles to be 
safely accommodated on this site. 

 
1.4 The site benefits from reasonable public transport accessibility in the form of 2 

bus routes (the 141 and 171a routes) and the Manor House underground 
station being within reasonable walking distance from the site.  

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 

Page 290



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 

of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 
• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 

units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 
• Contribution of £ 44,800 towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 

Page 291



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 292



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT I:   
 

ADDRESS: Cester Street, London, E2 8NE 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Haggerston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2980 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 200_00_001,100, 
102,103,104, 
310,311,200_20_200,201,202,203,204, 
205,206,207,220,221,222,230,231,232,233, 
DLE03/PL/018/01A,02A,03A,04A,05A, 
3502/A/102 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/09/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a 4 storey building to provide 4x1 bed flats and the 
rebuilding of a single storey communal lounge building with associated landscaping. 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 20 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 4 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 4    
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses     

Agenda Item 20

Page 293



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Total (proposed)  4    
Total (for site) 24 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  4   
Proposed  4  4 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is an L shaped block fronting Cester Street, a small Cul De 

Sace leading off Whiston Road, which in turn leads into Gloucester Square. The 
Regents Canal is located to the north. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with residential 

properties adjoining the site to the west in Gloucester Square. 
 
1.3 There are four car parking spaces on the site for visitors and staff to the existing 

sheltered housing. No additional car parking is proposed for the private 
residential units. The surrounding roads are covered by a controlled parking 
zone. The site is reasonably served by public transport in the form of the 236 
bus and Cambridge Heath Station. 

 
 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 2007/0296 Erection of three storey building to provide 3 x 1 bed flat. Withdrawn 
29/06/2007. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 

Page 294



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.4 Press Advert: No 
 

• 45 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  No letters of objection have 
been received. 

  
4.5 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

 
4.6 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.7 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 
4.8.6 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 

Page 295



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 

Page 296



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.5 National Planning Policies 
 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 4 storey building to provide 4x1 bed 
flats and the rebuilding of a single storey communal lounge building with associated 
landscaping. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

Page 297



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 4 x 1 bed units.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-

bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  The 
proposed one bed units are all for private sale. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 

Page 298



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 
accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the erection of a new four storey infill building between 

the sheltered housing units at 20/21 Cester Street and a residential property 26 
Gloucester Square to the west. The site backs onto Regents Canal to the North. 
The proposed building is a storey higher than the social housing block but is of 
similar height to the 2 storey plus pitched roof at 26 Gloucester Drive. Proposed 
materials include Corten steel panelling and metal windows.  

 
6.3.2 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of private gardens and 
balconies are also provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally. The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, Corten 
steel panel, metal railings, Vertical metal slats access gate details and Glazed 
door and window details. Conditions are suggested covering these points.  

 
6.3.5 The Proposed replacement single storey lounge (and other communal facilities 

including scooter recharge point), landscaping and decking is also considered 
acceptable being in a similar position and scale to the replaced structure. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units and the adjoining residential dwelling at 26 Gloucester 
Square. 

Page 299



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

  
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. There are two frosted windows on the 
side of 26 Gloucester and 2 side facing frosted windows on the side flank of 
20/21 Cester Street. These are non habitable rooms and any loss of light to 
these windows does not warrant the refusal of this application. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The proposed building includes balconies at the rear of the property fronting 

onto the canal as well as a protruding glazed block at second and third floor 
levels. Conditions are suggested requiring the side facing glazed panels 
adjacent to the boundaries to be fitted with obscured glass and for screening to 
be erected on the sides of the proposed balconies. Providing this it is not 
considered that the proposal would result in any unreasonable loss of privacy to 
neighbouring properties. 

  
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has 4 car parking spaces for visitors and staff, 

with access off Laurel Street. It is proposed to retain this car parking for the 
sheltered housing and no additional car parking is proposed for the private 
housing. The surrounding roads are covered by a Controlled Parking Zone and 
a S106 clause is suggested restricting future occupiers from applying for 
permits. The non provision of car parking is considered acceptable given the 
large number of smaller non family units and accords with Council and London 
Plan policies to reduce car usage. 

 
6.6.2 The applicant has advised that 4 cycle spaces will be provided, the position of 

which is shown on the submitted drawings.  
 
6.6.3 The site is reasonably served by public transport in the form of the 236 bus and 

Cambridge Heath Station. 
  
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 

Page 300



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 

Page 301



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 302



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT J:   
 

ADDRESS: Morrel Court 91 Goldsmiths Row, London E1 8QR 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Haggerston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/2999 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: MC/030/01,02,03, 
04,05,06,07,213_20_230,231,232,233,234,235, 
213_20_220,221,222,223,224,225,226,227, 
213_20_200,201,202,203,204,205,206,207,208, 
213_00_300,400,401, 
213_00_001,100,101,102,120,121,122,123, 
124,125,126,127 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/07/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a 3 storey four bed dwelling house.  Erection of four storey 
building to provide 4x1 bed flats.  Erection of single storey residents lounge, 2 storey 
extension to provide 4x1 bed flats to sheltered housing, internal alterations to provide 
office, store, wc and laundry facilities and 2x2 bed flats to sheltered housing. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 21

Page 303



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 33 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 11 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses 4    
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 4 2  1 
Total (proposed)  8 2  1 
Total (for site) 44 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing     
Proposed   2 5 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site consists of an L Shaped four storey block fronting 

Goldsmith’s Row to the south east and Audrey Street to the south west.  
 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with residential 

properties being located to the east (Moye Close) and on the opposite side of 
Goldsmith’s row and Audrey Street as well as several commercial units. 
Sebright Primary School is located to the North in Audrey Street beyond an 
electricity substation. 

 
1.3 There are two car parking spaces on the site for visitors and staff to the existing 

sheltered housing. No additional car parking is proposed for the private, socially 
rented or intermediate residential units. The surrounding roads are covered by a 
controlled parking zone. The site is reasonably served by public transport in the 
form of the 26, 48, 55 and 236 buses and Cambridge Heath Station. 

1.4  
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 2007/0294 Erection of 3 storey town house & four storey extension to existing 
building to provide 9 additional units together with extensions to existing 
dwelling & communal areas. Conversion of existing flat 11 into ancillary office 

Page 304



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

and communal facilities. Conversion of existing communal lounges and 
wardens flats into 4 additional units (12 additional units in total). Application 
withdrawn on 29/06/2007. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: No 
 
4.5 110 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  No letters of objection have been 

received.   
  

4.6 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

 
4.7 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 

Page 305



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8.4 Pollution:   
 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 

4.8.6 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 

Page 306



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 
5.5 National Planning Policies 

 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 3 storey four bed dwelling house.  
Erection of four storey building to provide 4x1 bed flats.  Erection of single storey 
residents lounge, 2 storey extension to provide 4x1 bed flats to sheltered housing, 
internal alterations to provide office, store, wc and laundry facilities and 2x2 bed flats to 
sheltered housing. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

Page 307



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 8 x 1-bed units, 2 x 2-bed units and one four bed house.  

Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed 
units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This scheme provides 7 units of affordable housing 
in the form of 4 x 1 bed and 2 x 2 bed additional sheltered housing units and 1 
four bed shared ownership unit. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

Page 308



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing would be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves several different elements. These consist of: 

 
• A four storey infill extension (to provide 4 x 4-bed private units). The 

height and massing of this element corresponds to the scale of the 
adjoining units. Proposed materials include copper shingles and timber 
cladding, as well as metal and timber railings. 

• The erection of a three storey town house adjacent to 13 Moye Close. 
This building essentially involves an extension to the exdisting terrace of 
houses and is similar in scale to these properties. Proposed materials 
also include the use of copper shingles and timber cladding. 

• The erection of a 2 storey building extension (to provide 4 x 1-bed 
sheltered units) at the end of the existing sheltered housing at the 
Audrey Street end extending westwards towards the proposed dwelling 
on Moye Close. This extension will be faced with horizontal and vertical 
timber cladding. 

• Internal and external alterations (pursuant to creation of office, store, 
WC, laundry facilities and additional 2 bed sheltered housing unit) to the 
sheltered housing fronting Goldsmith’s Row on the corner with Audrey 
Street involving the introduction of new horizontal metal windows, copper 
shingle and timber  cladding, double glazed entrance doors an pitched 
metal seam roof.  

 
 
 

Page 309



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.3.2 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 
set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of private gardens and/ or 
balconies are also provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, cladding 
details, flashing and coping details entrance doors and railings.metal railing,  

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units at Morrel Court and the surrounding residential units on 
Moye Close and Goldsmith’s Row.  

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The proposed balconies (private one bed units fronting Goldsmith’s Row) are 

located to the front of the premises and do not cause any unreasonable loss of 
privacy to neighbouring properties. The proposed four bed house and the 
private one bed infill block are not in a direct line of sight with other habitable 
room windows or amenity areas. The proposed two storey extension to the 
sheltered housing is located over 21m from corresponding units on the other 
wing of Morrel court. The Council’s SPG1 considers a distance of 21 metres 
window to window from habitable rooms and 12 metres window to window from 
habitable to non-habitable rooms an adequate distance. Given this the proposal 
is considered acceptable and should not result in any material loss of privacy. 

  

Page 310



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has 2 car parking spaces for visitors and staff, 

with access off Moye Close It is proposed to retain this car parking for the 
sheltered housing and no additional car parking is proposed for the private 
housing. The surrounding roads are covered by a Controlled Parking Zone and 
a S106 clause is suggested restricting future occupiers from applying for 
permits. The non provision of car parking is considered acceptable given the 
good public accessibility of the site and to accord with Council and London Plan 
policies to reduce car usage. 

 
 6.6.2 The applicant has advised that 5 cycle spaces will be provided. Council Policy 

requires 6 spaces for the proposed private and shared ownership unit. A 
suitable condition requiring the provision of 6 spaces is suggested.  

 
6.6.3 The site benefits from reasonable public transport accessibility in the form of the 

26, 48, 55 and 236 buses and Cambridge Heath Station. 
 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
 

Page 311



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

7. CONCLUSION 
 

7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 
saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 312



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT K:   
 

ADDRESS: Parton Lodge 16 Laurel Street, London 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Dalston 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/3002 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS:  
3505_A_100,102,103,104,105,106,107,108, 
109,110,111,112,113,120,124, 
3505_A_126,127,128,129,130,131,140,141,1 
42,150,151,152,153, 204_00_001,100,1 
01,102,110,120,310,311, 
204_00_120,310,311,200,201,202,203,204, 
205,220,221,222,230,231,232,233,300,301 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/09/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a 4 storey building to provide 8 flats (7 x 2 bed, 1 x 3 bed).  
Internal alterations including the relocation of existing sheltered housing lounge and 
landscaping. 
 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 22

Page 313



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 32 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site): 38 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses  7 1  
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses     
Total (proposed)   7 1  
Total (for site) 38 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  2   
Proposed  2  10 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site currently consists of a (predominately) four storey block 

fronting Laurel Street to the South and East. The current application concerns 
the corner of the site where Laurel Street turns, where a single storey residents 
lounge is currently in situ. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with residential 

properties adjoining the site to the north and on the opposite sides of Laurel 
Street to the south and east. The properties fronting Dalston Lane to the west of 
the site are in mixed use, with commercial premises on the ground floor with 
residential above. 

 
1.3 There are two car parking spaces on the site for visitors and staff to the existing 

sheltered housing. No additional car parking is proposed for the private 
residential units. The surrounding roads are covered by a controlled parking 
zone. The site is reasonably served by public transport in the form of the 253 
bus and Dalston Kingsland station on Kingsland Road. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located in any Conservation Area.  No statutorily or locally listed 

buildings are affected by the proposal.  
  
 
 
 

Page 314



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

3. HISTORY 
 

3.1 2007/0300 Erection of extensions to existing building to provide 8 additional 
flats, relocation of resident lounge to sheltered housing and associated 
landscaping. Application withdrawn on 29/06/2007. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 12/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 02/09/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: No 
 
4.5 64 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers. No letters of objection have been 

received.   
  

4.6 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.7 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

 
4.8 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
 
 

Page 315



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 

4.8.6 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
 
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 

Page 316



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 
 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 

5.5 National Planning Policies 
 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 4 storey building to provide 8 flats (7 
x 2 bed, 1 x 3 bed).  Internal alterations including the relocation of existing sheltered 
housing lounge and landscaping. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development. 

 
 6.4 Sustainability 
 
 6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.6 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.7 Response to objections. 
 

Page 317



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.8 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 
applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 

 
6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 

mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides 7 x 2 bed and 1 x 3 bed private units, the scheme also 

involves the loss of one one bed sheltered unit and the wardens flat.  Overall, 
the 12 schemes provide 38 x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 
27 x 4-bed units.  This scheme does not provide any affordable housing. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 

Page 318



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 
 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 

50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the demolition of an existing single storey extension to 

the care home and its replacement with an l shaped  four storey block built out 
in line with the adjoining line of terraced houses from 14 Laurel Street to the 
north and the care home to the west. Visually the development consists of a 
predominately glazed structure with multi coloured projecting balconies. A new 
replacement residents lounge, entrance and communal facilities are provided 
on the ground floor of the existing sheltered housing. The proposal also involves 
a new conservatory extension and new landscaped garden areas. 

 
6.3.2 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of private gardens and 
balconies are also provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory.  The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, copper 

Page 319



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

cladding, glazed panel, glass balustrade and coloured glass, paving and 
entrance gate details. Suitable conditions concerning these details are 
suggested. 

 
6.4 Sustainability 

 
6.4.1  The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
6.5 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.5.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units at 2- 20 Lauriston Road and the houses at 2- 14 Laurel 
Street to the east of the site. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.5.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.5.3 The proposed balconies are located to the front of the premises and do not 

cause any unreasonable loss of privacy to neighbouring properties. The 
windows are arranged so that the majority of windows face outwards. The 
exceptions to this are the corner windows adjoining 14 Laurel Street, where one 
bedroom window faces the garden of the sheltered housing at a distance of 
5.3m and another bedroom window faces the garden of 14 Laurel Street at a 
distance of 5.6m. Given the generally tight knit urban setting of the locality, the 
development is considered acceptable. 

  
6.6 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.6.1 The existing sheltered housing has 2 car parking spaces for visitors and staff, 

with access off Laurel Street. It is proposed to retain this car parking for the 
sheltered housing and no additional car parking is proposed for the private 
housing. The surrounding roads are covered by a Controlled Parking Zone and 
a S106 clause is suggested restricting future occupiers from applying for 
permits. The non provision of car parking is considered acceptable given the 
large number of smaller non family units and accords with Council and London 
Plan policies to reduce car usage. 

 
6.6.2 The applicant has advised that 10 cycle spaces will be provided, and 10 cycle 

spaces are shown on the submitted drawings.  
   

Page 320



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.6.3 The site benefits from reasonable public transport accessibility in the form of the 
253 bus and Dalston Kingsland station on Kingsland Road. 

 
6.7 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.7.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – Other sites 
for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate Improvement, 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning Standards. 

 

Page 321



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 
2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 
Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities. 

 

Page 322



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REPORT L: 
  

ADDRESS: Thirlmere House, Howard Road, London N16 8PW 

REPORT AUTHOR: Andrew Dillon 
 

WARD: Clissold 

APPLICATION NUMBER: 2007/3003 
& 2008/1954 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 139_00_001,002 
,003,004,100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105,  
106,107,108,109,111,200,201,301,303,304, 
139_20_200,201,202,203,220,230,231,232, 
233,234,300, 
301,302,303,304,305,139_90_200,201, 
202,203,204,205,206,139_00g_exis,001_exis, 
002_exis,003_exis,004_exis, 005_exis and 
139_roof_exis 
 
 

VALID DATE: 31/07/2008 

APPLICANT:  
Hanover in Hackney 
18 London Lane 
London, E8 3PR 
 

AGENT: Iain Clavadetscher 
Clavadetscher Hoffman Architects 
Clerkenwell House 
45-47 Clerkenwell Green 
London, EC1R 0EB 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
2008/1954 - Erection of six three storey four bed dwelling houses.  Also erection of 
single storey Conservatory to existing Care Home and new landscaping. 
 
2007/3003 - Listed Building Consent pursuant to planning application 2008/1954 for 
the erection of 6 dwelling houses attached to rear of Grade II Listed Building at 35 
Stoke Newington Green. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission subject to S106 legal agreement. 

       
ANALYSIS INFORMATION 

      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   
CPZ X  
Conservation Area X  
Listed Building (Statutory) X  
Listed Building (Local) X  
DEA  X 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 23

Page 323



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

LAND USE DETAILS: Use Class Use Description 
Existing  C2  Sheltered Accommodation 
Proposed 
 

C2/C3 Sheltered Accommodation /  
Private Residential Units 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE DETAILS: 

Existing: 35 Units 
 No. of Bedrooms per Unit 
Proposed (on this site):7 Units 1 2 3 4 
Private Flats/Houses    6 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses   1  
Total (proposed)    1 6 
Total (for site) 41 units (both existing and proposed) 

 
Proposed (all 12 sites): 136 Units 
Private Flats/Houses 15 38 6 22 
Affordable/Sheltered Flats/Houses 23 27 0 5 
Total (all 12 sites)  38 65 6 27 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  13   
Proposed  11 2 12 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
1. SITE CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site is located to the rear of Thirlmere House, which fronts 

Howard road,  within the existing car park. The site abuts the listed building of 
35 Newington Green to the South and the Mildmay Club and Institute (Working 
Men’s Club) to the east. The site faces Church Walk to the west which is a 
pedestrian only path leading from Newington Green to Howard Road. There are 
also four mature trees within the car park which are protected by Tree 
Preservation Orders. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with a B1 light 

industrial unit being located to the rear of 35 Newington Green abutting the 
development. Other non residential uses include the Working Men’s Club at 34 
Newington Green and the Unitarian Church at 39 Newington Green. 

 
1.3 The proposal contains 13 car parking spaces which are proposed to re 

provided. The site benefits from reasonable public transport facilities in the form 
of the number 73, 141, 171 and 236 buses and Dalston Kingsland Station. 

 
 
 
 

Page 324



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located within the Newington Green Conservation Area.  35- 39 

Stoke Newington Green are statutory listed. The proposal is attached to an 
extension to 35 Stoke Newington Green and as such needs Listed Building 
Consent. 401 and 41 Newington Green are locally listed 

  
3. HISTORY 

 
3.1 2007/0302 - Erection of 7 dwelling houses within existing car park.  Conversion 

of existing wardens accommodation and office to provide 2 additional units. 
Withdrawn 29/06/2007. 

 
3.2 2007/0306 - Listed building consent for erection of 7 dwelling houses see 

application 2007/0302. Withdrawn 29/06/2007. 
 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 06/08/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 20/08/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 161 letters were sent to adjacent occupiers.  One Petition of objection submitted 

signed by 375 people. One letter of objection also  received. The grounds of 
objection were as follows: 

 
4.6  

• Proposal will block access gates to working men’s club, this will prevent 
people leaving in the case of a fire as fire exits lead out to the yard at the 
rear and also prevent deliveries to the premises. This will threaten the 
future viability of the club which is the last Working Men’s Club in 
Hackney. 

• Potential conflict between residents and the club (noise disturbance 
complaints) 

• Will block rear fire exit of light industrial unit to rear of 35 Newington 
Green. 

 
4.7 Local Groups  
 
4.6.1 London Fire & Emergency: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.6.2 Crime Prevention Design Advisor 

 
No Objections 

Page 325



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
4.8 Statutory Consultees  

 
4.7.1 Thames Water: 

 
No Comments Received 

 
4.9 Other Council Departments  
 
4.8.1 Sustainability and Design:  
  
 “We have had a number of pre-application meetings with the architects. They 

have addressed all our design concerns.  We think the proposal is competent 
on all the design fronts; we therefore have no objection to this proposal.”  
Recommend conditions should consent be granted. 

  
4.8.2 Housing: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.3 Policy: 
  
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.4 Pollution:   

 
No Comments Received 
 

4.8.5 Transport & Highways: 
  

No Comments Received 
 

 
4.8.6 Landscape & Tree Officer: 
 
 No Comments Received 

 
4.8.7 Waste management: 
  
 Provide standards which the development should follow. 
 
4.8.7 Private Sector Housing 
 

No Comments Received 
  
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved policies) 

EQ1 – Development Requirements 
EQ12 – Protection of Conservation Areas 

Page 326



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

EQ14 Alterations and extensions of buildings in Conservation Areas 
EQ 16 Protection of Listed Buildings 
EQ17 Alterations to Listed Buildings 
EQ18 Setting of Listed Buildings 
EQ31 Trees 
EQ48 – Designing out Crime 
HO3 – Other sites for Housing 
HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing 
HO5 – Estate Improvement 
HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care 
TR19 – Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 SPG1 – New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 Local Development Framework (LDF) 
 SPD – Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2006) 
 SPD – Affordable Housing (2005) 
 
5.4 London Plan (Consolidated with Changes since 2004) 

 2A.1 – Sustainability Criteria 
 3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing 
 3A.2 – Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites 
 3A.5 – Housing Choice 
 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision 
 3A.8 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets 

   3A.10 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
   3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds 
   3A.13 – Special Needs and Specialist Housing 
   3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s Diverse Population 

 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development 
 3C.2 – Matching Development to Transport Capacity 
 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in London 
 3C.23 – Parking Strategy 
 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
 4A.7 – Renewable Energy 
 4A.22 – Spatial Policies for Waste Management  
 4B.1 – Design Principles for a Compact City 
 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm 
 4B.5 – Creating an Inclusive Environment  
 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection 
 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities 
 4B.11- London’s built Heritage 
 4B.12 - Heritage Conservation 

 Housing SPG 2005 
 
 

Page 327



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

5.5 National Planning Policies 
 PPS1 – Creating Sustainable Communities 
 PPS3 – Housing 
 PPS10 – Planning for Sustainable Waste Management 
 PPS12 – Local Spatial Planning 
 PPG13 – Transport 
 PPG15 – Planning and the Historic Environment 
 PPS22 – Renewable energy 
 PPS23 – Planning and Pollution Control 
 PPG24 – Planning and Noise 
 
6. COMMENT 
 
 Planning permission is sought for the erection of six three storey four bed 

dwelling houses and the erection of single storey Conservatory to existing Care 
Home and new landscaping. Along with associated Listed Building Consent. 

 
 Considerations 
 
 The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 

6.1 The principle of the development. 
 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision. 

 
6.3 Design, layout and appearance of the proposed development.  
 
6.4 Impact on Conservation Area and Setting of Listed Buildings 
 
6.5  Impact on Trees 

 
 6.6 Sustainability 
 
 6.7 Potential impact on the amenity of residents. 
 
 6.8 Traffic and transport considerations. 
 

6.9 Response to objections. 
 

6.10 Planning Contributions. 
 

 Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the development 
 
6.1.1 This application is one of 12 applications submitted by Hanover in Hackney 

(HIH) for the redevelopment of their sites.  HIH have assessed their 29 sites, 
and have brought forward 12 schemes that have the potential for additional 
units.  Some schemes have small areas of land suitable for development and 
others have capacity by building on top or to the side of the existing units.  The 

Page 328



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

applicant has had numerous pre-application discussions with the Council. 
 

6.1.2 The 12 schemes provide an additional 136 units across 12 sites, providing a 
mixture of private units, shared ownership (affordable) units, and sheltered 
accommodation units (for social rent). 

 
6.1.3 The 12 schemes are considered acceptable as they contribute to the Borough’s 

housing, affordable housing, and sheltered accommodation stocks.  The sites 
are located in predominantly residential areas, and on existing residential sites, 
and therefore fit in with surrounding uses. 

 
6.1.4 Policy HO4 of the Hackney UDP states that the Council will favourably consider 

proposal to improve older dwellings.  Policy HO5 states that the Council will 
secure the renovation and improvement of sub-standard blocks of flats and 
environmental improvements of estates.  Policy HO17 states that the Council 
will encourage the development of residential accommodation for care to meet 
special needs in streets which are predominantly residential in use.  The 12 
schemes proposed are in accordance with these policies, and as such the 
principle of the developments is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2 Housing mix and affordable housing provision 
 
6.2.1 This scheme provides6 4-bed houses as well an additional 3 bed sheltered unit 

due to the conversion of the Warden’s Flat.  Overall, the 12 schemes provide 38 
x 1-bed units, 65 x 2-bed units, 6 x 3-bed units, and 27 x 4-bed units.  This 
scheme provides 6 private units and one additional sheltered units due to the 
aforementioned conversion. 

 
6.2.2 While it is acknowledged that individually each scheme does not necessarily 

provide a range of mix and housing types, across the 12 schemes as a whole, a 
good mix of units and housing types are provided, and therefore, on balance, 
accords with UDP and London Plan Policies and SPD on Housing. 

 
6.2.3 As identified in The London Plan, the mayor’s strategic target for affordable 

housing for schemes of 10 of more units is that 50% of provision should be 
affordable.  Although there are 12 separate sites, for the purpose of securing 
affordable housing and other community benefits, the proposals are treated as 
a whole rather than individually.  Therefore, affordable housing is scattered 
across the 12 sites.  This ensures compliance with national, strategic, and local 
level planning policies which seek to pepper-pot affordable housing within a 
development, ensuring social inclusion within the developments. 

 
6.2.4 The applicant has carried out and submitted a ‘Three Dragons Toolkit’ 

assessment to assess whether it is financially viable to provide the required 
level (50%) of affordable housing within the scheme.  Details of the results have 
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the test concluded that it 
would be financially viable to provide 40.44% affordable units over the 12 
schemes. 

 
 

Page 329



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

6.2.5 The proposed schemes as a whole do not comply with the requirements for 
50% affordable housing provision.  However, the viability report is considered 
accurate and successfully demonstrates that the provision of 50% affordable 
housing would result in a scheme which would not be financially viable.  The 
report states that the provision of 40.44% affordable units would result in a 
financially viable scheme and provide a proportion of affordable housing which 
is considered acceptable. 

 
6.2. 6    Hackney’s Affordable Housing SPD (2005) does not define sheltered 

accommodation as affordable housing.  The applicant  has included the 
proposed sheltered accommodation as affordable housing, which would not 
normally be included.  However, in this case, the sheltered housing  would  be 
secured as affordable rented in perpetuity and secured as such under the s106 
legal agreement. Therefore, on balance this is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
6.3 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.3.1 The proposal involves the erection of 6 three storey dwelling houses extending 

rearwards from the rear industrial unit at 35 Newington Green into the existing 
car park. Private residential gardens separate the proposal from the Mildmay 
Club and Institute to the North. Proposed materials include Staffordshire blue 
engineering facing brickwork, standing seam oxidised copper sheeting, metal 
framed windows and glazed curtain walling with metal frames. The proposal 
also involves resurfacing and landscaping of the car park as well as the 
conversion of an existing warden’s flat in the main sheltered housing block.  

 
6.3.3 The internal layout and room sizes comply with or exceed minimum standards 

set out in SPG 1. Outdoor amenity space in the form of private gardens are also 
provided.  

 
6.3.3 The location of the refuse store appears satisfactory. The submitted 

documentation and plans provide information as to the storage capacity of the 
proposed bin stores.  It is recommended that a condition requiring that this 
information be submitted prior to the commencement of works, be imposed 
should permission be granted. 

 
6.3.4 The design, form, massing and materials of the proposal is considered to be 

acceptable and will respect the site characteristics and the appearance and 
design of the surrounding built form and locality generally.  The Conservation 
and Design Team have recommended conditions regarding materials, 
Staffordshire blue engineering facing brickwork, Standing seam oxidized copper 
sheeting, Double glazed doors and windows, Double glazed curtain walling, 
Copper framing , Paving  and Fencing details. Conditions covering these points 
are suggested. 

 
6.4 Impact on Conservation Area and Setting of Listed Buildings 
 
6.4.1 The proposal is located within the Newington Green Conservation Area and joins 

the rear of an extension at 35 Newington Green. This extension is a relatively 

Page 330



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

modern extension to the building is constructed of concrete and does not 
positively enhance the setting of the host listed building. As such there is no 
objection in principle to the proposed dwellings attaching to this structure. While 
the proposal is for a modern contemporary building it is considered that this sits 
well in the context of older surrounding properties and will visually complement 
them.  It is therefore considered that the proposal will enhance the character and 
appearance of the Newington Green Conservation Area and the Setting of 
neighbouring Listed Buildings including 35 Newington Green in accordance with 
the provisions of PPG 15 and London Plan and UDP policies. 
 

6.5  Impact on Trees 
 
6.5.1 There are four trees protected by Tree Preservation Orders in the existing car 

parking. The current application proposes the removal of one of these trees but 
the retention of the other three trees. An arborcultural report has been submitted 
which advises that the tree which is proposed to be removed constrains the 
growth of one of the other protected trees which is a better specimen. The report 
also details measures which are proposed to be taken to protect the roots of 
these trees, particularly from the proposed construction of new paving and 
landscaping in the vicinity of these trees. A suitable tree protection condition is 
suggested to ensure that these trees are not adversely affected by the proposed 
development. 

 
6.6 Sustainability 

 
6.6.1 The scheme will meet Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, and will use 

best endeavours to reach level 4. The London Borough of Hackney endeavours 
that all new developments target level 4. This matter is covered by the proposed 
S106 agreement. 

 
6.7 Potential impact on the amenity of residents  
  
6.7.1 The residential properties potentially affected by the proposal are the existing 

sheltered housing units and the residential units located on the opposite side of 
Church Walk to the South of the site. 

 
 Sunlight/Daylight 
 

6.7.2 The applicant has submitted a daylight/ sunlight report in support of their 
application. This assessment indicates that there would be no more than a 
minor effect on all the surrounding properties with all windows assessed 
receiving adequate sunlight and daylight. 

 
Loss of Privacy 
 
6.7.3 The proposed windows are located over 22m from the nearest habitable room 

windows on Albion Road to the south of the site. The Council’s SPG1 considers 
a distance of 21 metres window to window from habitable rooms and 12 metres 
window to window from habitable to non-habitable rooms an adequate distance 
with screening and boundary treatments between suitable mitigation in some 

Page 331



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

instances.  In a built up urban environment a distance ranging between 17-19 
metres is considered to be acceptable, as the facing windows are front windows 
(to both existing and proposed dwellings).  Given this it is not considered that 
the proposal will result in any unreasonable loss of privacy to neighbouring 
residential properties. 

    
6.8 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.8.1 The applicant proposes the re-provision of 13 car parking spaces. Seven of 

these spaces will be for the sheltered housing including one disabled space will 
be for the sheltered housing and 6 spaces including one disabled space will be 
for the proposed private houses.  Given that family accommodation is being 
proposed the provision of car parking spaces is considered acceptable in this 
instance. The surrounding roads are covered by a Controlled Parking Zone and 
a clause is suggested preventing occupiers from applying for residents parking 
permits. 

 
6.8.2 The applicant has advised that two cycle spaces will be provided for each 

proposed residential unit of 3 beds or more. A suitable condition is attached 
requiring the provision of secure cycles storage. 

 
6.8.3 The site benefits from reasonable public transport accessibility in the form of the 

number 73, 141, 171 and 236 buses and Dalston Kingsland Station. 
 
6.9 Section 106 Contributions 
 
6.9.1 The following matters are being sought as part of the Section 106 legal 

agreement to offset the impact of the 12 development proposals: 
 

• Securing the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split 
of 58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 

• No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all of the affordable 
units have been transferred to the approved RSL. 

• Contribution of £44,800  towards sustainable transport. 
• The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act for 

works to the public highway. 
• Contribution of £1,034,117.65 towards education and libraries. 
• Contribution of £4,625.62 towards open space. 
• Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 
• All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards, with 10% of 

units to be wheelchair accessible. 
• Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% 

on site employment). 
• Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
• 10% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 

sources and use of low energy technology. 
• That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 

Page 332



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

• The provision of a Travel Plan to all residents on occupation of the site. 
• Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
6.10 Response to objections 

 
6.10.1 Issues concerning the blocking of an access gate and the fire exit to the light 

industrial unit to the rear of 35 Newington Green are essentially a legal issue 
between the objectors and Hanover and Hackney. Should a right of egress or 
historic right of way, then it will be the responsibility of Hanover in Hackney to 
provide alternative arrangements. 

 
6.10.2 Issues concerning potential future conflict between residential and commercial 

users are not considered to warrant the refusal of this application as the 
proposed houses face towards the flank wall and rear of this building rather 
than the front of the premises. Therefore residents are not in view of the active 
commercial frontages and noise disturbance will be within an acceptable limit. 
Furthermore, the commercial use of the premises along with the commercial 
unit at the rear of 35 Newington Green and future occupiers will need to be 
aware of this situation. It is also noted that it is not an unusual arrangement of 
have dwelling units in close proximity to commercial units, including bars, 
restaurants and clubs. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

saved in the Hackney UDP (1995), the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004), and national planning policies.  Accordingly, the 
granting of planning permission is recommended. 

 
8. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
8.1 The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 

(1995) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 – 
Development Requirements, EQ12 – Protection of Conservation Areas, EQ14 -
Alterations and extensions of buildings in Conservation Areas, EQ 16 -
Protection of Listed Buildings, EQ17 - Alterations to Listed Buildings, EQ18 -
Setting of Listed Buildings, EQ31 - Trees, EQ48 – Designing out Crime, HO3 – 
Other sites for Housing, HO4 – Improvement of Older Housing, HO5 – Estate 
Improvement, HO17 – Residential Accommodation for Care, TR19 – Planning 
Standards. 

 
8.2 The following policies in the London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 

2004) are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by 
this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: 2A.1 – 
Sustainability Criteria,  3A.1 – Increasing London’s Supply of Housing, 3A.2 – 
Borough Housing Targets, 3A.3 – Maximising the Potential of Sites, 3A.5 – 
Housing Choice, 3A.6 – Quality of New Housing Provision, 3A.8 – Definition of 

Page 333



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Affordable Housing, 3A.9 – Affordable Housing Targets, 3A.10 – Negotiating 
Affordable Housing, 3A.11 – Affordable Housing Thresholds, 3A.13 – Special 
Needs and Specialist Housing, 3A.17 – Addressing the Needs of London’s 
Diverse Population, 3C.1 – Integrating Transport and Development, 3C.2 – 
Matching Development to Transport Capacity, 3C.3 – Sustainable Transport in 
London, 3C.23 – Parking Strategy, 4A.1 – Tackling Climate Change, 4A.3 – 
Sustainable Design and Construction, 4A.7 – Renewable Energy, 4A.22 – 
Spatial Policies for Waste Management, 4B.1 – Design Principles for a 
Compact City, 4B.3 – Enhancing the Quality of the Public Realm, 4B.5 – 
Creating an Inclusive Environment, 4B.6 – Safety, Security and Fire Prevention 
and Protection, 4B.8 – Respect Local Context and Communities,  4B.11- 
London’s built Heritage, 4B.12 - Heritage Conservation. 

 
 

Page 334



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

M. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Recommendation A 
 
A.1 That permission (ref. 2007/2972 – 2-20 Lauriston Road) be GRANTED, 

subject to the following conditions: 
 
A.1.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 
strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.1.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.1.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.1.4 SCG6 – Restrictions of Permitted Development Rights 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required for the erection of any extensions, 
outbuildings, or any other external alterations.  

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.1.5 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
• Metal railing details   
• Timber cladding details   
• Paving details 
• Entrance gate details  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

Page 335



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.1.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 
No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.1.6 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.1.7 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.1.8 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.1.9 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

Page 336



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.1.10 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 
Secure, covered parking shall be provided for six bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.1.11 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.1.12 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.1.13 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime.  

 
A.2 Informatives (ref. 2007/2972) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

Page 337



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.3 That permission (ref. 2007/2975 – Appleton Court) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.3.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.3.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.3.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.3.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Polished stone cladding and unpolished stone cladding details. 
• Glass and metal balustrade details. 
• Metal cladding details.  
• Perforated coreten steel panel details.  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.3.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

Page 338



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 A.3.6 SCT1 – Landscaping scheme to be approved 
A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years. Such maintenance is to include the replacement of any 
plants that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.3.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.3.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.3.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

  
 
 

Page 339



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.3.10 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 
Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 12 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.3.11 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.3.12 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.3.13 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.4 Informatives (ref. 2007/2975) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

Page 340



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.5 That permission (ref. 2007/2976 – Benabo Court) be GRANTED, subject to 

the following conditions: 
 

A.5.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.5.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.5.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.5.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Balustrade details   
• Timber cladding details   
• Paving details 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.5.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 

Page 341



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.5.6 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 
The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.5.7 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
A.5.8 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences, at least three car parking 
spaces shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the vehicles of 
persons with disabilities at locations close to the entrances to the building(s). 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.5.9 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 8 bicycles, as shown on the plans 
hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.5.10 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
 
 

Page 342



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.5.11 NSC – Ecological roofs 
Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.5.16 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.6 Informatives (ref. 2007/2976) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.7 That permission (ref. 2007/2977 – 303 Green Lanes) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.7.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.7.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  

Page 343



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.7.3 SCG6 – Restrictions of Permitted Development Rights 
 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 

Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required for the erection of any extensions, 
outbuildings, or any other external alterations.  

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.7.4 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.7.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.7.6 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.7.7 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for two bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.7.8 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 

Page 344



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.7.9 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.7.10 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.8 Informatives (ref. 2007/2977) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.9 That permission (ref. 2007/2979 – Plumpton Lodge) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.9.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 

Page 345



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

subsequent approval of details. 
 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 

accordance with the plans hereby approved. 
 

A.9.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.9.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.9.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Coloured ‘Fibre-C’ details. 
• Cladding details. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.9.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
 A.9.6 SCT1 – Landscaping scheme to be approved 

A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years. Such maintenance is to include the replacement of any 
plants that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   

Page 346



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.9.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.9.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.9.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.9.10 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 10 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.9.11 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   

Page 347



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
 A.9.12 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.9.13 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 A.10 Informatives (ref. 2007/2979) 

 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.11 That permission (ref. 2007/2980 – Cester Street) be GRANTED, subject to 

the following conditions: 
 

A.11.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

Page 348



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.11.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.11.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.11.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Corten steel panel details  
• Metal railing details  
• Vertical metal slats access gate details  
• Glazed door and window details  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.11.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.11.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
 
 

Page 349



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.11.13 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 
Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 4 bicycles, as shown on the plans 
hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.11.14 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.11.15 SCR8 – Obscured Glazing 
 The proposed side facing projecting glazed windows facing 26 Gloucester Drive 

at second floor level and 20/21 Cester Drive at third floor level shall be 
permanently glazed in obscured glass and kept fixed shut. 

 REASON: To safeguard against overlooking of adjoining sites and premises. 
 
A.11.16 NSC – Balcony Screening 
 Details of proposed Balcony screening to the first, second and third floor 

balconies to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
writing, prior to the occupation of the development. Such screening shall be 
erected in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter as 
such. 

 REASON: To safeguard against overlooking of adjoining sites and premises. 
 
A.11.17 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.11.18 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 

Page 350



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.12 Informatives (ref. 2007/2980) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.13 That permission (ref. 2007/2982 – Keswick Lodge) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.13.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.13.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.13.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.13.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 

Page 351



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

• Western red cedar cladding details. 
• High density timber panels. 
• Perforated high density timber panels. 
• Brickwork with recessed mortar joints. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.13.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
 A.13.6 SCT1 – Landscaping scheme to be approved 

A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years. Such maintenance is to include the replacement of any 
plants that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.13.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.13.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Page 352



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.13.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.13.10 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
A.13.11 SCH6 – Provision of parking 

The whole of the car parking accommodation hereby approved shall be 
provided before the occupation of any of the approved residential units takes 
place, and shall be retained permanently for the accommodation of vehicles 
associated with the occupation of these residential units.  
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.13.12 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences the 2 disabled car parking 
spaces shall be provide for use by the vehicles of persons with disabilities as 
located on drawing number 201_00_103. 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.13.13 SCH9 – Marking parking areas  

Before the use hereby permitted first commences, appropriate markings shall 
be used to delineate all car parking spaces and service areas within the 
site/development as shown on the permitted plans, and such marking is to be 
retained permanently. 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 

Page 353



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.13.14 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 
Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 9 bicycles, as shown on the plans 
hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.13.15 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.13.16 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.13.17 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 A.13.18 NSC – Work Method Statement 
  Full details of a work method statement for demolition and construction, 

including control measures to minimise noise and dust emissions, hours of 
work, wheel washing facilities, and details for the disposal of materials from the 
site shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority prior to 
commencement of any construction/clearance work on the site.  The 
development, including disposal of materials from the site, shall in all respects 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

  REASON: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties and the area 
generally during construction. 

 
 A.13.19 NSC – Parking 

Detailed drawings of the following matters must be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any relevant work is 
commenced: 

Page 354



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 
• The hard standing area shall be of permeable material between the 

footways and the parking bays. 
• The parking spaces and landscaping shall be arranged so the car parking 

spaces are not obstructed by trees. 
• The closure of the existing vehicle access. 

 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
above matters as approved by the Local Planning Authority: 

  REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety along the neighbouring 
highway and is fully accessible. 

 
A.14 Informatives (ref. 2007/2982) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.15 That permission (ref. 2007/2999 – Morrel Court) be GRANTED, subject to 

the following conditions: 
 

A.15.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.15.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
 
 

Page 355



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.15.3 SCG6 – Restrictions of Permitted Development Rights 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required for the erection of any extensions, 
outbuildings, or any other external alterations. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 

A.15.4 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 
 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 

the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.15.5 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Vertical and horizontal western Red Cedar rainscreen cladding details   
• Fair faced brickwork details   
• Double glazed doors and windows details  
• Coloured acrylic render details  
• Copper shingles details   
• Metal flashing/coping details   
• Metal standing seam roof details  
• Metal and timber railings details  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.15.6 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.15.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 

Page 356



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.15.8 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for six bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.15.9 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.15.10 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.15.11 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.16 Informatives (ref. 2007/2999) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 

Page 357



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.17 That permission (ref. 2007/3000 – Newnton Close) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.17.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.17.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.17.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.17.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Glass and timber balustrade details. 
• Timber shutter details. 
• Railing details. 
• Horizontal timber slats door details. 
• Vertical timber slats door details.  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
 

Page 358



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.17.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 
No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
 A.17.6 SCT1 – Landscaping scheme to be approved 

A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years. Such maintenance is to include the replacement of any 
plants that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.17.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.17.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.17.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 

Page 359



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.17.10 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
A.17.11 SCH6 – Provision of parking 

The whole of the car parking accommodation hereby approved shall be 
provided before the occupation of any of the approved residential units takes 
place, and shall be retained permanently for the accommodation of vehicles 
associated with the occupation of these residential units.  
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.17.12 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences the 2 disabled car parking 
spaces shall be provide for use by the vehicles of persons with disabilities. 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.17.13 SCH9 – Marking parking areas  

Before the use hereby permitted first commences, appropriate markings shall 
be used to delineate all car parking spaces and service areas within the 
site/development as shown on the permitted plans, and such marking is to be 
retained permanently. 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.17.14 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 19 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
 

Page 360



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.17.15 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 
Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.17.16 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.17.17 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 A.17.18 NSC – Noise 

The development shall not be occupied until a scheme for protecting the 
proposed dwellings from noise from Seven Sisters Road has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  All works which form 
part of the scheme shall be completed before any of the permitted dwellings are 
occupied. 
REASON: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed 
dwellings. 

 
A.18 Informatives (ref. 2007/3000) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 

Page 361



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 SI.33  Landscaping 
NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 

developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.19 That permission (ref. 2007/3002 – Parton Lodge) be GRANTED, subject to 

the following conditions: 
 

A.19.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.19.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.19.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.19.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Metal railing details   
• Non oxidized copper cladding details   
• Glazed spandrel panel details  
• Glass balustrade and coloured glass balustrade details   
• Paving details and  
• Entrance gate details  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.19.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 

Page 362



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.19.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.19.8 SCT3 - Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.19.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.3.13 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 10 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.19.14 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   

Page 363



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.19.15 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.19.16 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.20 Informatives (ref. 2007/3002) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.21 That permission (ref. 2007/3012 – Bayton Court) be GRANTED, subject to 

the following conditions: 
 

A.21.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

Page 364



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.21.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.21.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.21.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Western red cedar rainscreen cladding. 
• Pre-patinated copper details. 
• Balustrade details. 
• Door and window details. 
• Fencing details. 
• Paving details.  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.21.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
 A.21.6 SCT1 – Landscaping scheme to be approved 

A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed. All landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years. Such maintenance is to include the replacement of any 
plants that die, or are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   

Page 365



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.21.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.21.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.21.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.21.10 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
 
 

Page 366



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.21.11 SCH6 – Provision of parking 
The whole of the car parking accommodation hereby approved shall be 
provided before the occupation of any of the approved residential units takes 
place, and shall be retained permanently for the accommodation of vehicles 
associated with the occupation of these residential units.  
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.21.12 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences the 3 disabled car parking 
spaces shall be provide for use by the vehicles of persons with disabilities as 
located on drawing number 187_00_103. 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.21.13 SCH9 – Marking parking areas  

Before the use hereby permitted first commences, appropriate markings shall 
be used to delineate all car parking spaces and service areas within the 
site/development as shown on the permitted plans, and such marking is to be 
retained permanently. 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.21.14 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for at least 20 bicycles, as shown on 
the plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.21.15 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.21.16 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 

Page 367



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 
  

A.21.17 NSC – Secured by Design 
The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 A.21.18 NSC – Parking Management 

Before the use hereby permitted first commences, a parking management plan 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, 
before construction commences.  This plan should include: 
 
• Plans of the parking, access and manoeuvring layout. 
• How the parking will be managed. 
 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 
 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.21.19 NSC – Access Visibility 

The proposed vehicular access shall accommodate adequate and protected 
pedestrian visibility splays along the back edge of the footway leading into the 
development.  A height of 600mm shall be adopted as the point above which 
unobstructed visibility shall be provided, and this will apply to the boundary 
treatment on either side of the crossover. 
REASON: In the interests of orderly and satisfactory parking provisions being 
made on the site to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the free flow of traffic or public safety along the adjoining highway. 

 
A.22 Informatives (ref. 2007/3012) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

Page 368



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.23 That permission (ref. 2008/1954 – Thirlmere House) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 

A.23.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.23.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than three years 
after the date of this permission.  
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.  

 
A.23.3 SCG6 – Restrictions of Permitted Development Rights 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required for the erection of any extensions, 
outbuildings, or any other external alterations.  

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.23.4 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.23.5 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Staffordshire blue engineering facing brickwork details  
• Standing seam oxidized copper sheeting details   
• Double glazed doors and windows details  
• Double glazed curtain walling details  
• Copper framing details   
• Paving details  

Page 369



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

• Fencing details  
 

REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.23.6 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.23.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.23.8 SCT3 – Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 A.23.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 

A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.23.10 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 

Page 370



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
A.23.11 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences, at least two car parking 
spaces shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the vehicles of 
persons with disabilities at locations close to the entrances to the building(s). 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.23.12 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 12 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.23.13 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.23.14 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.23.15 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
 

Page 371



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

A.24 Informatives (ref. 2008/1954) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 
A.25 That permission (ref. 2007/3003 – Thirlmere House) be GRANTED, subject 

to the following conditions: 
 
A.25.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 
strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
A.25.2 SCB2 – Commencement within three years (Listed Building Consent) 

The Development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration 
of three years beginning with the date of this consent. 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18(a) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended. 

 
A.25.3 SCG6 – Restrictions of Permitted Development Rights 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Development Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required for the erection of any extensions, 
outbuildings, or any other external alterations.  

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.25.4 SCM6 – Materials to be approved (entire site) 

 Details, including samples, of materials to be used on the external surfaces of 
the building, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

  

Page 372



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.25.5 SCM7 – Details to be approved 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
• Staffordshire blue engineering facing brickwork details  
• Standing seam oxidized copper sheeting details   
• Double glazed doors and windows details  
• Double glazed curtain walling details  
• Copper framing details   
• Paving details  
• Fencing details  

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.25.6 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
A.25.7 SCT2 – Provision of landscaping as approved 

The landscaping hereby approved as part of the development shall be carried 
out within a period of twelve months from the date on which the development of 
the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting (and seeding) 
season following completion of the development, and shall be maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten years. Such 
maintenance is to include the replacement of any plants that die, or are severely 
damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.25.8 SCT3 - Protection of trees on-site during site works 

No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence until 
chestnut paling fencing of a height not less than 1.2 metres shall have been 
erected around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site, at a radius 
from the trunk of not less than 4.5 metres.  Such fencing is to be maintained 
during the course of development to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
 

Page 373



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

 A.25.9 SCT4 – Tree Survey/Retention Plan 
A detailed Tree Survey/Retention Plan (plan and schedule) indicating precise 
location, species, height and condition of each tree accurately plotted and 
showing which trees are to be retained and which are proposed for felling shall 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on 
site. 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
A.25.10 SCH5 – Provision of parking, turning and unloading space 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
accommodation for car parking, turning and loading/unloading has been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans, and such accommodation 
shall be retained permanently for use by the occupiers and/or users of, and/or 
persons calling at, the premises only, and shall not be used for any other 
purposes. 
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
free flow of traffic or public safety along the neighbouring highway(s) and to 
ensure the permanent retention of the accommodation for parking/ loading and 
unloading purposes. 

 
A.25.11 SCH8 – Parking for persons with disabilities 

 Before the use hereby permitted first commences, at least two car parking 
spaces shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the vehicles of 
persons with disabilities at locations close to the entrances to the building(s). 

 REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located for persons with disabilities prior to occupation. 

 
A.25.12 SCH10 – Provision for cycles 

Secure, covered parking shall be provided for 12 bicycles, as shown on the 
plans hereby approved, before use of the development hereby permitted 
commences. 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made within the site for the 
parking of bicycles in the interests of discouraging car use, relieving congestion 
in surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

  
A.25.13 SCR2 – Details of refuse storage enclosure 

Details of dustbin enclosures (including mandatory recycling facilities), showing 
the design, external appearance and location thereof, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before construction 
commences. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved.   
REASON: To ensure there is adequate provision for dustbin and recycling 
facilities for the development in the interests of the appearance and amenity of 
the area. 

 
A.25.14 NSC – Ecological roofs 

Full details of a bio-diverse, substrate based (75mm minimum depth) extensive 
brown/green roof shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Page 374



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Authority, in writing, before construction commences. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development, to 
provide undisturbed refuges for wildlife, to promote sustainable urban drainage, 
and to enhance the performance and efficiency of the proposed building. 

  
A.25.15 NSC – Secured by Design 

The development shall achieve a Certificate for Compliance to Secure by 
Design or alternatively achieve Secure by Design standards to the satisfaction 
of the Metropolitan Police, details of which, to include consultation with the 
police during the construction period, shall be provided in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority within one month of the completion date. 
REASON:  To provide a safer environment for future residents and visitors to 
the site and reduce the fear of crime. 

 
A.26 Informatives (ref. 2008/1954) 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 SI.33  Landscaping 

NSI With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of the 
developer to make proper provision for drainage.  Contact Thames 
Water, Ph. 0845 850 2777, for further information. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 375



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

Recommendation B 
 

B.1 That the above recommendation be subject to the applicant, the landowners 
and their mortgagees entering into a section 106 agreement in order to secure 
the following matters to the satisfaction of the Assistant Director of 
Regeneration and Planning and the secretary and solicitor to the Council: 

  
B.2 To secure the provision of 40.4% of units as affordable housing, with a split of 

58%:42% socially rented/intermediate. 
 
B.3 That the provision of 40.4% (55 units) affordable housing be secured by 

Hanover in Hackney Housing Association providing 32 social rented sheltered 
accommodation units, 4 intermediate sheltered accommodation units, and 23 
intermediate units.  The sheltered accommodation units shall be rented in 
perpetuity. 

B.4 No occupation of the Open Market Dwellings until all the affordable units have 
been transferred to the approved RSL. 

 
B.5 That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall make the payment of a 

sustainable transport contribution of £44,800 towards works to the public 
highway. 

 
B.6 The signing of a Section 278 legal agreement under the Highways Act to pay 

the Council £165,293.89 for required works to the highway.  Unavoidable works 
required to be undertaken by Statutory Services will not be included in London 
Borough of Hackney estimate or payment. 

 
B.7 That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall contribute £1,034,117.65 for the 

purpose of providing education and/or training facilities and libraries and 
initiatives for the residents of the London Borough of Hackney. 

 
B.8 That the landowner/developer/mortgagee shall contribute £4,625.62 for the 

purposed of providing open space contributions for the benefit of the residents 
of the London Borough of Hackney. 

 
B.9 Development with no residential parking permits to be sought. 

 
B.10 All residential units to be built to Lifetime Home standards. 
 
B.11 Commitment to the Council’s local labour and construction initiatives (25% on 

site employment). 
 
B.12 Payment by the landowner/developer of all the Council’s legal and other 

relevant fees, disbursements and Value Added Tax in respect of the proposed 
negotiations and completion of the proposed Section 106 Agreement. 

 
B.13 Achievement of a level 3 rating under the proposed Code for Sustainable 

Homes with best endeavours to achieve level 4. 
 
 

Page 376



Planning Sub-Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

  

B.14 20% reduction in carbon emissions through the use of renewable energy 
sources and use of low energy technology. 

 
B.15 That the applicant shall carry out all works in keeping with the National 

Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
 
B.16 A travel plan shall be provided towards assisting occupiers to achieve 

sustainable travel targets with the services of a Travel Plan co-ordinator. 
 

B.17 At least 10% of units provided shall be wheelchair accessible. 
 

 
 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher Smith 
DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION  

 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME AND 
TELEPHONE 

EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP (1995) 
and the London Plan 

(2004) 

Adam Flynn  
(020 8356 8442) 

263 Mare Street, London 
E8 3HT 

 

Page 377



Page 378

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
                                                                                                                                                    

ADDRESS: Site Adjacent to 49 Glenarm Road London E5 0LY 

REPORT AUTHOR: Bernard Haasbroek 
 

APPLICATION:  2008/0384 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS 
The following drawings as pertained in 
the Design and Access Statement 
constitute the proposal: 
030/L34,  030/L35,  030/E02 
030/E03,  030/E04,  030/E05 
030/E06,  030/E08,  030/L19 
030/L29,  030/L31,  030/L20 
030/L21,  030/L22,  030/L23 Rev A 
030/L24 Rev A, 030/L25,  030/L26 
030/L28,  030/L33 Rev A,   
030/L27 Rev A,  030/L30 
 

VALID DATE: 14/02/2008 
 

APPLICANT:  
Mr Samuel Moore 
33 Rosary Gardens 
London 
SW7 4NQ 
 

AGENT:   
Mr Lynch 
Lynch Architects Ltd 
147A Hoxton Street 
London 
N1 6QG 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of three-storey plus basement, three bedroom house with 
sunken garden together with erection of 1.8 metre high front boundary fence and wall 
and provision of refuse store. 
 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission. 

 

      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  C3 Residential 0 sqm 
 

Proposed C3 Residential 122 sqm 
 

RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 

Agenda Item 24

Page 379



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
Existing 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Proposed Flats 0 0 0 0 0 
 Dwellings 0 0 1 0 0 
 Studio 0 0 0 0 0 
Totals (Total = 1)  

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  N/A N/A N/A 
Proposed  0 0 1 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

The application site comprises of the rear garden of 72 Median Road but access 
to the site is off Glenarm Road and the proposed dwelling is positioned against 
the blank gable end of 49 Glenarm Road.  The surrounding area is 
characterised by 3 storey residential terraces with average sized rear gardens. 
The site enjoys good access to the local amenities of Lower Clapton Road as 
well as the public transport network on Median Road and Hackney Central. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The application site is not in any conservation area, nor does the proposal 

affect the setting of any listed buildings. 
 
 
3. HISTORY 
 

Application 2007/2968  
 
Proposal – Erection of four storeys, three bedroom house fronting Glenarm 
Road 
 
Decision – Refused on the 15 January 2008 
 
Level – Delegated 
 
Reasons for Refusal – Incompatible and obtrusive form of development, which 
would have had an adverse effect on the character and appearance of 
adjoining properties, and the surrounding streetscene. It was also considered 
that the proposed development would be excessive in size and height. 

 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 21/02/2008 

 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 13/03/2008 

Page 380



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: No 

 
 
4.5 Neighbours 

 
Thirteen letters of objection from eleven local residents were received.  The 
issues that were highlighted can be summarised as: 

 
• Loss of outlook 
• Loss of daylight and daylight. 
• Overlooking 
• Dominating/Overbearing form of development. 
• Out of character with existing architecture and locality 
• Lack of parking 
• Setting a precedent for further development 
• Harm to fauna and flora 
• Substandard room sizes and lack of amenity space 
• Safety issues due to sunken garden 

 
Concerns were also expressed regarding undermining of existing structures to 
form sunken garden, impacts on local water installations as well as a lack in 
supply. Such issues are not considered to be planning considerations. 

 
 

4.6 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.6.1 Thames Water Utilities:  

No objection – requested that informatives be included with a planning 
permission to request that 1) a non- return valve be installed to avoid risk of 
backflow from main sewers, 2) ensure that surface water runoff would attenuate 
into public sever and 3) Thames Water’s approval be obtained as there are 
public sewers traverses the site. 

 
 

4.7 Other Council Departments 
 
4.7.1 Conservation & Design: 

No Objection – The bulk and massing of the proposed development is 
considerably less and an improvement from the previous proposal.  Changes to 
the rendering and front metal railing, which was addressed with revised 
drawings.  The following standard conditions were recommended: 
M2 – Material samples to be submitted 
M7 – Detailed drawings of windows and doors 
M11 – Modified drawings for front railing. 
 

Page 381



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
4.7.2 Waste Management: No response received. 

No objection – proposal show two 100 litre refuse bins and space for recycling 
boxes, which are considered to be acceptable for this proposal. 

 
4.7.3 Trees and Landscape Officer:  

No response received. 
 
 
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 

EQ1  - Development Requirements 
EQ48  - Designing Out Crime 
HO3  - Other Sites for Housing 
TR19  - Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 

SPG1  - New Residential Developments 
 
5.3 London Plan (2008) 
 

3A.1  - Increasing London’s supply of housing 
4B.1  -  Design principles for a compact city 
4B.3  - Maximising the potential of sites 
4B.4  - Sustainable design and construction 

 
 
5.4 National Planning Policies 
 

PPS1  - Creating Sustainable Communities 
PPG3  - Housing 

 
 
6. COMMENT 
 

This application is a resubmission of a previous planning application for the site 
(ref: 2007/2968) that was refused by delegated authority in January 2008. 
 
The current application is for a three-storey, three-bedroom single dwelling 
house to be located on the north side of Glenarm Road, close to the junction 
with Median Road. The site is located within the existing rear garden of 72 
Median Road, and would abut number 49 Glenarm Road.  
 
The current scheme has been significantly amended from the previous 
submission, with the principle difference being the significant reduction of the 
overall height of the proposed development from four-storeys to three.  
 

Page 382



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
The proposed three-storey dwelling includes a basement level with excavated 
garden space of 30m2 providing private outdoor amenity space for the 
prospective occupants; this space is located off the kitchen/diner. At ground 
floor is located a study and bedroom, with two bedrooms located on the first 
floor, and the living area being located at second floor level. The proposal also 
includes a second floor level balcony to the front of the property of 5m2. 
 
The proposal is of a contemporary and minimalist design, with the lower ground 
and ground floor levels being constructed from acid-washed concrete, with wire 
cut white brickwork at first and second floor levels.  

 
Considerations 

 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 

 
• Land Use 
• Design 
• Amenity 
• Consideration of objections 

 
Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 

 
 
6.1 Land Use 
 

The site currently forms part of the rear garden of an existing residential 
property, and therefore has an established use as residential land. The 
proposed redevelopment of the site for use as a single residential dwelling is 
therefore considered to be acceptable and in accordance to policy HO3 (Other 
Sites for Housing) of the Hackney UDP as well as policies 3A.1 (Increasing 
London’s Supply of Housing) and 4B.3 (Maximising the Potential of Sites) of the 
London Plan. 

 
6.2 Design 

 
6.2.1 The proposed new dwelling has been designed to have a bulk and scale which 

is subservient to the terrace of which it would become part of. The proposed 
dwelling has been set back from the street level to be in line with the adjacent 
terrace, and has a much lower roof height, approximately 1m below the eaves 
of the adjoining terrace. It is considered that the proposed development would 
be complementary to the street scene, and would not compete with or over 
dominate the period design of the adjacent properties. The design of the 
proposed dwelling house is in this instance therefore considered to be 
acceptable in terms of policies HO3 (Other Sites for Housing) and EQ1 
(Development Requirements) of the Hackney UDP. 

 
6.2.2 The proposed materials contribute to the proposed contemporary design, with a 

palette that respects the character of adjoining properties and the locality as a 
whole. Although the materials proposed are acceptable in principle, a condition 
has been included for samples of the proposed external materials to be 

Page 383



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before work 
commences on site. The proposal includes a 1.8m high metal railing fence to 
street elevation which would replace an existing brick wall of a similar height. A 
revised scheme was negotiated that now shows the height of the railings in front 
of the proposed building at 1.2 metres so that it lines up with the front boundary 
fence of 49 Glenarm Road and address the concerns from Council’s 
Conservation and Design Team. The proposed boundary treatment would 
compliment the appearance of the proposed dwelling, the permeable 
appearance and height allows for both natural surveillance of the street, and 
security for the proposed dwelling. The proposed development also includes a 
‘Green Roof’ element on the proposed flat roof to the main building.  The 
proposal therefore complies with policy EQ48 (Designing Out Crime) of the 
Hackney UDP and policy 4B.6 (Sustainable Design and Construction) of the London 
Plan. 

 
 

6.3 Amenity Considerations 
 
6.3.1 The proposed dwelling satisfies the requirements of SPG 2 ‘Residential 

Extensions, Conversions and Alterations’ in terms of providing adequate room 
sizes and layouts. This would result in suitable accommodation for a family; 
specifically the proposed dwelling incorporates a large kitchen/diner, two single 
bedrooms and a double bedroom along with an adequately sized living room, 
and a large study. All habitable rooms would have adequate access to both 
daylight and outlook. 

 
6.3.2 The proposals also include ample external amenity areas for a compact family 

unit, this area consists of a 30m2 garden at lower ground floor level, and a small 
balcony to the street elevation accessed from the ground floor study, and a 5m2 
balcony fronting the street at second floor level which is accessed from the 
living room. It is noted that the rear garden can also be accessed from street 
level by means of an external staircase.  

 
6.3.3 In terms of overlooking the proposed dwelling has been designed in a manner 

which would ensure that there would be no overlooking or loss of privacy from 
existing neighbouring buildings to the prospective occupants of the proposed 
development.  

 
6.3.4 With respect to any potential increase in overlooking or loss of privacy to 

neighbouring buildings, the proposed development has been designed in order 
to minimise its potential impact. This has been achieved by having no side 
facing windows to the elevation facing the rear of 72 Median Road other than at 
lower ground and ground floors – these windows would be obscured by the 
proposed boundary treatment. The rear elevation has two large glazed 
elements, however these will be fixed and opaque, and this will be covered 
under a condition to ensure this remains the case for the lifetime of the building. 
The amended scheme also includes a solid wall to the side of the top floor 
balcony so that no overlooking will occur to the rear of 72 Median Road.   

 

Page 384



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
6.3.5 The proposed development will inevitably have some impact on access to 

daylight and sunlight to neighbouring properties, the most effected of these 
being number 49 Glenarm Road, and 72-74 Median Road, as they share 
boundaries with the application site. A site visit has revealed that the effected 
window at 49 Glenarm Road serves a lobby/hallway, which is not classified as a 
habitable room. As such, there are no requirements to meet BRE guidelines for 
this window. In terms of numbers 72 and 74 Median Road there would be a 
minimal loss of daylight, however this appears to fall within the acceptable limits 
(less than 20% reduction) as set out by the BRE test. In terms of sunlight the 
overall bulk and scale of the proposed dwelling would largely fall within the 
shadow cast by the existing property at 49 Glenarm Road. The impact on 
daylight and sunlight to neighbouring properties is considered to be negligible in 
this instance, would not warrant a refusal, and is therefore considered to be 
acceptable. 

 
6.4 Consideration of Objections 
 
6.4.1 Impact on Character of the Local Area 
 

Objectors have raised concerns that the character of the local built environment 
would be damaged as a result of this proposal, however as stated in the design 
section of this report, it is considered that the contemporary design of this 
proposed building would not harm the character or nature of the area, and 
would add a positive element to an established street scene. The contemporary 
design would not be pastiche, and it design separates itself from the period 
neighbouring properties, allowing the eye to differentiate between the periods 
more easily. The design of the proposal is therefore considered to be 
acceptable. 
 

6.4.2 Loss of Open Space 
 

Although the proposed development would result in the loss of part of the rear 
garden of number 72 Median Road, it is in this instance considered to be 
acceptable. National Planning policy denotes residential gardens as being 
brownfield sites, therefore suitable for development in cases that warrant it. In 
this instance 72 Median Road would still have access to adequate amounts of 
outdoor amenity space. The application is also considered to be acceptable as 
the site in question has a street frontage.  

 
6.4.3 Loss of Daylight and Sunlight 
 

Please refer to paragraph 6.3.5. 
 

6.4.4 Density 
 

It is considered that although there would be a resulting population increase in 
the locality as a result of the proposed development, it is considered that the 
local infrastructure would support this increase, while providing a suitable family 
home. The proposed development would be of a density which is not 

Page 385



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
considered to constitute overdevelopment of the site under current Planning 
Policy for new residential developments. 

 
6.4.5 Insufficient Room Sizes 

 
As stated in paragraph 6.3.5 the room sizes and amenity area of the proposal 
satisfy the Council’s requirements.  

 
6.4.6 Possible Later Conversion 

 
This proposal does not include a scheme to convert the property into separate 
dwellings. Although this scenario has not been fully assessed, it is considered 
that the proposed dwelling would not accommodate three sperate self 
contained flats. If an application for planning permission were to be made at a 
later date, this application would be assessed under its own individual merits. 

 
6.4.7 Increased Sense of Enclosure 
 

The positioning of the proposed building in relation to windows serving 
habitable rooms of adjoining properties means that the new structure is unlikely 
to have a detrimental impact upon outlook or the creation of an increased 
sense of enclosure to neighbouring properties. 

 
6.4.8 Overlooking 
 

Please refer to paragraph 6.3.4. 
 

6.4.9 Loss of Green Space and Wildlife Habitat 
 

The proposed development would result in the loss of private green space 
which is currently located behind a 2.4 metre high fence. It is not considered 
that this space is of specific public amenity value, and no evidence has been 
provided to suggest that the area provides habitat space for rare or protected 
species of plant or animal. 

 
6.4.10 Car Parking 
 

It is not considered that the proposed development would add significant strain 
to the existing on-street car parking facilities as it would be a single dwelling so 
only a limited increase in cars would be anticipated.  

 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 For the reasons outlined above, along with the consideration of the received 

objections, it is considered that in this instance the proposed scheme is 
acceptable subject to conditions as set out below: 

 

Page 386



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
8. RECOMMENDATION 

 
 
8.1 That permission be GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 

 
8.1.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 

The development shall only be carried out and completed strictly in accordance 
with the submitted plans hereby approved and any subsequent approval of 
details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in 
full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
8.1.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 

This development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
8.1.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved  

Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the external surfaces 
of the buildings, boundary walls, ground surfaces and details of the approved 
‘Green Roof’ shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work commences on implementing this planning 
permission. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.4 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.5 SCR8  – Obscure Glazing 

The windows in the north facing wall of the building shall be permanently glazed 
in obscured glass and kept fixed shut. 

 
REASON: To safeguard against overlooking of adjoining sites and premises. 
 

8.1.6 SCR2  –  Dustbin Enclosures 
Details of dustbin enclosures showing the design, location and external 
appearance, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before the use/development commences.  The 

Page 387



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 
 
REASON: In order to provide for adequate bin enclosures in the interest of the 
appearance of the site and area. 
 

8.1.7 SGC6  – Restriction of Permitted Development Rights 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Development Order 1988 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), 
planning permission shall be required in respect of development falling within 
any Class of any schedule to that Order. 

 
REASON: To safeguard the amenities of local residents and to protect the 
character and appearance of the area. 
 

 
9. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
 The following policies are relevant to the approved development/use and were 

considered by this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning 
permission: EQ1 (Development Requirements), EQ48 (Designing Out Crime), 
HO3 (Other Sites for Housing) and TR19 (Planning Standards) of the Hackney 
Unitary Development Plan 1995; and policies 3A.1 (Increasing London’s supply 
of housing), 4B.3 (Maximising the potential of sites) and 4B.4 (Sustainable 
design and construction) of the London Plan 2008. 

 
 
10. INFORMATIVES 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

NSC The applicant should incorporate within their proposal, protection to 
the property by installing for example, a non-return valve or other 
suitable device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the 
assumption that the sewerage network may surcharge to ground level 
during storm conditions. 

NSC Works affecting public sewers – There are public sewers crossing this 
site and no building work will be permitted within 3 meters of these 
sewers without Thames Water’s approval which can be contacted on 
0845 850 2777. 

SI.6 Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
  
 

Page 388



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Bernard Haasbroek 
 

 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 389



Page 390

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

ADDRESS:  St Marys Old Church, Stoke Newington Church Street  
  London N16 9ES 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  
Pascal van de Walle 
 
 

APPLICATION NUMBERS:  
2008/1100  
2008/1099  
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
E/001, E/002, E100, E101, E/102, E/103, E/200, 
E/201, E/202, E/203, E/300, E/301, E/302, E/303, 
D/100, D/101, D/102, D/103, D/300, D/301, P/002-
P1, P/100, P/100a, P/100b, P/100c, P/100d, 
P/100e, P/101, P/102, P/103, P/200, P/201-P1, 
P/203-P1, P/204-P1, P/300, P/301, P/302, P/303, 
03808R/TOPO, 03808R/Basement, 03808R/G, 
03808R/First, 03808R/Second, E/005, P/005 
 
REPORTS: 
Design and Access Statement (including 
Appendices) 
 

VALID DATE: 23/05/2008 

APPLICANT:  
 
Reverend Jonathan Clark 
The Parish Office 
St Mary Church 
Stoke Newington Church Street 
London 
N16 9ES 
 

AGENT:   
 
Matthew Lloyd Architects 
1 The Hangar 
Perseverance Works 
38 Kingsland Road 
London E2 8DD 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
(A) 2008/1099 – (Full Planning Application) Erection of a part single-storey and 
part three-storey rear extension and change of use to provide a new community 
arts centre with kitchen/servery facilities and one bedroom flat with balcony at 
second floor level involving partial demolition of the church building. Opening 
hours 10:00 to 23:00 hours daily. 
 
(B) 2008/1100 – (Conservation Area Application) Partial demolition of the church 
building to facilitate new community arts centre. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  

(A) Grant conditional planning permission  

(B) Grant conditional conservation area consent 

 
 

Agenda Item 25

Page 391



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                         (Yes)                   (No)   
CPZ    X  
Conservation Area    X (Clissold Park)  
Listed Building (Statutory)    X (Grade II)  
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 
Area of Archaeological Priority    X (Rectory – Bayston Road /  

      Tyssen Road) 
 

Green Link    X (New River/North Defoe, 
       To Petherton Road via  
 Clissold Park) 

 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 
 

Existing  D1 Church 275 m2 
Proposed D1 & D2 Church and Community Arts 

Centre 
379 m2 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Proposed Flats 1 0 0 0 0 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  0 0 0 
Proposed  0 0 0 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

1. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
1.1 St Mary’s Old Church is located on the northern side of Stoke Newington 

Church Street within the Clissold Park Conservation Area. The church is a 
Grade II* listed building with a rich architectural history with Medieval origins. 
The oldest parts of the remaining building are from it’s rebuilding in 1563. The 
building has undergone several alterations, with surviving fabric from the 16th, 
19th and 20th centuries. The application site is located adjacent to the Stoke 
Newington Council Offices, across the road from the much larger St Mary’s 
Church (built in 1858), at the western edge of the local shopping street and at 
the south east edge of Clissold Park. Since the construction of St Mary’s 
Church, the Old Church is primarily used for occasional worship and concerts. 
The nearest residential properties are located on the opposite side of Stoke 
Newington Church Street and fronting Queen Elizabeths Walk.  

 

Page 392



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
1.2 The site has good public transport connections, with bus stops within 2 minutes 

walk of the site providing access to other parts of the borough, as well as  
Victoria, King’s Cross, Euston and Chalk Farm Stations. The nearest train 
stations are Stoke Newington (0.9km), Rectory Road (1.14km), Canonbury 
(1.5km) and Finsbury Park Station (1.55km). The nearest tube station is Manor 
House (1.42km). The site has a good Public Transport Accessibility Level 
(PTAL) of 3, which indicates good accessibility to public transport, especially by 
bus. The site is also located on Hackney’s ‘Green Link’ which connects the 
green chains and open spaces of Hackney for pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
2 CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The St Mary’s Old Church is located within the Clissold Park Conservation 

Area. Any proposal in a conservation area needs to preserve or enhance 
the character and appearance of that area.  

 
3 HISTORY 

 
3.1 15/04/1996 - an application for repair of the front boundary wall, including 

provision of railings over entrances, was approved by The Council 
(NORTH/74/96/CO4).  

 
4 CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 02/06/2008 
 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 14/07/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes 
 
4.4 Press Advert: Yes 
 
4.5 Neighbours 

 
Seven neighbouring property owners were consulted as part of these 
applications and three letters of objection and one letter of support were 
received.  

 
4.5.1 The letter of support raised the following matters: 

 
• The church is in need of restoration work and this application will provide 
funding to support the needed works and its continuing upkeep. 
 

• The church will be returned to its size before it was destroyed in the war. 
 

• Architectural style reflects the existing architecture and will weather so as to 
blend into the grove of trees in which it stands. 

 

Page 393



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
4.5.2 Letters of objection were lodged on the following grounds: 

 
• Loss of visual amenity – loss of view toward the existing church which 
provides a ‘pleasant view from the park’. 

 
• Loss of historical / cultural amenity – the proposed alterations are not 
sympathetic to the original church whereas previous alterations were, will 
block the view toward the church, and will result in the loss of one of the 
‘very few Tudor churches in London, and St Mary’s Old Church is the only 
significant remnant of Tudor Stoke Newington. It’s also historically important 
as the church of the estate of Robert Dudley, Earl of Leicester, favourite of 
Queen Elizabeth 1st’.  

 
• Unnecessary overdevelopment – ‘Church Street already had a community 
centre for a couple of months that has now become Nando’s chicken 
emporium… There is plenty of space on the opposite side of the road… why 
spoil this small enchanted spot, so full of atmosphere and romance?’ 

 
• Unattractive development - which is a ‘contradiction to Hackney Council’s 
current efforts to gain approval for an £8.9M Heritage Lottery Funding for 
‘restoration’ of Clissold Park and House’. 

 
• Commercial development – with the proposed residential flat this becomes a 
commercial development on church land. 

 
4.6 Statutory Consultees 

 
4.6.1 English Heritage: 

 
“Dating in its current form from the 16th century but with medieval origins, St 
Mary’s has undergone successive periods of repair and refurbishment but 
retains a character of relatively small and modest village church, evocative of 
Stoke Newington’s rural beginnings. This character is strengthened by its open 
setting, relationship to Clissold Park and its leafy churchyard. St Mary’s 
suffered bomb damage in WWII and the early 19th century north aisle was 
destroyed. The existing north aisle was built on a smaller footprint after the war. 
 
English Heritage has no in-principle objection to the demolition of the north 
aisle or to the replacement building. The planned changes have the potential to 
increase the use of this important building while retaining the aesthetic of a 
country church and contributing positively to the character of the wider 
conservation area. We have concerns relating to the removal of the early 19th 
century box pews and although they are not the subject of the conservation 
area consent, we would like to raise the fact that little justification has been 
provided in support of their removal. The pews contribute significantly to the 
historic and aesthetic interest of the building and, as set out in the listing 
description, ‘have strong claims to special interest as important insitu survivals’. 
 
Recommendation – As set out above, English Heritage has no objection to the 
demolition of the north aisle and subsequent new extension but we recommend 

Page 394



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
that further consideration is given to the retention of the box pews or that further 
adequate justification is provided for their removal… It is not necessary to 
consult us again on this application’.   

 
4.7 Local Groups 
 
4.7.1 Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings: 

 
The Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings does not, in principle, object 
to the demolition of the north aisle and its replacement by an extension on the 
north side of the church, however the Society objects to the current proposed 
extension of the church based on the following grounds: 
 
• Size and Scale – the proposal ‘would have a major and detrimental impact 
on the Old Church which it would dominate’. 
 

• Inappropriate Design – The society ‘supports and promotes the principle of 
sympathetic contemporary design for additions to historic buildings and we 
feel that a modern design could be appropriate in this setting…. however, 
the current design is too radical and too assertive and would attract attention 
to itself and would not be subservient to the Old Church. 
 

• Inappropriate Materials – ‘The use of timber cladding on the scale envisaged 
is not, in the Society’s view, appropriate’.  
 

• Proposed layout – ‘The proposed plan of the new building is inimical to the 
traditional west east axis of the church building’. 
 

• Proposed location of the toilets – would require cutting through old fabric 
which is ‘unacceptable’ and the facilities would be located too far from the 
new extension. 
 

• Removal of the box pews and the ledger stones – their loss is not supported 
due to the major contribution they make to the historic character of the 
interior. 
 

4.7.2 Stoke Newington Conservation Area Advisory Committee (CAAC): No 
response received. 

 
4.8 Other Council Departments 
 
4.8.1 Urban Design and Conservation: 

 

St Mary Old Church is a grade II* listed building of mediaeval origin although 
the oldest remaining fabric dates from the 1563 rebuilding.  The church was 
then extensively restored by Charles Barry in 1827-9.  There is good surviving 
16th century fabric, and the 19th century work is sympathetic to the proportions 
and style of the Tudor church, in particular the fine furnishings added in the 
chancel enhanced the original church.  The early 19th century box pews and 
tombs, including ones from the 16th and 18th centuries, are important survivals 

Page 395



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
of special interest.   St Mary Old Church stands opposite the tall spire of the 
19th century St Mary’s, the two churches making a memorable visual contrast. 
 
The proposed scheme consists of the following principal elements 
 
(i) The demolition of the existing north aisle and north east vestry which 

date from the rebuilding of this part of the church following bomb 
damage in 1940.  

 
(ii) The erection of a new extension to replace the 1950’s north aisle and 

vestry, extended out to the footings of the Charles Barry 19th century 
north aisle, thus restoring the church to an earlier footprint.  The new 
extension, to house a Community arts project, consists of a space 
similar in height to the existing north aisle that it replaces.  The extension 
has a residential flat incorporated at the upper level, corresponding to 
the height of the existing 1950’s organ house which is to be retained. 

 
(iii) The re-ordering of the existing church interior, including the removal of 

the pews from the nave, although the earlier pews in the south aisle 
would be retained. 

 
The provisions of the Ecclesiastical Exemption apply in this case and therefore 
listed building consent is not required.  Listed building issues relating to the 
demolition of the north aisle and the re-ordering of the church are subject to the 
Faculty procedure administered by the Diocesan Advisory Committee.  
However, officers have been consulted on the scheme from an early stage, 
together with English Heritage and the DAC.  As a result we have no objections 
to the demolition of the existing north aisle and we support the proposal for the 
new extension to form the Community arts project. 
 
The design of the new extension has been the subject of discussion and design 
development.  We feel that the proposed scheme would produce a structure 
that would be strikingly different from the existing church, but that in its 
simplicity of form and materials would successfully complement, and retain the 
integrity, of the old building.   
 
The external massing is, in our view, acceptable and reflects the scale and 
massing of the church.  The proposed extensions will not be visible from 
Church Street, thus preserving the setting of the old church and churchyard 
when seen from the street and from St Mary’s church opposite.  It is proposed 
to clad the new extension in vertical hardwood timber cladding in varying widths 
designed to add subtle variations in colour, texture, grain and weathering 
patterns to its appearance.   We feel that this would be an appropriate 
treatment in this context. 
 
The scheme also proposes a new path through the churchyard with a new 
access gate into Clissold Park. No graves or tombs are to be removed, and no 
trees will be affected by the proposed work.   All flat roofs will be sedum 
planted. 
 

Page 396



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
In summary, we support this proposal which is a carefully worked out 
contemporary addition to an important historic building that would not only 
complement the existing church and its setting but also help to ensure that this 
important small church has an assured future for both continuing religious and 
community arts use. 
 
Conditions should reserve approval of all external materials (samples to be 
submitted), including cladding, windows and joinery, and any metalwork; 
landscaping proposals and tree protection; green roofs. 
 

4.8.2 Pollution Group: 
 
The developer needs to demonstrate that the use of the additions to the church 
will not be to the detriment of nearby occupiers. It is therefore recommended 
that the following condition be attached to the application: 
 
Environmental Report – Prior to commencement of the development, the 
applicant should submit a report on the assessment of all the potential 
environmental impacts (e.g. noise, air quality including dust and odour during 
the operational phase of the development on the nearby residents and the 
relevant mitigation measures. Any recommended mitigation measures shall be 
in place prior to commencement of use of the development 
 
Informative – The report shall include any service equipment like air 
conditioning, and kitchen extract systems. 
 

4.8.3 Traffic and Transport: 
 

We (LBH Traffic & Transportation) accept that the archaeological sensitivity of 
the site takes precedence over our requirement for parking or servicing 
provision within the curtilage of the site. The preservation of the site in 
conservation terms is the overriding factor in our decision to support no parking 
provision on site.  
 
I am happy with the disabled parking and servicing provision stated in their 
response below [being provision of two disabled spaces in the ground of St 
Mary’s Church on the opposite side of S N Church Street].  
 
Servicing in Lordship Terrace is [as proposed] more desirable than in S.N. 
Church Street, where this activity is like to be disruptive to traffic flows.  
 
Given the archaeological sensitivity of the site, we have no objections to the 
provision of cycle parking in the new church yard as suggested. I don’t think we 
need to pursue a Travel Plan since the proposal involves only a small increase 
on floorspace, which is below the recommended threshold for a Travel Plan.  

  

Page 397



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
4.8.4 Landscape and Tree Officer: No response received. 

 
4.8.5 Waste Management: No response received. 
 
5 POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) (saved) 
 

EQ1  - Development Requirements 
EQ12  - Protection of Conservation Areas 
EQ13  -  Demolition in Conservation Areas 
EQ14   -  Alterations and Extensions of buildings in Conservation Areas 
EQ16  - Protection of Listed Buildings 
EQ17  - Alterations to Listed Buildings 
EQ18  - Setting of Listed Buildings 
EQ19  -  Changes of Use of Listed Buildings 
EQ29  - Archaeological Heritage 
EQ31   -  Trees 
EQ40  -  Noise Control 
EQ42  - Air Pollution 
EQ48   -  Designing out Crime 
HO3  - Other sites for Housing 
TR19  - Planning Standards 
OS5  - Development Affecting Open Spaces and Parks 
OS6   - Green Chains and Links 
CS8  - Places of Religious Worship 
ACE1  - New Arts, Culture and Entertainment Development 
ACE8  - Planning Standards 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 

SPG11  - Access For People With Disabilities 
SPG12  - Conservation 
SPG13  - Listed Buildings 

 
5.3 London Plan (2008) 
 

2A.1 - Sustainability criteria 
3C.2 - Matching development to transport capacity 
3C.16 -  Tackling congestion & reducing traffic 
3C.20 - Improving conditions for walking 
3C.21 -  Improving conditions for cycling 
3C.22 - Parking strategy  
4A.1 - Tackling climate change 
4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city 
4B.2 - Promoting world-class architecture and design 

 
5.4 National Planning Policies 
 

PPS1  - Creating Sustainable Communities 

Page 398



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
PPG13  - Transport 
PPG15  - Planning and the Historic Environment 

 
6 COMMENT 
 
Planning permission and Conservation Area Consent are sought to redevelop the 
site of the Grade II-listed St Mary’s Old Church on Stoke Newington Church Street 
into a multi-use community arts centre. The church will remain a consecrated 
church, and a new one-bedroom flat is proposed in the eastern side of the new 
addition.  
 
The provisions of the Ecclesiastical Exemption apply in this case and therefore 
listed building consent is not required. Listed building issues relating to the 
demolition of the north aisle and the re-ordering of the church are subject to the 
Faculty procedure administered by the Diocesan Advisory Committee (DAC). 
Consultation was, however, also undertaken with Council at an early stage on 
these matters. 
 
The proposed redevelopment will primarily comprise demolition of the existing 
north aisle and north east vestry, erection of a new extension to replace the 1950’s 
north aisle and vestry, and the re-ordering of the existing church interior including 
the removal of the pews from the  nave (although the earlier pews in the south 
aisle would be retained). The scheme also proposes a new path through the 
churchyard with a new access gate into Clissold Park. No graves or tombs will be 
removed, and no trees will be affected by the proposal, and all flat roofs will be 
sedum planted. 
 
It is the intention of St Mary’s Parochial Church Council (PCC) to revive the Old 
Church to be an active and sustainable part of the Stoke Newington community. 
The proposed alterations and additions will provide a multi-use community arts 
centre which is adaptable for all sections of the community and may be used for 
alternative forms of worship, concerts and performances, rehearsals and function 
space, wedding reception hire, conferences and lectures, exhibitions and for use 
by existing and future community groups. 
 
Since construction of the much larger Church of St Mary across the road is 1858, 
the Old Church is only used for occasional worship and concerts. The proposed 
alterations and additions would allow the church to be used by a wider audience 
and provide the means to maintain the condition of the ageing church fabric. 
 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 
• The principle of the proposed development 

• Design and appearance of the proposed development 

• Impact on the Conservation Area 

• Traffic and Transport considerations 

• Sustainability  

• Waste Management 

Page 399



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 

• Impact on the amenity of nearby residents 

• Consideration of Objections 

Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
6.1 The principle of the proposed development 

 
6.1.1 The proposed development comprises partial demolition, alterations and 

additions to the existing St Mary’s Old Church, a Grade-II listed item located 
within the Clissold Park Conservation Area. The Old Church will continue to 
be used for church services, however a broad range of new community 
uses within the D1 and D2 use class will be provided for. A new one-
bedroom unit is proposed in the eastern part of the new addition, and a new 
path through the churchyard with access to Clissold Park is also proposed. 

 
6.1.2 The development of new Arts, Culture and Entertainment buildings and 

facilities are generally supported in accordance with the provisions in Policy 
ACE1 of the Hackney UDP. This is particularly where the use meets unmet 
demands for the local community and London as a whole, has minimal 
impacts on neighbouring uses and the environment and provides 
satisfactory means of access and facilities for people with disabilities and for 
people with young children. The proposed community arts centre will be a 
flexible multi-use space available for use for alternative forms of worship, 
concerts and performances, rehearsal and function space, wedding 
reception hire, conferences and lectures, exhibitions and for use by existing 
and future community groups. The use of the new facility was the result of 
extensive consultation with the local community and provides a flexible 
medium size community arts space which compliments the existing large 
community space at the Assembly Rooms and the proposed small 
community space at Clissold House. The proposed community centre is 
located away from residential properties, will operate only between the 
hours of 10:00am and 11:00pm, will not result in the loss of trees or grave 
stones, and subject to relevant conditions will have  minimal impacts on the 
neighbouring uses and environment. The proposal has also been designed 
to provide access for all persons. As such, the proposal is considered to 
satisfy the requirements of Policy ACE1 of the Hackney UDP 1995. 

 
6.1.3 Policy EQ19 of the Hackney UDP encourages the change of use of Listed 

Buildings which are no longer required for their original use or where the 
original use is no longer possible. St Mary’s Old Church will remain a 
consecrated church and services will be provided on Sundays. Most 
services are, however, provided at St Mary’s Church on the opposite side of 
Stoke Newington Church Street, and the Old Church remains largely 
unused. The proposal has been assessed by both English Heritage and 
Council’s Urban Design and Conservation Team and the design and use 
are supported. The proposed community arts centre will provide for a broad 
range of community uses. This is a positive reuse of the building and site 
which will not be detrimental to the special interest of the building or its 
setting. 

 

Page 400



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
6.1.4 Policy EQ 13 of the Hackney UDP allows demolition in conservation areas 

subject to the proposal preserving or enhancing the value of the 
conservation area. The subject site is located with the Clissold Park 
Conservation Area. Council’s Urban Design and Conservation Officer 
supports the proposal which will ‘complement the existing church and its 
setting’, and English Heritage agrees that the ‘planned changes have the 
potential to increase the use of this important building while retaining the 
aesthetic of a country church and contributing positively to the character of 
the wider conservation area’. As such, the proposal is considered to 
preserve and enhance the value of the conservation area. 

 
6.1.5 Policies EQ16, EQ17 and EQ18 contained in the Hackney UDP relate to 

demolition works or alterations to listed items. The provisions of the 
Ecclesiastical Exemption apply in this case and therefore listed building 
consent is not required but subject to the Faculty procedure administered by 
the Diocesan Advisory Committee (DAC). Consultation was, however, also 
undertaken with Council at an early stage on the proposed demolition works 
and these were supported by Council’s Urban Design and Conservation 
Team. 

 
6.1.6 The proposed one-bedroom residential flat located at the eastern end of the 

proposed addition has been designed to satisfy the requirements contained 
within Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 2 ‘Residential 
Conversions and Alterations’, policy H012 in the Hackney UDP, and the 
relevant London Plan policies. Some minor conflict exists between the 
proposed residential use and the community uses, however the entrances 
are located at opposite ends of the development, sound proofing will be 
required by the Building Regulations, hours of operation of the community 
use are restricted, and any prospective tenants will be aware of the 
conflicting uses when they arrive. The agent has advised Council that this 
unit will provide the church with additional on-going income to maintain the 
church. 

 
6.1.7 Overall the principle of the proposed development is supported and is 

considered to be compliant with the planning policies in the Hackney UDP 
(1995) and the London Plan (2008). 

 
6.2 Design and appearance of the proposed development 
 
6.2.1 The original church was built in 1563 and restored by Charles Barry in 

1827-9. It has a good survival of fabric from 1563, a period in which very 
few churches were built. The C19 restoration work is sympathetic and the 
very fine finishes inserted by Charles Barry are considered to enhance the 
original building. Additionally, the early C19 box pews and tombs are of 
special interest as in situ survivals. The Old Church stands opposite the 
new C19 St Mary’s and mid-C20 spire and north aisle. The two churches 
provide a clear visual representation of the demographic changes from the 
C16 to the C19 in this area. 

Page 401



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
6.2.2 The new extension will replace the 1950’s North aisle and vestry and 

extend to the footings of Charles Barry’s 19th century north aisle restoring 
the building to its former footprint. 

 
6.2.3 The proposed design will provide a structure that is modern and ‘strikingly 

different’ to the existing church building. The finish to the new building will 
be untreated hardwood cladding of varying widths, and may include a 
variety of different hardwoods. This will provide subtle variations in colour, 
texture, grain and weathering patterns to its appearance. 

 
6.2.4 Tall windows are proposed in the north elevation and skylights in line with 

North clerestory windows will provide light to the building. 
 
6.2.5 The proposed extensions will not be visible from Stoke Newington Church 

Street, preserving the setting of the church and the churchyard as viewed 
from the highway and from St Mary’s church opposite.  

 
6.2.6 The design and appearance of the proposed extension is supported by 

English Heritage and Council’s Urban Design and Conservation Team 
whose detailed responses are in paragraphs 4.6.1 and 4.8.1 of this report 
respectively. In summary, English Heritage has no objection to the 
demolition of the north aisle and subsequent new extension and state that 
the “planned changes have the potential to increase the use of this 
important building while retaining the aesthetic of a country church…”. 
Council’s Conservation and Design Officer concludes that this “carefully 
worked out contemporary addition to an important historic building…[will] 
complement the existing church and its setting”.   

 
6.2.7 English Heritage does, however, raise concern with the proposed removal 

of the early 19th century box pews which they believe contribute to the 
historic and aesthetic interest of the building. They acknowledge that the 
pews are not the subject of the conservation area consent, but state that 
little justification has been provided to support their removal and 
recommend that “further consideration is given to the retention of the box 
pews or that further adequate justification is provided for their removal”.  

 
6.2.8 The Council’s Urban Design and Conservation Team agree that the pews 

are rare in London, however believe that retention of the south aisle pews, 
which are of the same age, style and construction as the pews in the nave, 
is adequate retention in terms of this church subject to further consideration 
being given for an alternate location for the pews from the nave within the 
church or an alternate home being found for them. 

 
6.2.9 It should also be noted that the provisions of the Ecclesiastical Exemption 

apply in this case and issues relating to the demolition of the north aisle 
and the re-ordering of the church are subject to the Faculty procedure 
administered by the Diocesan Advisory Committee. As such, the matters 
relating to the removal of the 19th century pews are within the control of the 
DAC.  

 

Page 402



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
6.2.10 As such, the design and appearance of the proposed development is 

considered to satisfy the saved policies in the Hackney UDP and the 
London Plan (2008).  

 
6.3 Consideration of Impact on the Conservation Area 
 
6.3.1 The St Mary’s Old Church is located within the Clissold Park Conservation 

Area. Any proposal in a conservation area needs to preserve or enhance 
the character and appearance of that area in accordance with Policies 
EQ12, EQ13 and EQ14 in the Hackney UDP. 

 
6.3.2 The modern design and use of materials, including the use of a variety of 

hard-wood timbers of varying widths to clad the extension, is considered to 
sit well within the landscaped gardens which contain mature trees 
surrounding the church. Also, the proposed extension and new pedestrian 
pathway will provide improved links to and within the Conservation Area 
and an increased use of this important building.  

 
6.3.3 The Council’s Conservation and Design Team confirms that the proposal 

will “complement the existing church and its setting”, and English Heritage 
says that it will contribute “positively to the character of the wider 
conservation area”. 

 
6.3.4 As such, the proposed development is considered to preserve and enhance 

the character and appearance of the Clissold Park Conservation Area in 
accordance with Policies EQ12, EQ13 and EQ14 in the Hackney UDP. 

 
6.4 Traffic and transport considerations 
 
6.4.1 There is currently no bicycle parking, car parking or servicing provision 

within the St Mary’s Old Church site. 
 
6.4.2 The proposed development will result in a net additional gross internal 

floorspace of 104 square metres and the proposal would normally require 
the provision of bicycle parking, car parking and servicing within the site.  

 
6.4.3 Parking or servicing is not, however, proposed within the application site 

due to the significant site constraints. The St Mary’s Old Church is a 
Grade-II Listed Building located in a conservation area and an area of 
Archaeological Priority. Mature trees, graves and tombs are also located 
across the site.  

 
6.4.4 Two disabled car parking spaces and bicycle parking are, however, 

proposed within the grounds of St Mary’s Church on the opposite side of 
Stoke Newington Church Street.  

 
6.4.5 Servicing provision and refuse collection are proposed from the rear 

Lordship Terrace. Frequent or large deliveries are not anticipated as the 
proposed extension provides storage space for equipment for most uses, 

Page 403



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
ie: chairs, tables, stage, kitchen equipment, lighting and sound equipment. 
The church kitchen is generally intended for domestic scale food 
preparation only (e.g. tea and sandwiches at a function). Where food is to 
be served on a larger scale (e.g. wedding receptions) the kitchen will be 
used by caterers who may need to deliver food. Some user groups may 
require delivery of additional furniture or equipment for their activities, 
including musical instruments.   

 
6.4.6 The Council’s Traffic and Transport section were consulted on this 

application and they accept that the sensitivity nature of the constrained 
site takes precedence over the requirement for parking or servicing 
provision within the curtilage of the site and support no parking provision on 
site. Additionally, they raised no objections with the proposed provision of 
bicycle parking and disabled parking spaces within the St Mary’s Church 
yard for the same reasons, and confirmed that servicing in Lordship 
Terrace is more desirable than in Stoke Newington Church Street, where 
this activity is like to be disruptive to traffic flows.  

 
6.4.7 As such the proposed development is considered to adequate address the 

traffic and transport provisions in the Hackney UDP 1995 (saved) and the 
London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004).. 

 
6.5 Sustainability 
 

6.5.1 Planning Policy Statement No.1 and the London Plan (Consolidated with 
Alterations since 2004) focus on delivering sustainable development. 

 
6.5.2 The proposed design does not include the use of solar panels or other 

renewable energy sources. The information submitted with the application 
states that the provision of these facilities is not possible as the proposed 
extension is located on the northern side of the Grade-II* listed building, in 
an area of Archaeological Priority on a site that is heavily shaded by trees. 
The proposed works will, however, replace the outdated mechanical and 
electrical services in the Old Church with a new and more efficient system, 
include repairs to the church which will improve air/water tightness, and 
provide insulation in the construction of the new extension. These works 
will all assist to improve the energy efficiency of the building. 

 
6.5.3 Water consumption on site will be minimised through the use of water 

efficient bathroom and kitchen fittings, and the proposed sedum-planted 
roof of the new extension minimises rainwater run-off of the building which 
reduces the requirement for waste water disposal, and encourages 
biodiversity.  

 
6.5.4 The proposal includes the provision of waste disposal and recycling 

facilities that comply with LB Hackney requirements.  
 
6.5.5 The materials for this project will be sourced with sustainability in mind. 

English hardwood is proposed for the cladding to elevations of the new 
North extension.  

Page 404



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
6.5.6 Overall, the proposal is anticipated to become a sustainable part of the 

Stoke Newington Community. The building will be constructed from quality 
materials and the proposal will provide a relative improve to the existing 
energy and water consumption requirements for the church. As such, the 
proposal is considered to adequately address sustainability issues. 

 
6.6 Potential impact on the amenity of adjoining residents 
 
6.6.1 The proposed community arts centre will be used for church services, 

concerts, plays, wedding receptions and the like. There are no residential 
developments in the immediate vicinity and the main potential impacts 
would include traffic, parking and noise impacts. 

 
6.6.2 Traffic and parking issues have been considered previously in the report. 

There is no ability to provide parking on site, however disabled parking and 
bicycle parking are provided for the facility within the St Mary’s Church 
grounds on the opposite side of Stoke Newington Church Street. The site is 
easily accessible by public transport and the area is located within a CPZ 
and some parking should be available around the site. 

 
6.6.3 With regards to noise impacts, there are no residential properties located in 

the immediate vicinity with the nearest residential properties are located on 
the opposite side of Stoke Newington Church Street, Lordship Terrace or 
on Queen Victoria Walk. The hours of operation of the premises are 
restricted to between 10:00am to 11:00pm seven days a week, including 
public holidays. The Council’s Pollution team did not raise any concern with 
the hours of operation and they requested that a condition be imposed on 
the application for a report to be submitted to Council assessing all the 
potential environmental impacts on the nearby residents and the relevant 
mitigation measures proposed. Any recommended mitigation measures 
shall be required to be in place prior to commencement of use of the 
development. 
 

6.6.4 Subject to the imposition of relevant conditions, the proposed impacts from 
the proposed development are considered to be minimal. 

 
6.7 Consideration of objections 
 
6.7.1 Three neighbour objections and one objection from The Society for the 

Protection of Ancient Buildings were received to the proposed 
development. One letter of support was also received.  

 
6.7.2 The main objections to the proposed development related to the 

‘inappropriate design’, ‘bulk and scale’, ‘use of materials’, ‘layout’ and 
demolition and/or removal of parts of the existing church and/or its fabric as 
detailed in paragraphs 4.5.2 and 4.7.1 of the report. One objection raised 
concern with the proposed ‘removal of the 19th century box pews and the 
ledger stones’. English Heritage also raised concern with removal of the 
box pews.  

Page 405



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
6.7.3 In response to the concerns raised in paragraph 6.7.2 above, Council’s 

Urban Design and Conservation Team, together with English Heritage, 
have been consulted on the scheme from an early stage and, with the 
exception of the concerns raised with removal of the box pews, both parties 
support the proposed design, appearance, bulk, scale, layout and use of 
materials of the development as discussed in detail in paragraph 6.2 of the 
report. The Council’s Urban Design and Conservation Team agree that the 
box pews are rare in London, however believe that retention of the south 
aisle pews, which are of the same age, style and construction as the pews 
in the nave, is adequate retention in terms of this church subject to further 
consideration being given for an alternate location for the pews from the 
nave within the church or an alternate home being found for them as 
detailed in paragraph 6.2.8 of the report. Additionally, it should be noted 
that the provisions of the Ecclesiastical Exemption apply in this case and 
issues relating to the demolition of the north aisle and the re-ordering of the 
church are subject to the Faculty procedure administered by the Diocesan 
Advisory Committee. As such, the matters relating to the removal of the 
19th century pews are within the control of the DAC and the issues raised in 
paragraph 6.7.2 have been addressed. 

 
6.7.4 Concern was also raised with the loss of the existing church which provides 

a ‘pleasant view from the park’ and the loss of historical / cultural amenity. 
As discussed above, and in paragraph 6.3 of the report, The Council’s 
Conservation and Design Officer and English Heritage both agree that the 
proposal is considered to enhance the Church’s setting and its appearance 
within the Conservation Area.  

 
6.7.5 The proposal is also seen as ‘unnecessary overdevelopment’ of a 

‘commercial nature’. The proposal has, however, been carefully worked out 
in consultation with the community to ensure that there is adequate 
demand for the proposed uses. The nature of the proposed use, including 
the proposed residential premises, will allow the St Mary’s Old Church to 
be maintained in good condition over time. 

 
6.7.6 It is considered that the issues raised in the objections have been 

adequately addressed and that, subject to recommended conditions, 
impacts to neighbouring residents, the Listed Building, the Clissold Park 
Conservation Area, and users of the Clissold Park will be minimised.  

 
7 CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies 

in the Hackney UDP (1995) (saved), and the London Plan (Consolidated 
with Alterations since 2004). Accordingly, the granting of planning 
permission and Listed Building Consent is recommended. 

 

Page 406



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
8 RECOMMENDATION 
 
8.1 RECOMMENDATION A: 
 
8.1.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans  
 

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 
strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in 
full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
8.1.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration 
of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
8.1.3 SCM6 – Materials to be approved  
 

Details, including samples, of all materials to be used on the external surfaces 
of the new extension, boundary walls and ground surfaces shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before work on the 
external surfaces, boundary walls and ground surfaces commences on site. 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.4 SCM7 – Details to be approved 
 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the new extension showing the matters set 
out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, 
in writing, before work on the matters set out below is commenced. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. All the details set out below shall be submitted together 
and at the same time. 
 
• Windows; all clear and obscure glazing 
• Doors 
• All exterior panelling 
• Design and appearance of accessible entrance on Hoxton Street 
• External lighting and signage on Hoxton Street entrance 
• Ground floor elevations.  

 

Page 407



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is 

satisfactory and satisfies design quality requirements, as well as safety of 
the public realm. 

 
8.1.5 SCM9 – No extraneous pipework 
 

No soil stacks, soil vent pipes, flues, ductwork or any other pipework shall be 
fixed to the (street) elevations of the building other than as shown on the 
drawings hereby approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.6 SCI3 – No roof plant 
 

No roof plant (including all external enclosures, machinery and other 
installations) shall be placed upon or attached to the roof or other external 
surfaces of the building. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.7 SCD1 – Level Access 

 
A level access shall be provided to and within the new community arts hall 
hereby approved before the use is first commenced. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to gain proper 
access to the development. 
 

8.1.8 SCD2 – Provision of access and facilities 
 

All provisions and facilities to be made for people with disabilities as shown on 
the plans and details hereby approved shall be implemented in full to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before the use is first commenced. 
The details as approved and implemented shall be permanently retained on the 
site. 

 
 REASON: In order to ensure that access and facilities for people with 

disabilities are provided in order to ensure that they may make full use of 
the development. 

 
8.1.9 SCG1 – Restriction on Hours 
 

The use hereby permitted may only be carried out between 10:00 hours and 
23:00 hours on any day. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the use is operated in a satisfactory manner and 
does not unduly disturb adjoining occupiers or prejudice local amenity 
generally. 

Page 408



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
8.1.10 SCH10 – Provision for bicycles 

 
Space shall be made available for the parking of 3 cycles within the new St 
Mary's Church site before the use of the community arts centre is first 
commenced. 
 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made withion the site for 
the parking of cycles in the interest of relieving congestion in surrounding 
streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

 
8.1.11 SCH8 – Parking for people with disabilities 
 

Before the use hereby permitted first commences, at least 2 car parking spaces 
shall be marked and retained permanently for use by the vehicles of persons 
with disabilities within the site of the new St Mary's Church on the opposite side 
of Stoke Newington Church Street. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that a reasonable minimum of parking spaces are 
located conveniently for the use persons with disabilities. 

 
8.1.12 SCL10 – Archeological Investigation 
 

No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the Council, as local planning authority.  The development shall 
only take place in accordance with the detailed scheme approved pursuant to 
this condition.  The archeaological works shall be carried out by a suitably 
qualified investigating body acceptable to the Council.   
 
REASON: To safeguard the archaeological interest of the site, which is within a 
Area of Archaelogical Priority. 

 
8.1.13 SCL11 – Archaeology and Foundations 
 

No work on site shall take place until a detailed design and method statement 
for the foundation design and all new groundworks has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Council, as local planning authority.  The 
development hereby approved shall only take place in accordance with the 
detailed scheme approved pursuant to this condition. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the archaeological interest of the site, which is within a 
Area of Archaelogical Priority. 

 
8.1.14 SCR2 – Dustbin Enclosures (details to be approved) 

 
Details of dustbin enclosures showing the design, location and external 
appearance, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before the use/development commences.  The 

Page 409



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
developement shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 
 
REASON: In order to provide for adequate bin enclosures in the interest of the 
appearance of the site and area. 

 
8.1.15 SCT1 – Landscaping Scheme to be approved 

 
A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed; all landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants 
that die, or are severly damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
8.1.16 SCT2 – Provision of Landscaping as Approved 

 
The landscaping scheme hereby approved as part of the development shall be 
carried out within a period of twelve months from the date at which the 
development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting 
(and seeding) season following completion of the development and shall be 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten 
years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants that die, or 
are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and in the interests of the appearance of the site 
and of the area generally. 

 
8.1.17 SCT3 – Protection of trees during site works 

 
No development will take place on site until full details of tree protection have 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Council and until such 
approved protection has been erected on site.  
Tree protection will be in accordance with BS5837:2005 (Trees in relation to 
construction - Recommendations) and will protect the root protection area 
calculated as described in Table 2 of that British Standard.  
The protective fencing will be 2.4m high and conform to Figure 2 of 
BS5837:2005 i.e. a scaffold framework comprising a vertical and horizontal 
framework, well braced to resist impacts, with vertical tubes spaced at a 

Page 410



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
maximum interval of 3m.  On to this weldmesh panels should be securely fixed 
with wire or scaffold clamps. 
 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
8.1.18 SCT5 – No removal, felling, topping or lopping of trees 

 
No tree within the curtilage of the site shall be wilfully damaged or destroyed 
and no tree shall be removed, lopped, topped, felled or uprooted without the 
prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide for the retention and protection of 
existing treest in the interests of the appearance of the locality. 

 
8.1.19 NSC – Non standard condition 

 
Prior to commencement of any works, the applicant shall submit a report 
detalining the potential noise impacts on nearby residents and the relevant 
mitigation measures proposed. The report, along with any proposed remedial 
measures shall be approved by Council's Pollution Group prior to the 
commencement of any works. The development shall be carried out fully in 
accordance with remedial measures thus approved and the measures shall be 
retained thereafter.  
  
Reason: To ensure the proposal is acceptable for the occupants. 

 
8.1.20 NSC – Non standard condition 

 
A vegetation-covered roof (or 'green roof') system is to be established on the 
new extension's roof surfaces as shown in the approved plans. Details thereof 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing 
before occupation of the development hereby approved first commences. 
 
REASON: To enhance the character and ecology of the development. 

 
8.1.21 NSC – Non standard condition 

 
No deliveries shall be taken or dispatched from the premises outside 08:00 
hours to 24:00 hours any day. 
 
Reason: To safeguard from noise and disturbance to residential occupiers. 

 
8.2 RECOMMENDATION B: 
 

That Conservation Area Consent be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 

Page 411



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
8.2.1 SCBN2 – Commencement with three years (Conservation Area  

Consent) 
 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this consent. 

 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18(a) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended. 

 
8.2.2 SCL8B – Demolition as part of redevelopment 
 

The demolition works hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than 
as part of the completion of development for which planning permission was 
granted under planning application 2008/1099 and such demolition and 
development shall be carried out without interruption and in complete 
accordance with the plans referred to in this consent and any subequent 
approval of details. 
 
REASON: As empowered by Section 74(3) of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas Act 1990 and to maintain the character and 
appearance of the Clissold Park Conservation Area. 

 
9 REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

The following policies saved in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan (1995) 
are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by this 
Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 - 
Development Requirements; EQ12 - Protection of Conservation Areas; EQ13 - 
Demolition in Conservation Areas; EQ14 - Alterations and Expansions of 
buildings in Conservation Areas; EQ16 - Protection of Listed Buildings; EQ17 - 
Alterations to Listed Buildings; EQ18 - Setting of Listed Buildings; EQ19 - 
Changes of Use of Listed Buildings; EQ20 - Buildings of Local Significance; 
EQ29 - Archaeological Heritage; EQ31 – Trees; EQ40 - Noise Control; EQ42 - 
Air Pollution; EQ48 - Designing out Crime; HO3 - Other sites for Housing; TR19 
- Planning Standards; OS5 - Development Affecting Open Spaces and Parks; 
OS6 - Green Chains and Links; CS8 - Places of Religious Worship; ACE1 - 
New Arts, Culture and Entertainment Development; ACE8 - Planning 
Standards; and, TR19 - Planning Standards. 
 
The following policies in the London Plan (2004) are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching the decision 
to grant planning permission: 2A.1 - Sustainability criteria; 3C.2 - Matching 
development to transport capacity; 3C.16 - Tackling congestion & reducing 
traffic; 3C.20 - Improving conditions for walking; 3C.21 - Improving conditions 
for cycling; 3C.22 - Parking strategy; 4A.1 - Tackling climate change; 4B.1 - 
Design principles for a compact city; and, 4B.2 - Promoting world-class 
architecture and design. 

 

Page 412



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
10 INFORMATIVES 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 

SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.25  Disabled Persons’ Provisions 
  SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
  

NSI.1 All materials and details submitted pursuant to the discharge of 
condition 3 and condition 4 of this granting of full planning 
permission ('materials to be approved') should be supplied and 
delivered at the same time in a container clearly marked with the 
address of the application site, reference to the application 
number 2008/1099, and accompanied by coloured copies of 
relevant elevational drawings, to which each material 
sample should be clearly referenced and labelled accordingly. Full 
specifications detailing each material's manufacturer and colour 
(as per manufacturer's description/name thereof) should also be 
submitted at the same time. 

 
 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Pascal van de Walle 
 

 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 413



Page 414

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

 
ADDRESS: 10 Mountgrove Road  
London N5 2LS 

REPORT AUTHOR: Colin Leadbeatter 
 
 

WARD: Brownswood 
 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 2008/0368 
 
Drawing Numbers: 1353/3A, 1353/4 

VALID DATE: 27/02/2008 

APPLICANT:  
 
Mr Nicholas Maggiulli 
15 The Mall  
Southgate  
London  
N14 6LR 
 

AGENT:   
 
Bob Trimble - Architects 
York Chambers  
36 York Street  
Twickenham  
TW1 3LJ 
 

PROPOSAL: Conversion of single dwellinghouse to create three self-contained 
flats (comprising 1 x 3 bed flat and 2 x1 bed flats) together with erection of 
second floor roof  extension, erection of single storey rear infill extension, and 
alterations to rear elevation.  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission. 

 
      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  C3 Residential 160sqm 
Proposed C3 Residential 160sqm 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing Dwelling 0 0 0 1 0 
Proposed Flats 2 0 1 0 0 
 Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 
 Studio 0 0 0 0 0 
Totals (Total = 3)  

 

Agenda Item 26

Page 415



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 
(General) 

Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  N/A N/A N/A 
Proposed  N/A N/A N/A 

 
CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
1. The site is a two-storey over basement mid-terrace Victorian property located on 
the north side of Mountgrove Road. Similar properties adjoin to either side. The property is 
currently in use as a single dwelling house.  
 
CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2. There are no conservation implications associated with this application. 
 
HISTORY 
 
3. There is no planning history for this site. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 07/03/2008 
 
Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 28/03/2008 
 
Site Notice: Yes 
 
Press Advert: No 
 
Neighbours 
 
4. 33 neighbours were consulted by letter: fourteen objections have been received by 
means of a petition. The objections raise the following planning concerns: 
 
Limited parking to the area due to the controlled parking zone. 
Type of development proposed is out of character with the street. 
Local amenities may not support an increased population. 
Provision of waste bins will reduce the quality of life of neighbouring flats. 
Impact on daylight to neighbouring gardens. 
Density (over crowding) 
 
Other issues raised which are not planning related included noise transference between 
floors, and the structural stability of the terrace. 
 
Other Council Departments 
 
Conservation & Design: No objection to the proposed alterations, in keeping with SPD. 

Page 416



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

 
Waste Management: No objection. Adequate waste provision allocated. 
 
Private Sector Housing: No response received.  
 
POLICIES 
 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 
EQ1  - Development Requirements 
HO3  - Other Sites for Housing 
HO12  - Conversions 
 
London Plan (2008) 
 
3A.2  - Borough housing targets 
3A.4  - Housing choice 
4B.1  - Design Principles for a Compact City 
 
National Planning Policies 
 
PPG3  - Housing 
 
COMMENT 
 
5. This application is for the conversion of a single dwelling house into three self 
contained flats, consisting of a 3-bedroom maisonette at lower ground and ground floor 
level, and two one-bedroom flats above, with an associated extension at roof level, and a 
single storey rear extension. An identical application at the neighbouring property at 12 
Mountgrove Road was submitted, however this has been withdrawn. 
  
Considerations 
 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 
(i) The acceptability of the conversion of the single dwelling house. 
 
(ii) The acceptability of the roof extension and single storey rear extension. 
 
(iii) The acceptability of the proposed residential accommodation. 
 
(iv) Consideration of the objections received. 
 
Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
The acceptability of the conversion of the single dwelling into self contained flats 
 
6. The existing single dwelling house has a floor area of approximately 160m2, which 
is above the 120m2 minimum as set out in policy HO12 (Conversions) of the Hackney 
Unitary Development Plan, making the house suitable for conversion in principle. As the 

Page 417



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

floor area of the existing dwelling is less than 180m2, it is considered that the proposed 
dwelling mix of one three-bedroom flat, and two one-bedroom flats accords with Council 
policy.  The family sized dwelling would be provided with access to the large garden space 
to the rear. 
 
The acceptability of the single storey rear extension and roof extension. 
 
7. The single storey rear ‘infill’ extension is in this instance considered to be 
acceptable, and generally meets the criteria set out in the emerging Residential 
Extensions and Alterations SPD. The proposed extension would protrude from the rear of 
the property by 3.0m, and be approximately 2.6m in height. These properties have 
relatively wide side returns, and it is considered that there would be no significant 
detrimental impact in terms of any potential loss of daylight or loss of outlook to the rear 
windows at ground floor level of the neighbouring property at 8 Mountgrove Road.  
 
8. The roof extension is considered to be acceptable and in keeping with others on 
this street. These properties have ‘London’ or ‘Butterfly’ roofs.  It is considered that as 
there are other examples of similar extensions along the terrace, along with the proposed 
extension being of a sympathetic ‘Mansard’ design with well proportioned dormer 
windows, and with the extension itself being significantly hidden behind the existing 
parapet wall to the front elevation. This roof extension would not damage the character or 
appearance of the host property, nor those surrounding it. Please see paragraph 15 for 
examples of similar mansard roof extensions on Mountgrove Road. 
 
9. There would be no loss of daylight to the rear of neighbouring properties as a result 
of the proposed roof extension.  Adequate daylight would still be reach the rear of the host 
property and the adjacent properties.  
 
The acceptability of the proposed residential accommodation. 
 
10. The proposed self contained flats all generally have suitable floor spaces and 
layouts, with the three bedroom maisonette at lower ground and ground floor level having 
two double bedrooms and one single bedroom of suitable proportions, with a separate 
kitchen/diner and living room. The family sized unit at ground floor has a living room which 
is 0.4m2 below Council guidelines; however in this instance it is considered that as other 
rooms are above guidelines for room sizes, along with the provision of a study, this is 
acceptable, and the overall size and proportions of this unit are considered acceptable.  
 
The bedroom of the 1-bedroom flat at first floor is slightly unorthadox as it is essentially 
made up of two rooms; however this has a combined floorspace of 15.1m2 and would 
provide adequate usable floorspace for use as a bedroom, with separate area for the 
location of wardrobes and other furniture. 
 
11. The proposed one-bedroom flat at first floor level has a combined kitchen/dining 
and living space of 18.5m2, and while this is slightly below Council guidelines of 21m2, it 
is considered that this floorspace is suitable for a one-bedroom flat where the proposed 
bedroom is of generous proportions (12.1m2). 
 
12. The one-bedroom flat at second floor level has a generous kitchen/living/dining 
space of 26.1m2, which is considered to be acceptable. 

Page 418



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

 
Consideration of Objections. 
 
Limited parking to the area due to the controlled parking zone. 
 
13. As the property lies within a CPZ, and is within walking distance of many local bus 
stops, and within walking distance of both Finsbury Park and Arsenal Underground 
Stations, it is considered that the prospective occupants of the proposed dwellings would 
not need a car.  Occupants would be entitled to apply for a residents parking permit 
subject to availability.  
 
Noise transference from floor to floor. 
 
14. The floor layouts of the proposed flats are considered acceptable, and would not 
cause significant noise nuisance between one another as they are ‘stacked’ properly.  
Building Regulation approval will require the provision of suitable soundproofing 
measures. 
 
Type of development proposed is out of character with the street. 
 
15. Mountgrove Road is characterised by similar properties, many with existing roof 
extensions, along with properties that have previously been converted into flats. Similar 
examples to this proposal include number 62 Mountgrove Road (granted planning 
permission in 2001 under application reference 2001/0879), number 26 (granted planning 
permission in 2003 under application reference 2003/0617) and number 4 (granted 
planning permission in 2003 under application reference 2003/0703). 
 
16. The proposed materials are considered to be acceptable, with roof materials to 
match the existing. It should be noted that the installation of UPVC windows would not 
necessarily require planning permission for single dwelling houses in this area. 
 
Local amenities/services may not support an increased population. 
 
17. No internal consultees have objected to the proposed development, and the 
conversion meets criteria as set out within the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995.  
It also does not conflict with the London Plan. 
 
Provision of waste bins will reduce the quality of life of neighbouring flats. 
 
18. The Councils waste management team have not objected to this application and 
the applicant has proposed placement and positioning of three standard waste bins and 
recycling boxes to the front of the property. This is considered to be acceptable, and it is 
considered that if the bins are properly maintained there would be no undue harm to 
neighbouring properties. 
 
Impact on daylight to neighbouring gardens. 
 
19. It is considered that the impact on daylight to neighbouring gardens will be 
negligible. The rear gardens to Mountgrove Road are approximately 20m long, with the 
rear gardens to Queens Drive behind measuring nearly 30m in length. It is considered that 

Page 419



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

partly due to the depth of the rear gardens adequate daylight and sunlight would still be 
able to reach the rear gardens of Mountrgove Road if this development were to be 
approved. The single storey rear extension is of modest proportions, with the neighbouring 
property having a wide side return. Although there may be some impact on light to number 
8 Mountgrove Road as a result of this addition, it is considered this impact would be 
minimal. 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
19. The proposed conversion of the existing dwellinghouse to flats complies 
satisfactorily with the Council’s policies and standards governing this form of development.  
The proposed extensions are likewise acceptable and would not infringe on the amenities 
of adjoining occupiers or detract from the appearance of the area..  The site is well located 
with regard to public transport so that on-site parking is not required 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Planning permission be Granted subject to: 
 
1)  SCB1N   Commencement within 3 years 
 
The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended. 
 
2) SCB0  Development only in accordance with submitted  
 plans 
 
The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed strictly in 
accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any subsequent approval of 
details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in full 
accordance with the plans hereby approved. 
 
3)  SCM1  Materials to Match Existing 
 
All new external finishes in respect of all the works hereby approved (and any other 
incidental works to be carried out in this connection) shall match the existing building in 
respect of materials used, detailed execution and finished appearance. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
SI  Reason for approval:  

Page 420



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

 
The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995 are 
relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by this Council in 
reaching the decision to grant planning permission:  EQ1 [Development Requirements], 
HO3 [Other Sites for Housing], H012 [Conversions], Policy 3A.2: [Borough Housing 
Targets], Policy 3A.4: [Housing choice], Policy 4B.1: [Designing Principles for a compact 
City]  
 
SI.1  Building Control 
 
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Act 1984 and other Building 
Control legislation, which must be complied with to the satisfaction of The Planning and 
Transportation Service, Dorothy Hodgkin House, 12 Reading Lane, London, E8 1HJ. 
Telephone No: 020 8356 5000. Before any building work (including improvements to 
means of escape and changes of use) is commenced on site, detailed plans, together with 
the appropriate application form must be submitted for approval and early consultation is 
advised. 
 
S3  Hours of Building works 
 
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 
which imposes requirements as to the way in which building works are implemented 
including the hours during which the work may be carried out. This Act is administered by 
the Councils Pollution Control Service, 205 Morning Lane, London, E9 6JX (Telephone: 
020 7356 5000) and you are advised to consult that Division at an early stage. 
 
SI.3   Sanitary, Ventilation, and Drainage Arrangements 
 
Before any drainage works are commenced on site, detailed plans, giving notice of 
intention to build/permission to drain/construct/reconstruct or alter pipes and drains must 
be submitted for approval under the Building Regulations 1991 to the Planning and 
Transportation Service, Dorothy Hodgkin House, 12 Reading Lane, London, E8 1HJ, 
Telephone No: 020 8356 5000. Please note that it will be necessary to consult the 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd., Waste Water Connections, Kew Business Centre, Brentford, 
Middlesex, TW8 0EE. Telephone No: 020 7713 3865, Fax No: 020 7713 3875. 
 
1)  All information appertaining to the existing public sewerage system. 
2)  Requests for sewer connections. All works will be carried out by the London Borough 
of Hackney at the applicant expense. All new developments will be required to have new 
sewer connections. 
3)  Building over sewers. 
4)  System of drainage to be provided on site. 
5)  Adoption of sewers. 
 
Advisory Note: 
 
It should be noted that most sewers throughout the Borough flow full or surcharge during 
periods of heavy storm and conditions may be imposed restricting discharge to the 
system. The prime condition is that any large development shall not cause an increase in 
the rate of flow to the public sewerage system. This requirement is normally met in the 

Page 421



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

case of new developments by separation on site and storage of surface water flows in 
tanks or oversized pipes on sites. Where sites adjoin a suitable watercourse or storm relief 
sewer into which surface water can be discharged by gravity then the policy is for sites to 
be separated and have their surface water discharged to the watercourse or storm relief 
sewer. In the case of developments/ rehabilitation/ conversions etc., involving the use of 
basements these are likely to be particularly vulnerable to the effects of surcharge and 
applicants must therefore demonstrate that adequate drainage arrangements exist at all 
times. 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION DIRECTORATE 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATIO
N AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. 
 
 
2. 

Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 
 
Planning File: 
2008/0368 

Colin Leadbeatter 
Planning Officer 
Tel: 020 8356 7931 
 
 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 422



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

ADDRESS: 13 Gunton Road London E5 9JT 
 
WARD:  Leabridge 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
Bernard Haasbroek 
 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  2008/1524 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
1299-01c 
1299-02c 
1299-03g 
1299-04i 
1299-05 
 
Other Documents:  
Design and Access Statement  
 

VALID DATE: 01/07/2008 

APPLICANT:  
 
Mr Gurmeet Singh 
79 Kenworthy Road    
London 
E9 5RB 
 

AGENT:   
 
GF Planning 
1  Woodlands Avenue  
Wanstead   
London  
E11 3RA 
 

PROPOSAL: Conversion of a single dwelling house to create three self-contained flats 
(comprising 1 x 3 bedroom flat, 1 x 2 bedroom flat and 1 x 1 bedroom flat) together with 
the erection of a single storey rear extension and installation of new windows and 
rooflights to front and rear elevations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:    
 

GRANT 
 

 
 
 

      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  C3 Single Residential Dwelling 157 smq 
Proposed C3 Residential Flats 186 sqm 

 

Agenda Item 27

Page 423



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 

RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing 0 0 0 0 1 0 
Proposed Flats 1 1 1 0 0 
 Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 
 Studio 0 0 0 0 0 
Totals (Total = ) 3 Units Proposed 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 

(Disabled) 
Bicycle storage 

Existing  0 0 0 
Proposed  0 0 0 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 

1. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
1.1 The application site is a two storey mid terrace, late Victorian property with 

small front garden and stairs leading to a converted basement area.  The site is 
on the North side of Gunton Road, in very close proximity to Clapton Station 
and the local amenities on Upper Clapton Road.  It is surrounded by similar two 
storey residential terraces. 

 
 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The proposal does not affect the setting of any listed building and it is not 

located within a conservation area. 
 
 
3. HISTORY 
 
3.1 Planning Application 2007/2400  

REFUSED 29/11/2007  
Conversion of existing dwelling to create 3 self-contained flats comprising 1x3 
bed 1x2 bed and 1x1 bed flats together with the erection of a single storey rear 
extension and installation of dormer window to rear elevation and front roof 
lights. 
 
REASONS: 
1)  The proposed residential units by reason of their inappropriate internal 
layout, poor outlook and inadequate natural light would result in a substandard 
accommodation. As such it would be contrary to Policies EQ1 [Development 
Requirements], and H03 [Other Sites for Housing] of the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan.  

 

Page 424



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
2)  The proposed rear dormer window by reason of its design and location 
would result in an incongruous form of development which would not respect 
the architectural character of the building, detrimental to its appearance and 
the visual amenity of the area. It would therefore be contrary to Policies EQ1 
[Development Requirements], of the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 
and policy 4B.1 of the London Plan 2004. 

 
 
3.2 Planning Application 2008/0465 

REFUSED 21/04/2008 
Conversion of premises to form three self contained flats (comprising 1x3 bed, 
1x2 bed and 1x1 bed flat) together with single storey rear extension, installation 
of front and rear roof lights and alterations to front, rear and side elevations. 
 
REASON: 
1)  The proposed residential units by reason of their inadequate room sizes 
and inappropriate internal layout would result in a sub-standard form of 
accommodation to the detriment of the living conditions to be enjoyed by the 
occupiers of the development contrary to Policies EQ1 [Development 
Requirements] and H03 [Other Sites for Housing] of the Hackney Unitary 
Development Plan and Policy 4B.1 'Design Principles For A Compact City' of 
the London Plan. 

 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started:  9 July 2008 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended:   30 July 2008 
 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes      14 July 2008 
 
4.4 Neighbours 

 
4.4.1 Consultation letters were sent to the occupiers of eight adjacent properties.  

Four objection letters were received, one of which included a petition that was 
signed by 34 local residents in relation to the previous planning application 
2007/2400, dated 12 November 2007.  Councillor Rathborne also raised a 
members’ enquiry dated 29 July 2008 regarding this planning application. 
 

4.4.2 The following reasons for objection were raised: 
• This is the third application for essentially the same proposal which 

should not enjoy further consideration. 
• Density and overdevelopment and subsequent impact on community 

services. 
• Visual and aesthetic impact  
• Inadequate parking 
• Inadequate housing mix/ lack of family housing 
• Loss of light to adjacent properties due to rear extension. 
• Substandard accommodation – lack of garden space. 

Page 425



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 

• Social implications – the proposed use will be in conflict with 
surrounding family housing and an individual died in the subject 
property in 2003. 

• Inadequate arrangements for refuse removal 
 

 
4.5 Statutory Consultees 
 
4.5.1 Private Sector Housing 

No Objection – subject to compliance with building regulations and clarification 
of the proposed front lightwell. 

 
4.5.2 Waste Management 

No Objection – the proposal show that 600 litres of general waste and three 
recycling boxes can be accommodated on the site. 

 
 
4.6 Local Groups 
 
4.6.1 None 
 

 
4.7 Other Council Departments 
 
4.7.1 None 
 
 
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 

• EQ1 (Development Requirements) 
• HO12 (Conversions) 

 
• Supplementary Planning Guideline 2 (Residential Conversions Extensions 

and Alterations) 
 
 
5.2 London Plan (2008) 

• 3A.1 (Increasing London’s Supply of Housing) 
• 3A.4 (Housing Choice) 
• 4B.1 (Design Principles for a Compact City) 
• 4B.3 (Maximising the Potential of Sites) 

 
 
5.3 National Planning Policies 

• PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development 
• PPS3 – Housing 
• PPS13 - Transport 

 

Page 426



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
6. COMMENT 
 
6.1 Background 

This application is the third successive submission for the conversion of the 
subject property into three flats.  Both previous applications, (2007/2400 and 
2008/0465) were refused with the most recent of these proposals being 
unacceptable as it would have resulted sub-standard accommodation.  The 
current proposal is however different in terms of layout and the proposed 
extensions so that the previous reason for refusal is now addressed.  The 
proposal is therefore considered as valid and is brought before Council’s 
Planning Committee due to the number of objections it provoked. 

 
6.2 Principle of development 

National planning policies PPS1, PPS3 and PPS13 as well as policies 3A.1 and 
4B.3 of the London Plan supports the notion to obtain additional housing units 
on existing urban areas in favour of meeting the demand for housing with 
minimal impact on the environment, use of existing infrastructure and 
sustainability in general.  Policy HO12 of the Hackney UDP allows for the 
conversion of a dwelling that has a existing floor space above 120 square 
metres into flat units, provided that at least one flat has a minimum of three 
bedrooms, suitable for occupation by at least four individuals forms part of the 
proposed development.  The proposed development will convert the existing 
dwelling with a gross internal floor area of approximately 144 square metres to 
form one three bedroom, family unit with access to the rear garden and two 
additional residential units.  The proposed development is therefore adheres to 
the principles and requirements of all the policies in this section.  

 
6.3 Internal layout 

The table below indicate the room sizes in square metres for the proposed 
development with the requirements as given in Supplementary Planning 
Guidance 2 stated in brackets below.  All the minimum room sizes are being 
met with the proposed development and the internal layout complies with the 
regulations and requirements of SPG 2. 

 
 Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 
Main Bedroom 13 

(8.5) 
11 
(11) 

16.5 
(11) 

2nd Bedroom  7.8 
(6.5) 

7.5 
(6.5) 

3rd Bedroom  7.0 
(6.5) 

 

Living Room and Kitchen 19.5 
(19.5) 

26.5 
(25) 

24 
(24) 

Garden  74 
(30) 

 

 
6.4 Impact on neighbouring amenities 

The proposed development includes a single storey infill and rear extension with 
a flat roof that would add 1.5 metres to the rear of the building.  No 11 Gunton 

Page 427



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
Road has an existing side extension up to its boundary with the application site 
and the proposal entails the infill of this area between the two buildings.  The 
proposal will not have any impact on any residential amenities of 11 Gunton 
Road.  There is a glazed door at the rear of No 15 Gunton Road but the 
midpoint of this window pane is more than 1.5 metres from the property fence 
and there is therefore no impact with regard to outlook from 15 Gunton Road.  
The small extension is proposed to the North of the existing terraces and would 
therefore not have an impact in respect of overshadowing.  The proposal is 
small in scale and would not have an overbearing impact on any adjacent 
property.  All new windows are positioned so that it does not affect the privacy 
of the neighbouring residential property.  The proposed development would 
therefore comply with policy EQ1 of the Hackney UDP and policy 4B.1 of the 
London Plan in terms of outlook, overshadowing, overbearing or overlooking.   

 
6.5 Visual Appearance 

The application site is not in a conservation area and it is not Listed Building.  
The proposed development to the front of the building entails only two new 
windows and the creation of a lightwell, which will have a minor impact on the 
visual appearance of the building and the street scene.  The proposed 
development is therefore considered as acceptable in terms of its visual 
appearance and policy EQ1 of the Hackney UDP and policy 4B.1 of the London 
Plan. 

 
6.6 Waste Management 

The proposal show adequate storage space in the front garden to 
accommodate the 600 litre of domestic waste and three recycling boxes so that 
the proposed development would comply with policy EQ1 of the Hackney UDP 
with regard to refuse and recycling facilities. 

 
6.7 Neighbour’s Objections 

The specific concerns that were raised by interested and affected parties of the 
proposed development are presented below: 
Resubmission of planning application – As stated in 6.1 above the principle of 
the proposed development is supported and each consecutive planning 
application addressed the previous reasons for refusal.  The Local Planning 
Authority is therefore duty bound to accept further applications for the proposed 
development and this is not considered to be a valid reason for refusal in 
planning terms. 
 
Density of development – this was addressed in 6.2 above and it considered 
that the proposed development is within planning standards and can not be 
seen as overdevelopment. 
 
Visual impact – this was discussed in 6.5 above. 
 
Parking – this is not a planning requirement for this type of development, 
especially given the high level of access to public transport and local amenities 
available to the subject site.   
 

Page 428



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
Housing mix/ lack of family housing – this was discussed in 6.2.and 6.3 above 
and the proposed development is deemed to comply with the requirements of 
policy HO12 of the Hackney UDP. 
 
Loss of light/ outlook – this was discussed in section 6.4 of the above report and 
is not considered to have an adverse impact on any neighbouring residential 
amenities. 
 
Standards of accommodation – the proposed development complies with all 
relevant room sizes and affords adequate light to all habitable rooms as 
discussed in section 6.3 of this report. 
 
Refuse and recycling – the proposal does provide suitable refuse and recycling 
facilities as discussed in section 6.6 above. 
 
Social implications – this is not considered to be as a planning consideration 
and the principle of development is supported as discussed in section 6.1 of this 
report.   

 
 
7. CONCLUSION 

 
7.1 The proposed development complies with all relevant planning policy and 

requirements.  The reasons for refusing the two previous planning applications 
on the application site have been overcome with this proposal and the 
proposed development is therefore recommended for approval. 

 
 

Page 429



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 RECOMMENDATION A: 

 
8.1 That full planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 

conditions: 
 
8.1.1 SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
 The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 

strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 

 
 REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out 

in full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 
 
8.1.2 SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the 

expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
 REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 
 
8.1.3 SCM1 - Materials to Match 

All new external finishes in respect of all the works hereby approved (and any 
other incidental works to be carried out in this connection) shall match the 
existing building in respect of materials used, detailed execution and finished 
appearance. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 

8.1.4 SCM7 - Details To Be Approved 
Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed development showing the 
matters set out below must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before any work is commenced. The development shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 

• Front Lightwell 
 

REASON:  To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract form the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.1.5 SCR2 – Dustbin Enclosures (Details to be Approved) 

Details of dustbin enclosures showing the design, location and external 
appearance, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, in writing, before the use/development commences.  The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
details thus approved. 
 
REASON: In order to provide far adequate bin enclosures in the interest of 
appearance of the site and area. 

Page 430



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
9. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
9.1. The following policies contained in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan 1995 

are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by this 
Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 
(Development Requirements) and HO12 (Conversions) as well as policies 3A.1 
(Increasing London's Supply of Housing), 3A.4 (Housing Choice), 4B.1 (Design 
Principles for a Compact City) and 4B.3 (Maximising the Potential of Sites) of 
the London Plan 2008 and Supplementary Planning Guideline 2 (Residential 
Conversions Extensions and Alterations). 

 
10. INFORMATIVES 

The following Informatives should be added: 
SI.1 Building Control 
SI.7 Hours of Building Works 
NSC Underground Rooms 

 
 

 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 

 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Bernard Haasbroek 
 

 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 431



Page 432

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 

ADDRESS: 157 Blackstock Road, London N4 2JS 

REPORT AUTHOR: Colin Leadbeatter 
 
 

WARD: Brownswood 
 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
2008/0560 
 
Drawing Numbers: 931 101 H, 931 
001 

VALID DATE: 27/03/2008 

APPLICANT:  
 
Snowcroft Properties Ltd 
Hertitage House 
73 Bredgar Road 
London 
N19 5BS 
 

AGENT:   
 
Sixteen Architecture 
5 Normanby Close 
London 
SW15 2RL 
 

PROPOSAL: Refurbishment and change of use from shop (Class A1) with 
ancillary residential accommodation above to shop (Class A1) with separate 
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) on upper floors together with the erection of 
a part single storey part two storey rear extension, enlargement of rear dormer 
extension, installation of two roof lights, and external alterations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission. 

 
 
 
      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ X  
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

 
LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  A1/C3 Retail/Residential 204 sqm 
 

Proposed A1/Sui 
Generis 

Retail/HMO 218 sqm 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential Type No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing Flat 0 0 0 1 0 

Agenda Item 28

Page 433



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
Proposed HMO 0 0 0 0 1 
 Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 
 Studio 0 0 0 0 0 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  N/A N/A N/A 
Proposed  N/A N/A N/A 

 
 
CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
1. Three storey with attic mid-terrace property located on the east side of Blackstock 
Road.  An A1 retail unit occupies the ground floor, with a disused residential property 
above. Similar properties adjoin to either side, and on the opposite side of the street. 
 
 
CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2. Site is not located within a conservation area and does not adjoin any listed 
buildings. 
 
 
HISTORY 
 
3. 2007/3022:  Change of use of premises from retail shop with ancillary residential 
flat above to create retail shop at ground floor (use class A1) with separate HMO on upper 
floors together with erection of part three-storey, part single storey rear extension, 
enlargement of rear dormer roof extension and installation of two front roof lights. Refused 
under delegated authority on 16 January 2008 on the grounds that that the three storey 
rear extension would be unsympathetic and over dominating. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 27/03/2008 
 
Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 18/04/2008 
 
Site Notice: Yes 
 
Press Advert: No 
 
Neighbours 
 
4. 26 neighbours consulted by letter: 8 objections received. Objectors raise concerns 
regarding a possible loss of light from the first floor rear extension; increased strain on 
amenities and facilities; the high density proposed (5 bedroom HMO); impact on outlook 

Page 434



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
from neighbouring properties; the proposed extension being unsympathetic to the original 
building; and the possible impact on parking provision in the area. 
 
Statutory Consultees 
 
London Borough of Islington (Adjoining Borough) – No response to consultation. 
 
Local Groups 
 
No local groups consulted. 
 
Other Council Departments 
 
Conservation & Design: No objection to the proposed rear extensions. The applicants 
have altered their designs to meet officers’ guidance.  
 
Traffic & Transport: No objection raised. 
 
Waste Management: No objection raised. 
 
Private Sector Housing: No objection. 
 
 
POLICIES 
 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 
EQ1  - Development Requirements 
HO3  - Other Sites for Housing 
HO6  - Use of Upper Floors Above Shops 
HO14  - Houses of Multiple Occupation 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 
SPG1  - New Residential Developments 
SPD  - Residential Alterations and Extensions (Consultation Draft) 
 
London Plan (2004) 
 
3A.1  - Increasing London’s supply of housing 
3A.4  - Housing choice 
4B.1  - Design Principles for a Compact City 
 
National Planning Policies 
 
PPS1  - Creating Sustainable Communities 
PPG3  - Housing 
 
COMMENT 
 

Page 435



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
5. This application is a resubmission of a previous application refused by the Council 
under delegated powers (2007/3022) on 16 January 2008. The previous application 
consisted of a similar scheme, but with a three-storey rear extension which was 
considered to be overbearing and to have a significant detrimental impact on neighbouring 
properties, and the street scene, along with being unsympathetic to the design of the 
original building. 
 
6. The amended proposal incorporates a much more modest extension, a single 
storey rear extension for the A1 premises at ground floor level, with an extension at first 
floor which would cover just over half the width of the building. 
 
7. The proposal is to convert the existing flat above the retail unit at ground floor into a 
five room HMO, with a shared bathroom, a single storey rear extension to accommodate a 
stock room for the retained A1 unit at ground floor level, and an extension at rear first floor 
level to accommodate one of the HMO rooms. The proposals also include a rear dormer 
roof extension to the main roof, two velux windows to the front roof slope and changes to 
the shop front to accommodate a separate access for the HMO above.  
 
Considerations 
 
8. The main considerations relevant to this application are: 
 
(i) The acceptability of the proposed change of use of the existing flat into a House in 
Multiple Occupancy. 
 
(ii) The acceptability of the proposed alterations to the shop front, single storey rear 
extension, and extension at first floor level. 
 
(iii) The acceptability of the proposed rear dormer roof extension and velux windows to 
the front elevation. 
 
(iv) Consideration of objections. 
 
Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 
 
The Acceptability of the Proposed Change of Use of the Existing Flat into a House 
of Multiple Occupancy 
 
7. The conversion of the upper floors of the property into a House of Multiple 
Occupation is in this case considered to be acceptable. The proposed floor spaces and 
layouts are considered to be of adequate proportions to provide five good sized 
bedrooms, each with adequate access to natural daylight and outlook. The proposed 2 
communal bathrooms are considered to be acceptable, along with one room having its 
own private en-suite bathroom and the prospective occupants would have access to a 
private rear courtyard. The existing flat has a floorspace of more than 120m2 (in this case 
the floorspace is approximately 135m2), the density of occupation would be unlikely to 
have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding area or on living conditions of local 
residents as Blackstock Road is predominantly made up of properties that have previously 
been converted into flats, or are already houses of multiple occupation. The proposed 

Page 436



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
HMO would be situated in a position with good access to public transport, and therefore 
no off street parking would be required. 
 
The acceptability of the proposed alterations to the shop front, single storey rear 
extension, and extension at first floor level. 
 
8. It is considered that the proposed alterations to the shop front are acceptable in this 
instance as this would provide private access to the residential accommodation above 
without harming the character or appearance of the area. 
 
9. The proposed single storey rear extension is considered to be acceptable as both 
neighbouring properties have single storey rear extensions of a similar scale, and 
therefore there would be no significant impact on neighbouring properties in terms of any 
loss of daylight or sunlight, and nor would there be an increase in overlooking, sense of 
enclosure or privacy as a result of the single storey rear extensions. The retention of the 
ground floor A1 use is considered to be acceptable. 
 
10. The extension at first floor level is considered in this instance to be acceptable. The 
proposed extension is one storey lower than the existing building, and is generally in 
keeping with the Residential Extensions and Alterations SPD (Consultation Draft). The 
proposed extension covers just over half of the rear elevation of the building, which would 
minimise its impact on neighbouring properties in terms of any loss of daylight to windows 
serving habitable rooms, or any increase in a sense of enclosure or loss of outlook.  159 
Blackstock Road has an existing large 3-storey extension to the rear which protrudes 
further from the building line, and as such the proposed extension to the rear of 157 would 
not cause any negative impact on the rear of that property. It is considered that the 
proposed extension would not cause any significant increase in overlooking or loss of 
privacy. 
 
The acceptability of the proposed rear dormer roof extension and velux windows to 
the front roof slope. 
 
11. The proposed rear roof extension is considered to be acceptable. Though a 
smaller, more sympathetic roof extension would be preferred, the proposed rear roof 
extension is similar in design to others existing on the street, and is in keeping with 
Council guidelines on rear roof extensions. The proposed roof extension is set in from the 
party walls of the property, is set above the ridge, and below the eaves of the roof. There 
would be no increase in overlooking or loss of privacy to neighbouring properties as a 
result of the proposed rear roof extension due to there being a small dormer extension 
with a similar sized window already in place on the roof slope. 
 
12. It is considered that the two velux style windows to the front roof slope are 
acceptable in this instance, as they would not be prominent from street level. 
 
Consideration of Objections 
 
13. Objectors have raised concerns that the first floor rear extension would have a 
significant impact on light to the rear of neighbouring properties. The applicants have 
revised their proposals during the course of this application to reduce the first floor rear 
extension to half the width of the building, which would mitigate the objectors' fears. Due 

Page 437



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
to north-easterly orientation of the rear elevation of these properties it is considered that 
the proposed extension would have very little impact in terms of any potential loss of light 
to neighbouring properties. 
 
14. The use of the upper storeys of the premises as a house of multiple occupancy has 
raised concerns from local residents regarding the density of accommodation of the 
property. Although it is considered that this could increase the number of potential 
occupants of the building, the existing self contained flat could have 3 or 4 double 
bedrooms depending on its internal configuration, and as such it is considered that the 
potential level of occupation is not dissimilar to the existing.  
 
15. The objections relating to outlook and loss of view have been mitigated by the 
reduction in the width of the rear extension. 
 
16. The objections relating to the design of the proposed extension have also been 
addressed in the revised scheme submitted by the applicant.  The proposed extensions to 
the building would be constructed from brickwork to match the original property with 
windows to match those existing. It is considered that the proposed single storey 
extension and extension at first floor level are in keeping with the original property, and 
would not have a negative impact on the character or appearance of the structure, nor the 
surrounding area. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
17. The applicants have addressed the issues raised in the reasons for refusal of the 
previous application at the site for a similar use, resulting in the current proposed 
development being considered acceptable.  The conversion of the upper floors into a 
HMO, along with the external extensions and alterations are considered to be acceptable, 
and in line with Council policy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That permission be GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 
 
SCB1 – Commencement within three years 
SCB0 – Development in accordance with plans 
M1 – Materials to Match Existing 
 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
The following policies are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered 
by this Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 (Development 
Requirements), HO14 (Houses in Multiple Occupation), HO12 (Conversions), HO3 (Other 
Sites for Housing), HO6 (Residential Use of Upper Floors Above Shop Units) of the 
Hackney Unitary Development Plan; and policy 4B.1 (Design Principles for a Compact 
City) of the London Plan 2004. 
 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 

Page 438



Planning Sub-committee – 3 September 2008 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 
SI.1  Building Control 
 SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
    SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
 SI.24  Naming and Numbering 
  SI.25  Disabled Person’s Provisions 
  SI.27  Fire Precautions Act 1971 
SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION DIRECTORATE 
 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATIO
N AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. 
 
2. 

Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 
Planning File: 
2008/0560 

Colin Leadbeatter 
Planning Officer 
020 8356 7931 
 
 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 439



Page 440

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

ADDRESS:  
No.s 1-22 Bramfield Court, 1-47 Theobalds Court & 20-42 Datchworth Court 
Kings Crescent Estate 
Queens Drive 
London N4 2XH 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  
Pascal van de Walle 
 
 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  
2008/1586   
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
183/2/200–B, 183/2/201–B, 183/2/202–D, 
183/2/203–A, 183/2/204–C, 183/2/208–D, 
183/2/210–B, 183/2/2011–B, 183/2/212–B, 
183/2/213–B, 183/2/214–B, 183/2/215–B, 
183/2/216–A, 183/2/217–C, 183/2/218–A, 
183/2/220–C, 183/2/221–C, 183/2/230–D, 
183/2/231–A, 183/2/232–C, 183/2/233–A, 
183/2/234–D, 183/2/235–A, 183/2/236–C, 
183/2/237–A, 183/2/238–B, 183/2/239–B.  
 
REPORTS: 
• Design and Access Statement  
• Carbon Footprint Report 
• Structural Engineers Report 
 

VALID DATE: 17/06/2008 

APPLICANT:  
 
London Borough of Hackney 
263 Mare Street   
London   
E8 3HT 
 

AGENT:   
 
ZEDfactory Ltd 
21 Sandmartin Way 
Surrey 
SM6 7DF 

PROPOSAL: Installation of new pitched roofs, external walkways and balconies 
to upper floors, external cladding, replacement windows, new secured entrances 
and provision of landscaping, boundary treatment and cycle stores and racks. 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
Grant conditional planning permission 
 

 
 
 

      ANALYSIS INFORMATION 
      ZONING DESIGNATION:                        (Yes)                  (No)   

CPZ  X 
Conservation Area  X 
Listed Building (Statutory)  X 
Listed Building (Local)  X 
DEA  X 

Agenda Item 29

Page 441



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

LAND USE 
DETAILS: 

Use Class Use Description Floorspace 

Existing  C3 Residential Details not provided 
Proposed C3 Residential  An increase of 6.5m2 per 

maisonette is proposed. 
Additional amenity space 
(balconies) and new internal 
circulation areas are not 
included in floorspace 
calculations. 

 
RESIDENTIAL USE 
DETAILS: 

Residential 
Type 

No of Bedrooms per Unit 

   1 2 3 4 5+ 
Existing 92 flats 2 20 70 0 0 
Proposed Flats 0 0 0 0 0 
 Dwellings 0 0 0 0 0 
 Studio 0 0 0 0 0 
Totals (Total = 92) 2 20 70 0 0 

 
PARKING DETAILS: Parking Spaces 

(General) 
Parking Spaces 
(Disabled) 

Bicycle storage 

Existing  As existing As existing 0 
Proposed  As existing As existing 92 

 
 

CASE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 

1. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
1.1 The application relates to the Bramfield, Theobalds (A & B) and Datchworth 

courts which are located within the Kings Crescent estate on Queen’s Drive. 
The four residential blocks contain 92 dwellings comprising 2 x one-bedroom 
flats, 20 x two bedroom flats and 70 x three bedroom flats. The site also 
includes the access cores and public space on both sides of the buildings. 

 
2. CONSERVATION IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1 The site is not located within a conservation area nor is it a listed item. 
 
3. HISTORY 
 
3.1 22/07/2003 – Outline permission granted for means of access for the 

regeneration of the housing estate, including partial demolition, refurbishment 
and new buildings to provide a total of 880 housing units. This relates to land 
directly adjacent to the subject building but within the Kings Crescent Estate. 

 

Page 442



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
4. CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Date Statutory Consultation Period Started: 30/06/2008 
 
4.2 Date Statutory Consultation Period Ended: 28/07/2008 

 
4.3 Site Notice: Yes  

 
4.4 Press Advert: No 

 
4.5 Neighbours 

 
4.5.1 100 neighbouring property owners were consulted and a site notices were 

placed around the site. One letter was received which clearly stated that it 
neither supported nor objected to the proposed development. This letter agreed 
with the changes to the appearance of the buildings subject to there being no 
additional noise impacts. 

 
4.6 Other Council Departments 
 
4.6.1 Arboricultural Officer: No response received. 
 
5. POLICIES 
 
5.1 Hackney Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (1995) 
 

EQ1  - Development Requirements 
EQ31   -  Trees 
EQ46   - Recycling facilities 
EQ48   -  Designing out Crime 
HO4  - Improvement of older housing 
HO5  - Estate Improvement 

 
5.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 

SPG 2  - Residential Conversions, Extensions and Alterations 
SPG11  - Access For People With Disabilities 

 
5.3 London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004) 
 

2A.1 - Sustainability criteria 
3C.20 - Improving conditions for walking 
3C.21 -  Improving conditions for cycling 
4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city 
4B.4  - Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
4A.1 - Tackling climate change 
4B.2 - Promoting world-class architecture and design 

 
5.4 National Planning Policies 
 

Page 443



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
PPS1  - Creating Sustainable Communities 
PPS3   - Housing 

 
6. COMMENT 
 

The proposal comprises alterations to the external fabric of Bramfield, 
Theobalds (A & B) and Datchworth blocks within the Kings Crescent Estate. 
The works will increase the footprint of each building on both sides. On the 
south or west facing facades new balconies or enclosed balconies will be 
provided, and on the north and east facing facades the proposal will 
replace the existing deck access arrangement with a new suspended 
walkway. The balconies will provide an additional 10 square metres of 
amenity space per maisonette and 7 square metres per flat. The area 
inhabited by the old access deck will become part of the refurbished 
dwellings and result in an additional 6.5 square metres of internal floor 
space per maisonette. There will, however, be no external additions to the 
ground and first storeys of the building, with the exception of private garden 
areas for these maisonettes. 
 
The main considerations relevant to this application are: 

 
• The principle of the proposed development 

• Design, appearance, bulk and scale of the proposed development 

• Sustainability  

• Safety and Security 

• Access 

• Potential Impact on the amenity of nearby residents 

• Consideration of submissions 

Each of these considerations is discussed in turn below. 

6.1 The principle of the proposed development 

6.1.1 Policies HO4 and HO5 support the improvement of older dwellings and Estate 
buildings which are sub-standard or in disrepair and result in an environmental 
improvement which meets the needs of the residents. The existing buildings 
have aged poorly and are in need of repair. Several other blocks within the 
estate have been, or will be demolished in the near future for redevelopment 
purposes. Consultation has taken place with residents and the community and 
the proposed development has been designed to meet their needs. An example 
of this is that residents will be provided with options to have their balconies 
open or enclosed. The development has been designed to achieve a Code for 
Sustainable Housing (CSH) Energy level of 6. The aim is to provide a 
development which is carbon neutral.  

6.1.2 As such, the principle of the development is supported in this case. 

6.2 Design, appearance, bulk, and scale of the proposed development 

Page 444



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
6.2.1 The proposed development will increase the size and bulk of the residential 

blocks by adding balconies to the south and west facades and new suspended 
walkways to the north and east facades. There will, however, be no additions 
made to the ground and first storey of the building with the exception of the new 
secure entrance lobby’s and improved ground floor private garden areas. A 
new pitched roof is also proposed. The roof will increase the overall height of 
the building by approximately 1.5m and extend by 2m over the existing walls at 
the eaves. 

6.2.2 The site is large and the buildings are well setback from the highway behind 
existing mature trees. The proposed balconies will provide some relief and 
interest to the south and west facades which front Queen’s Drive. They respect 
the scale and massing of the building and will be incorporated into the building 
by the proposed pitched roof form. The proposed suspended walkway to the 
north and east elevations will provide a similar result to the rear of the building.  

6.2.3 The proposed balconies will be constructed from steel with mesh balustrades. 
Some balconies will remain open and some balconies will be enclosed using 
glazed panels. Opaque coloured cement board panels will be provided to 
sections of the balconies to create interest to the building, with colours to be the 
decided at a later stage.  

6.2.4 Two new secure entrance lobby’s will be created fronting Queen’s Drive, 
accompanied by new bicycle parking, landscaping and boundary fencing. The 
proposed design and use of materials will improve the appearance of the four 
residential blocks at the lower levels.  

6.2.5 The alterations and additions are of an appropriate design, massing and scale, 
and will be screened from the highway by the existing mature trees. As such, 
the proposal is considered to enhance the appearance of the buildings and 
their relationship to the surrounding area in accordance with the relevant 
policies contained within the Hackney UDP 1995 (saved) and the London Plan 
2004 (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004). 

6.3 Sustainability 

6.3.1 Planning Policy Statement No.1 and the London Plan (2008) focus on 
delivering sustainable development. 

6.3.2 A carbon footprint report prepared by Price and Myers Consulting Engineers 
was submitted with this application. The report analysed the scheme in its 
existing state, as it is intended to be refurbished and as a complete new build 
and determined that the biggest carbon emissions savings could be made by 
refurbishment of the existing buildings. The report then provided details to 
demonstrate how the proposed regeneration works can achieve a Code  for 
Sustainable Housing (CSH) Energy level of 6. The Code uses a 1 to 6 star 
rating system to communicate the overall sustainability performance of a new 
home, with 6 as the highest achievable level.  

Page 445



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
6.3.3 It is proposed that the measures contained within the report be implemented at 

the site to result in significant reductions in the carbon emissions from the 
buildings.  

6.4 Safety and Security 

6.4.1 The site has been subject to some anti-social behaviour and the application 
aims to improve the overall safety of the buildings. This will be achieved by 
providing clearer identification of public and private space, providing new 
secure entrance lobby’s with proper security systems, intercom access from the 
dwellings and building specific key fobs. Other security measures are also 
proposed, including security lighting.  

6.5 Access  

6.5.1 Access into and around the buildings will be vastly improved as a result of this 
application. The proposed new secure entrance lobby’s, improved lifts and 
external circulation will allow the currently blocked-off access points to Queen’s 
Drive to be reinstated.  

6.5.2 There will be no change in the number of flats at the site, and no change to the 
number or location of parking spaces is proposed. 

6.5.3 92 new bicycle parking spaces are proposed around and within the building. 

6.5.4 The proposal is considered to improve overall access to and within the building, 
and specifically for people with disabilities. 

6.6 Potential impacts on the amenity of nearby residents 

6.6.1 Residential terraces are located on the opposite side of Queen’s Drive, and 
other residential blocks are located within the Kings Crescent Estate.  

6.6.2 The proposal does not involve an increase in the number of units, only 
alterations and additions to the existing residential blocks.  

6.6.3 The proposed development will improve the appearance of the streetscene. 
The impact in terms of overlooking, noise and general daily activity is unlikely to 
be too different than what currently occurs at the site.  

6.7 Responses to neighbour representations 

6.7.1 One submission was received that was neither objecting to or supporting the 
proposal. The issues raised in the submission included the appearance of the 
building and noise issues. These matters have been addressed in the body of 
the report. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The proposed development is considered compliant with pertinent policies in 

the Hackney UDP 1995 (saved), and the London Plan (2008) as outlined in 
paragraph 5. Accordingly, the granting of planning permission is recommended. 

Page 446



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Grant conditional planning permission subject to imposition of the following 
conditions: 

 
8.1 SCBN1 –Commencement within three years 
 

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration 
of three years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. 

 
8.2 SCB0 – Development only in accordance with submitted plans 
 

The Development hereby permitted shall only be carried out and completed 
strictly in accordance with the submitted plans hereby approved and any 
subsequent approval of details. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is carried out in 
full accordance with the plans hereby approved. 

 
8.3 SCM2 – Materials to be approved 
 

Full details, with samples, of the materials and colours to be used on the 
external surfaces of the buildings, including glazing, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before any work on the site 
is commenced.  The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.4 SCD1 – Level access 

 
A level access shall be provided to the main entrance lobbies and the front 
entrance of all units before the use is first commenced. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that people with disabilities are able to gain proper 
access to the development. 

 
8.5 SCI3 – No roof plant 

 
No roof plant, including all external enclosures, machinery and other 
installations shall be placed upon or attached to the roof or other external 
surfaces of the building. 
 
REASON: In the interests of maintaining an acceptable appearance of the 
building. 

Page 447



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
 

8.6 SCM2 – Boundary Walls (to be approved) 
 

Full details, including materials, of all boundary walls and enclosures shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before 
any work commences on site.  The development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory 
and does not detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 

 
8.7 SCT1 – Landscaping Scheme to be approved 

 
A landscaping scheme illustrated on detailed drawings shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before any work 
commences on site, for the planting of trees and shrubs showing species, type 
of stock, numbers of trees and shrubs to be included and showing areas to be 
grass seeded or turfed; all landscaping in accordance with the scheme, when 
approved, shall be carried out within a period of twelve months from the date on 
which the development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first 
planting (and seeding) season following completion of the development, and 
shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a 
period of ten years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants 
that die, or are severly damaged, seriously diseased, or removed.   
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide reasonable environmental standards 
in the interests of the appearance of the site and area. 

 
8.8 SCT2 – Provision of Landscaping as Approved 

 
The landscaping scheme hereby approved as part of the development shall be 
carried out within a period of twelve months from the date at which the 
development of the site commences or shall be carried out in the first planting 
(and seeding) season following completion of the development and shall be 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a period of ten 
years, such maintenance to include the replacement of any plants that die, or 
are severely damaged, seriously diseased, or removed. 
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and in the interests of the appearance of the site 
and of the area generally. 

 
8.9 SCT3 – Protection of trees during site works 

 
No development will take place on site until full details of tree protection have 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Council and until such 
approved protection has been erected on site.  

Page 448



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
Tree protection will be in accordance with BS5837:2005 (Trees in relation to 
construction - Recommendations) and will protect the root protection area 
calculated as described in Table 2 of that British Standard.  
The protective fencing will be 2.4m high and conform to Figure 2 of 
BS5837:2005 i.e. a scaffold framework comprising a vertical and horizontal 
framework, well braced to resist impacts, with vertical tubes spaced at a 
maximum interval of 3m.  On to this weldmesh panels should be securely fixed 
with wire or scaffold clamps. 
 
REASON: In order to protect the existing trees during building operation and 
site works. 

 
8.10 SCT5 – No removal, felling, topping or lopping of trees 

 
No tree within the curtilage of the site shall be wilfully damaged or destroyed 
and no tree shall be removed, lopped, topped, felled or uprooted without the 
prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To accord with the requirements of Section 197(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and to provide for the retention and protection of 
existing treest in the interests of the appearance of the locality. 
 

8.11 SCM7 – Non standard condition 
 

Detailed drawings/full particulars of the proposed bicycle parking racks shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, before 
any work is commenced. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the details thus approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that a reasonable provision is made withion the site for 
the parking of cycles/motorcycles in the interest of relieving congestion in 
surrounding streets and improving highway conditions in general. 

 
9. INFORMATIVES 
 
 The following Informatives should be added: 
 

SI.1 Building Control 
SI.2  Work Affecting Public Highway 
SI.3  Sanitary, Ventilation and Drainage Arrangements 
SI.6  Control of Pollution (Clean Air, Noise, etc.) 
SI.7  Hours of Building Works 
SI.25  Disabled Persons’ Provisions 
SI.27  Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
SI.28  Refuse Storage and Disposal Arrangements 
SI.19 Health and Safety at Work Act 
 
NSI.1 All materials submitted pursuant to the discharge of condition 4 of this 
granting of full planning permission ('materials to be approved') should be 
supplied and delivered at the same time in a container clearly marked with the 

Page 449



Planning Committee – 03/09/2008 
address of the application site, reference to the application number 2008/1586, 
and accompanied by coloured copies of relevant elevational drawings, to which 
each material sample should be clearly referenced and labelled accordingly. 
Full specifications detailing each material's manufacturer and colour (as per 
manufacturer's description/name thereof) should also be submitted at the same 
time. 
 

10. REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

The following policies saved in the Hackney Unitary Development Plan (1995) 
are relevant to the approved development/use and were considered by this 
Council in reaching the decision to grant planning permission: EQ1 - 
Development Requirements; EQ31 – Trees; EQ46 - Recycling facilities; EQ48 - 
Designing out Crime; HO4 - Improvement of older housing; HO5 - Estate 
Improvement. 
 
The following policies in the London Plan (2008) are relevant to the approved 
development/use and were considered by this Council in reaching the decision 
to grant planning permission: 2A.1 - Sustainability criteria; 3C.20 - Improving 
conditions for walking; 3C.21 - Improving conditions for cycling; 4B.1 - Design 
principles for a compact city; 4B.4 - Enhancing the quality of the public realm; 
4A.1 - Tackling climate change; 4B.2 - Promoting world-class architecture and 
design. 
 
 
 
Signed………………………………. Date…………………………………. 
 
 
Fiona Fletcher-Smith 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOODS & REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NO. BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME/DESIGNATION 
AND TELEPHONE 
EXTENSION OF 
ORIGINAL COPY 

LOCATION CONTACT 
OFFICER 

1. Hackney UDP and 
the London Plan 

Pascal Van-de-Walle 
 

 

263 Mare Street, E8 3HT 

 

Page 450



Planning Service, 263 Mare Street, London, E8 3HT

Neighbourhoods and Regeneration

Delegated Decisions
Dated 01/07/2008 to 31/07/2008

 191Total No. Applications:

Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

BW (D)

2008/0706

33 Portland Rise, 
LONDON N4 2PT

Alterations including the excavation of the basement 
and creation of a front lightwell and replacement of 
existing windows in the front elevation with timber 
framed sliding sash windows.

06/04/2008

Graham Callam

07810790571 .

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Phillip SpensleyApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Phillip Spensley

Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/0963

16c Finsbury Park Road
London
N4 2JZ

Alteration to existing roof dormer to create new dormer 
with French doors and roof terrace with railing 
surround.05/19/2008

Graham Callam

01865723056

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Clemmie 
Franks

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Christopher Franks

01865723056Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1093

2 Cobble Mews
Mountgrove Road
London
N5 2LN

Erection of a single storey out building to the end of the 
garden to create a studio. 

06/04/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr David WarrilowApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Ian Deacon

0207 226 7248Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

Delegated Decisions 1

A
genda Item

 30

P
age 451



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1189

3 Cobble Mews
Mountgrove Road
London
N5 2LN

Proposed erection of a rear roof extension with roof 
lights to the front roof slope

05/15/2008

Graham Callam

7690 0058

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr John CrossleyApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Loft Masters

020 8363 8239Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1308

151-157 Gosset Street
part of Durant Street
London   E2 6NR

Adjoining borough observation for London Borough of 
Tower Hamlet regarding the demolition of existing 
buildings and construction of 52 residential units within 
buildings rising from 2 to 6 storeys together with 
associated cycle parking and accessible landscaped roof 
garden.

06/04/2008

Paul Roberts

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision .Applicant:
Date:

NOB

London Borough of 
Tower Hamlets

Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1334

378-386 SEVEN 
SISTERS ROAD
LONDON

Works to trees the subject of a Tree Preservation Order.

Sycamore - Crown Thin by 20%, crown reduce by 20% 
and reshape to leave a natural outline.
Lime - Crown Thin by 20% and remove developing 
epicormic growth to 8m.

05/27/2008

Nick Jacobs

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Carly McleanApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Carly Mclean

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

CAZ

2008/0432

151 Osbaldeston Road 
London N16 6ND

Erection of a single storey rear extension with a succoh 
roof.

03/12/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Y Deutsch, 
Helmutz Investments 

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

John Stebbing Architect 
Ltd

Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 2

P
age 452



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0581

36 & 38 Gilda Crescent 
London N16 6JP

No. 36 Erection of a front porch; first floor side 
extension; alterations to the roof to include a front, side 
and rear roof extension. No. 38 Erection of a ground 
floor rear extension with a succah roof; alteration to the 
side to create  new door openings; erection of front 
porch; first floor side extension; alteration to the roof to 
include front, side and rear roof extension.

05/22/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Oscar LowApplicant:
Date:

Refused

John Stebbing Architect

01284704546Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/0637

38 Gilda Crescent - 
London - N16 6JP

Erection of a rear extension with succah roof at ground 
floor level and a first floor side and rear extension; 
erection of porch; alteration to the side to create new 
opening.

05/29/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Oscar LowApplicant:
Date:

Refused

John Stebbing Architect

01284704546Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/0721

1 Darenth Road London 
N16 6EP

Alterations including the creation of a front and rear 
lightwells with railing surround; excavation of basement 
and erection of a ground, part first and second floor 
extension; replacing existing windows with new UPVC 
windows.

04/24/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Getzel BergerApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Gregory Lynd

0207 493 3788Tel:

Agent:
25/07/08

2008/0813

78 Filey Avenue
Stamford Hill, London 
N16 6JJ

Alterations including the excavation of the basement 
with front lightwell with railing surround; erection of a 
single storey ground floor rear extension and 
enlargement of rear dormer.

05/21/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs P BergerApplicant:
Date:

Refused

S Freeman Ltd

020 8868 8183Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/0837

34-36 Filey Avenue 
London N16 6JL

Demolition of two single storey garages and erection of
a two storey, three-bedroom house with rear garden.

06/03/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr & Mrs MatyasApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Bashkal Associates

0208 884 1169Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

Delegated Decisions 3

P
age 453



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0994

6 Lynmouth Road 
London N16 6XL

Erection of a single-storey rear extension.

05/15/2008

Graham Callam

7966528105

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs S. GronerApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Blitzgold & Associates

0208 366 8500Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1011

68 Upper Clapton Road, 
LONDON
E5 9JP

Installation of an Automated Teller Machine

06/12/2008

Yousef Bahadur

385058

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Bank Machine LtdApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Complete Technical 
Services Ltd

385058Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1070

68 Upper Clapton Road, 
London E5 9JP

Installation of internally illuminated sign to ATM

06/18/2008

Yousef Bahadur

385058

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Bank Machine LtdApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Complete Technical 
Services Ltd

385058Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1178

Flat C
6 Stamford Grove West
London
N16 6LJ

Details submitted pursuant to condition 2 (sample of 
materials) of appeal decision 
APP/U5360/A/07/2047429 dated 29/10/2007.05/27/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Steven JohnsonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Nolan Reid 
Computer Line Builders

0208 521 4422Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

Delegated Decisions 4

P
age 454



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1215

Units at 62 Durlston Road
London
E5

Details submitted pursuant to condition 1 (Noise report) 
of planning permission 2007/2294 dated 1 Nov 2007.

05/27/2008

Tyler Sharratt

020 7704 9014

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Charles Harris & 
Partners

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Charles Harris & 
Partners

020 7704 9014Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1300

22 Northwold Road
London
N16 7EP

Conversion of lower ground floor to create a 
self-contained two bed flat together with excavation to 
create front and side lightwells, installation of new 
windows and door, installation of railing fence to top of 
existing boundary wall, new gate and alterations of 
front entrance steps . 

05/28/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

020 8806 4474

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs A ShawApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr G A Williams

020 7739 9751Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1315

1 Forburg Road
London
N16 6HP

Proposed erection of a ground floor rear extension. 

06/02/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr FreundApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Bashkal & Associates

020 8884 1169Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1477

Top Floor Flat
23 Alkham Road
London
N16 7AA

Enlargement of a rear roof dormer with roof lights.

06/09/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms Goodwyn 
Matthews

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Endymion Architects

020 7254 2358Tel:

Agent:
30/07/08

CD

Delegated Decisions 5

P
age 455



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0194

21 Lilian Close
London
N16 0SG

Erection of new three-storey, end-terrace, four bedroom 
house at the side of No. 21 Lilian Close.

06/02/2008

Belinda Riley

0207 923 7245

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr A DayaApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Atelier/UWA Architects

0207 419 5990Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1083

101 Red Square
Stoke Newington
London
N16 9AG

Existing use property as a 2 bedroom residential unit. 

05/21/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss DahiaApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Harender Dahia

0207 421 4800Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1218

64 Red Square
Carysfort Road
London    N6 9AR

Existing use of property as a residential unit.

05/21/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Andrew Russell 
Dixon

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Howes Percival

01604 230400Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1236

160/160A Albion Road
London
N16 9JS

Approval of details pursuant to condition 9 
(landscaping scheme) attached to approval reference 
2007/0013.05/23/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

020 8888 1000

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Executive Homes ltdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Executive Homes ltd

020 8888 1000Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1295

144 Winston Road
London
N16 9LJ

Erection of a roof extension to create an additional 
storey.

05/22/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr AdamsApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Adams

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 6

P
age 456



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1298

37 Lidfield Road
Stoke Newington
London
N16

Erection of a roof extension to create an additional 
storey.

05/20/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision  Mr Jon BoltonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1304

99 Winston Road 
London
N16 9LN

Erection of a single storey rear extension.

05/28/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Mick BruntonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Jonathan Shattock

8094424Tel:

Agent:
17/07/08

2008/1370

60 Barbauld Road
London
N16 0ST

Proposed erection of a single storey ground floor rear 
extension with roof terrace above. 

06/10/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr BensonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Paul Mahay

0207 6900330Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1674

87 RED SQUARE 
CARYSFORT ROAD
LONDON
N16 9AG

Details submitted pursuant to condition 1 (roof lights) 
of planning appeal APP/U5360/A/07/2055105/NWF.

07/02/2008

Tyler Sharratt

01273 203 230

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Turner AssociatesApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Turner Associates

01273 203 230Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

CM

Delegated Decisions 7

P
age 457



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2007/3030

(Unit 13-20) 150 
Homerton High Street 
London E9 1JA

Change of use of property from B1/B2 to a private 
function venue (D2)/ assembly room ( with ancillary 
office) with opening hours 11:00-23:30 hours Monday 
to Wednesday; 11:00 - 01:30 hours on Thursday; 
11:00-04:00 hours Friday and Saturday and 18:00-2300 
hours on  Sundays.

05/19/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr J AdeyeyeApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Oliver Christian

Tel:

Agent:
09/07/08

2008/0555

Morningside Children's 
Centre
Chatham Place
London
E9 6LL 

Submission of details pursuant to condition 3 (details of 
materials) of planning application 2007/0907.

04/02/2008

Rokos Frangos

0207 485 0494

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Meadowcroft Griffin 
Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Meadowcroft Griffin 
Architects

020 7485 0494Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/0582

246-248 Morning Lane 
E9 6RQ

Conversion of first floor from storage area to form two 
self-contained one bed flats; together with the 
installation of new windows on rear elevation and new 
velux windows front and rear.

05/19/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr/Mrs BownApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Kevin Simpson

01892 655 013Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/0936

15-23 Elsdale St  2-5 
Middlesex Pl  2-12 Mend 
Pl & 9-15 Milborne St 
London
EC1Y 8QE

Approval of details pursuant to condition 9 (cycle 
stores) attached to approval reference 2002/0830.

06/02/2008

Caroline Ozor

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Peabody TrustApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Peabody
Trust-Development & 

020 7021 4000Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

Delegated Decisions 8

P
age 458



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1376

216-218 Mare Street, 
London E8 3RD

Rear:

Sycamore Tree T1 to T5 - Fell

Sycamore Tree T6 to T7 - reduce by 30%

06/03/2008

Nick Jacobs

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Peter CarlyonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Peter Carlyon

Tel:

Agent:
01/07/08

2008/1437

20B Clapton Passage
Hackney
London
E5 8HS

Rear Garden:

Eucalyptus Tree - fell to ground06/05/2008

Nick Jacobs

020 8986 6885

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Zoe 
Kilburn-Toppin

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

DB

2007/1700

42 - 44 De Beauvoir 
Crescent
London   N1

Installation of air handling units, extract unit, solar 
panels, boiler flues, TV antenna and satellite dish on the 
roof.09/17/2007

Gillian Nicks

0207 499 9244

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Renta Properties LtdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tim Sheridan

0207 278 5555Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

2007/1738

St Peters Church, 86 De 
Beauvoir Road, London 
N1 5AT

Provision of access ramps to western and northern 
entrances.

11/29/2007

Dean Wooding

0207 254 5670

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision The Inclimbent & 
PCC

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Robert Shaw Architects

0208 994 1599Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

Delegated Decisions 9

P
age 459



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2007/2857

11 - 23 Downham Road - 
London - N1 5AA

Submission of details pursuant to condition 10 (Site 
investigation) of planning permission ref: 2006/3381. 
(Part discharge - report on site investigation only)11/15/2007

Gillian Nicks

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Yurky Cross 
Chartered Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Yurky Cross Chartered 
Architects

020 7267 0481Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2007/2888

11 - 23 Downham Road
London - N1 5AA

Submission of details pursuant to condition 12 (details 
of bird boxes) of planning permission ref: 2006/3381 

11/15/2007

Gillian Nicks

020 7267 0481

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Yurky Cross 
Chartered Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Yurky Cross Chartered 
Architects

020 7267 0481Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/0277

11-23 Downham Road 
London  N1 5AA

Submission of details pursuant to Condition 9 (lighting 
scheme) of planning application reference 2006/3381 
dated 10/10/2007. 04/09/2008

Gillian Nicks

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Yurky Cross 
Chartered Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Yurky Cross Chartered 
Architects

020 7267 0481Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/0364

North Studio 1 Poole 
Street London N1 5EB

Change of use of part of underground basement, 
currently used as parking for 8 cars, to provide for an 
extension to existing Gym (use class D2).06/03/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Gainsborough
Studios

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Gainsborough Studios

Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/0812

52 Whitmore Road 
London N1 5QG

Application for the removal of Condition 20 (hours of 
opening A1 units) attached to planning permission 
2005/1775 to allow for unlimited opening proposed of 
A1 (Retail) units.

05/23/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr LoweApplicant:
Date:

Refused

MUF

0207 251 4004Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 10

P
age 460



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0814

52 Whitmore Road 
London N1 5QG

Application for the removal of Condition 21 (hours of 
opening B1 units) attached to planning permission 
2005/1775 to allow for unlimited opening of proposed 
B1 (Office) units.

05/23/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr LoweApplicant:
Date:

Approved

M U F

0207 251 4004Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1179

11 Ufton Grove
London
N1 4HG

Erection of a single-storey lower ground floor extension 
to the rear; excavation to enlarge existing light well.

05/20/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Spencee WallaceApplicant:
Date:

Approved

MOOARC

73541729Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

2008/1191

Sheldon Building 1 Baltic 
Place
London   N1 5AQ

Erection of single storey extension on flat roof of fifth 
floor to create a two bed flat.

05/14/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision DataGrove LtdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

GPAD LTD

0207 833 0222Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1237

48B De Beauvoir Road 
London N1 5AT

Details submitted pursuant to Condition 2(samples of 
materials) appeal decision APP/U5360/A/07/2053358 
dated 15 February 2008.05/20/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Stephen JamesApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Stephen James

Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1296

257 Kingsland Road
LONDON
E2 8AS

Installation of a non-illuminated sign above an ATM.

05/27/2008

Yousef Bahadur

385058

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Complete Technical 
Services Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Complete Technical 
Services Ltd

385058Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 11

P
age 461



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1331

52 Whitmore Road 
London N1 5QG

Discharge of Condition 4(Soil Contamination) attached 
to planning application 2005/1775 approved on 
05/10/2005.05/29/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr LoweApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Lemanski

0207 251 4004Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

2008/1452

37 ST AUBINS COURT
DE BEAUVOIR 
ESTATE
LONDON
N1 5TN

Alterations including changing door to a window and 
window into a door.

06/10/2008

Yousef Bahadur

0208 368 0063

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr ShamsadApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Shamsad

0208 368 0063Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1474

66 Southgate Road
London
N1 3JF

Proposed erection of a single-storey lower ground floor 
rear extension.

06/16/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms Catherine 
Hayward

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Susan & Roger Davis 
Partnership

020 7485 4622Tel:

Agent:
30/07/08

2008/1534

46 Lawford Road
London
N1 5BL

Front garden: Lime tree- reduce back to previous 
reduction point; crown thin by 20%

06/17/2008

Nick Jacobs

0208 993 1443

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision TreecareApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Treecare

0208 993 1443Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

DN

Delegated Decisions 12

P
age 462



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0061

74 Graham Road London 
E8 1BX

Erection of a part single and part  two - storey rear 
extension  together with the erection of an external 
metal staircase to the side elevation.01/22/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision MR J DONNELLYApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tel:

Agent:
09/07/08

2008/0792

9 Independent Place, 
London E8 2HE

Erection of a ground floor rear conservatory.

05/22/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr & Mrs 
McCartney

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Shiraz Riaz Everest 
Ltd

01727 733 963Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1044

Rear of 69 Kingsland 
High Street (fronting 
Bradbury Street) London
E8 2JS

Erection of four storey building in yard comprising 
ground floor Café (class A3), 1 x 1 bed flat at first floor 
and 1 x 2 bed flat at 2nd and 3rd storeys.05/09/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Mustafa CicekiApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Lisa Shell Architects

0207 275 7773Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1073

Rear of 91 & 93 
Kingsland High Street 
London E8 2PB

Erection of two, three storey one-bedroom mews 
houses.

05/20/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr John Davis, 
Grocola PLC

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Charles Khoo, 
Progetti Architecture

020 7482 5996Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1144

37 Parkholme Road
London
E8 3AG

Proposed erection of a single storey rear/side extension 
at ground floor level.

05/27/2008

Jim Hwang

020 7241 0938

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Jim BoddingtonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Lisa Shell Architects

0207 275 7773Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

Delegated Decisions 13

P
age 463



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1246

80 Dalston Lane
London
E8 3AH

Erection of a first and second floor rear extension and 
erection of a roof extension to create an additional 
storey.06/06/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Husseyn GuzelApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Chris Arnaouti

07956 635 515Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

2008/1259

82 Dalston Lane London 
E8 3AH

Change of use of the rear part of the ground floor, first 
and second floors from residential (C3) to a 6-bedroom 
bed and breakfast accommodation (C1), together with 
the erection of a new third floor mansard roof and the 
installation of a new shop front.

05/16/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

020 7254 3214

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr KotechaApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Xeva Design Concepts

0208 924 1441Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/1303

7 Barretts Grove
London
N16 8AP

Conversion of existing house into two x 3 bedroom self 
contained flats; creation of front and rear light well.

05/22/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr E ParrisApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr E Parris

Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/1339

19 Elrington Road
London
E8 3BJ

Front garden:  Eucalyptus - crown reduce by 25%
Rear garden:  Ash - crown reduce by 20% 

05/23/2008

Nick Jacobs

0207 033 0579

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Cutting Edge Tree 
Care

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Cutting Edge Tree Care

0207 033 0579Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

Delegated Decisions 14

P
age 464



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1408

15 Ramsgate Street - 
London - E8 2NA

Submission of detail pursuant to condition 6 (details 
and samples of external surfaces of building) of 
planning permission ref: 2007/0360.06/13/2008

Gillian Nicks

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

0207 613 5727Tel:

Agent:
22/07/08

2008/1512

5 Ritson Road London E8 
1DE

Details submitted pursuant to condition 1 of planning 
permission 2008/0717 dated 22/05/2008

06/16/2008

Evie Learman

0208 501 3121

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Tugby Surveyors LtdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tugby Surveyors Ltd

Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

2008/1556

7 Madinah Road
Hackney
London

Rear Garden

Cherry Tree - Fell06/17/2008

Nick Jacobs

0207 613 8038

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Newlon Housing 
Trust

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Becker Tree Services

0208 508 3832Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

HACKC

2008/0133

301-303 Mare Street 
London E8 1EJ

Removal of roof and chimney from single-storey rear 
extension, provision of new door at first floor level, new 
walkway and bin area, replacement pitched roof, new 
shop front and internal/external alterations.

03/03/2008

Michael Garvey

020 8986 3737

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Ali UzijnApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Bashkal & Associates

020 8884 1169Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

Delegated Decisions 15

P
age 465



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0658

59 Greenwood Road
London
E8 1NT

Details submitted pursuant to Condition 1 (Positioning 
of windows) and Condition 4 (Materials on external 
surfaces) of planning permission 2007/2412 dated 10th 
November 2007

04/02/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs Glenys Taylor & 
Mr Andrew McAdie

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Janet Stapleton 
Architect

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/0977

140 Sandringham Road, 
London E8 2HJ

Demolition of the existing 3 storey house and the 
erection of two 5 storey three bedroom dwelling houses 
with the provision of waste and recycling and cycle 
stores.

05/15/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Claire HaleApplicant:
Date:

Approved

DBLO Associates

0207 610 9333Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1091

408 Mare Street London 
E8 1HP

Change of use and alterations to form a two bed flat 
over ground floor betting shop ( at 1st, 2nd and 3rd 
floor levels).05/19/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr ByrneApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Shell

Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1092

408 Mare Street London 
E8 1HP

Listed Building Consent for alterations to form a two 
bed flat over ground floor betting shop.

05/19/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr ByrneApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Shell

Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1372

100 Greenwood Road
London
E8 1NE

Front: No. 5 Lime - Crown Lift
 No. 6 Loquat - Crown Lift

Rear:No.1 Ash - Remove
No.2 Apple - Crown Thin and reshape
No. 3 & 4 Plum - Crown Thin and Reshape

06/03/2008

Nick Jacobs

020 7249 0144

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Patricia BrownApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Patricia Brown

020 7249 0144Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

Delegated Decisions 16

P
age 466



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1379

22 NAVARINO ROAD
LONDON
E8 1AD

Rear Garden: 
Catalpa Species - Crown reduce by 25% remove 
deadwood.
Lawson Cypress - reduce height by 3m and trim to 
formal shape.
Common Ash - remove deadwood

06/03/2008

Nick Jacobs

0207 720 1555

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision City SuburbanApplicant:
Date:

Approved

City Suburban

0207 720 1555Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/1705

199 - 205 Richmond 
Road
London    E8 3NJ

Submission of details to discharge condition 4 of appeal 
decision APP/U5360/A/06/1199458
Method Statement for brick replacement
Façade retention report.

07/09/2008

John Kaimakamis

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hamiltons Architects 
Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Hamiltons Architects 
Ltd

0207 549 1900Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

HACKCK

2008/1545

London Fields Primary 
School
Westgate Street
London
E8 3RL 

Submission of details pursuant to condition 7 of 
planning permission ref.  2007/2564.

06/26/2008

Rokos Frangos

020 8820 7000

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision London Fields 
Primary School

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Matthew Lloyd 
Architects

0207 613 1934Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

HACKD

2008/0425

5 Heyworth  Road 
London E5 8DR

Conversion of single dwellinghouse to create two 
self-contained three-bedroom flats, and alterations to 
rear elevation.03/17/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr/Mrs
Bertall/Kennedy

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Artemis Artemiou

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 17

P
age 467



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1027

Rear of 211 Lower 
Clapton Road
London
E5 8EG

Erection of a first floor extension to the two residential 
units at the rear of 211 Lower Clapton Road.

05/20/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Temel AlpApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Bashkal And Associates

020 8884 1169Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1139

38 Alconbury Road, 
London E5 8RH

Erection of a rear dormer extension and roof lights to 
the front.

06/04/2008

Yousef Bahadur

207 5038153

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs Maya CarniApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mrs Maya Carni

Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1145

96 Rectory Road
London
N16 7SD

Internal reconfiguration of lower ground and ground 
floor to create two additional bedsits with communal 
living/dining room and one bed flat.05/29/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Mustafa DemirelApplicant:
Date:

Refused

forrester_architecture_d
esign

Tel:

Agent:
17/07/08

2008/1188

31-35 Reighton Road
London
E5 8SQ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (front 
elevation showing position of front door) attached to 
approval reference 2007/2528.05/16/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

01322552170

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision D I P SystemsApplicant:
Date:

Approved

D I P Systems

01322552170Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

Delegated Decisions 18

P
age 468



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1193

98 Reighton Road 
London E5 8SQ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 3 (dustbin and 
recycling enclosures) attached to approval reference 
2007/3195.06/05/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

01322 577 566

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Bostall Architectural 
Services

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Bostall Architectural 
Services

01322 577 566Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

2008/1195

31-35 Reighton Road
London
E5 8SQ

Approval of details pursuant to condition 4 (dustbin and 
recycling enclosures) attached to approval reference 
2007/2528.06/12/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

01322 552170

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision D I P SystemsApplicant:
Date:

Approved

D I P Systems

01322 552170Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

2008/1207

140 Brooke Road Stoke 
Newington London N16 
7RR

Erection of a rear roof extension with roof lights to the 
front roof slope.

06/04/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr James MahonApplicant:
Date:

Approved

New Space

Tel:

Agent:
16/07/08

2008/1217

51A Kenninghall Road 
London E5 8BS

Demolition of existing MOT station/car sales buildings 
and change of use from (sui generis) to residential (use 
class C3) and the erection of a part single storey, part 
two storey and part three storey building to provide 7 
residential units comprising 6 x 1 bed flats and 1 x 2 
bed flat with side and rear balconies.

06/12/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Chris WallaceApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Wallbank Associates

020 7700 2888Tel:

Agent:
30/07/08

2008/1279

Highways Pavement
Downs Road
Hackney
London
N16 7QJ

Prior approval of proposed installation of a 15m high 
flexicell street furniture column with 2 equipment 
cabinets.05/28/2008

Yousef Bahadur

01932 411011

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision O2 (UK) LtdApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Waldon Telecom Ltd

01932 411 011Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

Delegated Decisions 19

P
age 469



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1427

209 Evering Road 
London
E5 8AL

Approval of details pursuant to condition 5 ( bin and 
recycling enclosures) attached to approval reference 
2008/042406/10/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Manjit HeerApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Bostall Estates Limited

01322 557566Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

2008/1441

48 Walsingham Road
London
E5 8NF

Excavation of the basement including the creation of a 
front lightwell with railing surround and new external 
ladder leading to the basement; new bay windows to 
front.

06/16/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hyder-Smith & 
Moorehouse

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Maja Myall

01273 380001Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1648

64 Northwold Road 
London E5 8RL

Details submitted pursuant to condition 2 (details of 
finial).

07/03/2008

Evie Learman

01277 632306

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision LAP Architects & 
Interior Designers 

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

LAP Architects & 
Interior Designers Ltd

01277 632306Tel:

Agent:
22/07/08

HG

2007/1550

FLAT 8
GLASSWORKS
2 BASING PLACE
LONDON
E2 8AB

Existing use as a self-contained flat

07/03/2007

Graham Callam

0207 226 1313

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Paul WilliamsApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Paul Williams

0207 226 1313Tel:

Agent:
09/07/08

Delegated Decisions 20

P
age 470



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0841

138 - 139 Shoreditch 
High St
London
E1 6JE

Alterations including the installation of a new 
shopfront.

05/19/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Justin F J PiggottApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Justin F J Piggott

Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/0945

74 Great Eastern Street - 
London - EC2A 3J

Installation of new externally illuminated fascia and 
projecting sign. 

06/09/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Asadullah DaulatzaiApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Brooks / Murray Arch

0207 739 99 55Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

2008/1146

19 Charlotte Road, 
LONDON
EC2A 3SG

Installation of a banner sign between the ground and 
first floor.

05/22/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Edith PlattenApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Brooks/Murray
Architects

020 7739Tel:

Agent:
01/07/08

2008/1232

39 Coronet Street London 
N1 6HD

Change of use of second floor from offices (Class B1) 
to 1 one bed flat.

06/04/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms WaltersApplicant:
Date:

Approved

MZA Associates

0844 500 5050Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1267

229A Hackney Road
London
E2 8NA

Alterations including the erection of a single storey 
lower ground floor rear extension with roof terrace 
above with railing surround; alteration of window to a 
door to access terrace; rebuilding boundary wall and 
installation of new door to Scawfell Street elevation; 
installation of shower room to front lightwell and 
replace existing window with French doors.

06/02/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms Louise BoylandApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Carolyn Squire 
Architect

020 7254 0624Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

Delegated Decisions 21

P
age 471



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1346

229A Hackney Road
London
E2 8NA

Alterations including the erection of a single storey 
lower ground floor rear extension with roof terrace 
above with railing surround; alteration of window to a 
door to access terrace; rebuilding boundary wall and 
installation of new door to Scawfell Street elevation; 
installation of shower room to front lightwell and 
replace existing window with French doors; internal 
alterations.

06/02/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms Louise BoylandApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Carolyn Squire 
Architect

020 7254 0624Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1402

86 Great Eastern Street 
London
EC2A 3JL

Installation of an advertisement hoarding to the façade 
of the building.

06/05/2008

Evie Learman

0207 307 7020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Blow Up Media UK 
Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Blowup Media Uk Ltd

020 7307 7020Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1440

270-276 Kingsland Road
London
E8 4DG

Alterations including the installation of a new 
aluminium frame shopfront and the provision of a 
ramped access. 06/11/2008

Yousef Bahadur

020 8090 4537

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Meir LevineApplicant:
Date:

Refused

ATP Group

020 8532 4141Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

HGY

2008/1500

123 Castlewood Road, 
London N15 6BD

Observation of adjoining borough for the erection of a 
two storey side and rear extension. 

06/16/2008

Graham Callam

020 8489 5508

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Planning Policy and 
Development

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Planning Policy and 
Development

020 8489 5508Tel:

Agent:
22/07/08

HOX

Delegated Decisions 22

P
age 472



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2007/2296

227 - 227C City Road & 
4 Windsor Terrace - 
London - EC1V 1LA

Variation of Condition 3 (external finishes), 4b (details 
of ground floor shop elevations) and 16 (internal 
lockable parking for bicycles) of planning permission 
ref 2005/0272.

10/08/2007

Conor McDonagh

tel. 020 8504 971

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Michael CourtenayApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Michael Courtenay

tel. 020 8504 9711Tel:

Agent:
22/07/08

2007/2589

109-11 Britannia Walk 
12-16 Westland Place 
London N1 7LP

Variation of Condition 2 (development according to 
approved plans) attached to planning permission 
2006/1965 to incorporate internal and external 
alterations.

12/06/2007

Dean Wooding

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Richard Kaffel 
Nationwide Secured 

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Richard Hywel Evans

0207 252 5359Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2007/2874

Westland Place/Nile 
Street/Britannia Walk - 
London -  N1 7LU

Variation of condition 15 (car parking accommodation 
for residential units only) of planning permission ref: 
2006/210805/07/2008

Adam Flynn

0034971721291

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Urban Rustic UKApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Richard Hywel Evans 
Architecture & Design 

0207 253 5358Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2007/3168

24 Murray Grove
London
N1

Submission of details pursuant to condition 3 (details of 
materials of building and boundary walls) of planning 
permission reference 2007/0988 dated 21st August 
2007

01/09/2008

Gillian Nicks

0207 613 5727

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Waugh Thistleton 
Architects Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

0207 613 5727Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/0670

411 Union Wharf
23-25 Wenlock Road 
London N1 7SZ

Use as a residential unit 

06/25/2008

Jim Hwang

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Jonathan WardApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Jaki Sharp

Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

Delegated Decisions 23

P
age 473



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0682

Flat 213 Union Wharf
23-25 Wenlock Road
London
N1 7SJ

Use as a residential unit 

03/27/2008

Yousef Bahadur

0207 684 3151

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Adrian Paul VarleyApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Adrian Paul Varley

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1112

1 - 42 Marie Lloyd House 
Murray Grove
London   N1 7PJ

Replacement of existing balcony balustrading with 
metal railings.

06/06/2008

Tyler Sharratt

0208 356 2703

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hackney Housing 
Regeneration

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Ashford Commercial

01692 500 432Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1115

1-57 Nevitt House
Cranston Estate
London
N1 6TD

Replacement of existing balcony balustrading with 
metal railings, replacement of bin stores (x2) to rear, 
erection of three new entrance canopies to rear at 
ground level and installation of new railings and gates 
to rear at ground level.

06/04/2008

Evie Learman

0208 356 2703

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hackney Housing 
Regeneration

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Ashford Commercial

01692 500 432Tel:

Agent:
16/07/08

2008/1126

Wenlock Building
50-60 Wharf Road
London    N1 7SF

Submission of details pursuant to condition 23 
(ventilation of basement car park) of planning 
permission ref: 2006/158105/29/2008

Erich Wessels

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hawkins BrownApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Hawkins Brown

020 7336 8030Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 24

P
age 474



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1235

Flat 507 Union Wharf 
23-25 Wenlock Road 
London N1 7TD

Existing use of the property as a self-contained flat.

05/20/2008

Graham Callam

020 7968 3694

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Athy YogarajahApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Athy Yogarajah

020 7968 3694Tel:

Agent:
07/07/08

2008/1425

504 Union Wharf 23 
Wenlock Road London 
N1 7TD

Existing use of the property as a self-contained flat 

06/05/2008

Graham Callam

07789373403

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mark DavidsonApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mark Davidson

07789373403Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1432

107 Union Wharf
23 Wenlock Road
London
N1 7SE

Existing use of the property as a self-contained flat.

06/05/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Kevin MurphyApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tel:

Agent:
25/07/08

2008/1436

Flat 211
Union Wharf
23 Wenlock Road
London
N1 7SJ

Existing use of the property as a self-contained flat.

06/05/2008

Graham Callam

07939 262 450

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Glenn BardenApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tel:

Agent:
25/07/08

Delegated Decisions 25

P
age 475



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1453

209 Union Wharf, 23 
Wenlock Road, London 
N1 7SJ

Existing use of the property as a self-contained flat. 

06/05/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Sarah CampbellApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Sarah Campbell

0207 503 1878Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1471

49-51 East Road
London
N1 6AH

Alterations including the relocation of entrance door.

06/09/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Andrew CroftApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mohteith Scott Ltd

0121 236 0909Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1519

217 City Road 
London
EC1V 1JN

Retention of a Automatic Teller Machine.

06/19/2008

Evie Learman

01274 377517

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision C/o Note Machine 
Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

UNCON

Kings Security Systems 
Ltd

01274 377517Tel:

Agent:
31/07/08

2008/1610

Wenlock Building
50 - 60 Wharf Road
London   N1 7SF

Submission of detail pursuant to condition 15 (waste 
management plan) of planning permission ref: 
2006/158106/26/2008

Adam Flynn

020 7336 8030

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Hawkins Brown 
Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Hawkins Brown 
Architects

020 7336 8030Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1680

3 - 11 Wenlock Street
London  N1 7NT

Submission of details pursuant to Condtion 11 (Security 
& Crime Prevention) of planning permission ref. 
2007/095507/09/2008

Adam Flynn

0207 739 2020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Genesis Housing 
Association

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Stephen Davy Peter 
Smith Architects

020 7739 2020Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 26

P
age 476



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1710

227 - 227C City Road
Windsor Terrace
London   EC1V 1JT

Submission of details to discharge condition 18 (Wheel 
Wash Facilities)
of planning permission 2005/0272.07/09/2008

John Kaimakamis

0208 504 9711

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Tooley & Foster 
Partnership

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Tooley & Foster 
Partnership

Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

KP

2008/0785

Land at Millfields Depot
Millfields Road   Clapton
London    E5 0AR

Submission of details pursuant to condition 17 
(Visibility splays) of planning permission ref: 
2007/096504/03/2008

Paul Roberts

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Capita Symonds Ltd.Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Capita Symonds Ltd.

020 7870 9228Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1028

38A Lockhurst Street, 
Homerton London E5 
0AP

Replacing two rear windows at basement level to two 
patio doors plus replacing existing bathroom window.

05/22/2008

Evie Learman

0207 508 8717

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Jared & Mrs 
Rebecca Schiller

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Barry Joseph Lester

Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1128

Land at Millfields Road 
Millfields Road 
London   E5 0SA

Retrospective application for EDFE-4 head-house 
previously approved under 2005/2524 relating to the 
power lines under grounding project from West Ham to 
Hackney, required for the delivery of the Olympic 
Games.

06/26/2008

Anthony Traub

3201

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Neil SmithApplicant:
Date:

UNCON

EDAW plc

3009Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 27

P
age 477



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1141

277 Glyn Road 
London
E5 0JP

Conversion of a single dwelling house to create two 
self-contained flats (comprising 1 x 3 bed flat and 1 x 1 
bed flat) together with external alterations including 
installation of a new rear door, side windows, side door 
and staircase

06/06/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Nicholas 
Maggiulli

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Bob Trimble - 
Architects

020 8538 9303Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1172

3 Lockhurst Street 
London E5 0AP

Conversion of a single dwelling house to create 2 x 3 
bedroom flats together with excavation to provide front 
light well to basement and the erection of a mansard 
roof extension and alterations to the rear and side 
elevations.

05/21/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms JohnsonApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Webster

0776 758 552Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1299

110 Roding Road, 
London E5 0DS

Erection of a first floor rear extension.

05/27/2008

Graham Callam

0208 985 7924

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Albert AugustinApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Albert Augustin

Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1325

Land at Millfields Depot
Millfields Road
Clapton
London
E5 0AR

Submission of details pursuant to condition 12 
(sewerage infrastructure) of planning permission ref. 
2007/0963.06/06/2008

Rokos Frangos

020 7870 9228

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Capita Symonds Ltd.Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Capita Symonds Ltd.

020 7870 9228Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

LB

Delegated Decisions 28

P
age 478



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2007/1929

Lathams Yard
Mount Pleasant Hill
London    E5 9NG

Submission of details pursuant to condition 2 (full 
details of all ground surface treatment) of planning 
application 2005/175608/08/2007

Ryan Darby

01277 236800

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Taylor WimpeyApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Taylor Wimpey

01277 236800Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2007/2925

Riverside House and site 
bounded by Ziam Trading 
Estate
The River Lee Harvest 
House and Leaside Road
London E5 9LU

Submission of details pursuant to Condition 2 
(materials to be used on external surface of building - 
window detail) of Planning Permission ref: 2006/2800.11/21/2007

Conor McDonagh

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

0207 613 5727Tel:

Agent:
22/07/08

2007/3113

Latham's Yard, Mount 
Pleasant Hill, London E5

Submission of details pursuant to Conditions 4 (open 
space) & 17 (Landscaping) of planning permission ref: 
2006/2195, dated 30th November 2006. 12/17/2007

Conor McDonagh

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Countryside
Properties Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

GeraldEve

0207 333 6292Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/0057

Land at Former CEGB 
Power Station
Millfields Road - London 
- E5 0AR

Erection of portacabins comprising offices, changing 
and welfare buildings, security building, storage 
facilities and refuelling facility on a temporary basis.02/04/2008

Gillian Nicks

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision London
Development

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Ove Arup & Partners 
Ltd

0207 735 3834Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 29

P
age 479



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0696

Land At Former Power 
Station Millfileds Road 
London  E5 0AR

Submission of details pursuant to condition 11(details 
of a programme of archaeological work - written 
scheme of investigation) of planning permission 
reference no 2007/2196

03/28/2008

Adam Flynn

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision ARUPApplicant:
Date:

Approved

ARUP

0207 755 3834Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/0866

152 Lower Clapton Road 
London E5 OQJ

Change of use of part of the ground floor from a retail 
shop (Use Class A1) to cafe/hot food takeaway (Use 
Class A3/A5) with opening hours 08:00 hours to 19:00 
hours Monday to Sunday together with installation of 
external flue.

06/02/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr SolakApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Miss Mutlu

07890562875Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1158

96 Glenarm Road London 
E5 OLZ

Erection of a roof extension to create an additional 
storey.

05/22/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr A OnigbanjoApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr A Onigbanjo

07956 807 520Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1240

4A Linscott Road
Clapton
London
E5 0RD

Erection of a single storey ground floor rear extension 
relocation of an external staircase and insertion of a new 
window to the rear at ground floor level. 05/20/2008

Graham Callam

0208 533 0631

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Vijay VyasApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Kirit Taylor

0208 889 30002Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1342

169 Powerscroft Road, 
London E5 0PR

Proposed erection of a ground floor rear extension

06/03/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Daniel BeardApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Daniel Beard

Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

Delegated Decisions 30

P
age 480



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1487

150 Lower Clapton Road
London E5 0QJ

Installation of externally illuminated fascia sign and 
projecting sign.

06/17/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision William Hill 
Organization

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Coften

0208  918 3809Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1579

150 Lower Clapton Road
London E5 0QJ

Installation of a new shopfront  together with the 
erection of 3No  air conditioning units at the rear .

06/19/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision William Hill 
Organization

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Coften

0208  918 3809Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

LORD

2008/0823

22A Bouverie Road, 
London N16 0AJ

Change of use of existing part three, part four storey 
workshop building together with erection of third floor 
extension and three storey side extension and alterations 
to external elevations to create nine residential units 
(comprising 4 x 3 bed units and 5 x 2 bed units) 
together with proposed felling of overhanging trees at 
the adjoining Abney Park Cemetery.

05/16/2008

Caroline Ozor

0207 254 2777

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Atique 
Choudhury,

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Loates-Taylor Shannon 
Architects ltd

0207 357 7000Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1072

130 Stoke Newington 
Church Street London 
N16 0JX

Alterations to internal and external walls including the 
enlargement to front lightwell and new external 
staircase; replace existing toilet and shed with a new 
extension; renew existing trellis fronting Lordship 
Road; changing window into a door at the front.

06/04/2008

Tyler Sharratt

0207 688 1656

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr David LordApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Ms Dani Ellis

0207 6881 656Tel:

Agent:
16/07/08

Delegated Decisions 31

P
age 481



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1110

130 Stoke Newington 
Church Street
London
N16 0JX

Alterations to internal and external walls including the 
enlargement to front lightwell and new external 
staircase; replace existing toilet and shed with a new 
extension; renew existing trellis fronting Lordship 
Road; changing window into a door at the front.

06/06/2008

Tyler Sharratt

0207 688 1656

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr David LordApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Ms Dani Ellis

0207 6881 656Tel:

Agent:
16/07/08

2008/1327

82 Queen Elizabeths 
Walk
London
N16 5UQ

Enlarging two existing roof dormers to the rear 

06/04/2008

Graham Callam

020 7690 0936

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Jonathon 
Freedland

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Dominic ORiordan 
Architecture

020 7223 6498Tel:

Agent:
25/07/08

NEW

2008/0173

Land at Eton Manor
Former sports ground
Quatermile Lane
London
E15

Temporary use of land for gypsy/traveller site for a 
period of 12 months including amenity units, associated 
earthworks and creation of vehicle access from 
Quartermile Lane.

01/30/2008

Conor McDonagh

020 8430 6020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision London
Development

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Capita Symonds Ltd.

020 7870 9300Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/0488

Part Of Hackney Marshes 
(East Marsh) Olympic 
Park Planning Delivery 
Zone 15

Submission of written scheme of investigation (WS1) 
for archaeological works in respect of Planning 
Delivery Zone 15 as required by condition OD.15.1 of 
planning permission 07/90010/OUMODA

03/07/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority (Planning 

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 32

P
age 482



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0641

Land Bounded by 
Waterworks River & New 
Carpenters Road
Located in Planning 
Delivery Zone 1

Submission of reserved matters for the Aquatics Centre 
(Pursuant to permission 07/90010/OUMODA). 
Submission of details for the legacy transformation in 
accordance with condition LTDO.18 and of the 
foundation and piling of the building/structure pursuant 
to condition OD.0.26 and OD.0.59

03/25/2008

Anthony Traub

020 8430 6044

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1454

Development Block 16, 
CCHP, Zone 1
Stratford City 
Development
Stratford Rail Lands
Stratford - London - E15

Submission of Reserved Matters application pursuant to 
Conditions B1, B8 and K2 of outline planning 
permission 07/90023/VARODA for the construction of 
a Combined Cooling Heating and Power Plant (CCHP) 
comprising 3810sqm of floorspace.

06/09/2008

Anthony Traub

0208 430 6020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

0208 430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1626

Plot No4 Zone 5 Stratford 
City - London - E15

Approval of reserved matters for 295 residential units 
and 580sq.m of retail floor space with associated car 
parking and on-plot landscaping pursuant to condition 
B1 and B8 of outline planning permission 
07/90023/VARODA, being details of layout scale, 
access, appearance and landscaping.

06/26/2008

Anthony Traub

020 8430 6020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1632

Plot NO3 - Zone 5 - 
Stratford City - London  - 
E15

Approval of reserved matters for 302 residential units 
and 580 sqm of retail floorspace with associated car 
parking and on-plot landscaping pursuant to conditions 
B1 and B8 of outline planning permission 
07/90023/VARODA, being details of layout, scale, 
access, appearance and landscaping.

06/27/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 33

P
age 483



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1654

Blocks M2, M3, M4, M5, 
M6 & Basement M7 & 
M8
Zone 1, Stratford City 
Development, Marshgate 
Lane
Stratford

Reserved Matters application pursuant to Conditions 
B1,B8,B10,A4,D3,D9,D9a, T3 and T4 of outline 
planning permission 07/90023/VARODA for the 
construction of Buildings M2-M6 (Retail, Leisure and 
Car Parking) with floorspace of 140,905m2, comprising 
77,434m2 (gross) retail, 20,668m2 (gross) leisure and 
parking for 3203 cars over 42,783m2 including 
Buildings M7 and M8 car parking at basement level.

06/27/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1669

Olympic park planning 
delivery zones 1 & 9. The 
central section of bridge 
H08 crosses the North 
London Line (London 
Overground), Lea Curve 
and Carpenters Road in 
the London Borough of 
Newham.

Reserved matters application for construction of the 
central permanent section of highway bridge H08 over 
the North London Line and Lea Curve and temporary 
bridge over Carpenters Road and associated temporary 
embankment in partial discharge of condition OD.0.19 
(details of bridges) and OD.0.59 (foundation details) in 
respect of Bridge H08 of the Olympic and Legacy 
Facilities Application reference 07/90010/OUMODA.

07/02/2008

Anthony Traub

020 8430 6020

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
23/07/08

2008/1692

Under Bridge U05, 
Located On Land Within 
Olympic Planning 
Delivery Zone 6 To The 
North West of the 
Proposed Velodrome, To 
the South of the A12 And 
to the East of the River 
Lea.

Reserved matters application for access, appearance, 
layout, and scale of Under Bridge U05, for partial 
discharge of Conditions OD.0.19 (details of bridges) 
and OD.0.59 (foundation details) of planning 
permission 07/90010/OUMODA

07/09/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Applicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

020 8430 6020Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 34

P
age 484



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

NR

2008/0793

22 Denver Road, London 
N16 5JH

Conversion of single dwelling house to create three 
self-contained flats (comprising 1 x 3 bed flat and 2 x 1 
bed flats) together with erection of front dormer 
extension.

05/08/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Karpal SinghApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Murtaza Poptani

07947 874249Tel:

Agent:
01/07/08

2008/0978

3 Northdene Gardens, 
London, N15

Existing use of the building as a Synagogue

06/16/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Upperstates LtdApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Rabbi A Jungreis

0208 806 0555Tel:

Agent:
30/07/08

2008/1048

142 Stamford Hill 
London N16 6QT

Proposed erection of a side and rear roof extension. 

06/04/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Robert GrussgottApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Jeffrey Howard

020 8905 4292Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

2008/1257

Ground Floor Flat 64 
Dunsmure Road London 
N16 5PR

Erection of a single-storey side and rear ground floor 
extension.

05/22/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr I GeeApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Beyza Mutlli

Tel:

Agent:
09/07/08

2008/1364

40 Fairholt Road
London
N16 5HW

Excavation of a basement including the creation of a 
new front lightwell with new external staircase, window 
doors and railing surround. 06/09/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr BenedictApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss B Mutlu

07890562875Tel:

Agent:
16/07/08

Delegated Decisions 35

P
age 485



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

QB

2008/1166

74 Broadway Market, 
London Fields, Hackney 
E8 4QJ

Alterations including the erection of a first floor rear 
extension with access to the existing roof terrace; 
bricking up of rear window and installation of new 
louver to the rear

05/20/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Christina PersinApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Christina Persin

01424713  460Tel:

Agent:
01/07/08

2008/1248

74 Brougham Road
London
E8 4PB

Alterations including the erection of a single-storey 
ground floor rear extension and erection of a roof 
extension to create an additional storey.05/27/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr & Mrs PearceApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Stephen Nutkins

01322524230Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1317

28-32 Ellingfort Road
London
E8 3PA

Rear Garden.

Norway maple - Fell to ground and within one year 
replant two Ligustrum lucidum (Large Leaved Privet) 
along the front boundary.

05/27/2008

Nick Jacobs

0208 986 6171

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr YauApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Simone De-Gale

07943 251 781Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/1338

261 Mare Street London 
E8 3NS

Discharge of Conditions 3(Acoustic Report) and 
4(Odour Control System) attached to planning 
application 2007/0078 approved on 19/03/2007.05/29/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Tad RestaurantApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Tad Restaurant

Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

Delegated Decisions 36

P
age 486



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1345

48 Lavender Grove 
London E8 3SL

Erection of a ground floor rear extension

06/04/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr HughesApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Stuart Dee

Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1503

256 Richmond Road, 
London E8 3QW

Replace existing boundary wall fronting Eleanor Road 
with close boarded fence.

06/13/2008

Evie Learman

0207 249 9382

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision TeaconApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Carolyn Squire

0207 254 0624Tel:

Agent:
29/07/08

2008/1505

256 Richmond Road, 
London E8 3QW

Replace existing boundary wall fronting Eleanor Road 
with a close boarded fence.

06/12/2008

Evie Learman

0207 249 9382

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision TeaconApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Carolyn Squire

0207 254 0624Tel:

Agent:
31/07/08

2008/1528

London Fields Primary 
School
Westgate Street
London
E8 3RL 

Submission of details pursuant to condition 3 (details of 
materials to be used on building, boundary walls and 
ground surfaces) of planning permission ref: 2007/256406/18/2008

Rokos Frangos

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Matthew Lloyd 
Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Matthew Lloyd 
Architects

0207 613 1934Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

Delegated Decisions 37

P
age 487



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1641

78 Malvern Road, 
London E8 3DL

Front Garden:

Acer - Pollarding by up to 40%06/26/2008

Nick Jacobs

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision North London 
Muslim Housing

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Able Tree Services

0208 524 2271Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

SF

2008/0396

Springfield Community 
Primary School
Castlewood Road
London
N16 6DH

Submission of details pursuant to condition 3 (facing 
material on building) of planning permission dated 
21-06-07 (ref: 2006/3262)02/21/2008

Rokos Frangos

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Matthew Lloyd 
Architects

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Matthew Lloyd 
Architects

0207 613 1934Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1035

42 Castlewood Road
London
N16 6DW

Conversion of a single dwelling house to create two 
self-contained dwellings (comprising 1 x 3 bed flat and 
1 x 2 bed flat) together with the erection of a single 
storey rear extension at lower ground floor level and 
enlargement of rear dormer extension.

05/21/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Leon FurnessApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Leon Furness

Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1253

33 Leadale Road
London
N16 6BZ

Erection of a front and rear roof extension.

05/22/2008

Tyler Sharratt

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr M RumplerApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Shaya Associates

0208 455 2693Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 38

P
age 488



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1256

13 Leadale Road
London
N16 6BZ

Erection of a front and rear roof extension and a ground 
floor rear extension.

05/22/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Lea Estates LtdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Kingsgrave Design 
Services

01206 855527Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/1430

Land to the rear of 69 
Mount Pleasant Lane
London

Details submitted pursuant to condition 3 ( positioning 
of windows and roof orientation), of planning 
permission 2007/3050 dated 13 February 2008.06/05/2008

Graham Callam

01284 704 546

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision John Stebbing 
Architect

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

John Stebbing Architect

01284 704 546Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

SNC

2008/0567

49 Evering Road London 
N16 7PU

Conversion of single dwelling house to create four self 
contained units (comprising 1 x 3 bed flat, 2 x 2 bed 
flats, and 1 x 1 bed flat) together with excavation to 
create habitable space at basement level with front and 
rear lightwells, erection of a rear mansard roof 
extension, erection of a single storey rear extension 
installation of new front windows at basement level, 
installation of rear Juliet balcony at ground floor level 
and external alterations.

05/29/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Avocado
Developments Ltd

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mrs C Apcar

0208 387 1387Tel:

Agent:
17/07/08

2008/1095

55A Stoke Newington 
Church Street, London 
N16 0AR

Alterations including the relocation of an external 
ventilation extract duct at the rear; create new openings 
in connection with the creation of a roof terrace at 
second floor level

05/15/2008

Graham Callam

0207 249 6567

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Alan PalmerApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Wilson Macgarry 
Architects

01763 208 002Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

Delegated Decisions 39

P
age 489



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1108

26-30 Stoke Newington 
Church Street London 
N16 0LU

Alterations including the creation of a door opening to 
the rear and erection of new railings to the rear. 

06/11/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision El Mercado Mexican 
Restaurant

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Bashkal & Associates

020 8884 1169Tel:

Agent:
31/07/08

2008/1258

20A Farleigh Road 
London N16 7TH

Erection of a single-storey rear extension.

06/04/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Nathaniel 
Ashford

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Jack Hosea 
Threefold Architects

0208 969 2323Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2008/1288

54 Brighton Road London 
N16 8EG

Proposed erection of a single-storey ground floor rear 
extension.

05/22/2008

Graham Callam

0207 690 1654

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mrs LeeApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Jonathan Cooke

01509 891 105Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1312

28 Dumont Road
London
N16 0NS

Proposed erection of a ground floor rear extension. 

05/23/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr & Mrs GilmoreApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Daman Peddar

07970 647 449Tel:

Agent:
14/07/08

2008/1343

30 Lavers Road
London
N16 0DT

Proposed erection of a ground floor rear extension and a 
rear roof extension. 

05/28/2008

Graham Callam

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Stuart KerrApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Duncan Woodburn 
RIBA

020 7637 3819Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

Delegated Decisions 40

P
age 490



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

VA

2008/0193

47/49 Tudor Road (Block 
B) London E9 7SN

Use of units 17, 18, 19, 23, 26, 29 and 30 (block b, 
47/49 Tudor Road) live/work units (Sui Generis)

02/14/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Neptune GroupApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Anike Darnelle

020 7729 6355Tel:

Agent:
31/07/08

2008/0406

Block B, Units 20, 21, 22, 
24, 25 & 27/28 
47-49 Tudor Road 
London E9 7SN

Application for the change of use of units 20, 21, 22, 
24, 25 and 27/28 to live/work.

04/01/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Neptune GroupApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Noel Serrano, C/O 
Anike Darnelle

0207 729 6355Tel:

Agent:
31/07/08

2008/0900

14 Warneford Street
London
E9 7NG

Erection of a single-storey ground floor rear extension

05/27/2008

Yousef Bahadur

020 8985 3258

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Abdul G MullaApplicant:
Date:

Approved

YMS Design Ltd

020 8252 8373Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/1154

77-79  Victoria Park Road 
London E9 7NA

Front Garden:  Tlia Europea; T1, T2, T3, T4 - pollard to 
original pollard points.  G5 - remove regenerative 
growth.05/19/2008

Nick Jacobs

020 8986 1892

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision John ChadwickApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Bruce Hatton & 
Asdsociates

01229 716498Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

Delegated Decisions 41

P
age 491



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1264

103A Lauriston Road 
London E9 7HJ

Erection of single storey B1 office building on existing 
Tarmac Drive.

05/16/2008

Michael Garvey

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Stephen 
Rajbenbach

Applicant:
Date:

Refused

Waugh Thistleton 
Limited

0207 613 5727Tel:

Agent:
08/07/08

2008/1310

6 The Cedars
Banbury Road
London
E9 7EA

Installation of two roof lights to the roof slope. 

06/04/2008

Evie Learman

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Miss Rachel JamesApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Miss Rachel James

Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

2008/1311

48 - 50 Well Street & 30 - 
32 Shore Road E9

Submission of details pursuant to clause 3.2 of the Deed 
of Variation dated 17th February 2006

06/06/2008

Paul Roberts

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Marcin PiersiakApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Islington & Shoreditch 
Housing Association 

7226 3753/ 7704 734Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1353

221 Victoria Park Road 
London E9 7HD

Erection of a three-storey side extension, installation of 
a new shopfront, new boundary gate and railings.

06/04/2008

Tyler Sharratt

020 8968 4201

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Ms Julia HorsfallApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Mr Gordon Curtis

020 7636 4875Tel:

Agent:
17/07/08

2008/1399

28 Shore Road London 
E9 7TA

Application for the discharge of condition 4(Materials) 
attached to planning application 2007/2312.

06/04/2008

Michael Garvey

020 7264 8600

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Stock/WoolstencroftApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Stock/Woolstencroft

020 7264 8600Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 42

P
age 492



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

WK

2007/3100

Ground Floor Store Room 
Alpha Court 1A Hassett 
Road
London E9 5SW

Conversion of ground floor store room to create a 
self-contained one-bed flat together with installation of 
a new window at rear ground floor. 06/05/2008

Colin Leadbeatter

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Logic Plough LtdApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Logic Plough Ltd

0208 429 6710Tel:

Agent:
24/07/08

2007/3268

Hackney Hospital, 
Kenworthy Road, London 
E9 6BE

Erection of balconies at four locations within the 
curtilage of the hospital (Elizabeth Fry, Whitbread, and 
John Howard Buildings).04/28/2008

Graham Callam

0207 655 400

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision The East London & 
City Mental Health

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Sonnemann Toon 
Architects Lip

0207 580 8881Tel:

Agent:
02/07/08

2008/0579

19 - 45 Wallis Road
London   E9 5EH

Submission of detail pursuant to condition 16 & 18 
(drainage) of planning approval 2007/0965 dated 
18/06/200703/12/2008

Paul Roberts

0207 870 9300

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Capita SymondsApplicant:
Date:

Approved

Capita Symonds

0207 870 9300Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

2008/0600

Felstead Street Hackney 
Wick London   E9 5LQ

Conversion of 2 x 8 bed units into 4 x 4 bed units and 
the provision of a plant room at basement level.

06/11/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Stephen Davy Peter 
Smith Architects 

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Stephen Davy Peter 
Smith Architects 

020 7739 2020Tel:

Agent:
11/07/08

Delegated Decisions 43

P
age 493



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/0601

Felstead Street
Hackney Wick
London  E9 5LQ

Conversion of the water tank area to a 1 bed flat on the 
first floor of the building.

04/18/2008

Erich Wessels

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Stephen Davy Peter 
Smith Architects 

Applicant:
Date:

Approved

Stephen Davy Peter 
Smith Architects 

020 7739 2020Tel:

Agent:
15/07/08

2008/0962

249 Wick Road London 
E8 5DG

Change of use from retail (Class A1) to 
restaurant/takeaway (Class A3/A5) together with the 
erection of an extractor flue to the rear; hours of 
operation 12:00 to 23:00 hours every day.

04/22/2008

Belinda Riley

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Dilawar SinghApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Mr Chana

0208 551 6396Tel:

Agent:
10/07/08

2008/1135

62-67 Felstead Street
Hackney
London
E9 5LT

Retention of an external extractor flue to the side 
elevation.

06/03/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Turkmen SahinApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Narts

020 7241 3636Tel:

Agent:
28/07/08

2008/1219

40 Terrace Road London 
E9 7ES

Enlargement of front lightwell for creation of new 
access to lower ground floor with railing surround.

05/20/2008

Evie Learman

020 8598 8624

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr MHV PatelApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Charterhouse Design 
and Build Limited

020 8598 8624Tel:

Agent:
03/07/08

2008/1261

226/228 Homerton High 
Street, Homerton London 
E9 6AS

Installation of a new Automatic Teller Machine 

06/04/2008

Yousef Bahadur

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Post Office LtdApplicant:
Date:

Approved

BP & H Services Ltd.

0118 976 2513Tel:

Agent:
21/07/08

Delegated Decisions 44

P
age 494



Application Details Decision Agent / Officer 
Details

Applicant DetailsDescription:

2008/1354

Unit 11 Trafalgar Mews 
London  E9  5JG

Erection of two storey roof extension to provide 1 x 2 
bed flat.

06/10/2008

Bernard Haasbroek

020 8969 8302

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr Norman CullApplicant:
Date:

Refused

Evonort Ltd

020 8510 9311Tel:

Agent:
17/07/08

2008/1435

Building M7- Zone 1
Stratford City Site
Stratford Rail Lands

Reserved Matters application pursuant to conditions B1, 
B8 & B10 of outline planning permission (siting, 
design, external appearance and means of access) for 
building M7 (Block 13 in ZMP for zone 1 - 
construction of 15,120 square meter office floor space.

06/09/2008

Anthony Traub

App No:

Address:

Registered:
Tel:

Officer:

Decision:

Decision Mr J ShimmenApplicant:
Date:

NOB

Olympic Delivery 
Authority

Tel:

Agent:
18/07/08

Delegated Decisions 45

P
age 495



P
age 496

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 24 July 2008
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 4 August 2008
	6 Senate House, Tyssen Street
	7 Babik House, 124 - 130 Shacklewell Lane
	8 Avigdor Site, 65-67 Lordship Road
	9 Olympics and Paralympics Site - Hackney and adjoining Boroughs: Land between River Lea Navigation, A12 East Cross Route, River Lea and Silverlink Railway Line
	10 James Taylor Building, Collent Street
	11 HANOVER IN HACKNEY PLANNING APPLICATIONS - INTRODUCTION
	12 A. Appleton Court, 5 Marcon Place
	13 B. Plumpton Lodge, 59 Caldecott Way
	14 C. Keswick Lodge, Cumberland Close
	15 D. Newnton Close, Woodberry Down Estate
	16 E. Bayton Court, Lansdowne Drive
	17 F. 2-20 Lauriston
	18 G. Benabo Court, Ferncliffe Road
	19 H. 303 Green Lanes
	20 I. Cester Street
	21 J. Morrel Court, 91 Goldsmiths Row
	22 K. Parton Lodge, 16 Laurel Street
	23 L. Thirlmere House, Howard Road
	Item 11 - Hanover Recommendations

	24 Site Adjacent to 49 Glenarm Road
	25 St Mary's Old Church, Stoke Newington Church Street
	26 10 Mountgrove Road
	27 13 Gunton Road
	28 157 Blackstock Road
	29 No.s 1-22 Bramfield Court, 1-47 Theobalds Court & 20-42
	30 Delegated Decisions - July 2008

